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Loblaw Companies Limited (“Loblaw™ or the “Company”) is Canada's largest food distributor
and a leading provider of general merchandise products, drugstore and financial products
and services. Through its various operating banners, Loblaw is committed to providing
Canadians with a one-stop destination in meeting their food and household needs. This goal
is pursued through a portfolio of store formats across the country. Loblaw is known for the
quality, innovation and value of its food offering. It also offers Canada's strongest control label
program, including the unique President's Choice, no name and Joe Fresh Style brands.

Food is at the heart of its offering. Loblaw stores provide a wide, growing and successful

range of products and services to meet the everyday household demands of Canadian consumers.

In addition, President’s Choice Financial services offer core banking, a popular MasterCard®,
PC Financial auto, home, travel and pet insurance, PC Mobile phone services as well as the
PC points loyalty program.

Loblaw is committed to a strategy developed under three core themes: Simplify, Innovate

and Grow. The Company strives to be consumer focused, cost effective and agile, with the

goal of achieving long term growth for its many stakeholders. Loblaw befieves that a strong
balance sheet is critical to achieving its potential. It is highly selective in its consideration

of acquisitions and other business opportunities. The Company maintains an active product
development program to support its control label program. it works to ensure that its technology
and systems logistics enhance the efficiency of its operations,

Over 139,000 full-time and part-time employees execute its business strategy in more than
1,000 corporate and franchised stores from coast ta coast. This makes Loblaw one of Canada's
largest private sector employers. It strives to contribute to the communities it serves and to
be proactive in corporate citizenship.

Forward-Looking Statements

Tins Annuat Report, which consists of the Annual Sunmary and the financial Report, contains forward-logking statements which reflect management's
expectations and are coatained in discussions regarding the Company's chject:ves. plans, goals, 2spirabons, strategies, potental future growth, results of
operatins, performance and business prospects and opportunities. Forward-lacking statements ace typicaly. theugh nct atways, identitied by words o
phrases such 25 “antcipates” “expects’. “believes”, "estmates”, “intends” and other smilar expressons.

These tarward-locking statements are not guatartees, but only predictions. Although 1he Company beltves that fese statements ar¢ based on information

£od assumptions which are tument. reasonable ad compiete, these statements are necessanly subject ta @ number of faclors hat could Sacse atlual results
12 vary signiticantly from the estimates. projections and intentions. Such diferences may be caused by tactors which nelude. bt ate rol himited to, changes

1 consumer spending and preferences, keighiened competition intluding new comp and o curient iors. ehanges in the Company's o
it competitois' pricing stralegies. the atalzy to realize anticipated cost sawngs and etficienties, intluding these resulting from restictuning invericry
liquigztion and cther cost reduction and simplification imtialives, the abifity to execute restrscluring plans, impiement strategies and introdute mngvaiive
products suctessfully and in a timely manner, changes in the markets for the wveatory intended for fiquidation 2nd changes in the expected rezfizable

value and costs associatzd wilh Lhe liguidalion, enanticipated, ingreased or decreased costs associated with the announced initiatwves, including thase related
19 compensation costs, the Company 's relationship with its employees. results of labaur negotiations including the terms of futurs colleclive bargaining
ageements, changes to the regulatory enviranmenl in which the Compary operales now ot in Lhe fulwre. changes in the Company’s 1aa hiabilities. either thraugh
thanges in tax faws or future assessments, performance of third-party service prawiders, public health events. the ability of the Company to attract and retain
key evacutives and sepply and qualty eentol 15sues with vendors. The calcutation of the goodwill impairment chaige descrbed in this Annual Repert invotves
the esimation of several vanzbles. inclugiag but nol Emited to matket muiliples, armected fulre sales, eatnings. tapital investiert. diszount rates, terminat
growth rates and the fzir va'ves of those assets and liadites being valued, The Company cautions that this bst of factors is not exhaustive.

The assumptons apglied in making the forward-locking statemerits containeg in this Annual Repoet inclirde the iallowing, economic congdinons ¢o rot
matenally change from thase expected, patierns of consumer ssending are reasonabdy cansistent with Listorical trends, no new sipnificant compgtitces enter
aur markels not does any existing compatitor unexpectedly signriicantly increase its presence, neither the Company's nies its compettors' pricing strateges
change materially, the Company suctessiully offecs new and innovative products and executes its stralegies as planned. anticipated cosl savings and
efficiencies are reakized as planned, continuing future restructuring activities are effectively executed in a timely manaer, casts associatad with the liguidation
of inveniory are nat higher or lower than expegied, the Company’s 2ssumptions regarding average compensation costs and average years of service for
employees affected by the simplification initiatives are matertally correct, the Company does nat significantly change its approach t its current resiructuring
athvities, there is na ratenzl amournt of excess inventory im the Campany s supply cham, there 212 na matenal work stoppages and the performance of
turd-party serace providess 1S 1 accardance with expectations.

These estinates and assurmptions may changs in the tutere due to uncertaim competive and economit mahet candibcns or changes in business wresges.
This bist of factors and other risks and uncertainties are discussed in tha Company s materials hled with the Canadian secunties iezulatoly authorites
from ime to time, incliding the Risks and Rish managemert section of the Financial Repoit.

Potertial investars and other seaders ara urged to consider these fartors cacelufly in evaluating these forward-locking statements and 2re cautioned riot

1o place undue relrance on thero. The lorward-toaking statements includad in this Annual Report, are made only as of Ihe filing date of this Annual Repors and
the Company disclaims any obligalion or intention to publicly update these forward-lacking statements to reflect new informatics, futurg events or stherwise
In [ight of these risks, uncertainties and assumptiens, he forward-looking events contained in these formard-leoking statements may o1 may rot occur,

The Company canngt asswie that projected rese'ts of events will be 2cheved.

2006 Annual Summary Loblaw Companies timited

Contents
2006 Annual Summary
2 Tracking Our Progress
4 Financizl Highlights
5 Report of Operations
12 Our Stores
14 Commuaity Support
15  Corporate Sacial Respensibility
16 Summary of Corporate Governance Practices
18 Operational Directory and Officers
19 Board of Direcfors
20 Shareholder and Corporate Information

As part of our fresh thinking we are now intreducing
add:tional information on our websites at;

www.joe.ca




Late 2006 marked the beginning of a period of significant change for

Loblaw Companies Limited. Changes in direction were made to focus on

the strategic longer term objective of making Loblaw the best again.

Facing an increasingly competitive marketplace, Loblaw continues to
maximize the return on its assets under the themes “Simplify, Innovate, Grow.
By concentrating on its strengths — great brands, great stores and great
people — Loblaw’s goal is to enhance value for consumers and shareholders.
The Company is simplifying its organization by redesigning processes

and structures to ensure that the business becomes more efficient and agile.
Innovation has been a cornerstone of Loblaw’s success: the Company strives
to be the best at making healthy living affordable for all Canadians and

to offer general merchandise and other services that enhance the customer
experience. The Company’s “Formula for Growth” defines priorities while

the 100 Day Review provides the roadmap for achieving them. With these

Initiatives in place, Loblaw looks forward to a challenging and rewarding future.

!






21 Million
| Kilograms
i of fresh produce ‘

delivered every week

For mare information about our offerings,
visit our websile at:

Q www.loblaw.ca




Simplify

The Company is simplifying its
organization by more clearly defining
accountabilities and establishing
consistent, simple and efficient
pracesses. Intemnal resources have been

dedicated fo assessing and, where
appropriate, redesigning processes as
welt as developing a short list of key
performance indicators focused on
customers and store operations.

Innovate
Innovation is one of the many strengths
of Loblaw, most clearly exhibited

by its exciting control iabel offerings.
Through ongeing innovation, the
Cempany concentrates on being the best
at making healthy living affordable fo

20086 Progress

« Continued efforts to restructure
the supply chain, which proved to
be more complex and costly than
originally anticipated. By year end,
the supply chain stabilized and
dehvered improved service levefs

« Planned and developed organizational
transition, focused on redesigned
processes and a leaner administrative
structure

» Established key performance
indicators beginning with the work of
the Positive Action Groups, described
under Grow

Each and every week :

12 Million

Canadians choose
to shop with us

2007 Expectations

« Continwe remaining phases of national
supply chain restructuring, while
delivering consistent and improved
service and in-stock availability
to our customers

= Approve and implement organizaticnal
transition and put redesigned
processes into practice

« Enhance four distinctive formats ~
Superstore, Great Food, Hard Discount
and Wholesale — to meet the nseds
of diverse markets across the country

Corporate Stores Sales
per Average Square Foot

®
$610

s 7 -
560
525

510 ! N
2002 2003° 2004 2005 2006
- Cotporate Siares Sa'es
per Average Scuare Foot
(1 K3 wax 2 43 work pea

2006 Progress

« Launched Jfog Fresh Style in

April 2006 with positive consumer
response, including selling over
200,000 hasic T-shirts since launch
» Developed and distributed a record
six issues of the lnsider’s Report

to keep customers informed about
exciting new products and services.
« Qver ten million homes in Canada
received the fasiders Report

this year

« Over 2,000 new control label
products faunched

£0.000

30000

20000

10000

Corporate Stores
Square Footage
{thousands of sq. f1.)

nod

002 1003 26
L1 > E9060sa #

R e e e et

I
i
i

-

45000-50.000 55 1.

=3 < 4)000sy. 1



Avclage Shwe e - 33

all Canadians and, in larger stores,
providing general merchandise and
firancial services that offer customers
a great one-stop shopping experience
for all their daily househeld needs.

2007 Expectations

* Controt labe! initiatives will be at the
heart of Loblaw's culture of innovation

* Increase new control label

* Expand Joe Fresh Style into

children’s clothing and accessores

* Intensify innovation of President’s
Chaice products, including President’s
Choice Blue Menu as a lzading fine
of consumer-friendly, heaithy foods

60.000

45000

36,000

15000

produtct launches and remove

underperforming items

Average Slore Size
and Number of Stores

e m—————

e . e
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wn Nymber of Cormorate Stres

ne

525

350

Grow

The Formula for Growth encompasses:

» Best Format

« Fresh First — best fresh food offering

* Control Labe] Advantage

= Joe Fresh Style — ensuring great style
at an affordable price

» Health, Home and Wholesome —
making healthy living affordable

* Priced Right — providing best value

* Always Available — best in-stock
positions

» Friendly Colleagues Motivated to Serve

The Formula for Growth reflects the

Company’s customer focus and efforts

to ensure an integrated offering of food,

general merchandise and drugstore.

2006 Progress

» Commenced 100 Day Review of
key drivers of the business

» Established first phase of Positive
Action Groups, dedicated to produce
meaningful action on individual
strategic issues

» Continued major projects underway

» Reached a labour agreement in Ontario
which will allow store conversions

Retail Square Footage
and Percentage Increase
(thousands of sq. ft.}

50,600 0%
17,500 15
25,060 10

12300 \/\ 5
0

202 2003 2004 2005 2006

Franchised
Corperate
=m Perceniage increase

2007 Expectations

* Implement simple key performance
indicators and metrics to measure the
eiements of the Formula for Growth

* Adopt “Fresh Walk” to measure and
stistain high standards for all stores

= Introduce dedicated stock control
employees and replenishment processes
to support on-shelf availability

* Launch “engaged” colleagues program




50 Million
square feet of retail

space from coast
1o coast i

Number of Stores

22
53
14

106
20
9
9%
16

Aftantic Savekasy

Attantic Superstore

Dominion*

{in Newfoundland and Labrador)
Extra Faods

Fortinos

Loblaws

Maxi

Maxi & Cie

*Trademark used under license.

134 Na Frills
105 Provigo
97 The Real Canadian Superstore
37 The Real Canadian Wholesale Club
23 SuperValu
68 Valu-mart
51 Your Independent Grocer
50 Zehrs
515 Cash & Carry and other bannars






Financial Highlights

For the years ended December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005

($ millions except where otherwise indicated)

Operating Results

Sales®

Sales excluding the impact of VIEs @@
Adjusted EBITDA®

Operating income

Adjusted gperating income®?

Interest expense

Net (loss) earnings

Cash Flow

Cash flows from operating activities
Free cash flow™®

Capital invastment

Per Comman Share (5)

Basic net {loss) earnings

Adjusted basic net earnings®
Dividend rate at year end

Cash flows from operating activities
Book value

Market price at year end

Financial Ratios

Adjusted EBITDA margin*®

(Operating margin

Adjusted operating margin®

Return on average total assets™
Return on average shareholders’ equity
Interest coverage

Net debt®™ to equity

Operating Statistics
Retail square foatage (in mitiens)
Average corporate store size (square feet

Corporate stores sales per average square foot )

Same-store sales grawth
Number of corporate stores
Number of franchised stores

2006 2005
{52 weeks) {52 weehs)
$ 28,640 $ 2627
28,257 27212
1,892 2,132
289 1,401
1,326 1,600
259 252
{219) 746
1,180 1,489
10 103

931 1,156
{.80) 272
212 3.35
.84 B4
431 5.43
19.85 2448
48.719 56.37
6.7% 7.8%
10% 3.1%
4.1% 59%
2.3% 11.2%
(3.9%) 13.2%
1.0:1 511
121 66:1
497 48.5
97,400 56,100
585 579
8% 2%
672 670
405 402

{1) For financial definitions and ratics refer w the Glossary of Terms on page 80 in the Financia! Report.

[2) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40 in the Financial Report.

(3) Curing 2006, the Company implemented Emerging Issues Committee Abstract 156, “Accounting by a Vendor for Considerafion
Given to a Customer (including 3 Reseller of the Yendor s Products)” on a retraactive basis. Accordingly certain sales incentives
paid to ingependent franchisees, associates and independant accaunts for the prior year have been reclassified between szles
and cost af sates, selling and administrative expenses. For a furthes discussion, see the Accounting Standards Implemented in
2005 section in the Management's Discussion and Anzlysis in the Financial Report contained in this Annuat Report.
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Report of Operations™
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2006 was a challenging year for Loblaw Companies Limited
(“Loblaw” or the “Company™"). We faced significant hurdles,
took stock of obstacles to profitahility and growth, and assessed
the considerable strengths that have made us Canada's
pre-eminent food retailer.

We enter 2007 with a new leadership team, a resolve to
restore Loblaw to strong profitability and growth, and a game
plan far deing it.

Our plan is built on three pillars: “Simplify, lnnovate, Grow".
And it has one goal: To Make Loblaw the Best Again.

This Annual Report addresses, in detail, our Company's
performance in 2006. Many of the difficulties we faced were the
culmination of two important factors. First, there have been
significant changes in how food retailers compete and how

cansumers shop in Canada.

(1) See Forward-Looking Statements on the inside frant cover.
(2) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40 in the Financial Report,

L T T G N R S

The second is Loblaw's own structure, with is histary of
mergers and acquisitions. The arganization is more complex and
less responsive than it should have been. These two trends
collided in 2006. Loblaw lacked the structural agility and vigour
to address its changing environment.

Sales for the year were $28.6 billion compared to $27.6 billion
tn 2005, which represented a 3.7% improvement over last year.
The Company earned $1.3 billion of adjusted operating income™
in 2006, compared to $1.6 billion in 2005. Including a non-cash
goodwill impairment charge and other significant non-routing
costs, hasic net loss per common share for the year was $0.80
compared to basic net earnings per common share of $2.72
last year. This was the Company’s first annual fess in nineteen
years. Adjusted basic net earnings per common share™ for

the year declined to $2.72 in 2006 from $3.35 in the prior year.
Excluding the impact of necessary short term costs associated
with one of the largest transformations in the Company's
history, Loblaw stilt earned $1.9 billion in Adjusted EBITDA®.

2006 Annual Summary Lobilaw Companies Limited &
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Our 100 Day Review The findings of the PAGs gave us the fact-base from which senior

Last Qetober, we initiated a 100 Day Review, This Review 7
included visits with every store manager and "total immersion”
sessions with every key function, where we took the temperature
of the organization and heard from our frontling colleagues

what they thought. This gave us an insight into the challenges
we faced and the depth of talent that we had in the organization.

We atso put each key driver of our business under intease
scrutiny. Much of this work was conducted by Positive Action
Groups (“PAGs"} made up of some of our most talented
employees from across the organization. The mandate of the
PAGs was to report back within 40 days on critical issues and

haw to resolve them. In particular, the PAGS were asked:

= Where do we stand on customer satisfaction — availability,

value-for-money, assortment and our store environments?

« How do we perform on retailing basics — store operations,
supply chain and information technology?

* How can we make our organization more agile and more

focused on stores and customers?

6 2006 Annual Summary Loblaw Companies Limited

management could make informed decisions to move forward.

Core Strengths: We have a large number of strengths on which to

build - and many of these are unrivalled.

Over

2,000

new control label
products introduced
in 2006 '

We start with the number one food market share in every region
and in Canada as a whole. Gur control label brands, and
particularly President’s Choice, no name and Joe fresh Style,

are among the best control fabel brands in Canada.

The sites from which we aperate our stores are well positioned
within their markets. Our stores are more modern, on

average, than our competitors’ stores, and Loblaw owns more
of the stores from which we operate than any other publicly
traded retailer in Canada. Qur strong balance sheet in
combination with Adjusted EBITDA™ of $1.9 billien for 2006
gives us the potential to expand and refurbish our retail space,

increase price competitiveness and invest in infrastructure.

11} See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40 in the Financial Report.




Finally, we have over 139,000 calleagues in stores, distribution
centres and store support centres who are eager for Loblaw
to succeed.

A number of key actions taken in 2006 wili make an important
contribution to getting Loblaw back on track:

« Labour Relations — Loblaw was able to reach a new four-year
collective agreement with members of Ontario locals of the
Umited Food and Commercial Workers union in 2606, ensuring
stability and providing increased operating efficiencies on

a store by store basis.

» Store Closures — As part of a review of store operations,

management approved a plan to close underperforming stores.

* [nventory Liquidation — The Company managed inventory levels
down to mare desirable levels in store backrooms, cutside
storage as well as in distribution centres. Some success was
realized in late 2006 from focused clearance pricing as
well as the initiation of a liquidation process for selected

general merchandise inventory.

Qur plan to Simplify, Innovate, Grow will begin to hit its stride
from mid-2007 onwards.

Over

1 Million

packages of Chocolate
Chunk Brownie cookies
sold upon launch

Simplify

Operating a less complicated business is the first crucial step

on our journey and it requires a new structure.

Foltowing a thorough review of retail and merchandising functions
and processes across the Company, Loblaw took the difficuit but
necessary decision in fanuary 2007, to eliminate 800 to 1,000
pasitiens in the National Head Office and Store Support Centre

and regional offices — but without affecting staffing at store level.

Ws have started to simplify Loblaw by defining roles more clearly,
making individual managers more accountable for perfarmance,
and eliminating duplication between the national store support
centre and the regions. We are centralizing where centralization
counts, such as in purchasing, so that we leverage our national
scale advantage. Project Simplify entails centralizing the
merchandising and marketing functions, implementing agilg,
execution-focused store operation functions and creating and

designing new husiness processes to support the new structure.
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Canada has many regional differences and as part of the new
structure, we have created a new “Format Captain” role to
ensure that each of Loblaw’s retail formats is more nationally
consistent with each other, yet is responsive to varying

consumer needs across oUF regions.

Wa are fixing the retailing basics through the introduction

of more consistent supply chain and store processas.

The Loblaw supply chain is now operating as a single national
function instead of being regionally fragmented. The focus

is on end-to-end supply chain effectiveness and improving
avatlability, including forecasting, store-friendly deliveries

from distribution ¢centres, and receiving and replenishment
processes in stores. A national information technology platform
continues to be carefully implemented with a focus on

simple, proven solutions designed to provide management

with the information it needs to run the business every day.
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The resulting leaner crganization will measure its progress
against specific, focused key performance indicators and will
reflect the elements of the Company’s “Formula for Growth”,
described under “Grow”

Innovate

Innovation has been a cornerstone of Loblaw's success. We will
reemphasize innovation as a source of competitive advantage.

Control fabel brands will be at the heart of that strategy.

Qur flagship President’s Choice (*PC"}, one of the most trusted
brands in Canada, will play a pivotal role. We will accelerate
the development of new PC products while revitalizing

the President’s Chosce Insitler’s Report, President's Chorce
Biue Menu, a leading healthy food line in Canada, and

PC Home. Our other important control fabel brands, from

no name to Joe Fresh Style, will be carefully expanded sa that
we enhance Loblaw’s reputation for excitement and for offering
the latest in food and general merchandise. We wilt continue

to leverage the PC brand to drive growth in our financial services

and mebile phone services.

Loblaw intends to re-establish its position as one of the warld's
most innovative fresh food retailers. Our new store at Maple Leaf

Gardens in Toronta will be our national flagship for fresh foed.

T
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For mare information about our offerings,
visit our websites at:

Q www.loblaw.ca mwww.pc.ca www.joe.ca
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Grow Formula for Growth
Loblaw’s Formula for Growth, which focuses on what matters
. . Best Format
to customers — from our unique products to making sure
that we are always in-stock, will guide our growth strategies  Aways huailable Eresh First
. . . . . ks ~
and tactics. For instance, one issue is that our store formats : N
are no longer distinctive enough. We believe that we can ) /cmleagF;fsmrldIthate d\\
’ to Serve Control Labet

significantly reduce our cost base so that we can reinvest

in stores and provide better customer service — while at

the same time creating more value for sharehotders. Our growth
aspirations are that each of our three retail formats —
Superstore (like the Real Canadian Superstore), Great Food
(like Lobfaws) and Hard Discount {like no frifls)
format-leading comparable store growth and that Loblaw

— will have

as a whole will grow market share in every region of Canada.

“Best Format™: The Real Canadian Superstore (“RCSS™) will
be the key platform for growth. We will continue to redesign
and refit these stores to appeal to all customer segments, with
our first redesigned RCSS in Ontario to open in the fall of 2007

At the same time, our Great Food stores will focus on customers

45

kids on our panel

taste every President’s
Choice Mini Chefs
product

10 2006 Annual Summary Loblaw Companies Limited

Priced Right L s . ©hdvantage

*" Health, Home
-, and Wholesome .

10% foe

who simply want outstanding food, while our Hard Discount
farmat will continue to serve customers who desire convenience
and great value. We will strive to ensure that the store format

is the best one for each site.

“Fresh First”: Fresh First continues to be a strategic

imperative for Loblaw. A “Fresh Walk™ process is being introduced
to measure and sustain high standards across ali of our
formats. Loblaw is committed to raising presentation and

quality standards, while minimizing waste, to match the

best in North America.

“Cantral Label Advantage”: Our controf label brands, including
President’s Choice, no name and Joe Fresh Style, will he

at the centre of our culture of innovation. In the next three to
five years, we seek to achieve 30% of total sales from our

controf label products.




1st Place
won by our PC
Smokin’ Stampede

Beer and Chipotle
Barbecue Sauce

“10% loe”: The Joe Fresh Style label is Loblaw's original
apparel brand, with significant growth potential. We will extend
this brand into accessories and children's clothing, while
increasing the retail square footage of Joe Fresh Styfe in our
larger store formats. Our overall goal is to build Joe into a

$1 billion sales brand.

“Health, Home and Wholesome": Loblaw aims to make healthy
living affordable for all Canadians with product lines such

as President’s Choice Otganics, President’s Choice Blue Menu
and EXACT, and by bringing together our community spaces,
pharmacies, dietitians and fitness clubs in a way we believe that

no competitor can duplicate.

“Priced Right": We will improve the way we invest in price
and the way we communicate in-store to ensure we get credit

for the value we offer

“Always Available”: Through new forecasting and replenishment
tools, our goal is to have consistent availability in both food and

general merchandise in all of our stores.

(1) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40 in the Financial Report.

“Friendly Colleagues Motivated to Serve”: At the centre of our
growth strategy are our employees. Across our organization, there
are 139,000 employees who will execute this strategy. We will
provide cur team with the training they need to meet custemer
needs. In 2007, we will introduce a new share ownership program

to help align employee goals with Company strategies.

By effectively implementing the Formula for Growth, management
aspires to achieve, on average, 5% sales growth, 10% adjusted

net earnings™ growth and $250 million free cash flow™

Simplify, Innovate, Grow is an ambitious plan. It is a plan that
has been carefully considered and is achievable and already well
underway. It is a plan that is conceived and deeply committed

to by the new team of senior executives that | have the privilege
to fead. And it is one endorsed and embraced by our most
important asset — our Loblaw colleagues across Canada. Indeed,
itis a plan that once complete, will give our employees the

toals they need to do what they do best — serve millions

of customers in virtually every community in this great country.

At key moments in sts history, Loblaw has been faced with
difficult challenges. Each time, it rose to those challenges —
transforming itself and Canadian retailing by setting standards
admired worldwide. It is that same spirit and determination
that inspires the women and men of our Company today to
Make Loblaw the Best Again.

N

Galen G. Weston
Executive Chairman
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Qur Stores

Store Formats

Corporate Franchised Associated  Independant

Stores Stores Steres Aecounts  Warehouses
Superstore
Atlantic Superstore 53
Dominion™ (n Mewfoundlznd and Labradon 14
The Real Canadian Superstore 97
Great Food L T SR
Atiantic SaveFasy 1 44 7 ‘/ A
Fortinos 20 ol G U
Loblaws a1
Provigo 80 21 4
Supervalu 1 15
Valu-mart 5 11
Your Independent Grocer 50 1
Zehus 50
Other 2 3 282
Hard Discount
Extra Foods 79 27
Max 96
Maxi & Cie 16
No Frills 134
Wholesale =
Cash & Carry 35 139
Presto 20
The Rea! Canadian Wholesale Club 37
Total 672 405 451 1,323 26

*Trademark used under license.

- —a

A key objective of the Company’s new arganizational skructure that is being put

in place in 2007, is to ensure execution through a market-focused retail arganizaion
while ensuring consistent key format strategies and standards coast to coast.

To support merchandising and marketing, the Company will be organized around
four format strategies, Superstore, Great Food, Hard Discount and Wholesale.

[T
- R

For more information about our offerings.
visit our website at:

. . www.loblaw.ca
12 2006 Annual Summary Leblaw Cempanies Limited







Community Support

Acting with its employees, the Company supports and contributes fo local organizations through its various operating divisions by
spansoring numerous charitable fundraising activities and initiating work experience programs for the physically and developmentally
~ challenged. The following are examples of our community involvement in 2006:

A message trom Peggy Hornell, Director, Fundraising and
Administration, President’s Choice Children's Charity:

President’s Choice Children's Charity is dedicated to helping
children who are physically or developmentally challenged.

President's Choice Children’s Charity had an outstanding year in 2008,
Through the President s Choice Decadent cookie and Jaden Charity Bear
promotions, and other naticnal and regional fundraising activities, the
President’s Choice Children’s Charity raised $9.4 million. This money will
be directed towards helping more than 765 families across Canada.

This year, we launched our Charity Bear program with Jader, named after
ene of the 15,000 children helped by PCCC across Canada. Jaden is 10 years
old, has cerebral palsy and uses a wheelchair. President s Choice Children's
Charity gave Jaden and his family the help to buy a new wheelchair

accessible van.

Thanks to the support of Loblaw, its employees and customers, President’s
Choice Children's Charity wilt continue to make difficult lives a little easier.

Cambridge Memorial

Hospital Foundation

Supparts the hogpital in rising funds

far medical equipment, infrastructure
and education of healthcare professionals
in order to meet the healthcare needs

of the community.

Food Banks (across Canada)

Supporting non-profit organizations

that procure, warehouse and disiribute food
te member social service agencies.

Grocery Industry Fourdation... Topether
{GILET)

Provides funding to various Ontario
charities dedicated to assisting children
facing physical, intellectual ar

ecanamic chalienges.

14 2006 Anaual Summary Loblaw Companies Limited

Heart and Stroke Foundation of Canada
Dedicated to impsovirg the heaith

of Canadians by preventing and reduging
diszbilty and death from heart disease
and stroke through research, heatth
prametion and advocacy.

ROM Foundation

Contributions fund galleries, curatorial
research, and programs for children
and ensure long term stability of

the Royal Ontarin Museum.

United Way - Ceatraide (across Canada}
Committed 1o improving lives and

buikling community by engaging individuals
and mobilizing collective action.

Une entreprise
génbreyse

Ghlldrens charut

Moking dificuh lives o little sosier.

[ g s

www.prasidentschoice.co

More than

163

Caring Company

families helped
in 2006 by the
President’s Choice
Children's Charities

THE W. GARFIELD WESTON

<~ FOUNDATION ==

The W. Garfield Westan Foundation is a private Canadian charitable
foundation associated with the Company. Its grants are directed
primarily to specific organizations in the fields of education and
environment. These include the Canadian Merit Scholarship
Foundation, the Children First: School Choice Trust, the Royal Ontario
Museum and the Weston Family Innovation Centre at the Ontario
Science Centre. From coast to coast, the Foundation also works with
the Nature Conservancy of Canada to protect critical habitat.

v
H



Corporate Social Responsibility
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These commitments are instilled throughout the organization and are overseen by the Environmental, Health and Safety Committee
of the Board of Directors (the “Board™) of the Company, and by the full Board itself. The Board reviews and monitors policies,
procedures, practices and compliance in these fields. Initiatives in these areas are undertaken through any combination of four
approaches: by the Company itself, in conjunction with other industry members, as part of indusiry-government partnerships, and
in direct cooperation with governments,

Respecting the Environmest

in a Sustainable Way

The commitment to the environment is
dzmonsirated through measures in
such areas as environmental awareness
and management. energy efficiency,
waste management and packaging.

Environmental Awareness Management
Measures in this area are driven by an
Eavironmental Management System desiged
to achieve the structured integration of
environmental programs into the Company's
operations. This system also focuses on
ensuring the control of high-risk activities, the
management of hazardous wastes. and the
control and reduction of ozone-depleting
substances. Environmental risk assessments
and audits of ongoing and newly atguired or
established operations are conducted on a
regular basis by in-house environmental stafi
as well as by external parties. In addition,
employees receive education and training that
enablz them to recognize and minimize
environmental risks and to respond to any
incidents that might eccur,

Energy Efficiency

Ongoing efforts are directed lowards improving
energy efficiency throughout Loblaw, including
cooperating with federal and provincial
agencies. The areas in which these efficiencies
are pursued include the lighting used

inside and outside sores, energy-efficient
refrigeration. the use of energy in corparate
facilities, and the fuels used in the Company’s
transportation and other operations. In
September 2005, Loblaw opened its new,
energy-efficient National Head Office and Store
Support Centre in Brampton, Ontaric.

For more infermation,
visit our website at:

Q www.loblaw.ca

Furthermare, Loblaw has established
partnerships and commitments with fedesat
and provincial agancies to achieve energy
conservation at the retail store level in a
realistic and focused manner, including the use
of innovative refngeration system technolagy.

Waste Management and Packaging

Waste management programs {ollow a
three-stage process - source reduction,
diversion to re-use or recycling and. finally,
disposal. Loblaw is a long-standing supporter
of, and financial contributor to, such
industry-sponsored programs as Corporations
Supporting Recycling and the Composting
Coungil of Canada. This commitment is evident
throughaut the Company’s operations.

In-store photo labs recycle disposable cameras,
processing fluids and even film cuttings.
Post-consumer recyclod material is used in
private label packaging to the greatest exdent
possible without compromising the safety

or quality of the product. Packaging of control
label preducts is labelled as appropriate

with the symbois that help customers identify
materials that can be recycled through focal
muricipal programs. As well, customers are
offered a choice in grocery checkout packaging.
including conventional plastic shopping

bags, re-usable plastic bags. recyclable
corrugated containers and re-usable bins.
Also, this commitirent extends o the
adminisiration, support and corporate offices
of the Compary, where waste minimization
and recycling activities are actively employed.
These programs promote the diversion of
plastics, metals, paper, cornugate and organics
from landfill.

Premoting Health and Foed Safety

The commitment to healih promation and

food safety is reflected in the Company’s
participation in standard- seiting intiatives,

in its operations, in its dealings with suppliers,
and in the information provided to customers.

Tha Company supports natienal foad initiatives
designed to promote heatth and food safety. it
works to ensure that products mest or exceed
the food safety requirements of the Canadian
Food Inspection Agency. it alse participates in
nationat joint industry-govermment intiatives in
the development of food safety programs

for different parts of the food supply syslem.
Suppliers are informed of the standards to
which they must adhere and are expecied to
observe them. Manufacturing and food
handling procedures, employee education and
training programs, compliance systems and
independant audits are among the measures
used to promote food safety within the
Company's stores and other operations.
Through packaging and labelling of control
label products. customers are informed of
ingredients and whether certain products may
have coma in contact with one or more
allergens. This allows consumers to make
mare Tully informed purchasing decisicns.

(ffering Producis that Provide

Maaningtul Choices

The Company provides a wide range of product
offerings lo meet an equally wide range

of consumer preferences. This includes the
provision of allemative food products that
provide custemers with meaningful choices.

The environmentally responsible collection

of President’s Choice GREEN products

and the hundreds of President’s Chorce
Organics pducts have been developed to
satisty customers’ environmental or health
preferences. The erganic products are
third-party certified as organic. are in
packages containing recycied materials, and
are priced to be competitive with simifar
natienal brands. The Nafwal Valve department
in many stores is a one-stop source for heatth
food needs, affering a sefection of healihy

and nutritious alternative foods, vitaming ang
herbal products.

The focus on heatthy and nutritious food
preducts is further demaonsirated by the
cantinued expansion of product offerings under
the President’s Choice Mini Chefs and the
Fresiden!’s Chaice Blue Meny programs.

The line of PC Mini Chefs preducts has been
designed to fit into a heathy eating plan

for young children consistent with the federal
government's " Rutrition Recommendations
for Canadians.” These products have been
approved by a team consisting Gf prominent
nutrition researchers and registered digticizns,
The PC Blue Menu products, now numbering
over 250 preducts, offers adults a variety of
alternatives lower in fat. calories and sodium,
and higher in fibre.
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Summary of Corporate Governance Practices

AR P - .“.i'.\(“ ELD Y o g rasai 1T
Cmee ey rastare e Tng
DUV i e ea Cht e I L T N
- . n N —

e TR AP SO P sé.-fm,._,.’,ﬁ,.@ﬁ,fs‘g

P N A L 4 V\;LLJLL,é:.u‘;" ¥
. A P -

NN AT I R R A IR Y T ;rr.' I o SN DIt LT DY
3 ; RS T iR | TR R

T P A T U STV LY -V Gua‘u‘u,:[:.l'* Lhe

The Compary seeks to attain high standards of corporate governance and
when appropriate adopts “best praclices” in developing its approach to
corporate governance. The Company’s approach to corporate governance is
consistent with National Policy 58-201 — Corporate Governance Guidelines
{the "Guidelinas™). The Governance, Emplayee Development, Nominating
and Compensation Committee {"Governance Commitiee™} regularly reviews
its corporate governance practices and considers any changes necessary
to maintain the Company's high standards of corporate governance.

Director Independence

The Board is comprised of a majority of independent directors. The
Governance Committee has reviewed each director’s factual circumstances
and relatianships with the Company to determine whether he or she is
independent within the meaning of the Guidetines. The Guidelines provide that
a director is indenendent if he or she has no material relationship with the
Company or its affiliates that would reasonably be expected to interfere with
the director's independant judgment.

Board Leadership

Mr. Galer G. Weston is Fxecutive Chairman of the Company and Mr. Allan L.
Leighton is Dzputy Chairman. Mr. Weston has a significant common

interest with other shareholders with respect to value creation, the well-being
of the Company, and the performance of its publicly listed securities.

The Board has established a position description tor each of the Executive
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman. The Board has also appointed an
independant directar, Anthany S. Fell, 1o serve as lead director. The lead
diractar provides leadership 1o the Board and particulasly to the independent
diractors. He ensures that the Board operates independently of management
and that girectors have an independent leadership contact. As part of his
responsibilities, the lead director meets periodically with the other directors
to obtain insight as to areas where the Board and its Committees can
operate more effectively and to ensure the Board is able to discharge

its responsibilities independently of management. The Board has developed
a position description for the lead director.

Board Responsibilities and Duties

The Board. directly and ihrough its Committees, supervises the management
of the business and affairs of the Company with the goal of enhancing

long term shareholder value. The Board reviews the Company's direction,
assigns responsibility to management for achievement of that direction,
develops and approves major policy decisigns, delegates to management the
autharity and respensibility in day-lo-day affairs and reviews management's
perfarmance and effectiveness. The Board's expectations of management are
cerimunicated to management directly and through Cemmitiees of the Board.

1§ 2006 Annuai Summary Loblaw Companies Limited
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The Board approves the Company's carporate goals and objectives, operating
budgats and strategies, which take into account the opportunities and risks of
the business. Members of the Board attend an annual all-day strategy session
with management to discuss and review the Company's steategic plans

ard opportunities. In addition, management’s strengths and weaknesses are
discussed. Through the Audit Committee, the Board oversees the Company's
risk management framework and assesses and evaluates tha integrity

of the Company's internal controls and management information systems.
Through the Governance Committee, the Board oversees succession planiing
and compensation for senior management as well as Board naminges.

Individual directors may, with the approval of the lead director, retain an
outside advisor at the expense of the Company.

The Board requires that management seek directars’ review and appraval of:

« strategic corporate direction and corporate perfermance objectives;

« multi-year and annual business, capital and operaling plans and budgets;

+ material capital expenditures, acquisitions, divestitures and restructurings; and
= investment outside of the ordinary course of business.

These matters are in addition to those matters which are required by faw
to receive Board consideration and approval.

The Baard regularly receives reports on the operating results of the Company,
as well as timely reports on various matters, including insurance, pensions,
corporate governance, health and safety and treasury matters,

Ethical Business Conduct

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct (ihe “Cade™), sets out the
Company's long-standing commitment of requiring adherence ta high
standards of ethical conduct and business practices. The Code is reviewed
annually to ensure it is current and reflects best practices in the area of
ethical business cenduct. Directors, officers and employees of the Company
are tequired ta comply with the Code and must acknowledge their
commitment to ahide by the Code an & periodic basis. The Code is available
on the Company's website, www.lablaw.ca.

The Cede also deals with conflicts of interest. Should an officer, director or
employee have a conflict of interest with respect to any matter, that individual
is sequired to Bring the conflict to the atiention of the Ethics and Conduct
Committee and, if a director has a conflict with respect to any matter, he

or she may not participate in any discussion or vote on the conflict matter.
The Code also addresses such issues as the protection of confidential
information and the protection and proper use of the Company's assets.




The Company has established an Ethics and Conduct Committee which
reviews all material breaches of the Code. The Ethics and Conduct Committee
also aversees implementation of the Code, educating employees regarding
the Code and reviews the Code annually to determine i it requires revision.

The Company encourages the reporting of unethical bahaviour and has
established an Ethics Response Line, a toll-free number that any employee
or director may use to report conduct which he or she feeis violates he

Code or otherwise constitutes fraud or unethical conduct. A fraud reparting
arotocal has also been implementad to ensure that fraud is reported to

senior management in a timely manner. In addition, the Audit Committee

has endorsed procedures for the receipt, retention and handling of complaints
regarding accounting, infernal contrel or auditing matters. These procedures -
are available at www lohlaw.ca,

The Company has adopted a Vendor Code of Conduct that sets out the Cempany's
expectations of its vendor community with respect to ethical conduct and social
responsibilities. The Vendor Code deals with such matters as labour practices,
respect far the environment and compliance with various faws,

Audit Committee

All members of the Audit Committee must be independent and financially iterate as required under
epplicable rules. The Audit Committee is also responsible for supporting the Board in overseging
the integrity of tha Comipany ‘s financial reparting 2nd internal controls over financial reporting.
disclosure controls. internal audit function and its compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
The Audit Commitiee’s responsibiitties inchude:

recommending the appointment of the exiemal auditor;

reviewing the arrangements for and scope of the audit by the external auditer;

reviewing the independence of the external auditer:

teviewing and approving the Company's hiring palicies regarding partners and professional
emphoyees of the present and former external auditor of the Company;

considering and evalualing with management the adequacy and effectiveness of intemal cortrols
over financial reporting and disclosure controls 2nd procedures and reviewing any proposed
cormective actions;

reviewing and menitoring tha Company's pelicies relating to ethics and canflicts of interest:
overseeing proced ures for the receipt. retention and follow-up of complaints regarding the
Company s accounting intemal controls and auditing matters and the corfidentizl anonymous
submission by employees of concems regarding such matters:

reviewing and monitoring the intermal 2udit function of the Company;

revizwing the integrity of the Company's management and information systems;

reviewing and approving the audit fees paid to the external auditor and pre-approvai of non-audit
related fees to the external auditor;

distussing and reviewing with management and the extemal auditor the Company’s annual and
interim consglidated financia! statements. key reporting matters and Management's Discussion
and Analysis and Annual Information Form;

reviewing disclosure containing financial information based on the Company's financial
statements; and

reviewing with manzgement the principal risks of the Compary s business and the systems and
processes implemented to manage these risks.

-
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Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation Committee

The Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing the compensation of directors and executive
officers. The Governance Committee is also responsible for developing and maintaining govermance
practices consistent with high standards of corporate governance. As par of its mandate, the

Other Corparate Governance Matters

Disclosuie Policy The Board has reviewed and adopted a corperate Disclosure Policy to deal with
the timely dissemination of afl material information. A copy of the Disclosure Palicy is available
on the Company 's website, www loblaw.ca_ The Disclosure Policy, which is reviewed annually,
establishes consistent guidance for determining what information is material and how it is to

be disclosed to avaid seleclive disclosure and to ensure wide dissemination. The Board. diractly
and thiough its Commitiees, reviews and appreves the contents of major disclosyre documents.
including unaudited interim and audited 2anual consclidated financial statements. Management's
Discussion and Analysis, the Annual Information Form, 2nd the Proxy Circular, The Company
sesks to communicate to its shareholders through these documents as well as by means of news
releases, its wehsitz and investar refations meetings.

Board Committees

There are five committees of the Beard: Audit; Governance, Employes
Develapment, Nominating and Compensation; Pensign and Benefits;
Environmental, Health and Safety and Executive.

The Audit Committee is comprised solely of independent direciors. Al
Committeas are comprised solely of non-management directars, in each case,
with a majority of members being independent directors except for the
Exacutive Committee. The Board believes that the compasition of its commitiess
other than the Executive Commitiee allows them io operate independantly
frem management such that shareholders' interests are protected.

tach Committee has a iormal mandate and a position description for the
Chair established by the Board. Both the mandate and position description are
reviewed annually. Copies of the Committees’ mandates are avzilable on the
Company's website, www.loblaw.ca. The following is a brief summary of some
of the responsibiiities of each Committee.

Governance Commitiee identifies and recommends candidates for nomination to the Board as
directors. monitors the orientation program for new directors and maintains a process for assessing
the performance of the Board and its Committess a3 well as the performance of individual directors
and discharging the Board's respansibilities relating to compensation and succession planning
for the Company s senior employees. The Governance Committee’s specific responsibilities include:
= wentifying candidates for membership on the Board and evaluating the independence of
the directors;
* assisting in directors’ orientation and assessing their perfarmance on an ongoing basis;
= shaping the Company's approach to corporala governznce and recommending to the Board
corparate governance principles to be followed by the Company;
= discharging the Board's responsibililies relating to compensation and succession planning for the
Company's senior employees; and
* determining the process for the compensation of directors and executive officers.

The Board appointed the Chairman of the Governance Committee, who is an independent director,
10 serve 25 lead director,

Pensicn and Benefits Committes

The Pensicn 2nd Benefits Commitize is responsible for:

« reviewing the performance of the Company's and its subsidizries’ pension plans and pensien funds:

* reviewing and recommending managers for the fund's portfelio;

* reviewing the performance of penston fund managers;

= 1pvigwing and approving the assumplions used. the funded status and amendments 1o tha
Compary s and its subsidiaries” pension plans; and

+ receiving reports regarding level. types and costs of the Company’s employee benefit plans.

Environmental, Health angd Safety Commitice
The Enviranmental, Heatth and Safety Committee is respansibile for reviewing and monitoring environ-
mental, food safety and workplace health and safety policies, procedures, pragtices and compliznce,

Executive Committes

The Executive Committee possesses all of the powers of the Board except tha power to declare
common dividends ang certain other powers specificaily reserved by appkcable law to the Board.
Tha Executive Commites acis oaly when it is not practicable for the full Board to meet

Discisire Committee A Disclosure Committee comprised of senior management of the

Company cversees the Company's disclosure process as outlined in the Disclosure Policy.

The Disclosure Commitige's mandate includes ensuring that efiective disclosure controls and
procedures are in place to allow the Company to satisty all of its continuous disclosure obligations
including certificalion requitements. The Disclosure Committes is also responsible for ensuring
that the policies and procedures contained in the Coempany 's Disclosure Policy are in compliance
with regulatory requirements.
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Operationai Directory
{age and years of service)

Galen G. Weston (34 an¢ 5 years)
Executive Chairman

Allan L. Leiphton (53 end 1 yean
Deputy Chairman

Officers
{age and years of service)

Galen G. Weston (34 and ¢ yearsy
Executive Chairman

Allan L. Leighton 53 2ud 1 yead
Deputy Chairman

Mark Foote 5 and 1 year
President an¢ Chief
Merchandising Officer

Dalton Philips (38 ang Jamary 2007
Chief Operating Officer

Wiliam M. Wells 45 and etiective fprit 2007
Chief Financial Officer

David K. Brapg 158 and 23 years)
Executive Vice President

Barry K. Columb ¢4z 2ng 1 year
President, President's Choice
Financial

Joseph Jackman (7 ang 2 years}
Executive Vice President, Marketing
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Mark Foote (35 ang 1 yea)
President and Chief
Merchandising Officer

Dalton Philips (32 and laesary 2007
Chief Operating Officer

William M. Wells 116 ang sttective Apsil 2007}
Chief financial Officer

Richard P Mavrinae (54 and 24 years)
Executive Vice President

Peter McMahon 51 08 1 yeen)
Executive Vice President, Supply
Chain and information Technology

frank Rocchetti 46 en i yeen
Executive Vice President,
Gereral Merchandgise

Pietro Satriano 4 asd 5 yzarg
Executive Vice Presideat, Food

Roberi A. Balcom 5 and 13 years)
Senior Vice President, Secretary
and General Counse

Roy R. Conliffe &6 and 25 years)
Senior Vice President,
Labour Relations

Karen Hanna ws and 1 years
Senior Vice President,
Human Resources

Louise M. Lacchin (9 and 23 vearst
Senior Vice President. Finance

Rebert A Balcem 5 and 13 years)
Senior Vice President,
Secretary and General Counsel

Karen Hanna g and 1 yean)
Senior Yice President,
Human Resources

Peter McMahon o1 ad 1 vear
Executive Yice President,
Supply Chain and
Infarmation Technology

Ann Weir (24 and 13 years)
Senior Vice President, Internal Audit
and Internal Contral Compliance

Joseph ). Wilke (38 and 13 years)
Senior Vice President,
Financial Reparting and Control

Geoffrey H. Wilson (51 axd 20 vewrs)
Senior Vice President, Financial
Services and investor Relations

Manny DiFilippo @7 20d 15 vess)
Vice President, Risk Management
and Strategic Initiatives

David 6. Gore (5 and 5 years)
Vice President, Legal Counsel,
Compliance, Privacy and
Ethics Officer

J. Bradiey Holland 13and 13 years)
Vice President, Taxation

Michael N. Kimber 5t and 22 years)
Vice President, Legal Counsel

lsyee C. Lee (35 and it years)
Vice President, Financiat Reporting

Pietro Satriano (4 and 5 years)
Executive Vice Prasident, Food

Lucy J. Paglione 47 an¢ 23 years)
Vice President, Pension and Benefits

George D. Seslija 51 and 27 years)
Vice President, Real Estate
Development

Lisa R. Swartzman (36 and 13 years}
Vice President, Treasuser

Laurel MacKay-Lee (36 and 7 years)
Contralter, Financial Projects

Irene Pinheiro 33 and 14 yearsh
Gantrolles, Financial Analysis

Marian M. Burrows (2 and 28 years)
Assistant Secretary

Swavek A. Czapinski (32 and & years)
Assistant Treasurer

M. Darry! Hanstead (32 and 8 years)
Assistant Treasurer

Walter H. Kraus (44 and 18 years)
Senior Director, Environmental Affairs




Board of Directors

Galen G. Weston. 54, MBA!
Executive Chairman, Loblaw
Comparies Limited; Former Senior
Vice President, Loblaw Companies
Limited, Director, Wittington
Investments, Limited; Former
Director, George Weston Limited.

Allan L. Leighton!

Deputy Chairman, Loblaw
Companies Limited, Genrge Weston
Limited, Seffridges & Co. Lid.;
Chairman, Royal Mail Group;
Farmer President and Chief
Executive Officer, Wal-Mart Europe;
Director, BHS Lid., Brown Thomas
Group Limited, BskyB plc,

Holt, Renfrew & Co, Limited,

Paul M. Beeston, cm, BA, FLAZ
Chairman, Centre for Addiction and
Mantal Health; Fermer President
and Chief Executive Officer, Maier

League Basebail; Former President,

Toronio Blue Jays Baseball Team,
Director, President’s Choice Bank,
Newport Pastners Income Fund,

Gordon A.M. Currie, Ba. tLs?
Executive Vice President,
Secretary and General Counsel,
George Weston Limited;

Farmer Senior Vice President and
General Counsel, Centrica North
America; Former Periner, Blake,
Cassels & Graydon LLp.

Camilla H. Dalglish, sa3

Diractor, The W. Garfield Weston
Fourdation, The Garfield Weston
Fourdation {UK): Former President,
The Civig Garden Centre; Former
Director, The Nature Conservancy of
Canada, Royal Botanical Gardens.

Anthony S. Fell, gg3*#"

Chairman, RBC Capital Markets Inc.;

Former Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, RBC Bominion
Securities; Fermer Deputy
Chairman, Royal Bank of Canada;
Chairman, Menich Reinsurance
Group of Companies; Director, BCE
Inc., CAE Inc., The Torenta Central
Lecal Health Integration Network.

Anthony R. Graham!¥

President and Directar, Wittington
Investments, Limited; President
and Chief Executive {fficer,
Sumarria Ing.; Former Vice
Chairman, National Bank Financiaj;
Chairman and Director, President's
Choice Bank, Graymont Limited;
Director, George Weston Limited,
Biown Thomas Grosp Limited,
Holt, Renfrew & Co., Limited,
Power Corporation of Canada,
Power Financial Gorporation,
Provigo Inc., Selfridges & Ce. Lig.

Nancy H.0. Lockhart, com >*
Chiaf Administrative Officer,
Frum Development Group;
Farmer Vice President,

Shoppers Diug Mart Corporation:

Former Chair, Canadian Fiim Centre,

Ontarie Science Centre:

Former Presidant, Canadian

Club of Toronto; Director,

The Toronto Community Foundation,
The Stratford Chef's School.

Pierre Michaud, cas
Founder, Réno-Dépét Inc.;

Chairman and Director. Provige Inc.;

Vice Chairman, Laurentian Bank
of Canada; Director, Rombardier
Recreational Praducts Inc.,

Capital GVR Inc., Gaz Métre Inc.

Thomas C. O'Neill, 5.coum. Foa®™
Retired Chairman,

PricewaterhouseGoopers Consulting;

Former Chief Executive Officer,
PricewaterhouseCoopers wLp;

Vice Chair, Board of Governors,
Queen’s University; Director,
President’s Ghoice Bank,

Adecco S.A., BCE Inc., Nexen Inc.,
Ontatio Teachers’ Pension Plan,
St. Michasl's Hospital.

G. loseph Reddington, B4, 107
Retired Chairman, Director and

Chiaf Executive Officer, Breuners
Home Fumishings Corporation;
Former Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, The Signature
Group; Former President and Chief
Executive Officer, Sears Canada;
Birector, Ansel Worldwide.

fohn D. Wetmore smam 24

Former President and Chigf
Executive Officer, IBM Canada:
Retired Vice President, Contact
Centre Development, IBM Amaricas:
Director, Research in Motion Limited,
Sunnybrook Foundation, University
of Waterloo; Trusiee, Resolve
Business Qutsourcing Income Fund.

Joseph H. Wright, a2
Managing Pariner, Barnagain
Captital; Former President and
Chief Executive Gfficer, Swiss Bank
Corporation (Canada); Chairman
and Trustee, BFl Canada Income
Fund; Director, President’s Choice
Bank, OutdoorPartner Media
Corparation, ROTC Pref Corp,

! Eregubive Committee

2 Fadit Comemiftee
3 Govemance. Employes Developmenl

Nomnalmg and Compensatien Commiltee

4 Peassn and Benefits Camomittee
5 Emaronmental Health and Safely Committes
* Chanman of the Commutiee
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Shareholder and Corporate Information

National Head Office

and Store Support Gentre
Loblaw Companies Limitad
1 President’s Choize Circle
Brampton, Canada

L6Y 555

Tel: (905) 458-2500

Fax: (905) 861-2206
Internet: wwaw.iobiaw.ca

Stock Exchange Listing

and Symbol

The Company’s common shares are
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
and trade under the symbol “L".

Common Shares

63% of the Company’s common
shares are ownad beneficially
by W. Galen Weston and

George Weston Limited.

At year end 2006 there were
274,173,564 commaon shares issued
and autstanding, 5,696 regisiered
cammon shareholders ang
100,744,229 common shares
availabte fer public trading.

The average daily trading volume
of the Company's comman shares
for 2006 was 382,410,

Trademarks

Loblaw Companies Limited and

its subsidiarigs own a number of
trademarks. Several subsidiaries
are licensees of additional
trademarks. These trademarks are
the exclusive preperty of Loblaw
Companies Limited or tha licensor
and where used in this report

are in italics,

Common Dividend Policy

Itis the Compary's policy to
maintain a dividend paymeat equal
to approximately 20% to 25%

of the prior year’s adjusted basic
net earnings per common share

Common Dividend Dates

The declaration and payment of
quarterly dividends are made
subject to approval by the Board
of Directors. The anticipated record
and payment dates for 2006 are:

Recofd Datg Pa}rmer:nt Qa?e
March 15 April 1
June 15 July 1
Sept. 15 Oct. |
Dec. 15 . Dec. 30

Normal Course Issuer Bid
The Company has a Normal
Course Issuer Bid on the
Toronto Stack Exchange.

Investor Relations

Shareholders, security analysts and
investment professionals should
direct their requests to Mr. Geoffrey
H. Wilson, Senior Vice Prasident,
Financial Services and Investor
Relations at the Company's National
Head Office or by e-mail at
investor@loblaw.ca

{1} See Nan-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40 of Lhe 2006 Financial Report
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Value of Common Shares

For capital gains purposes, tha
valuation day (December 22, 1971)
cost base for the Company is $0.958
per commen share, The value on
February 22, 1994 was $767 per
common share,

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Computershare investor Sexvices Inc.

100 University Avenue
Toronta, Canada

M5) 2¥1

Tel: (416} 263-9200

Toll free: 1-800-663-9097
Fax: {416) 263-93%4

Talt free fax. 1-888-453-0330

To change your address, eliminate
multiple mailings, or for other
shareholder account inguiries,
please contact Computershara
Investor Services Inc.

Additional financial information has
been fited electronically with various
securities regulators in Canada
through the System for Electronic
Document Analysis and Retrieval
(SEDAR) and with the Office of the
Superintendent of Financial
Institutions (OSFI) as the primary
regulator for the Company’s
subsidiary, President’s Choice Bank,
The Campany holds an analyst call
shortly following the release of its
quartery resulis. These cails are
archived in the Investor Zane
section of the Company’s websile.

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLp

Chartarad Accountants
Torento, Canada

Annual and Special Meeting
Loblaw Companies Limited Annual
and Special Meeting of Shareholders
will be held on Tuesday,

May 1, 2007 at 11:00 a.m.

at Maple Leaf Gardens,

50 Carlion Street, Toronto, Canada.

Ce rapport est disponible en
frangais.

This Annual Summary was printed in
Canada on Cougar Qpaque. manufactured
totally chlorine-iree with 10% post-
consumer fibre, at & mill independently
certified as meeting the procurement
provisions of the Sustainable Forestry
Initiative® (SFI) standard.

Tiesigr and Coordinalion: Ove Design & Communications Ltd. www.ovedesign.com Tynesetling: Moveable Inc. www.moveable.com Prnting: Franseonlinental Printing G P




For more information about our offerings,
visit our websites at:

Leblaw Companies Limited
1 President’s Chpice Circle
Brampton, Canada

LBY 585

Tel: {905 459-2500
Fax: {905) 851-2206




CoCMPaNILt LR Y ED

For more nformation, visit aur website at www lablaw.ca




0.0.%

COMPANIES LtMITED 2006 Financia! Report




Financial Highlights

For the years ended Dacember 30, 2005 and December 31, 2005
(% millions except where otherwise indicated)

Operating Results

Sales®

Sales excluding the impact of VIEs®'®
Adjusted EBITDA®

Operating income

Adjusted operating income®

Interest expense

Netloss) camings

Cash Flow

Cash flows from operating activities
Free cash flow™

Capital investment

Per Common Share )

Basic net (loss) earnings

Adjusted basic net eamings®
Dividend rate at year end

Cash flows from operating activities
Book value

Market price at year end

Financial Ratios

Adjusted EBITDA margin™
Operating margin

Adjusted operating margin®

Return on average totat assets"”
Return on average shareholders' equity
Interest coverage

Net debt® to equity

Operating Statistics
Retail square footage din millions)
Average corporate store $ize (square feet

Corporate stores sales per average square foot (8

Same-store sales growth
Number of corporate stores
Number of franchised stores

{1) For financial definitions and ratios refer to the Glossary of Terms on page 80

{2} See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.

{3) During 20086, the Company implemented Emerging Issues Committee Abstract 156, “Accounting by a Verdor for Consideration
Given to a Customer (Including 3 Reseller of the Yendor's Produels)” an a retroactive basis. Accordingly certain sales incentives
paid 1o independent franchisees, associates and independent accounts for the prior vear have beer: reclassified between sales
and cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses. For a further discussion, see the Accounting $tandards Implemented in
2006 section in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of this Financial Report.

2008 2005

(52 weeks) {52 weeks)

$ 28,640 $ 21627
28,257 27212
1,892 2,132

289 1,401

1,326 1,600

259 252

(219) 746
1,180 1,489

10 133

937 1,156

(.80} 272

212 335

84 4

431 543
19.85 21.48
48.79 56.37
6.7% 7.8%
1.0% 5.1%
4.7% 5.9%
2.3% 112%
(3.9%) 132%
1.0:1 5.1:1
J21 66:1

49.7 48.5

: 57,400 56,100
585 579
8% 2%
672 670

405 402

Contents
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1 Manzgement’s Discussion and Analysis
44 Financial Results
80 Glossary of Terms

As part of our fresh thinking, we are now
introducing additional information &n our
website loblaw.ca.

The Annual Report consists of the
2006 Annual Summary and the
2006 Financial Report.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

The following Management s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A") for Loblaw Companies Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Company" or “Loblaw") should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes on pages 45
to 77 of this Financial Report. The consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™) and are reported in Canadian doltars, The consclidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries and variable interest entities (“VIEs") that the Company is required to consolidate
in accordance with Accounting Guideline 15, “Consolidation of Variable Inferest Entities”, ("AcG 157). A glossary of terms used throughout
this Financia! Report can be found on page 80. The information in this MD&A is current to March 13, 2007, unless otherwise noted.

1. Forward-Looking Statements

This Annuat Report, including the Annual Summary and this MD&A, contains forward-looking statements which reflect management’s
expectations and are contained in discussions regarding the Company’s objectives, plans, goals, aspirations, strategies, potential future
growth, results of operations, performance and business prospects and opportunities. Forward-looking statements are typically, though

LT] nour

not always, identified by words or phrases such as “anticipates”, “expects”, “believes”, “estimates”, “intends” and other similar expressions.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees, but only predictions. Although the Company befieves that these statements are based
on information and assumptions which are current, reasonable and complete, these statements are necessarily subject to a number of
factors that could cause actual results to vary significantly from the estimates, projections and intenions. Such differences may be caused
by factors which include, but are not limited to, changes in consumer spending and preferences, heighiened competition including new
competitors and expansion of current competitors, changes in the Company's or its competitors’ pricing strategies, the ability o realize
anticipated cost savings and efficiencies, including those resulting from restructuring, inventory liquidation and other cost reducticn and
simplification initiatives, the ability to execute restructuring plans, implement strategies and introduce innovative products successfully

and in a timely manner, changes in the markets for the inventory intended for liguidation and changes in the expected realizable value and
costs associated with the fiquidation, unanticipated, increased or decreased costs associated with the announced initiatives, including those
related to compensatien costs, the Company's relationship with its employees, results of labour negotiatiens including the terms of future
collective bargaining agreements, changes to the regulatory environment in which the Company operates now ot in the future, changes

in the Company's tax liabilities, either through changes in tax laws or future assessments, performance of third-party service praviders,
public health events, the ability of the Company to attract and retain key executives and supply and quality control issues with vendors.

The calculation of the goodwill impairment charge described in this MD&A involves the estimation of several variables, including but

not limited to market multiples, projected future sales and earnings, capital investment, discount rates, terminal growth rates and the

fair values of those assets and liabilities being valued. The Company cautions that this list of factors is not exhaustive.

The assumptions applied in making the forward-looking statements contained in this Annuai Report, including this MD&A include

the following: economic conditions do not matertally change from those expected, patterns of consumer spending are reasonably consistent
with historical trends, no new significant competitors enter our market nor does any existing competitor unexpectedly significantly
increase its presence, neither the Cempany's nor its competitors™ pricing strategies change materially, the Company successfully offers
new and innovative products and executes its strategies as planned, anticipated cost savings and efficiencies are realized as planned,
continuing future restructuring activities are effectively executed in a timely manner, costs associated with the liguidation of inventory are
not higher or lower than expected, the Company's assumptions regarding average compensation costs and average years of service for
employees affected by the simplification initiatives are materially correct, the Company does not significantly change its approach to its
current restructuring activities, there is no material amount of excess inventory in the Company's supply chiain, there are no material

work stoppages and the performance of third-party service providers is in accordance with expectaiions.

2 2006 Financiz! Report Latlaw Companies Limited




These estimates and assumptions may change in the future due to uncertain competitive and economic market conditions or changes
in business strategies. This list of factors and other risks and uncertainties are discussed in the Company's materiats filed with the
Canadian securities regulatory autharities from time to time, including the Risks and Risk Management section of this MD&A.

Potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating these farward-looking statements

and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on them. The forward-locking statements included in this Annual Report, inciuding this MD&A
are made only as of the filing date of this Annuat Report and the Company disclaims any obligation or intention to publicly update these
forward-looking statements to reflect new infermation, future events or otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions,

the forward-looking events contained in these forward-looking statements may or may not occur. The Company cannot assure that projected
results or events will be achieved.

2. Overview

Loblaw, a subsidiary of George Weston Limited, is Canada’s largest food distributor and a leading provider of general merchandise, drugstore
and financial products and services. Through its various operating banners, including 672 corporate stores and 485 franchised stores,
Loblaw is committed to providing Canadians across the country with a one-stop destination in meeting their foed and everyday household
needs. For 50 years, the Campany has supplied the Canadian market with innovative products and services through a portfolio of store
formats across Canada.

Corporate owned store banners include Affantic Superstore, Daminion (in Newfoundland and Labrador), Extra Foods, Loblaws,

Maxi, Maxi & Cie, Provigo, the fleal Canadian Superstore and Zefirs and wholesale outlets operating as Cash & Carry, Presto and

The Real Canadian Wholesale Club. The Company’s franchised and associated stores operate under the trade names Atfantic Savefasy,
Fortinos, no frills, SuperValu, Valu-mart and Your Independent Grocer. The store network is supported by 26 Company-operated and

2 third-party warehouse facilities located across Canada as well as temporary storage facilities when required.

The Company offers a strong control label program, including the President 's Choice, no name and Joe Fresh Style brands. In addition,
the Company makes available to consumers President’s Choice Financial services and products, including the President’s Choice
Financial MasterCard® and PC Financial auto, home, travel and pet insurance, PC Mobile phone service, as well as a loyalty program
known as PC points.

The Company competes in the retail industry in Canada, which is a changing and competitive market. Consumer reeds dsive industry changes,
which are impacted by changing demographic and econamic trends such as changes in disposabie income, ethnic diversity, nutritional
awareness and time availability. Over the past several years, consumers have demanded more choice, value and convensence. Customer
satisfaction is central to the success of the Company's business.

The Company competes with non-traditional competitors as well as traditional supermarkets. Recent industry changes have seen the
expansion of non-traditional competitors, such as mass merchandisers, warehause clubs, drugstores, limited assertment stores, discount
stores, convenience stores and specialty stores, alf of which continue to increase their offerings of products typically associated with
traditional supermarkets. Over the past several years, there has been an increase in the number of retail outlets that traditionally exclusively
featured food, peneral merchandise or drugstore items that now offer a selection of these items, resulting in what is commonly referred

to in the industry as “channel blurring” This evolution of the retail landscape presents a number of issues for traditional grocers: the need to
reposition conventional supermarkets to either expand or, conversely, better focus their offerings; the reality of lower prices offered by discount
retailers; and the need to reduce operating and labour costs in order to maintain earnings in light of lower prices and increased competition.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Since the beginning of 2005 and throughout 2006, the financial performance of the Company has been uncharacteristically poor. 2006

was a year of chalienge and change for the Company as it evolves through its continued transformation into a company that will be truly
competitive over the long term. The past year saw a number of significant changes in the operations of the Company, including the change
in senior lzadership. Galen G. Weston was appointed Executive Chairman of the Company's Board of Cirectars (the “Board™), Mark Foote
became President and Chief Merchandising Officer and Allan L. Leighton joined the Board as Deputy Chairman, Early in 2007, Dalton Philips
joined the Company as Chief Operating Officer and William M. Wells will be joining the Company as Chief Financiat Officer, effective

April 2007, A 100 Day Review of the Company commenced in the latter half of 2006 which focused on key drivers of the business such as
fresh food presentation, maximizing employee engagement, the performance of retailing basics and customer satisfaction. The results of
this review provided key inputs inte management’s future business priorities and vision for the organizatien.

3. Vision and Strategies

Vision

Loblaw's visian is to maximize the return on its assets under the three main principles of, “Simplify, Innovate, Grow™ in addition to

its “Formula for Growth”. The Company strives to be consumer focused, cost effective and agile. While accepting prudent operating risks,

Loblaw seeks long term, stable growth supported by a strong balance sheet, with the goal of providing sustainable superior returns to
its sharehalders through a combination of common share price appreciation and dividends.

Strategies
Under the principles of Simplify, Innovate, Grow, the Company employs various operating and financial strategies which guide the Company
aver the long term and represent a philosophy for the way in which it conducts its business.

Leblaw is simplifying the organization by more clearly defining accountabilities, eliminating duplication and establishing consistent, simple
and efficient processes. A less complex organizational siructure and a shoet list of key performance indicators are expected to lead to
more focus on customers and store operations.

Innovatian is one of the many strengths of Loblaw, most clearly exhibited by its control label offerings. The Company supports innovation
based on the belief that providing consumers with new products and convenient services at competitive prices and stimulating shopping
environments is critical to its success.

The new managemsant team developed its Formula for Growth to define priorities for a three year renewal plan. In order to provide an
integrated offaring of food, general merchandise and drugstore, the Company’s Formula for Growth focuses on the fallowing:

» hest format: truly distinctive formats meeting customers’ different needs;

» fresh first: best fresh food offering;

= control label advantage: leading in the development of unique, igh quality control label products and services;

* Joe Fresh Style: ensuring great styte at an affordable price:

« health, home and wholesome: making healthy living affordable;

« priced right: providing best value;

= always avaitable: best in-stock positions; and

« friendly colleaguas maotivated to serve.

The Company's long term operating strategies are consistent with its Formula for Growth and continue to be as follaws:
« ysing the cash flow generated in the business 1o invest in its future;

¢ owning its real estate, where possible, to maximize flexibility fer product and business opportunities in the future;

* using a multi-format approach to maximize market share over the langer term;

« focusing on food but serving the consumer’s everyday household needs;
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* creating customer loyalty and enhancing price competitiveness through a superior control label program;
* implementing and executing plans and programs flawlessly; and
=+ constantly striving to improve the Company's value proposition.

The Company's long term financial strategies are as follows:

= maintaining a strang balance shest:

* minimizing the risks and costs of its operating and financing activities; and
» maintaining liquidity and access to capital markets.

The table below summarizes the Company's strategic imperatives and the activities undertaken in 2006 to progress these imperatives.
Strategic Imperativg Progress in 2006.

Simplify » Continued efforts to restructure the supply chain which proved to be more complex and costly than originally
anticipated. By year end, the supply chain stabilized and delivered improved service levels.
» Planned and developed erganizational transition, focused on redesigned processes and a leaner
administrative structure.
» |dentified key performance indicators to be further develaped and implemented in 2007

Innovate « Launched foe Fresh Styfe apparel for adults in April 2006 with positive consumer response.

' * Developed and distributed a record six issues of the Mnsider’s Report to a total of over ten million homes
in Canada, keeping customers infarmed about exciting new products and services.

* Over 2,000 new control label products launched,

Grow « Commenced the 100 Day Review of key drivers of the business.

» Established the first phase of Positive Action Groups, teams made up of employees from every functional area
across the business, dedicated to preducing meaningful action on individual strategic issues including
optimization of the Real Canadian Superstore, fresh perception measuremeant, groundwork for Maple Leaf
Gardens great food store, Credit For Value, an-shelf availability measurement, and an employee survey tool.

= Continued major product development, to be refined as needed.

» Reached a labour agreement in Ontario which will allow store conversions.

Board Commitment

The Company's Board and senior management meet annually to review the strategic imperatives. These strategic imperatives, which
generally span a three to five year timeframe, targat specific issues in respanse to the Company's performance and changes in consumer
needs and the competitive retail landscape.

4. Key Performance Indicators

As a result of the priorities established under the new management's Formula for Growth and following the 100 Day Review, the Company
has identified and is developing specific key performance indicators ko measure the progress of short and long term strategies. These key
performance indicators will measure format same-store sales, fresh perception, penetration of control label sales, Joe Fresh Style percentage
share of total general merchandise sales; specific comaarative sales for Health and Beauty, Natfural Value and President’s Choice Qrganics,
index pricing targets, targeted on-shelf avaiiability and employee satisfaction. In 2007 targets will be implemented across the Company that
will enable management to assess progress made on each imperative as well as the effectiveness of implementation of the Company’s
strategy. The Company believes that if it successiully implements and executes its various strategic imperatives in support of its long term
operating and financial strategies, it will be well positioned to pursue its vision of providing sustainable superior returns to its shareholders.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Additional key financial perfermance indicators are set out below:

Key Financiat Performance Indicators

2006 - 20059
(52 weeks) {52 weeks)
Sales growth 3.1% 6.1%
Sales growth excluding the impact of VIESY 38% 4.5%
Basic net earnings per commaon share decline {129.4%) (22.9%)
Adjusted basic net earnings per common share™ decline (18.8%) (3.7%)
Net debt™ to equity ratio 421 66:1
Free cash flow (s milions) : $ 70 $ 103
Return on average shareholders’ equity {3.9%) 13.2%
|

{1) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures an page 40.

{2} During 2006, the Company implemented Emerging tssues Committee Abstract 156, "Accounting by a Vendor for Consideration Given to a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor's
Products)” on a retroactive basis, Accardingly certain sales incentives paid to independent franchisees. associates and independent accounts for the prior years have been reclassified
between sales and cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses. For a further discussion. see the Accounting Standards implemented in 2006 secticn included in this MD&A.

By effectively implementing the Formula for Growth, management aspires to achieve on average 5% sales growth, 10% adjusted net

earnings™ growth and $250 millien of free cash flow™.

5. Financial Performance

Basic net foss per common share for 2006 was $0.80, a decrease of $3.52 when compared to basic net earnings per commeon share of

$2.72 last year. Basic net loss per common share was impacted in 2006 by the following:

« acharge of $2.92 per common share related o non-cash goodwill impairment;

* acharge of 20 cents per common share related to the Ontario colfective labour agreement;

» acharge of 16 cents per common share related to inventory liquidation;

« acharge of 17 cents per commaon share for the net effect of stock-based compensation and the associated equity forwards;

= acharge of 11 cents per cemmon share related to restructuring and other charges;

= acharge of 3 cents per common share related to a departure entitlement payment;

« income of 6 cents per common share related to the adjustment to future income tax batances resulting from changes in the Canadian
federal and certain provincial statutory income tax rates; and

* income of 1 cent per comman share refated to the consolidation of VIES.

After adjusting for the above-noted items, adjusted basic net earnings per comman share® were $2.72 for 2006 compared to $3.35 in 2005,
a decline of 18.8%, which fer 2005 excluded the impact of the following:

» acharge of 22 cents per common share for the net effect of stock-based compensation and the associated equity forwards;

* acharge of 20 cents per common share related to restructuring and other charges;

* acharge of 10 cents per cemmon share for Goods and Services Tax {"GST") and pravincial sales taxes (“PST");

» acharge of 7 cents per common share for direct costs associated with supply chain disruptions;

{1} See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.
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* acharge of 1 cent per common share related to the adjustment to future income tax balances resulting from changes in statutory
income tax rates; and
* acharge of 3 cents per common share related to the consolidation of ViEs.

Results for 2006 were affected by the short term costs associated with one of the largest transformations in the Company's history. The
need for this transformative process was driven by the Company’s recent uncharacteristically poor financial performance, its assessment
of a fast-changing retail environment and a strategic review of processes, structure and key drivers of its operations.

This strategic review highlighted both core strengths and issues to be addressed. The core strengths include a strong market share, contral
iabel products and a strong store network. A number of issues facing the business included unacceptable levels of on-shelf availability,

the need to strengthen price positioning, insufficiently distinctive formats, a complex organizational structure with inconsistent procedures
and standards which lacked clear accountabilities and insufficient focus on the customer. In response to these findings, the Company
embarked on planning and developing an organizational transition which focuses on redesigning processes, a leaner administrative structure
and a comprehensive strategy designed to fortify its competitive position and maintain its leadership role in meeting the food and
everyday household needs of Canadian consumers. In pursuit of this strategy, the Company is refocusing the business around the three
principles of Simplify, Innovate, Grow and took decisive action in 2006 to initiate tangible change. Additional steps taken in 2006 include
the negofiation of a new four-year collactive agreement with members of certain Ontario locals of the United Food and Commercial Workers
union (“UFCW"), the liquidation of certain general merchandise inventory and the closure of certain underperforming stores.

Changes in 2005 included the restructuring of its supply chain network, the reorganizations invalving its merchandising, procurement and
operations groups, the establishment of a new National Head Office and Store Support Centre in Brampton, Ontario, which opened in 2005,
and the relocation of general merchandise operations from Calgary, Alberta to the new National Head Office.

During 2005, the Company encountered challenges during the execution of planned changes to its systems, supply chain and general
merchandise areas, including certain supply chain systems conversions which were initiated as part of the creation of a nationa
information technology platform and the start-up of a new third-party owned and operated general merchandise warehouse and
distribution centre for eastern Canada which handles general merchandise and certain drugstore products, primarily health and beauty
care products. These challenges disrupted the flow of inventory to the Company's stores and caused the Company to incur additional
operating costs and reduced overall sales as product availability impacted consumers at the store level.

During 2006, the Company continued to feel the effects from these changes. However, progress continued to be made in reducing

the impact of the supply chain disruptions as follows:

« the third-party owned and operated general merchandise warehouse and distribution centre for eastern Canada posted slight
productivity improvements and achieved improved service fevels;

* six additional systems conversiens were completed during the year with minimal disruption to continuing operations as part of
the move 1o a national systems platform;

» food service levels continued at expected levels during 2006 and service levels for drugstore improved; and

* service levels for general merchandise showed signs of stabifity and improvement, and while slower than anticipated, progress
has been made.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

5.1 Results of Operations

Sales and Sales Growth Excluding the lmpact of VIEs®

2006 o 2005
(% miﬂions except w.h.e“r.e E)Eherwise indicgted} {52 weeks) (52 waekS)
Total sales $ 28640 | $ 27,627
Less: Sales attributable to the consolidation of _Vlg_s L R 383 L 415
Sales excluding the impact of VIES® $ 28,257 ! $ 271212
“Total sales growth 3.7% 6.1%
Less: Impact on salres growt_h att_ribut_at_)lg to the cons_o_li_da_tion of VEEs______ - (1%) ! B ) 15%
$ale3 growth excluding the impact of VIES™ 38% 45%

(1) See Non-CAAP Finangial Measures on page 40

(2) During 2006, the Company imptemented Emerging tssues Committee Abstract 156, “Accouniing by a Vendor for Consideration Given to a Customer (Inciuding 2 Resefler of the Vendor s
Products)” on a retroactive basis. Accordingly ceriain sales incentives paid to independent franchisees. associates and independent accounts for the prigr years have been reclassified
hetwean sales and cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses. For a further discussion, see the Accounting Standards Implemented in 2006 section included in this MD&A.

Sales

Full year sales in 2006 increased 3.7% to $28.6 billion from $27.6 billion last year, including a decrease of 0.1% or $32 million in sales
refating to the consolidation of certain independent franchisees as required by AcG 15. In 2006, sales excluding the impact of VIES™,
increased by $1 billion or 3.8% over last year.

The following factors further explain the major components in the change in salas over the prior year:

= food, general merchandise and drugstore sales posted gains over the prior year across all regions of the country;
» significant sales growth fram the Real Canadian Superstore program in Ontario;

» same-store sales growth of approximately 0.8% compared to 0.2% in 2005,

» adecling in tobaceo sales negatively impacted sales and same-store sales by approximately 1.2%;

Sales and Sales Growth Same-Store Sales Growth
(% millions)
£30.000 L 60%
22500 . 15 45
15,00 . 10 W
7300 ol N La
: | .
o oo . 0 0 H
2002 2003= 2004 2005 2006 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
- Sales s . Same-Store Sales Growth
mm Sales Growih (0} 2303 was & 53 weeh year,

L Sales Growih Eactading Impart of VIES™

(L} Sew tion-GAKP Frengial Mezsores on gioe 40
{2 2003 waz 3 53 week e

{1} See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.
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* national food price inflation as measured by “The Consumer Price Index for Food Purchased from Stores” (“CPI") was approximately
2.3% for the year compared to approximately 2.0% for 2005, with variances by region; the Company’s calculation of food price inflation,
which considers Company-specific product mix and pricing strategy, was reasonably consistent with that of CPI;

= anincrease in net retail square footage of 1.2 million square feet or 2.5% due to the net effect of the opening of 37 new corporate and
franchised stores and the closure of 33 stares inclusive of stares which underwent conversicns and major expansicns;

* sales per corporate stere increased to $33 million in 2006 from $32 million in 2005 reflecting the introduction of larger stores which are

expected to become ultimately more productive; and

+ sales per average square foot of carporate stores of $585 in 2006 increased from $579 in 2005 as a result of an increase in sales which

outpaced the increase in net retaii square footage.

Sales of controt Iabel products for 2006 amounted to $6.2 billion comparad to $5.9 billion in 2005, Control labe! penetration, which

is measured as control Jabel retail sales as a percentage of total retail sales, was 22.5% for 2006, compared to 22.4% for 2005.

The Company intreduced over 2,000 new control [abel products in 2006, including 1,400 new general merchandise products.

The Company's control 1abe! program, which includes President 's Choice, PC, President’s Choice Organics, President’s Choice Blue Menu,
President’s Choice Mini Chefs, no name, Joe Fresh Style, Club Pack, President s Choice GREEN, EXACT Teddy’s Choice and Life@Home,

provides additional sales growth potential,

Loblaw expects that the following initiatives, coupted with continued focus on value-for-money, promotions and advertising where
appropriate, will generate continued sales growth over the next few years:
» focus on on-shelf availability of product through an enhancement of customer focus and supply chain, and stronger store processes;
+ restoring innovation as a competitive advantage both for control label products as well as unique environments in each retail format;
« refining three distinctive retail formats: Superstore, Great Food and Hard Discount, and making the Real Canadian Superstore the key

platform for growth;

* increasing the number of stores carrying the Joe Fresh Style apparel offering;
* emphasizing a fresh first focus by raising presentation and quality standards; and
» training of employees to ensure they are focused on meeting customer needs.

(perating Income, Adjusted Operating Income®, Adjusted EBITDA™ and Margins®

(8 millicns except where otherwise indicated)

Operating income

Adjusted operating income™
Adjusted EBITDAY
Operating margin

Adjusted operating margin®
Adjusted EBITDA margin™

{1) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.

2006
{52 weeks)

! $ 289
$ 1,326
$ 1,892

1.0%
41%
6.7%

2005
{52 weehs) Change
$ 1401 {79%)
$ 1,600 {17%}
$ 2,132 (11%)

5.1%

59%

18%
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Operating incame

Operating income for 2006 decreased $1.1 bilfion, or 79%, to $289 million resulting in a decline in operating margin to 1.0% in 2006

from 5.1% in 2005. Operating income in bath 2006 and 2005 was adversely affected by a number of specific items as outlined below:

A non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $800 million related to the goodwill established on the acquisition of Provigo Inc. in 1998 was
recarded in 2006. The determinatien that the fair value of goodwill was less than its carrying value resulted from a decline in markst
multiples, both from an industry and Company perspective, and a reduction of air value as determined using the discounted cash flow
methodology, incorporating both current Company and market assumptions, which in combination resulted in the goodwill impairment.
This non-cash goodwill impairment charge recorded in 2006 is expected to be adjusted if necessary in the first half of 2007, The
Company expects no income tax deduction from this charge. A further discussion regarding the non-cash goodwill impairment charge
can be found in the Critical Accounting Estimates section of this MD&A.

» [During 2006, members of certain Ontario locals of the UFCW ratified a new four-year collective agreement which enables the
Company to convert 44 stores in Ontario to the Real Canadian Superstore banner or food skores with equivalent labour econamics,
and the flexibility to invest in additional store lahour where appropriate. As a result of securing this agreement, the Company recegnized
a ong-time charge of $84 miltion in 2006, including a $36 million amount due to a multi-employer pension plan and a payment of
$38 million which was due upen ratification. The Company expects this agreement te generate future economic benefits and to provide
increased aperating efficiencies, on a stare by store basis, in a critical era of intensifying competition.

= As part of management’s review of inventary levels, certain excess inventory, primarily general merchandise, was identified.
Management's decision to proceed with the liquidation of this inventory resulted in a $68 million charge in 2006 reflecting the write-down
of inventory to expected net recoverable values net of the associated costs of facilitating the disposition incurred to date. In addition,
higher than normal mark downs in the rangs of $15 million to $20 milfion were taken in order to clear some of this excess inventory
through stores particularly in the last quarter of the year.

A $12 million charge relating to the departure of John A. Lederer from the position of President and Director of the Company was
recorded in 2006. An additional $10 million was paid pursuant to various incentive plans, the majority of which was previously accrued.

* A charge of $37 million (2005 — $43 million) was recerded in 2006 for the net effect of stock-based compensation and the associated
equity forwards.

* Income of $8 million (2005 — nil} from the consolidation of VIEs was recognized in 2006.

Operating Income Analysis of Adjusted EBITDA
and Margins and Margin®
{$ millions) {§ millions)
32000 1% 220 12%
1500 3 15 i 4
{ N
1000 ] 9% §
530 1 8 , 3
H
] - 0 {220} 0
2002 203~ 2004 2005 27006 2002 20037 2004 2005 2006
Dograticg Margin < o Net Eamnings before Ringcity Inerest
-+ Asjusted Coerating Margin®® Incame Taxes
Atusied CBITDA Margin t= Inteies! Expense
e (Jperating Income Depreciation and Amerizaticn
r o Adjusted Operaling Inceme: Impact of Adjusted Hems
11} Sew Hon-GAAP Fiomancial Messiees on page 40 e Adjusted EBDA Magin™®

{8 2003 a3 2 53 weeh ear, (1] See Non-BARP Firanrial Measures oo page 40,

(2} 2003 was 2 53 weeh yeu,
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Included in restructuring and other charges of $44 million (2005 — $86 million) within operating income were the following:
* As part of its assessment of store aperations, management of the Company approved and communicated a plan in 2006 to close
19 underperforming Quebec stores, mainly within the Provigo banner, and 8 stores in the Alantic region. This resulted in a charge
in 2006 of $29 million for fixed asset impairment and cther costs arising from these store closures and emplayee termination costs.
In addition, as a result of the loss of tobacco sales following the decision by a major tobacco supplier to sell directly to certain
customers of the Company, a review of the impact on the Cash & Carry and wholesale club network was undertaken. in 2006, management
approved and communicated a formal plan to close 24 wholesale outlets which were impacted most significantly by this change.
This initiative resulted in a charge of $6 mittion in 2006 for fixed asset impairment and other costs arising from these closures and
employee termination costs. These closures are expected to be completed duiing 2007,
* Acharge of $8 million (2005 — $62 million) was recorded in 2006 relating to the plan approved in 2005 concerning the restructuring of the
supply chain operations, including the closure of six distribution centres and the relocation of certain activities to new distribution centres.
» Acharge of $1 million (2005 — $24 million) related to the reerganization of the merchandising, procurement and operations groups,
the establishment of a National Head Office and Store Support Cenire and the relocation of the general merchandise eperations from
Calgary, Alberta to Brampton, Ontario, was recerded in 2006, all of which were approved in 2005.

A summary of restructuring and other charges is included in the table below:

|

Costs Recognized Costs Recognized Total Total

2006 2005 Expected Expected Cosis

(3 millions) S o 1. (52 weeks) (52 weehs) Costs Remaining

Store operations $ 35 .; $ - $ 54 $ 19

Supply chain network 8 ; 62 90 20
Office move and regrganization of i

the operation suppqd functions 7 1 2_4 25 -

Total restructuring and other charges $ 44 386 $ 169 $ 39

Details regarding the nature of the above charges are described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Additional items specific to 2005 included in operating income in that year are:
»  Acharge of $40 million related to potential liabilities for GST and PST which was not appropriately charged and remitted; and
« Approximately $30 million of direct costs associated with the supply chain disruptions experienced during the last two quarters of 2005.

Atter adjusting for the above noted items, adjusted operating income® was $1.3 biltion in 2006 compared to $1.6 billion in 2005.

Adjusted operating margin® was 4.7% in 2006 compared to 5.9% in 2005. Adjusted EBITDA margin® decreased to 6.7% from 7.8% in 2605.
The $274 million dectine in adjusted operating income' and the significant decline in adjusted operating margin® for 2006 over 2005 was
due to a variety of factors as discussed below.

Early in 2006, operating income was adversely impacted by the effects of product supply issues, resulting from the implemantation chatienges
arising from the 2005 conversions, and delays in program activities resulted in foregone sales and lost cost leverage on fixed components of
operating and adminisirative expenses. The Company's supply chain performance in the areas of general meschandise and drugstore was not
at acceptable levels. Therefore, management early in the year was focused on improving service fevels and ensuring product availability at
the store fevel to support merchandising programs. By the end of 2006, the supply chain had stabilized and delivered improved service levels.

8 E Financial Measures on page 40.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Throughout 2006, the continued investments in lower food prices to drive sales growth had a negative impact on operating income. Aggregate
gross margin percentage softened as a result of this pricing investment, higher general merchandise mark downs, primarily in the fourth quarter,
and higher inventory shrink, partially offset by improvements in buying synergies and improved mix of feod, general merchandise and drugstere.
Higher information technology investments in addition to store and distribution centre operational costs, principally labour, were incurred in order
to stabilize the flow of product to the stores. Short term costs of additional third-party locations for storage of inventory were also absorbed.

A fixed asset impairment charge of $27 million was recorded in 2006 due in part to a decision to suspend ptans for a number of sites
scheduled for future development.

As mentioned previously, the new management team is refocusing the business through thiree principles: Simplify, Innovate, Grow, and

has developed a Formula for Growth as a framework for a three year renewal plan. Business priorities for 2007 to return the Company

to higher profitability include the following: _

« simplifying the organization by more clearly defining accountabilities, eliminating duplication and establishing consistent, simple and
efficient processes;

= restoring innovation as a competitive advantage; and

» focusing on retailing basics in the areas of store operations, supply chain and information technology including on-shelf availability and
major investments in price to obtain maximum Credit For Value.

Early in 2007 the Company approved and announced the restructuring of its merchandising and store eperations into more streamlined
functions. Costs of this restructuring including severance, retention and other costs are expected to be in the range of $150 million to
$200 miltion, the substantial portion to be recorded in the first half of 2007, The Company is also assessing the loss of drugstore-related
operating income in 2007 arising fram recently enacted (egislative changes late in 2006 by the Ontaric government, as more fully
explained in the Operating Risks and Risk Management section of this MD&A.

Interest Expense .

Interest expense consists primarily of interest on short and long term debt, the amortization of deferred financing costs, interest on financial
derivative instruments net of interest inceme earned on short term investments and interest capitalized to fixed assets. In 2006, total
interest expense increased $7 mitlion, or 2.8%, to $259 million from $252 million in 2005.

Interest on long term debt was $284 miilion compared to $290 million in 2005. The 2006 weighted average fixed interest rate on long term
debt (excluding capital lease obligations) was 6.7% (2005 — 6.7%) and the weighted average term to maturity was 17 years (2005 - 17 years).

Net Debt™ to Equity Total Assets and Return
and Interest Coverage on Average Tolal Assets®
{$ millions)
$14.000 T 1
8 100 .
! 10500 12
6 CTs
7 1000 8
) 50 B
52 25§ 3500 1
20 - - P . UE oo N . . i}
2007 2001 2004 2005 2008 2002 2003 2004 2005 2004
- - Net Dest® 1o Equty :.: Total Assets
= interest Coverage =2 Retain on Avarage Total Assets™
(1) See han-GARP Francial Meastzes on page 41 {1 See Man-GAEP Finzncial Mezsures en pags 40,

{3V 2003 mas 353 weh yeat.

{1) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.
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interest on financial derivative instruments includes the net effect of the Company’s interest rate swaps, cross currency basis swaps and
equity forwards, and amounted to a charge of $7 million in 2006 {2005 — income of $6 million}. The change i interest on financiat derivative
instruments was due mainly to an increase in Canadian short term interest rates. Net short term interest income in 2006 was consistent
with last year’s level at $11 million.

During 2006, $21 miliion (2005 -- $21 million) of interest incurred on debt related to real estate properties under development was capitalized
ta fixed assets.

Analysis of Long Term Financing Costs

I 2006 2005
% milligns exceptwhere ptheryvise indicatedrlw S o i (52 waeks) B ,(5.2 yfgekg)
Total long term debt at year end (including portion due within one year) i $ 4,239 $ 4,355
Interest on fong term debt ! $ 284 $ 290
Weighted average fixed interest rate on long term debt (excluding capital lease obligations) | 8.7% 6.7%
el = il s i S 3 u _ —_ "
I

Income Taxes

The Company’s 2006 effective income 1ax rate increased to 826.7% from 34.8% in 2005. The increase was mainly the result of the

non-deduciible goodwill impairment charge, which accounted for 796.8% of the change over last year, The effective income tax rate before

the impact of the non-deductible goodwill impairment charge as calculated in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements decreased

to 29.9% in 2006 mainy as a result of:

» achange in the proportion of taxable income earned across different tax jurisdictions; and

» a $16 million reduction to the future income tax expense recognized as a result of the reduction in the Canadian federal and certain
provincial statutory income tax rates, the cumulative effect of which was included in the censolidated financial statements at the time
of substantive enactment.

Net Earnings

In 2008, net earnings decreased $965 million to a net loss of $219 million from net earnings of $746 million in 2005 and basic net eamings
per comman share decreased $3.52 to a hasic net loss per common share of 80 cents from basic net earnings per common share of $2.72

in 2005 due to the factors described in the preceding sections.

5.2 Financial Condition

Financial Rafios

The net debt™ to equity ratio continued to be within the Company's internal guideline of less than 1:1. The 2006 net debt to equity ratic
was .72:1 compared to the 2005 ratio of .66:1. The non-cash goodwill impairment charge negatively impacted the nat debt® to equity ratio
by .10:1 as a result of an $800 million reduction to equity.

Cash flows from operating activities cover a large portion of the Company’s funding requirements and in 2006 exceeded the capital
invesiment program. In 2006, funding requirements resulted primarily from the capital investment program and dividends paid on the
Company’s common shares.

1 Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

In 2006, shareholders’ equity decreased $445 million, or 7.6%, to $5.4 billion. The significant decline in operating income resulted in an
interest coverage ratio of 1.0 times in 2006 compared to 5.1 times in 2005. The goodwill impairment charge is a significant ngn-cash item
in operating income, which adversely impacted the interest coverage ratio by approximately 3.1 times.

At year end, the working capital position increased over the prior year. The 2006 return on average total assets™ was 2.3% compared

to 11.2% in 2005. The 2006 return on average shareholders’ equity was {3.9)% compared to the 2005 return of 13.2%. Both 2006 returns
were negatively impacted by the incremental costs and charges incurred in 2006 as outlined previausly. The five year average return on
shareholders' equity was 12.5% (2005 — 17.3%).

Common Share Dividends

The declaration and payment of dividards are at the discretion of the Board. The Company’s dividend policy is to maintain a dividend
payment equat to approximately 20% to 25% of the prior year's adjusted basic net earnings per common share®, giving consideration

to the year end cash position, future cash flow requirements and investment opportunities. Currently, there is no restriction that would
prevent the Company from paying dividends at historical levels. The Company intends to maintain the current dividend level in 2007 putting
annualized dividends above the historical range. During 2006, the Board declared quarterly dividends of 21 cents per common share.

The annualized dividend per common share of 84 cents is equal to 25.1% of the 2005 adjusted basic net eanings per common share®,
which is consistent with the Company's dividend policy. Subsequent to year end, the Board declared a quarterly dividend of 21 cents

per comman share, payable Apnil 1, 2007,

Qutstanding Share Capital

The Company's outstanding share capital is comprised of common shares. An unlimited number of common shares is authorized and
274173564 common shares were issued and outstanding at year end. Further information on the Company’s outstanding share capital
is provided in Note 18 to the consclidated financial statements.

At year end, a total of 4,084,646 stock options were outstanding and represented 1.5% of the Company's issued and outstanding comman
shares, which was within the Company's guideline of 5%. Further infarmation on the Company’s stock-based compensation is provided in
Note 19 to the consalidated financial statements.

6. Liquidity and Capital Resources

6.1 Cash Flows
Major Cash Flow Components
2006 2005
Smios | mee | e e
Cash flows from {used in):
Operating activities $ 1,180 $ 1,489 $ (309)
Investing activities $(1,308) $ (903) $ (405)
Financing activities $ (120$ $ (208) $ 88

{1) See Non-GAAP Financizl Measures on page 40.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
20006 cash flows from operating activities decreased to $1.2 hillion compared fo $1.5 billion in 2005. The change in cash flows from
operating activities for the year is mainly due to the decrease in operating income.

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities

2006 cash flows used in investing activities were $1.3 billion compared to $0.9 billion in 2005. During 2003, proceeds were received
from the sale of a portfolio of third-party long term loans receivable as described in the Related Pariy Transactions section of this MD&A.
In addition. capital expenditures declined $219 million and the longer term to maturity profile of the Company's short term investments
portfolio resulted in a shift to short term investments from cash and cash equivalents.

Capital investment amounted to $0.9 billion (2005 — $1.2 billion) for the year as the Company continued to maintain and renew its asset
tase and invest for growth. Approximately 79% (2005 — 82%) of the capital investment was for new steres, renovations or expansions.

The continued capital investment activily benefited ali regions in varying degrees and strengthened tite existing store base. Some of the new,
larger stores replaced older, smaller, less efficient stores that did not offer the broad range of products and services demanded by today's
consumer. The remaining 21% (2005 — 18%) of the capital investment was for the warehouse and distribution network, information
systems and ofher infrastructure required to support store growth. Levels of capital investment in 2007 are expected to be lower than

in previous years as a result of the Company’s desire to fully prove store format economics before building new stores.

The 2006 corporate and franchised store capital investment program, which includes the impact of store openings and closures, resulted
in an increase in net retail square footage of 2.5% over 2005. During 2006, 37 (2005 — 69) new corporate and franchised stores were
opened and 147 (2005 — 77) underwent renovation ar minor expansion. The 37 new stores, net of 33 {2005 — 57) store closures, added
1.2 million square feet of retail space (2005 — 2.8 million). The 2006 average corporate store size increased 2.3% to 57400 square feet
{2605 - 56,100) and the average franchised store size increased 1.1% to 27400 square feet (2005 — 27100).

At year end 2006, the Company had committed approximately $153 million (2005 — $264 million) with respact to capital investment projects
such as the censtruction, expansion and rengvation of buildings and the purchase of real property.

During 2008, the Company also generated $99 million (2005 — $109 million} from fixed asset sales.

Cash Flows from Operating
Activities and Capital Investment
($ milliens)
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Capital Investment and Store Activity

2006 2005
) {32 weeks} (52 weeks) B o Ctlarlge
Capital investment (s milkons) $931 $ 1,156 $ (219
Retail square footage tin mirons) 49.7 485 2.5%
Average store size (sq.ft)

Corporate 57,400 56,100 2.3%
Franchised 21400 | 27,100 1.1%

|

-

Cash Flows used in Financing Activities
Cash flows used in financing activities decreased to $120 million in 2006 compared to $208 million in 2605 mainly due to the 2006 fourth
quarter dividend payment occurring after year end.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company repaid its $125 million of 8.70% Series 1996 Pravigo Inc. Debenture as it matured.

During 2005, the Company's 2003 Base Shelf Prospectus expired and a new Base Shelf Prospectus was fifed allowing for the issue of up
to $1.0 billion of aggregate Medium Term Notes {“MTN"}, all of which remains available.

The Company intends to renew its Normal Course Issuer Bid (“NCIB™) to purchase on the Toronto Stock Exchange or enter info equity
derivatives to purchase up to 5% of its common shares outstanding. No shares were purchased for cancellation in 2006 under the NCIB
(2005 - 226,100).

6.2 Sources of Liquidity

The Company can obtain its short term financing through a combination of cash generated from operating activities, cash, cash equivalents,
short term investments, bank indebtedness and its commercial paper program. The Company’s cash, cash equivalents and short term
investments, as well as $845 million in uncommitted operating fines of credit extended by several banks, support its $1.2 billien commercial
paper program. The Company's commercial paper horrowings generally mature less than three months from the date of issuance although
the terms can be up to 364 days.

Securitization of credit card receivables provides President’s Choice Bank (“£C Bank™}, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,

with an additional source of funds for the operation of its business. Under PC Bank's securitization program, a portion of the total interest

in the credit card receivables is sold to independent trusts. In 2006, PC Bank restructured its credit card securitization program and

Eagle Credit Card Trust (“Eagle™, a previously established independent trust, issued $500 millian of five year senior notes and subordinated
notes due 2011 at a weighted averags rate of 4.5%. The restructuring of the portfolio yielded a nominal net lpss. PC Bank securitized

an aggregate $240 million of credit card receivables during 2006 (2005 — $225 million). Information on 2C Bank’s credit card receivables
and securitization is provided in Notes 1 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements and in the Qif-Balance Sheet Airangements
section of this MD&A.

The Company obtains its long term financing through its MTN program. The Company plans to refinance existing long term debt as it matures.
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fn the normal course of business, the Company estabiishes standby letters of credit used in connection with certain obligations related to the
financing program for its independent franchisees, securitization of PC Bank's credit card receivables, real estate transactions and benefit
programs. At year end, the aggregate gross potential liability related to the Company's standby letters of credit was approximately $333 million
(2005 — $276 million) against which the Company had $371 million (2005 — $316 million) in credit facilities available to draw on.

It is the intention of the Campany to enter into a committed credit facility expected to be extended by several banks in the amount of
$500 million for general corporate purposes and to support the Company’s commercial paper program.

The Cempany has the following sources from which it can fund its 2007 cash requirements:

» cash flows generated from operating activities;

» cash, cash equivalents, and short term investments;

= commercial paper program;

* MTN program; and

* additional credit card receivable securitizations from future growth in the PC Bank credit card operations.

Ouring the third quarter of 2806, the Company’s MTN and debentures were downgraded by Dominion Bond Rating Service (“DBRS”) to
“A” from “A (high)” and the commercial paper rating was confirmed at “R-1 (low)". In both cases, the trend was changed to “stable” from
“negative”. During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company s long term corporate credit and commercial paper ratings were downgraded
by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P"} to “A-" from “A”" and to "A-1 (low}" from “A-1 (mid)", respectively. The Company was removed from
CreditWatch with negative implications and the outlook was changed to “stable”

Subsequent to year end, DBRS placed the Company’s MTN and debentures Under Review with Negative Implications and at the same

time, confirmed the Company's commercial paper rating at its current levef with a “stable” trend; and S&P placed the Company’s long term
corporate credit and commercial paper ratings on CreditWatch with negative implications. Aithough a further rating decline will increase
borrowing costs, the Company anticipates no difficully in obtaining external financing based on past experience and the expectation of stable
market conditions.

The Company's current credit ratings are outlined in the table below:

Credit Ratings (Canadian Standards)

Dominion Bond Standard

o B _ o ‘ Rating Service - & Popr’§

Commercial paper R-1 {low) A-1 (low)
Medium term notes A A-
Other notes and debentures A A-

The rating arganizations listed above base their credit ratings on quantitative and qualitative considerations. These credit ratings are
intended to give an indicatien of the risk that the Company will not fulfill its obligations in a timely manner.
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6.3 Contractual Obligations
The following itustrates certain of the Company's significant contractual obligations and discusses other obligations as at December 30, 2006:

Summary of Contractual Obligations

Payments due by year

{$ milligns) 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 Thereatter Total
Long term debt (including

capital lease obligations} § 27 $ 420 $ 148 $ 319 $ 369 $295 $4.239
Operating leases® 190 178 156 134 114 720 1,492
Contracts for purchases of

real property and capital

investment projects® 145 4 4 153
Purchase obligations® 735 660 562 562 561 358 3438
Total contractual obligations $1,097 $1262 $ 870 $1,015 $ 1044 $ 4034 $9,322

(1) Represents the minimum or hase rents pavable. Amounts are not offset by any expected sub-lease income.

(2) These obligations include agreements for the purchase of real property. These agreements may contain conditions that may or may not be satisfied. If the conditions are not satisfied,
il is possible the Company witl no longer have the obligation to proceed with the transaction. These abligations atso include commitments with respect to capital investment projects, such
as the construction, expansion and renovation of buildings.

(3} These include material contractual abligations to purchase goods or services where the contract prescribes fixed or minimum volumes {6 be purchased or payments to be made within
afived period of time for a set or variable price. These are estimates of anticipated financial commitments and the amount of actual payments may vary. The purchase obligations
g0 not include purchase orders issued in the ordinary course of business for goods which are meant for resafe, nor de they include any contracts which may be terminated on relatively
short notice or with insigrificant cost or fiability to the Company. Alse excluded are purchase obligations related to commodities or commodity-ike goods for which a market for resale exists.
The Company believes such excluded contracis do nat have a matesal impact on its Hiquidity.

At year end, the Company had other long term liabilities which included accrued benefit plan liability, future income taxes liability and

stock-based compensation liability. These long term liabilities have not been included in the table for the following reasons:

+ future payments of accrued benefit plan liability, principally post-retirement benefits, depend an when and if retirees submit claims;

+ future payments of income taxes depend on the levels of taxable earnings and income tax rates;

= future payments of the share appreciation value on employee stock options depend on whether employees exercise their stock options,
the market price of the Company's comman shares on the exercise date and the manner in which they exercise those stock optians; and

* future payments of restricted share units depend on the market price of the Company's commen shares.

6.4 Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, the Company enters inta the following off-balance sheet arrangements:

= standby letters of credit used in connection with certain ebligations mainly refated to real estate transactions, and benefit programs,
the aggregate gross potential liability of which is approximately $221 million (2005 — $143 million);

* puarantees;

+ the securitization of a portion of PC Bank's credit card receivables through independent trusts;

* astandby letter of cradit to an independent funding trust which provides loans to the Company's independent franchisees {or their
purchase of inventory and fixed assets; and

+ financial derivative instruments in the form of interest rate swaps.
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Guarantees

The Company has entered into various guarantee agreements including standby letters of credit in relation to the securitization of PC Bank's
credit card receivables and in relation to third-party financing made available to the Company’s independent franchisees and obligations

to indemnily third parties in connection with leases, business dispositions and other transactions in the normal course of the Company's
business. For a detailed description of the Company's guarantees, see Note 71 to the consolidated financial statements.

Securitization of Credit Card Receivables

The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary PC Bank, securitizes credit card receivables through an independent trust administered
by a major Canadian chartered bank and through Eagle, also an independant trust. In these securitizations, PG Bank sells a portion

of its credit card receivables fo the trusts in exchange for cash. The trusts fund these purchases by issuing debt securities in the form

of asset-backed commercial paper ("ABCP"} and asset-backed term notes respectively, to third-party investors. The secusitizations

are accounted for as asset sales only when PC Bank transfers conirol of the transferred assets and receives consideration other than
beneficial interests in the transferred assets. All fransactions hetween the trusts and PC Bank have been, and are expected to continue

to be, accounted for as sales as contemplated by Canadian GAAP specifically Accounting Guideline {"AcG") 12, “Transfers of Receivables™
As PC Bank does not control or exercise any measure of influence over the trusts, the financial results of the trusts have not been

included in the Company's consolidated financial statements.

When PC Bank sells credit card receivables to the trusts, it no longer has access to the receivables but continues to maintain credit card
customer accaunt relationships and servicing obligations. PC Bank does not receive a servicing fee from the trusts for its servicing obligations
and accordingly, a servicing obligation is recorded. When a salfe occurs, PC Bank retains rights to future cash flows after obligations to the
investors in the trusts have been met, which is considered to be a retained interest. The ABCP issuing trust's recourse to AC Bank's assets

is limited to PC Bank's retained interests and is further supported through a standby letter of credit provided by a major Canadian chartered
bank for 9% (2005 - 9%) of the securitized amount. This standby letter of credit could be drawn upon in the event of a maior decline in

the income flow from or in the value of the securitized credit card receivables. The Company has agreed to reimburse the issuing bank for

any amount drawn on the standby letter of credit. The Company believes that the Iikelihood of this occurrence is remote. The subordinated
notes issued by Eagle provide credit support to those notes which are more senior. The carrying value of the retained interests is periodically
reviewed and when a decline in value is identified that is other than temporary, the carrying value is written down to fair value.

As at December 30, 2006, the total amount of securitized credit card receivables outstanding which PC Bank continues to service was
$1.25 billion (2005 — $1.01 billion) and the associated retained interests amounted to $5 million (2005 — $5 million). The standby letter of
credit supporting a portion of these securitized receivables amounted to approximately $68 miltion {2005 — $91 million). During 2006, PC Bank
received income of $116 million {2005 — $106 milfion) in securitization revenue from the independent trusts relating to the securitized

credit card receivables. In the absence of securitization, the Company would be required ta raise alternative financing by issuing debt or
equity instruments. Further disclosure regarding this amangement is provided in Notes 11 and 21 to the conselidated financial statements.

Independent Funding Trust

Independent franchisees of the Company may obtain financing through a structure involving independent trusts which were created

to provide {oans to the independent franchisees to facilitate their purchase of inventory and fixed assets, consisting mainly of fixturing

and equipment. These trusts are administered by a major Canadian chartered bank. The independent funding trust within the structure
finances its activities through the issuance of ABCP to third-party investors. The total amount of loans issued to the Company's independent
franchisees outstanding as of December 30, 2006 was $419 millien {2005 — $420 million) including $124 million (2005 — $126 million)

of loans payable of VIES consolidated by the Company in 2006. Based on a formula, the Company has agreed to provide credit enhancement
in the farm of a standby Isiter of credit for the benefit of the independent funding trust equal to approximately 109 of the principal amount
of the loans outstanding at any point in time, $44 million (2005 — $42 million) as of Decembar 30, 2008. This credit enhancement

allows the independent funding trust to provide favourable financing terms to the Company’s independent franchisees. In the event that
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an independent franchisee defaults oa its loan and the Company has not, within a specified time period, assumed the [can or the default
is not otherwise remedied, the indepandent funding trust may assign the loan to the Company and draw upon this standby letter of credit.
The Company has agreed to reimburse the issuing bank for any amount drawn on the standby letter of credit. No amount has ever been
drawn on the standby letter of credit. The Company believes it woutd be able to fully recover from the independent franchisee any amounts
it had reimbursed to the issuing bank. Neither the independent funding trust nor the Company can vafuntarily terminate the agreement
prior to December 2009, and following that date only upon six manths’ prior notice. Automatic termination of the agreement can only occur
if specific, predetermined events occur and are not remedied within the time periods required including a credit rating downgrade of the
Company below a long term credit rating of A {low} issued by DBRS. If the airangement is terminated, the independent franchisees would
be required to replace the loans provided by the independent funding trust with alternative financing. The Company is under no contractual
obligation to provide funding to independent franchisees under such circumsiances. In accordance with Canadian GAAP the financial
statements of the independent funding trust are not consolidated with those of the Company.

Financial Derivative Instruments

The Company uses off-balance sheet financial derivative instruments fo manage its exposure to changes in interest rates. For a detailed
description of the Company's off-balance sheet financial derivative instruments and the related accounting policies, see Notes 1 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

1 Selected Consolidated Annual Information

The foliewing is a summary of selected consolidated annual information extracted from the Company’s audited consolidated financial
statements. This information was prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP and ts reported in Canadian dollars. The analysis of the data
contained in the table focuses on the trends affecting the financial condition and results of operations over the latest two year period.

Selected Censolidated Annual Infermation

!
2006 20051 2004
(8 millons except where othevise incicated) 4 GZweeks) | L es e B2 eeks)
Sales $ 28,640 i $ 27627 $ 26,030
Sales excluding the impact of VIES™ 28,2517 | 27,212 26,030
Net (loss) earnings @y 4% |68
Net (loss) earnings per common share ($) I
Basic (.80) | 2.72 3.53
Adjusted basic™ 212 ! 3.35 3.48
Diuted oy o 33l
Total assels 13,436 13,761 12,949
Long term debt (excluding amount due withinone year) |~ 4212 | 494 393
Dividends declared per common share %) 84 B4 16

{1) See Non-GAAP financial measures on page 40.

{2 During 2006, the Company implemented Emerging Issues Committee Abstract 156, "Accounting by a Vendor far Consideration Given to a Customer (including a Reseller of the Vendor's
Products)” on a retroactive basis. Accordingly certain sales incentives paid to independent franchisees, associates and indapendent accounts for the prior years have been reclassified
hetween szles and cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses. For a further discussion, see the Accounting Standards Implemented in 2006 section included in this MO&A.
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The Company has been undergoing a significant amount of change over the past two years, As discussad previously, a number of significant
changes in the operations of the Company occurred in 2006, including the change in senior leadership. The new management team
commenced a review of the Company in the latier half of 2006 which focused on key drivers of the business such as fresh food presentation,
the vatue propositions of the Company's banners, maximizing employee engagement, the performance of retailing basics and customer
satisfaction. The Company also continued to feel the effects in 2006 of certain of its 2005 initiatives which included restructuring of

the supply chain operations, supply chain systems conversions which were initiated as part of the creation of 2 national information
technology platform, the recrganization of its merchandising, procurement and operations groups and the move of personnel to the Store
Support Centra in Brampton, Ontario,

Sales in 2006 increased 3.7% to $28.6 billion from $27.6 billien in 2005. Excluding the impact of VIEs, sales were $28.3 billion or 3.8%
higher than 2005. Same-store sales increased 0.8% in 2006 and 9.2% in 2005. National food price inflation as measured by CPl was
approximately 2.3% for 2006 comgpared to approximately 2.0% for 2005. The Company's calculation of foad price inflation, which considers
Company-specific preduct mix and pricing strategy, was reasenably consistent with that of CP1. Sales and same-store sales in 2006 were
adversely impacted by a decrease in tobacco sales caused by a general market decline and the loss of tobacco sales through its wholesale
club network due to the decision of a major tobacco supplier to sell directly to certain customers of the Company. In 2005, and to a lesser
extent 2006, sales and same-store sales were also adversely impacted as the flow of inventory to the Company’s stores was disrupted by
the effects of systems conversions and the start-up of a third-party warehouse.

Sales were also influenced by a number of ather factors, including changes in net retail square {ootage, expansion inte rew services
and/or departments and the activities of competitors. Qver the past two years, an average of $1.0 billien annually in capital was invested,
resutting in an increase in nel retail square footage of approximately 4.0 million square feet or 8.8%.

Corporate stare sales per average square foot decreased from $592 in 2004 to $585 in 2006.

The amaunt of new net retaif square footage and the timing of the store openings and closures within any given year may vary. The increase
in weighted average net retail square footage was 4.5% in 2006 and 7.5% in 2005.

in pursuit of improving its value proposition, Loblaw has invested in pricing in specific markets by adopting everyday low pricing strategies.
Consistent with its strategy of focusing on food but serving the consumer's everyday household needs, the Company has expanded its
general merchandise and drugstore offerings over this period and the retail sales growth realized in those caltegories continued to surpass
retail sales growth of food. Competiter activity varied by market. During the past two years, unprecedented levels of retail square footage,
mainly associated with food offerings, have been introduced inta certain markets, resulting in pressure on prices and customer retention,

Full year 2006 net earnings decreased $965 million to a net loss of $219 million and basic net earnings per common share decreased
$3.52 to a basic net loss per common share of 80 cents. This deciine included a decrease of 79.4% in operating income and a 2.8%
increase in interest expense. The effective income tax rate increased to 826.7% in 2006 from 34.8% in 2005.

In 2005, net earnings decreased $222 million or 22.9% and basic net earnings per common share decreased 81 cents or 22.9% from
2004. The decrease was due o a decrease in operating income of 15.2% over 2004 and a 54% increase in interest expense. The effective
income tax rate increased to 34.8% in 2005 from 31.5% in 2004.
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Operating income for the full year 2006 was lower than in 2005 as a result of recording a non-cash goedwill impairment charge. The ongoing
transformative changes and certain other charges outlined previously in the Results of Operations section of this MD&A have resulted in
lower operating income for the year fer both 2006 and 2005 when compared to the prior year. Over the two year period, net interest expense
increased, primarily due to the increase in Canadian short term borrowing rates and the decrease in net interest income due to the maturity
of interest rate swaps during this period. The 2006 increase in the effective income tax rate was mainly the result of the non-deductible
goodwill impairment charge.

Adjusted basic net earnings per common share® decreased 18.8% to $2.72 in 2006 from $3.35 in 2005 and decreased 3.7% to $3.35in
2005 from $3.48 in 2004.

Total assets of the Company decreased in 2006 as a result of the non-cash goodwill impairment charge. Fixed assets have grown as

a result of the capital investment program. Inventory at the end of 2006 remained relatively flat to 2005 but was still greater than that of
two years ago due to an investment in general merchandise, Inventory turns of general merchandise categories are lower than those of food
categories, resulting in higher aggregate levels of investment in general merchandise inventory as that husiness developed. A substantial
portion of credit card receivables is sold to independent trusts and the unsecuritized balance net of the allowance for credit losses increased
by $156 million since 2004. Cash flows from aperating activities have covered a large portion of the funding requirements for the Company.
While the Company issuad long term debt net of amounts retired in 2005, long term debt was repaid in 2006. In addition, long term debt
increased in 2005 as a result of consolidating the long term debt of VIES pursuant to AcG 15.

Dividends declared per common share have been consistent with the Company’s policy of maintaining a dividend payment equal to
approximately 20% to 25% of the prior year’s adjusted basic net earnings per common share® although dividends in 2006 were slightly
in excess of that range,

During the two year period ended December 30, 2006, the Company implemented several new accounting standards issued by the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants {"CICA™). The new accounting standards implemented in 2006 and the resulting impact on
the firancial position and results of operations are outfined in the Accounting Standards Implemented in 2006 section of this MD&A.
The following standards were implemented in 2005:

» AcG 15, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities™.

» EIC Abstract 150, “Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease”; and

» EIC Abstract 154, “Accounting for Pre-Existing Relationships Between the Parties of a Business Combination”.

8. Quarterly Results of Gperations
8.1 Results by Quarter

The 52 week reporting cycle fellowed by the Company is divided into four quarters of 12 weeks each except for the third quarter which

is 16 weeks in duration. The following is a summary of selacted consolidated finanzial information derived from the Company's unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements for each of the eight most recently completed quarters. This information was prepared in
accordance with Canadian GAAP and is reported in Canadian dollars.

{1) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.
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Summary of Quarterly Results

{unaudited)
l 2006 2005
First Second Third Fourth Total First Second Third Fourth Totat
(_%__Tiillon§excep_t\-.'here“ot__he_rw?é?ifl.dicalhed.)._ ) Olﬁ_ngr Quarter  Quarter Quarter  {audited} ) Ouafter Quarter Quarter Quarter  (audited)
Salestt ' $6,147 $6,699 $9,010 $6,784 $28.640  $6,060 $6,405 $8,610 $6552 $27.627
Net (fpss) earm'ngs o | 140 194 203 (756) (219) 142 211 192 201 746

Net {loss) sarnings per
common share !
Basic (§) $51 $.71 $.74 $(276) $(80) $52 $77 $ 70 $73 $2712
Diluted ) $51 $.71 $.74 $(276) $(80) $.52 $76 $.70 $.73 $271

|

{1) During 2008, the Campany implemented Emerging Issues Committee Abstract 156, “Accounting by a Vendor for Consideration Given to a Customer {including a Resefler of the Vendsr's
FProducts)” an a retroactive basis. Accordingly certain sales incentives paid {0 independent franchisees, associates and independent accounts for the prior year have been reclassified
between sales and cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses. For 2 {urther discussion, see the Accounting Standards Implemented in 2006 section inchuded in this MD&A.

Sales growth in 2006 was impacted by various factors. Sales growth during the last two guarters of 2006 continuad to be negatively

impacted by the loss in tobacco sales as discussed previously. Sales and same-store sales in the fourth quarter were higher by

approximately 2.0% excluding the loss in tobacco sales. Tobaceo sales are not a large earnings contributor, Quarterly same-store sales
growth for 2006 improved during the year from a decline of 2.5% in the first quarter to an increase of approximately 1.3% in the fourth
quarter, Qverall national food price inflation, as measured by CPI, during 2006 was approximately 2.3%. The adverse effects of the

2005 systems conversions and the start-up of the thied-party warehouse continued into 2006. Early in 2006, service levels for general

merchandise were below expected running rates but improved throughout 2006 with increasing stability. Net retail square footage

increased by 1.2 million square feet in 2006 and was more heavily weighted over the last two quartars.

Fluctuations in guarterly net earnings in 2006 reflect the impact of a number of specific charges outlined previously resulting from

the ongeing transformative changes. Softening sales in the first quarter of 2006, from continued product supply issues and deliberate delays

in program activities, resulted in lost leverage on the fixed compenents in administrative and aperating expenses. In the second, third

and fourth quarters, higher store and distribution centre operational costs were incurred to stabilize the flow of product to the stores and

additional storage costs were absorbed to quicken the supply chain stabilization precess. Fourth quarter performance reflects the adverse

impact on operating income of the following:

» Higher inventory shrink of approximately $35 million and higher stare labour costs of approximately $20 million;

» Aninvestment of approximately 0.5% in food pricing, resulting in an impact of approximately $30 million;

* Higher general merchandise mark downs in the range of $15 million to $20 million to clear inventory through retail stores;

» Afixed asset impairment chargs of $24 million due in part to a decision to suspend plans for a number of sites scheduled for future
development; and

* Incrementa! supply chain costs and information technology investments of approximately $15 million.

Investments in the form of lower food prices continue to be made in specific markets in support of the Company's business strategy
to grow sales levels.
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Interest expense, relative to 2005, increased marginally in the first half of 2006, but was reasonrably consistent with 2005 in the
second half of 2006.

The change in the effective income tax rate for 2006 over 2005 was primarily due to the non-cash goodwili impairment charge which
is net deductible for income tax, the change in the proportion of taxable income earned across different tax jurisdictions, and a reduction
te future income tax expense resulting from a reduction in statutory income tax rates.

During 2006, the Company did not purchase common shares for cancellation pursuant to its NCIB (2005 — 226,100).

8.2 Fourth Quarter Results

The following is a summary of selected consolidated information for the fourth quarter of 2006. This information was prepared in accordance
with Canadian GAAP and is reported in Canadian dollars. The analysis of the data contained in the table focuses on the results of operations
and changes in the financial condition and cash flows in the fourth quarter.

Selected Consolidated Information for the Fourth Guarter

{unaudited) !
2006 | 2005

{$ millions except where otherwise indicated) {12 waeks) i {12 weeks)
Sales? $ 6784 $ 6,552
Sales excluding the impact of VIEs®® 6,692 6,454
Qperating (loss) income (695) | 394
Adjusted operating income™ 286 441
Interest expense 60 61
income taxes 2 132
Net (loss) earings (756} | 201
Net (loss) earnings per common share (%)

Basic {2.76) 13

Adjusted basic® 58 F 94
Cash flows from (used in): i

{Operating activities 177 l 830

Investing activities {409) (456)

Financing activities {267) {333)
Dividends dectared per common share () ' 2 21

{1} See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.

{2) During 2006, the Company implemented Emerging Issues Committee Abstract 156, “Accounting by a Vendor for Consideration Given to a Customer (including & Reseller of the Vendor's
Produets)” on a retroactive basis. Accordingly certain sales incentives paid to independent franchisees, assaciates and independent accounts for the prior year have been reclassified
betwean sales and cost of sales, seliing and administrative expenses. For a further discussion, see the Accounting Standards Implemented in 2006 section included in this MD&A.

Sales for the fourth quarter of 2006 increased 3.5% or $232 million to $6.8 billion from $6.6 billion reported in the fourth guarter of 2005,
including a decrease of 0.2% related to the consoldation of certain independent franchisees.
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Sales and Sales Growth Excluding the Impact of VIEsW

|

‘ 2006 2005
(8 millons excepl where othervise indcated) e 5 UZwecks) _ (IZweeks)
Total sales $ 6,784 . $ 6,552
Less: Sales attributable to the consolidation of ViEs 7 7 | 92 98
Safes excluding_the impag}tﬂ of VIEs N _ ‘ ‘ $ 6,692 B $ 6,454
Total sales growth ‘ 35% 43%
Less: Impact on sales growth attributable to the consofidation of VIEs ; (2%) 1.6%
Sales growth excluding the impact of VIES® | 3.7% 2.7%

{1) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.

{2} During 2006, the Company implementad Emerging Issues Committee Abstract 196, “Accounting by a Vendor for Consideration Given to a Customer (Including a Reselier of the Vendor's
Products)” on a retroactive basis. Accordingly certain sales incentives paid 1o independant {ranchisees, assaciates and independent accaunts for the prior years have been reclassitieg
between sales and eost of sales, selling and administrative expenses. For a further discussion. see the Accounting Standards implemented in 2006 section included in this MD&A.

Sales increases were realized across all regions of the country and in all areas of food, general merchandise and drugstara.

Fourth quarter same-store sales increased approximately 1.3% when compared to the same period last year. The growth in sales and

same-stare sales in the quarter is higher by appraximately 2.0% excluding the loss in tobacco sales. During the fourth quarter of 2046,

8 new corporate and franchised stores were opened and 4 stores were closed, resulting in a net increase of 0.3 miliion square feet

or 0.6%. The Company’s calculatian of foad price inflation was consistent with the national food price inflation as measured by CPI of

approximately 1.5% for the quarter.

During the fourth guarter of 2006, the business focused on on-shelf availability, targeted pricing investments and incremental marketing.
The Company experienced some positive sales momentum particularly when the decrease in tobacco sales is excluded. A successiul
Holiday /nsider’s Report contributed to this improved sales performance.

Operating income for the fourth quarter of 2006 decreased $1.1 billion from the fourth quarter of 2005 to an operating loss of $695 million

and operating margin declined to (10.2)% from 6.0% in the comparable period of 2005 due to the effects of the charges described below,

all of which have been previously detaited in the Results of Operations section of this MD&A:

» A non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $800 million related to the goodwill established on the acquisition of Provigs Inc. in 1998;

* Aone-time charge of $84 miltion in the fourth quarter related to the ratification of a new four-year collective agreement with members
of certain Ontario locals of the UFCW,

» Acharge of $68 million in connection with the liquidation process for selected general merchandise inventory reflecting the expected
inventory value through liquidation as well as the associated costs of facilitating the disposition incurred to date; and

» Acharge of $35 mitlion recorded upon management's approval and announcement of its plans to close 19 underperforming stores
in Quebec, mainly within the Provige banner, 8 stares in the Atlantic region, and 24 wholesale outlets. These closures are expected
10 result in total costs of $54 million.

(1) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.
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Adjusted operating income® in the fourth quarter of 2006 was $286 million compared to $441 million in 2005, resulting in adjusted operating
margins™ of 4.3% and 6.8% respectively. Buring the fourth quarter of 20086, the Company continued to incur higher than anticipated store

and distribution centre operationat costs, particularly in higher inventory shrinkage and labour of approximately $35 million and approximately
$20 million, respectively. lnvestments in lower food prices continued into the fourth quarter with an approximate 0.5% investment in food
pricing, which resulted in an adverse impact to operating income of approximately $30 million when compared to the same period fast year.
As the Company continued to manage its inventory levels down to more desirable Jevels in store backrooms, outside storage and distribution
centres, some success was realized in the fourth quarter frem the focused clearance pricing of certain categories resulting in higher general
merchandise mark downs in the range of $15 million to $20 millien from the clearance of inventary through retail stores. Incremental supply
chain costs and information technology investments of approximately $15 million were also absorbed in the fourth quarter.

Adjusted EBITDA™ and EBITDA margin® for the fourth quarter were $414 million and 6.2%, respectively. For the comparable period
of 2005, adiusted EBITDA™ and EBITDA margin® were $573 million and 8.9%, respectively.

Total interest expense for the fourth quarter was flat compared to that of last year for the same period.

The effective income tax rate for the fourth quarter of 2006 was negative 0.3% compared to 39.6% in 2005. This significant change
in the effective income tax rate was due to the non-cash goodwill impairment recorded in the quarter which is not subject to income
tax. In addition, the effective income tax rate was impacted by a change in the proportion of taxable income gared across

different tax jurisdictions.

Net foss for the quarter was $756 milfion, a dacrease of $957 million from the same peried last year. Basic net loss per common share
was $2.76, a decrease of $3.49 from a basic net earnings per common share of 73 cents in 2005, Adjusted basic net earnings per common
share™ decreased 36 cents or 38.3% to 58 cents in 2006 from %4 cents in 2005.

Fourth quarter cash flows from operating activities were $777 million in 2006 compared ta $830 million in 2005. The decrease was mainly

a result of lower net earnings before minority interest. Fourth quarter cash flows used in investing activities were $409 million in 2006
compared to $456 million in 2005. Capital investment for the fourth quarter amounted to $261 million (2005 — $335 million). Fourth quarter
cash flows used in financing activities were $267 million in 2006 compared to $333 million in 2005.

9. Management's Certification of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management is responsible for designing disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that all material information
relating to the Company and its subsidiaries, is gathered and reported to senior management on a timely basis so that appropriate
decisions can be made regarding public disclosure. As required by Multilateral Instrument 52-109 (Certification of Disclosure in [ssuers'
Annual and Interim Fifings) of the Canadian Securities Administrators, the Executive Chairman as chief executive officer and the Executive
Vice President as chief financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of such disclosure controls and procedures and have cencluded
that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective as at December 30, 2006.

1) See Noa-GAAP Financial Measures on ,
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10. Risks and Risk Management
10.1 Operating Risks and Risk Management

Each year, the Company performs an Enterprise Risk Assessment (“ERA") which identifies the key risks facing the Company and evaluates
the risk management effectiveness for each of these risks. The assessment is primarily carried out through interviews with senior management,
who assess the potential impact of risks and the likelihood that a negative impact will occur. The results of the ERA are used to prioritize risk
management activities, allocate rasources effectively and inform overall business direction. The Audit Committee receives a repart on the ERA.

A description of the risks and risk management strategies identified by the ERA is included in the operational risks discussed below,
any of which has the potential to negatively affect financial performance. The Company has operating and risk management strategies
and insurance programs which help fo mitigate the potential financial impact of these operating risks.

industry and Competitive Environment

The retaif industry in Canada is a changing and competitive market. Consumer needs drive industry changes, which are impacted by
changing demographic and economic trends such as changes in dispasable income, ethnic diversity, nuiritional awareness and time
avaifability. Customer satisfaction is central to the Company’s business. Over the past several years, consumers have demanded more
choice, value and cenvenience. If the Company is ineffective in responding to these demands or ineffactive in executing its strategies,
its financial parformance could be negatively impacted.

The Company monitors its market share and the markets in which it operates, and will adjust its operating strategies, which include, but
are not limited to, closing underperforming stores, relocating stores or reformatting them under a different banner, reviewing pricing and
adjusting product offerings and marketing programs. The Company's conlrol [abel program represents a significant competitive advantage
because it enhances customer loyalty by oifering superior value and provides some protection against natignal brand pricing strategies.

The Company faces increasing competition from many types of non-traditional competitors, such as mass merchandisers, warehouse
clubs, drugstores, limited assortment stores, disceunt stores, convenience stores and specialty stores, all of which continus to increase
their offerings of products typically associated with traditional supermarkets. The Company is also subject to competitive pressures from
new entrants into the marketplace and from the expansion of existing competitors, particularly those expanding into the grocery market.
These competitors may have extensive resources which will allow them fo compete effectively with the Company in the long term. Increased
compelition could adversely affect the Company’s ability to achieve its objectives. The Campany’s inability to compete effectively with

its current ar any future competiters could result in, amang other things, lessening of market share and fower pricing in response to

its competitors” pricing activities. Accordingly, the Company’s cempetitive position and financial performance could be negatively impacted.
The Company may not always achieve the expected cost savings and other benefits of its initiatives, which could negatively impact the
Company’s financial performance.

Change Management

2006 was a year of significant change for the Company. The change in senior management will be followed by changes to the Company’s
structures and business processes. While these changes are expected to bring benefits to the Company in the ferm of a more agile and
consumer-focused business, success is dependent on management effectively implementing these changes. ineffective change management
may result in disruptions ko the operations of the business or affect the ahility of the Company to implement and achieve its strategic
objectives, due to a lack of clear accountabilities, or cause employees to act in a manner which is inconsistent with Company objectives.
Any of these events could negatively impact the Company's performance.
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Food Safety and Public Health

The Company is subject to potential liabilities connected with its business operations, including potential exposures associated with product
defects, food safety and product handling. Such liabilities may arise in refation to the storage, distribution and display of products and,

with respect to the Company's control labal products, in refation to the production, packaging and design of products.

A majority of the Company's sales are generated from food products and the Company could be vulnerable in the event of a significant
outhreak of food-berne illness or increased public health concerns in connection with certain food products. Such an event could negatively
affect the Company’s financial performance. Procedures are in pface to manage such events, should they occur. These procedures

identify risks. provide clear communication to employees and consumers and are aimed at ensuring that potentially harmful products are
expeditiously removed from inventory. The ability of these procedures to address such events is dependent on their successful execution.
Food safety related liability exposures are insured by the Company’s insurance program. In addition, the Company has food safety
procedures and programs which address safe food handiing and preparation standards. The Company endeavaurs to employ best practices
for the storage and distribution of food products and also actively supports consumer awareness of safe food handling and consumption.

The Company strives to ensure its control label producits have informative nutritional labelling so that today s health conscious consumer
can make informed choices.

Information Technology

In order to suppost the current and future requirements of the business in an efficient, cost effective and well-controlled manner, the
Company is reliant on information technology systems. These have been assessed by management to need significant upgrading in order

to act as an enabler for the business to achieve its operating cbjectives. These systems are essential in providing management with the
appropriate information for decision making, including its key performance indicators. Change management risk and other associated risks
will arise from the various information technology projects which will be undertaken to upgrade existing systems and introduce new systems
to effectively manage the business going forward. Failure by the Company to appropriately invest in information technology or failure to
implement information technology infrastructure in a timely or effective manner may negatively impact the Company's financial performance.

Labour

A significant majority of the Company's store level and distribution centre workforce is unicnized. Renegotiating collective agreements might
result in work stoppages or slowdawns, which could negatively affect the Company’s financial performance, depending on their nature and
duration. The Company is wiiling to accept the short term costs of labour disruption in order to negotiate competitive labour costs and
operating conditions for the longer term. Significant labour negotiations took place across the Company in 2006 as 87 collective agreements
expired and 64 collective agreements were successfully negotiated which represented a combination of agreements expiring in 2006, those
carried over from prior years, and those negotiated early. In 2007, 77 collective agreements affecting approximately 20,000 employees will
expire, with the single largest agreement covering approximately 8,600 emplayees. The Company will also continue to negotiate the

57 collective agreements carried over from 2004, 2005 and 2006. The Company has good relations with its empleyees and uniens and,
although it is possible, does not anticipate any unusual difficulties in renegotiating these agreements.

Several of the Company’s cometitors operate in a non-union environment, These competitors may benefit from lower labour costs and
more faveurable operating efficiencies, making it more difficult for the Company to compete.

Employee Future Benefit Contributions

While the Company's registered funded defined benefit pension plans are currently adequately funded and returns en pension plan assets
are in line with expectations, there is no assurance that this will continue. An extended period of depressed capital markets and low interest
rates could require the Company to make conéributions to its registered funded defined benefit pension plans in excess of those currently
contemplated, which in turn could have a negative effect on its financiat performance.
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During 2006, the Company contributed $88 million (2005 — $59 million) to its registered funded defined benefit pension plans. During 2007
the Company expects to contribute approximately $75 million fo these plans. This estimate may vary subject to actuarial valuations being
completed, market performance and regulatory requirements. The Company also expects to make contributions in 2007 to defined
contribution pension plans and multi-employer pensian plans, as well as benefit payments to the beneficiaries of the unfunded defined
benefit pension and other benefit plans.

Multi-Employer Pension Plans

In addition to the Company-sponsored pension plans, the Company participates in various multi-employer pension plans, providing
pension benefits in which approximately 41% (2005 — 40%) of employees of the Company and of its independent franchisees participate.
The administration of these plans and the investment of their assets are legally controlled by a board of independent trustees generally
consisting of an equal number of union and employer representatives. In some circumstances, Loblaw may have a representative on the
beard of trustees of these multi-employer pension plans. The Company's responsibility to make contributions to these plans is limited

by the amounts established pursuant to its collective agreements. Pension cost for these plans is recognized as contributions are due.

Subsequent to year end, the Company was served with an action brought by certain beneficiaries of a multi-emoloyer pension plan in the
Superiar Court of Ontario. In their claim against the employers and the trustees of the multi-employer pension plan, the plaintiffs claim that
assets of the muiti-employer pension plan have been mismanaged. The Company is one of the employess affected by the action. One billion
doflars of damages are cfaimed in the action against a total of 17 defendants. In addition, the plaintiffs are seaking to have a representative
defendant appointed for the employers of all the members of the multi-employer pension plan. The action is framed as a representative
action on behalf of all of the beneficiaries of the multi-employer pension plan. The action is at a very early stage ard the Company intends
to vigorously defend it. Statements of Defence have not yet been filed.

During 2046, the trustees of a multi-employer pension plan (including an employee who was appointed by the Company} were charged
under the Pension Benefits Act {Ontario} by the Superintendent of Financial Services with failure to administer various investments made by
the trustees in a manner consistent with the legislation. It is not anticipated that the trial relating to these charges will be scheduled before
February, 2008,

Third-Party Service Providers

Certain aspects of the Company’s business are significantly affected by third parties. While appropriate contractual arrangements are put
in place with these third parties, the Company has no direct influence over how such third parties are managed. It is possible that negative
events affecting these third parties could in turn negatively impact the Company's operations and its financial performance.

A large portion of the Company’s case-ready meat products are produced by a third party which operates facilities dedicated to Loblaw.
The Company’s contro! label products, which arg among the most recognized brands in Canada, are manufactured under contract by
third-party vendors. In erder to preserve the brands’ equity, these vendors are held to high standards of quality. The Company also uses
third-party logistic services including those in connection with a dedicated warehouse and distribution centre in Pickering, Ontario and
third-party comman carriers. Any disruption in these services could interrupt the delivery of merchandise to the stores and therefore could
negatively impact sales.

President’s Choice Financial banking services are pravided by a major Canadian chartered bank. PC Bank uses third-party service
providers to process credit card transactions, operate call centres and monitor credit and fraud {or the President’s Choice Financial
MasterCard® In order to minimize operating risk, PC Bank and the Company actively manage and monitor their refationships with all
third-party service providers. PC Bank has developed a vendor management policy, approved by its Board of Directors, and has established
a vendor management team that provides its Board with regular reparts on vendor management and risk assessment. PC Financial home
and auto insurance products are provided by companies within the Aviva Canada group. the Canadian subsidiary of a major international
property and casualty insurance provider,
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Real Estate

The availability and conditions affecting the acquisition and development of real estate properties may impact the Company's abifity to
execute its planned real estate program on schedule and, therefore, its ability to achieve its sales targets. Real estate development plans
may be contingent on successful negotiation of labour agreements with respect to same-site expansion or redevelopment. As the Company
continues to offer general merchandise, on-time execution of the real estate program becomes increasingly important due to significantly
longer lead times required for ordering this merchandise. Delays in execution could lead to inventory management issues. The Company
maintains a significant portfolie of owned retail real estate and, whenever practical, pursues a strategy of purchasing sites for future store
locations. This enhances the Company’s operating flexibility by allowing the Company to introduce new departments and services that

coutd be precluded under operating leases. At year end 2006, the Company owned 72% (2005 — 72%) of its corporate store square footage.

Seasonality

The Company’s operations as they relate to food, specifically inventory levels, sales volume and product mix, are impacted to some

degree by certain holiday periods in the year. Certain general merchandise items are subject to more seasonal fluctuations. As the Company
expands and redefines its general merchandise offerings, its operating results may be subject to more seasonal fluctuations.

Excess laventory

As the Company continues to offer general merchandise, it is possible that certain merchandising programs will result in excess inventory
that cannot be sold profitably threugh the Company's stares. Excess inventory may result in mark downs, shrink or the need to liquidate the
inventory, all of which may negatively impact the Company's financial performance. In addition, the Company's current inventory management
infrastructure, including its information technology systems, is not efficient in its tracking of inventory through all stages of the supply chain.
The Company has implemented pracedures and information technology workarounds which provide management with the ability te adequately
detect and quantify excess and obsolete inventory. The Company expects to implement naw systems in this area to address this risk.

Employee Development and Retention
Effective employee development and succession planning are essential to sustaining the growth and success of the Company. The Contpany
continues to focus on the development of employees at all levels and across all regions. The degree to which the Company is not effective
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in developing its empioyees and establishing appropriate succession planning processes could lead to a lack of requisite knowledge,
skills and experience which could, in turn, affect its ability to execute its strategies, efficientiy run its operations and meet its goals for
financial performance.

The tight labour market in Western Canada has created unigue challenges to effectively operate stores and distribution centres, thereby
affecting the Company’s ability to meet its business objectives. The Company has implementad targeted programs to attract the appropriate
calibre of employee in a very competitive environment.

The Company has announced a reorganization of some of its functions and an associated reduction of between 800 and 1,000 store support
and regional office employees. These actions, if ngt properly executed, will impact the Company's ability to execute its strategies going
forward. These actions will require the Company to address employee engagament in the process and ensure that key employees remain
empawered to effectively execute the Company’s strategies.

Utility and Fuel Prices

The Company is a significant cansumer of electricity, othar utilities and fuel. Unanticipated cost increases in these iterns could negatively
affect the Company's financtal perfarmance. The Company has entered into contracts with suppliers to fix the price of a partion of its
future variable costs associated with electricity and natural gas, and financial contracts to fix a portion of variable costs associated with
heating oil requirements for 2007,

Insurance

The Company limits its expasure te risk through a combination of appropriate levels of self-insurance and the purchase of various insurance
coverages, including an integrated insurance program. The Company's insurance program is based on various lines and limits of coverage
which provides the appropriate level of retained and insured risks. Insurance is arranged on a multi-year basis with reliable, financially
stable insurance companies as rated by A.M. Best Company, Inc. The Company combines comprehensive risk management programs and
the active management of claims handling and litigation processes by using internal professionals and external technical expertise to
manage the risk it retains.

Environmental, Health and Safety

The Company has envirenmental, health and workplace safety programs in place and has established policies and procedures aimed at
ensuring compliance with applicable legislative requirements. To this end, the Company employs environmental risk assessments and
audits using internal and external resources together with employee awareness programs throughout its operating locations. The Company
endeavours 1o be secially and environmentally responsible, and recognizes that the competitive pressures for economic growth and cost
efficiency must be integrated with sound environmental stewardship and ecological considerations. Environmental protection requirements
de not and are not expected to have a material effect on the Company's financial performance.

The Environmental, Health and Safety Committee of the Board receives regular reporting from management, addressing current and potential
future issues, identifying new reguiatory concerns and related communication efforts. The Company’s dedicated Environmental Affairs
staff work closely with the operations to help ensure that corporate requirements are met.

Ethical Business Conduct

Any failure of the Company fo adhere to its policies, the law or ethical business practices could significantly affect its reputation and brands
and could, therefore, negatively impact the Company’s financial perfarmance, The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct
which emptoyees and directors of the Company are required to acknowledge and agree to on a regular basis. The Company has in place

an kthics and Business Conduct Committee which menitors compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and determines how the
Company can best ensure it is conducting is business in an ethical manner. The Company has also adopted a Vendar Code of Conduct
which cutlines its ethical expectations to its vendor community in a number of areas, including social responsibility.
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Legal, Taxation and Accounting

Changes to any of the laws, rules, regulations or policies related to the Company's business including the production, processing,
preparation, distribution, packaging and labelling of its products could have an adverse impact on its financial and operational performance.
In the course of complying with such changes, the Company may incur significant costs. Failure by the Company to fully comply with
applicable laws. rules, regulations and policies may subject it to civil or regulatory actions or proceedings, including fines, assessments,
injunctions, recalls or seizures, which may have an adverse effect on the Company’s financial results.

During 2006, the Government of Ontario passed a new law which prohibits the receipt of rebates paid by manufacturers to pharmacies

in respect of interchangeable products and products listed in Ontario’s Formulary, Pharmacies are permitted to accept only limited
defined professional allowances to be used in compliance with a new Code of Conduct. As a result of this recently enacted legislation,
drugstore-retatad operating income could decrease although the Company is attempting to mitigate some of the impact of these changes.
It is possible that similar legislation could be implemented in other provinces which could have a further negative impact.

There can be no assurance that the tax laws and regulations in the jurisdictions affecting the Company will not be changed in a manner
which could adversely affect the Company. New accounting pronouncements introduced by appropriate authoritative bodies may also impact
the Company’s financial resulis.

Helding Company Structure

Loblaw Companies Limited is a holding company. As such, it does not carry on business directly but dees so through its subsidiaries.

It has no major source of income or assets of its own, other than the interests it has in its subsidiaries, which are all separate tegal entities.
Loblaw Companies Limited is therefore financially dependent on dividends and other distributions it receives from its subsidiaries.

10.2 Financial Risks and Risk Management

In the normal course of business, the Company is expoesed to financial risks that have the patential to negatively affect its financial
performance including financial risks related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and the market price of the
Company’s common shares. These risks and the actions taken to minimize them are discussed below. The Company is also exposed to
credit risk on certain of its financial instruments.

Financial Derivative Instruments

The Company uses over-the-counter financial derivative instruments, specifically cross currency basis swaps, interest rate swaps
and equity forwards, to minimize the risks and costs associated with its financing activities and its stock-based compensation plans.
The Company maintains treasury centres that operate under poticies and guidelines approved by the Board covering funding, investing,
equity, foreign currency exchange and interest rate management. The Company’s policies and guidelines prevent it from using any
financial derivative instrument for trading or speculative purposes. See Notes 1 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements for
additional information an the Company’s financial derivative instruments.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate

The Company enters into cross currency basis swaps to manage its current and anticipated exposure to fluctuatiens in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Company’s cross currency basfs swaps are transactions in which floating interest payments and principal in United
States dollars are exchanged against the receipt of floating interest payments and principal in Canadian dollars. These cross currency basis
swaps limit the Company's exposure against foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on a portion of its United States dollar denominated
assets, principally cash, cash equivalents and short term investments.
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Interest Rate

The Company eniers into interest rate swaps to manage its current and anticipated exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and market
liquidity. Interest rate swaps are transactions in which the Company exchanges interest flows with a counterparty on a specified notional
amount for a predstermined period based on agreed upon fixed and floating interest rates. Notional amounts are not exchanged. The Company
monitors market conditions and the impact of interest rate fluctuations on its fixed and floating interest rate exposure mix on an ongaing basis.

Comman Share Market Price

The Company enters into equity forwards to manage its exposure to fluctuations in its stock-based compensation cost as a result of changes
in the market price of its common shares. These equity farwards change in value as the market price of the underlying common shares
changes, which results in a partial offset to fluctuations in the Company's stock-based compensation costs. The partia! offset between
the Company's stock-based compensation costs and the equity forwards exists as long as the market price of the Company's common
shares exceeds the exercise price of employse stock options. As at year end 2006, 4,068,646 stock options had exercise prices which were
greater than the market price of the Company's common shares at year end.

Counterparty

QOver-the-counter financial derivative instruments are subject to counterparty risk. Counterparty risk arises from the possibility that
market changes may afiect a counterparty’s position unfaveurably and that the counterparty defaults on its obligations to the Company.
The Company has sought te minimize potential counterparty risk and losses by conducting transactions for its derivative agreements

with counterparties that have at minimum a long term “A” credit rating from a recognized credit rating agency and by placing risk adjusted
limits on its exposure to any single counterparty for its financial derivative agreements. The Company has internal policies, controls

and reporting processes, which require ongoing assessment and cosrective action, if necessary, with respect 1o its derivaiive transactions.
In addition, principal amounts on cross cusrency basis swaps and equity forwards are each netted by agreement and there is no exposure
1o foss of the ariginal notional principal amounts on the interest rate swaps and equity forwards.

Credit
The Company's exposure to credit risk relates to the Company’s cash eguivalents and short term investments, PC Bank’s credit card
receivables and accounts receivable from independent franchisees, associates and independent accounts.

Credit risk associated with the Company’s cash equivalents and short term investments results from the possibility that a counterparty

may default on the repayment of a security. This risk is mitigated by the established policies and guidelines that require issuers of permissible
investrents to have at minimum a tong term “A” credit rating from a recognized credit rating agency and that specify minimum and
maximum exposures to specific issuers.

FC Bank manages the President s Choice Financial MasteiCard® PC Bank grants credit to its customers on President’s Choice Financial
MasterCard® with the intention of increasing the loyatty of those customers and the Company's profitability. Credit risk results from the
potential for loss due to thase customers defaulting on their payment obligations. In order to minimize the associated credit risk, AC Bank
employs stringent credit scoring fechniques, actively monitors the credit card portfolio and reviews techniques and technology that can
improve the effectiveness of its collection process. In addition, these receivables are dispersed among a large, diversified group of credit
card customers.

The Company also has accounts receivable from its independent franchisees, associates and independent accounts, mainly as a result
of sales to these customers. The Company actively monitors the balances on an ongging hasis and collects funds from its independent
franchisees on a frequent basis in accordance with terms specified in the applicable agraements.
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11. Related Party Transactions

The Company’s majority sharehalder, George Weston Limited and its affiliates {"Weston™}, other than the Company, are related parties.
it is the Company's palicy to cenduct all transactions and settie all balances with related parties on market terms and conditions.
Related party transactions include:

Inventory Purchases Purchases of inventory from related parties for resale in the distribution network represented approximately 3%
{2005 — 3%) of the cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses.

Cost Sharing Agreements Weston has entered into certain contracts with third parties for administrative and corporate services, including
telecommunication services and information technalogy refated matters on behalf of the Company. Through cost sharing agreements that
have been established between the Company and Weston concerning these costs, the Company has agreed to be respansible to Weston for
its proportionate share of the costs incurred on its behalf. Payments by the Company pursuant to these cost sharing agreements were
approximately $25 million {2005 — $22 million).

Real Estate Matters The Company leases certain properties from an affiliate of Weston, namely office space for approximately $4 million
{2005 — $4 million). During 2006, the Company purchased from an affiliate of Weston a property designated for future development for
consideration of $8 million, which was prepaid in accordance with a former ground lease between the parties.

Borrowings/Lendings The Company, from time fo time, may borrow from or may tend to Weston an a short term basis at commercial paper
rates. There were no such amounts outstanding as at year ead.

Income Tax Matters From time to time, the Company and Weston and its affiliates may make elections that are permitted or required
under applicable income tax legislation with respect to affiliated corporations and, as a result, may enter into agreements in that regard.
These elections and accompanying agreements did not have any material impact on the Company.

Management Agreements The Company, through Gtenhuron Bank Limited (“Glenhuron”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
manages certain Uniled States cash, cash equivalents and shert term investments for wholly owned non-Canadian subsidiaries of Weston.
Management fees are based on market rates and included in interest expense.

Sale of Loan Portfelio During 2009, Glenhuron sold a portfolio of third-party long term loans receivable to a whally owned subsidiary of
Weston. The loans in this portfolio were originally acquired from third-party financial institutions in 2001. This transaction was undertaken
by Glenhuron as part of its overall ongoing management of its investment portfolic.

The amount of the cash consideration of U.S.$106 million was based on a fair market value of the loan portiolio and was approximately
equal to carrying value. An independent review of the valuation analysis has been obtained by the Company to ensure that Glenhuron's
methodology used in arniving at fair market value was reasonable. As at the date of sale, the current portion of this loan portfolio of
U.5.$13 million was included in accounts receivable and the leng term portien of U.S.$93 mitlion was included in other asssts.

Glenhuron has entered into an agreement with a subsidiary of Weston for the administration of the loan portfolio.

12. Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.

Management centinualty evaluates the estimates and assumptions it uses. These estimates and assumptions are based on management's
histerical experience, best knowletlge of current events and conditions and activities that the Company may undertake in the future.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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The estimates and assumptions described in this section depend upon subjective or complex judgments about matters that may be
uncertain and changes in these estimates and assumptions could materiaily impact the consolidated financial statements.

12.1 Inventories

Certain retail store inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value less normal gross profit margin. Significant
estimatien or judgment is required in the determination of (i) discount factors used to convert inventary to cost after a physical count at
retail ras been completed and (i} estimated inventory losses, or shrinkage, occurring between the last physical inventory count and the
balance sheet date.

Inventories counted at retail are converted to cost by applying a discount factor to retail selfing prices. This discount factor is determined

at a category or department level, is calculated in relation to histerical gross margins and is reviewed on a regular basis for reasonableness.
inventory shrinkage, which is calculated as a percentage of sales, is evaluated throughout the year and provides for estimated inventory
shortages from the last physical count to the balance sheet date. To the extent that actual losses experienced vary from those estimated,
both inventories and operating income may be impacted.

During 2006, the Company decided to proceed with the liguidation of certain inventory, cansisting primarily of general merchandise.
A charge of $68 million was recorded in 2006 in connection with this liquidation process. Significant estimation or judgment was required
in the determination of what is considered excess inventory, estimated recovery values and discounted cost of ratail store inventories.

Changes or differences in these estimates may result in changes to inventories on the consolidated balance sheet and a charge or credit
to operating income in the consolidated statement of samings.

12.2 Employee Future Benefits

The cost and accrued benefit plan obligations of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans and other benefit plans are accrued based
on actuarial valuations which are dependent on assumptians determined by management. These assumptions include the discount rate,
the expected long term rate of return on plan assets, the expected growth rate of health care costs, the rate of compensation increase,
retirement ages and mortality rates. These assumptions are reviewed annually by management and the Company's actuaries.

The discount rate, the expected long term rate of return on plan assets and the expected growth rate in health care costs are the three most
ssgaiificant assumptions,

The discount rates are based on market interest rates, as at the Company's measurement date of September 30 on a portfolio of Corporate
AA bonds with terms to maturity that, on average, match the terms of the accrued benefit plan obligations. The discount rates used to
determine the 2006 net cost for defined benefit pension and other benefit plans were 5.25% and 5.2%, respectively, on a weighted average
basis, compared to 6.25% and 6.1%, respectively, in 2005. The discount rates used to determine the net 2007 defined benefit pension and
other benefit plans costs decreased to 5.0% and 5.0%, respectively and as a rasult, the Company expects an increase in these costs in 2007,

The expected long term rate of return on pan assets is based on current market conditions, the asset mix, the active management of defined
benefit pension plan assets and on histerical returns. The Company's defined benefit pension plan assets had a 10 year annualized return
of 9.0% as at the 2006 measurement date. The actual annual returns within this 10 year period varied with market conditions. The Company
has assumed a 7.75% expected long term rate of return on plan assets in calculating its defined benefit pension plans cost for 2007

The expected grawth rate in health care costs for 2006 was based on external data and the Company's historical trends for health care
costs, and in 2007 initial growth rates will be relatively consistent with that of 2006.
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Since the three key assumptions discussed above are forward-looking and fong term in naturs, they are subject to uncertainty and actual
results may differ. In accordance with Canadian GAAR differences hetween actual experience and the assumptions, as well as the impact of
changes in the assumptians, are accumulated as unamartized net actuanial gains or losses and amortized aver future periods, affecting the
recognized cost of defined benefit pension plans and other benefit plans and the accrued benefit plan obligation in future periods. While the
Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate, significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in the Company’s
assumptions may mateiially affect its defined benefit pension plans and other beneiit plans accrued benefit plan obligations and future cost.

Additional information regarding the Company’s pension and other benefit plans, including a sensitivity analysis for changes in key
assumptions, is provided in Note 15 to the consclidated financial statements and in the Employee Future Benefit Contributions discussion
in the Operating Risks and Risk Management section of this MD&A.

12.3 Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized and is assessed for impairment at the reperting unit level at least annually. Any potential goodwill impairment is
identified by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value. If the fair value of the reporting umit exceeds its carrying value,
goodwill is considered not to be impaired. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a more detailed goodwill
impairment assessment must be undertaken. A goodwill impairment charge is recognized to the extent that, at the reporting unit level,

the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value.

The Company determines the fair value using a discounted cash flow model corroborated by other valuation technigues such as market
multiples. The process of determining these fair values requires management to make estimates and assumptions including, but not limited
to projected future sales, eamnings and capital investment, discount rates and terminal growth rates, Projected future sales, earnings and
capital investment are consistent with strategic plans presented ta the Company’s Board. Discount rates are based on an industry weighted
average cost of capital. These estimates and assumptions are subject to change in the future due fo uncertain competitive and economic
market conditions or changes in business strategies.

1n 2006, the Company performed the annual goedwill impairment test and it was determined that the carrying value of the goodwill
established on the acquisition of Provigo Inc. in 1998 exceeded its respective fair value. As a result, the Company recarded in cperating
income a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $800 million relating to this goodwill, which was within its previously disclosed

range of $600 million to $900 million, The Company expects no income tax deductian from this non-gash goodwill impairment charge.
The determination that the fair value of goodwill was less than its carrying value resulted from a decline in market multiples, both from an
industry and Company perspective, and a reduction of fair value as determined using the discounted cash flow methodology, incorporating
hoth current Company and market assumptions, which in combination resulted in the goedwill impairment. This non-cash goadwill
impairment charge is expected to be adjusted if necessary in the first half of 2007 and may result in a charge or credit to operating
income in the consolidated statement of earnings and in the carrying value of goodwill on the balance shest.

12.4 Income Taxes

Future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between
the financial statement carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective income tax hases. Future income tax assets or liabilities
are measured using enacted or substantively enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The calcutation of current and future income taxes requires management to
make estimates and assumptiens and to exercise judgment regarding the financial statement carrying values of assets and liabilities which
are subject to accounting estimates inherent in those balances, the interpretation of income tax legislation across various jurisdictions,
expectations about future operating results and the timing of reversal of temporary differences and possible audits of tax filings by the
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regulatory authorities. Management befieves it has adequately provided for income taxes based on current available information. Changes
or differences in these estimates or assumptions may result in changes to the current or future income taxes on the consolidated balance
sheet, a charge or credit to income tax expense in the consolidated statement of eamings and may resuli in cash payments or receipts.

12.5 Goods and Services Tax and Provincial Sales Taxes

During 2005, the Company recorded a charge relating to an audit and propesed assessment by the Canada Revenue Agency relating to

GST on certain products sold on which GST was not appropriately charged and remitted. in Yight of this proposed assessment, the Company
assessed and estimated the potential liabilities for GST and PST in other areas of its operations for various periods. Accordingly, a chargs

of $40 million was recorded in operating income in 2005. Appraximately $1 million was paid in 2006 (2005 — $15 million) and approximately
$24 million remains accrued as at December 30, 2006. The ultimate remaining amount paid will depend on the outcome of audits
performed by or settlements reached with the various tax authosities, and therefore may differ from this estimate. Management will continue
to assess the remaining accrual as progress towards resolution with the various tax authorities is made and will adjust the remaining
accrual accordingly. Changes in this accrual may result in a charge or credit to operating income in the consolidated statement of earnings.

12.6 Fixed Assets

Fixed assets {0 he held and used are reviewed for impairment annually and when events or circumstances indicate that their carrying value
exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected from their use and eventual disposition. An impairment loss is measured as

the amount by which the fixed assets carying value exceeds the fair value. As discussed in notes 4 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company recorded fixed asset impairment and accelerated depreciation charges of $32 million (2005 — $7 million) and
an additional $27 million (2005 — $14 million) was recorded in restructuring and other charges.

Factors that most significantly influence the impairment assessments and calculations are estimates of future cash flows. The Campany
uses its internal plans in estimating future cash flows. These plans reflect the Company’s current best estimate of future cash flows

but may change due to uncertain competitive and economic markat conditions or changes in business strategies. Changes or differences
in these estimates may result in changes to fixed assets on the consolidated balance sheet and a charge to operating income on the
consolidated statement of earnings.

13. Accounting Standards
13.1 Accounting Standards Implemented in 2006

During the year, the Company implementad the following accounting standards issued by the CICA:

* Section 3831, "Non-Monetary Transactions”, issued in June 2005, replaces Section 3830 of the same name. The revised standard
addresses the measurement and disclosure of non-monetary transactions and defines when an exchange of assets is measured at fair
value and when it is measured at the carrying amount. The criterion for the measurement of a non-monetary transaction at fair value
is based on whether the non-monetary transaction has commercial substance rather than the culmination of the earnings process under
Section 3830. The revised standard is applied to non-monetary transactions initiated in periods beginning after January 1, 2006.

The adoption of these new recommendations, on a prospective basis, did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

= EIC Abstract 166, “Accounting by a Vendor for Consideration Given to a Custemner (Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products)”,
(“EIC 156™) issued in September 2005, addresses cash consideration, including sales incentives, given by a vendor to a customer,
This consideration is presumed to be a reduction of the selling price of the vendor's products and should therefore be classified
as a reduction of sales in the vendor’s statement of earnings.
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Prior to the implementation of EIC 156, the Company recorded certain sales incentives paid to independent franchisees, associates and
independent accounts in cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses on the statement of earnings.

Accordingly, the implementation of EIC 156, on a retroactive basis, resulted in a reduction in both sales and cost of sales, sefling and
administrative expenses as follows:

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total
(12 wegks) {12 weeks) {16 weeks) (12 weeks) (52 weeks)
o o W w0 ;e A 2004 2005 004 2005 20
Sales as previously reported $ 6124 $ 5677 $6436 36069 $ 8653 $ 8134 ¢ 6588 % 6,329 $27,801 $26,209
Salgs"a_ﬁe( f_eclgssifiqatio_rp__.__ S $ 6,060 § 5622 § E_,“405 $ 6,036 $ 8610 % 8089$6552 $ 6,283 $27,627 $26,Dr37‘(7]
Reclassification between sales and
cost of sales, selling and
administrative expenses $ 64% 55% 313 33% 43% 4% 3BE 4% 1748 179

As reclassifications, these changes did not impact net earnings. Operating margins, adjusted cperating margins™ and adjusted FBITDA

margins' for 2045 have also been recalculated and updated, if applicable, as a result of the change in sales.

« EIC Abstract 157, “Implicit Variable Interest under AcG-15" issued in October 2005, provides new guidance and clarification to the
recommendations in AcG-15, with respect to all implicit variable interests held by an enterprise or its refated parties. The guidance
addresses how implicit variable interests should be included in the assessment as to whether the entity is the primary beneficiary
of the VIE. An implicit variable interest is an interest that indirectly absorbs or receives the variability of the entity. The adoption of these
recommendations in the first quarter of 2006 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

= EIC Abstract 159, “Conditional Asset Retirement Obfigations”, issued in December 2005, provides guidance on the recognition and
measurement of a conditional asset retiremant obligation and further clarifies the requirements under Section 3110, “Asset Requirement
Obligations” such that a conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized at fair value when the abligation to perform the
asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and/or method of seitlement. These
recommendations were adopted retroactively for the second quarter of 2006 and did not have a material impact on the Company's
gonsolidated financial statements,

 EIC Abstract 162, “Stock-Based Compensation for Employees eligible to retire hefore the Vesting date”, issued in July 2006,
requires that stock-based compensation granted to employaes eligible to retire should be expensed at the time of grant. The Company’s
stock-based compensation plans do not continue to vest afier retirement, and therefore the adoption of this abstract did not have
an impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

13.2 Future Accounting Standards

The Company closely monitors new acceunting standards to assess the impact, if any, on its consolidated financial statements. In 2007,

the Company will be reviewing the implicatiens of the following standards and implementing the recommendations as required:

+ The Accounting Standards Board continues o work towards the transition from Canadian GAAP to International Financial Reporting
Standards over a five-year period. After this transitional period, Canadian GAAP will cease to exist as a separate, distinct basis of
financial reporting. The Company continues to closely manitor the changes resulting from this transition in preparation for the cenvergence.

Section 3855, “Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement”, Section 3865, “Hedges”, Section 1530, “Comprehensive

Income”, Section 3861, “Financial Instruments — Disclosures and Presentation”, and Section 3251, “Equity”, issued in Aprit 2005:

* Section 3855, “Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement”, estabilishes guidance for recognizing and measuring financial
assets, financtal liabilities and non-financial derivatives. The standard requires that financial instruments within scope, including
derivatives, be included on the Company’s balance sheet and measured, either at {air value or, in limited circumstances, at cost or

(1} See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40.
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amortized cost. All financial instruments must be classified into a defined category, namely, held-to-maturity investments,
held-for-trading financial assefs or financial liabifities, loans and receivables, available-for-sate financial assets, and other financial
liahilities. This classification will determine how each instrument is measured and how gains and losses are recagnized. Held-for-trading
financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value with gains and losses recognized in nek income. Financial assets
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and financial liahilities, other than those held-for-trading, are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method of amoriization. Avaitable-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and
losses, including changes in foreign exchange rates, being recognized in other comprehensive income, a new section of shareholders’
equity. Investments in equity instruments classified as available-foi-sale that do not have a quoted market price in an active market can
be measured at cost. The recommendations further define derivatives to include non-financial derivatives and embedded derivatives
which mest certain criteria. All derivatives must be classified as held-for-trading unless they are designated in a hedging relationship.

= Section 3865, "Hedges” replaces AcG 13, “Hedging Relationships” and the guidance formerly in Section 1650, “Foresgn Currency
Transiation” will be replaced by Section 1651 of the same name, such that fareign exchange gains or losses on avaitable-for-sale
financial assets be accounted for in other comprehensive income instead of net earnings. The requirements for identification, designation
and documentatien of hedging relationships remain unchanged. The new guidance addresses the accounting treatment of qualifying
hedging relationships and the necessary disclosures. The standard defines three specific hedging relationships, namely, fair vatue
hedges, cash flow hedges, and hedges of a net investment in self-sustaining foreign operaticns, and defines haw the accounting shoutd
be performed. Changss in the fair value of hedging derivatives in a fair value hedge are offset in the consolidated statement of earnings
against the change in fair value of the asset, liability or cash flow being hedged. In cash flow hedges, the changes in fair value are
recarded in other comgrehensive mcome, a new section of shareholders’ equity. To the extent the change in fair value of the derivative
is not completely offset by the change in fair value of the item it is hedging, the ineffective portion of the hedging relationship is recorded
immediately in the consolidated statement of earnings,

« Saction 1530, “Comprehensive Income” introduces a statement of comprehensive income which will be included in interim and
annual financial statements. Comprehensive income is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income, and represents
the change in equity during a period from transactions and other events with non-owner sources. Other comprehensive income
will include unrealized gains and losses on financial assets that are classified as available-for-sale and changes in fair value of
the effective portion of cash flow hedges.

« Section 3861, “Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation” replaces Section 3860 of the same name, and addresses the
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments and non-financial derivatives. The main features of these new recommendations
revise the requirements to provide accounting policy disclosures and provide new requirements for disclosure on fair value.

« Section 3251, “Equity”, replaces Section 3250, “Surplus” and establishes standards for the presentation of equity and changes in eguity
during the reporting period and requires that an enterprise present separately equity components and changes in equity arising from
i} net income; i} other comprehensive income; iii} other changes in retained earnings; iv) changes in contributed surplus; v) changes
in share capital; and vi} changes in reserves.

These standards are effective for interim and annual financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2006.
Consequently, the Company will implement them in the first quarter of 2007 The transitional adjustments resulting from these standards
will be recognized in the opening balances of retained earnings and other comprehensive income as appropriate. The impact on the
consolidated balance sheet will include the recording of the fair value of the interest rate swaps designated in a cash flow hedge. We are
determining the impact of these changes based on the transitional guidance within these sections. Prior periods will not be restated.

 Section 1506, “Accounting Changes”, issued in July 2006 revises current standards on changes in accounting policy, estimates ar
errors. An entity is permitted fo change an accounting pelicy only when it resuts in financial statements that provide reliable and more
relevant information or results from a requirement under a primary source of Canadian GAAP. The guidance also addresses how to
account for a change in accounting policy, estimate or corrections of errors, and establishes enhanced disclosures about their effects

2006 Financial Report Loblaw Companies Limited 39




Management's Discussion and Analysis

on the financial stalements. These recommendations are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2007. The Company
will implement these recommendations as required on a prospective basis.

« Section 3862, “Financial Instruments Disclosure” and Section 3863, “Financial Instruments Preseniation”, both issued in December 2006,
revise the current standards on financial instrument disclosure and presentation, and ptace an increased emphasis on disclosures
regarding the risks associated with both recognized and unrecognized financial instruments and how these risks are managed. Section 3863
establishes standards for presentation of financial instruments and non-financial derivatives and provides additional guidance for
classification of financial instruments, from the perspective of the issuer, betwesn liabilities and equity. These recommendations are
effective for fiscal years beginning en or after October 1, 2007 and therefore the Company will implement them in the first quarter of 2008.

= Section 1535, “Capital Disclosures™, issued in December 2005, establishes guidelines for the disclosure of information regarding
a company's capitat and how it is managed. Enhanced disclosure with respect to the objectives, policies and processes for managing
capital and quantitative disclosures about what a company regards as capital are required. These recommendations are effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2007 and therefore the Company will implement them in the first quarter of 2008,

» EIC Abstract 163, “Determining the variability to be considered in applying AcG-15" issued in September 2006, addresses how
to assess whether arrangements should be treated as variable interests or considered as creators of variability by a reporting enterprise
in applying AcG-15. This abstract is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1. 2007 The Company will imptement these
recommendations as required on a prospective basis. The Company does not expect the adoption of this abstract to have a material
impact on the consalidated financial statements.

14. Outlook

Loblaw has a number of strengths at its core — strong market share and control label products and a strong store network under various
store formats with the petential to meet the needs of all Canadians. But as the Company looks forward, it must transition this enterprise
into a lean company that is ready and able to compete on all fronts. 2006 marked the baginning of this transition. The Company’s main
focus going forward is on simplifying its arganizational structure, on retailing basics such as on-shelf availability and customer focus,
on innovation as a competitive advantage and on executing the Company’s growth strategy.

15. Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company reports is financial results in accordance with Canadian GAAR However, the Company has included certain non-GAAP
financial measures and ratios which it believes provide useful information to both management and readers of this Annual Report, including
this Financial Report, in measuring the financial performance and financial condition of the Company for the reasons set out below.

These measures do not have a standardized meaning prescribed by Canadian GAAP and, therefore, may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures presented by other publicly traded companies, nor should they be construed as an alternative to ather financial measures
determined in accordance with Canadian GAAP For the following tables, the annual non-GAAP financial measures for the years 2006
through to 2002, are for the 52 or 53 weeks ended or as at December 30, 2006; December 31, 2005; January 1, 2005; January 3, 2004,
and December 28, 2002, respectively.

Sales and Sales Growth Excluding the Impact of VIEs

These financial measures exclude the impact on sales from the consalidaticn by the Company of certain independent franchisees which
resulted from the implementation of AcG 15 retroactively without restatement effective January 2, 2005. This impact on sales is excluded
because the Company believes this allows for a more effective analysis of the operating performance of the Company. Both the current
and comparative measures reflest the retroactive implementation of EIC 156. A raconciliation of the financial measures to the Canadian
GAAP financial measures is included in the table “Sales and Sales Growth Excluding the Impact of ViEs” on pages & and 25 of this MD&A.
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Adjusted Operating Income and Margin

The following table reconciles adjusted operating income to Canadian GAAP operating income reported in the consolidated statements

of earnings for the twelve week perieds ended Dscember 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and the years ended as previously indicated.
Items listed in the reconciliation below are excluded because the Company believes this allows for a mare effective analysis of the operating
performance of the Company. In addition, they affect the comparability of the financial results and could potentially distort the analysis of
trends. The exclusion of thase items does not imply they are non-recurring. Adjusted operating income and margin are useful to management
in assessing the Company's performance and in making decisions regarding the ongoing operations of its business.

{12weeks) ! (12weeks) | (52 weaks) {52 weeks) (52 weeks) {53 weeks) (52 weeks)

{§ millions)

Operating (loss) income $(695) $394 '$ 289  $1401 $1652 1467 $1303

i ;
i W06 - 2005 f 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
|
|
Add (deduct) impact of the following: Z

Goodwill impairment charge f 800 ’ 800
Ontario collective labour agreement | 84 ; 84 .
Inventory liquidation | 68 : 68 |
Net effect of stock-based compensation and ! ‘
the associated equity forwards E {6) 27 37 . 43 {4) 14
Restructuring and other charges ‘ K 6 ! 44 g6
Ceparture entitlement charge | 12
Goods and Services Tax and provincial sales taxes P 40
Birect costs associated with ‘ !
supply chain disruptions 10 l : 30
VIEs ’ 4 | (8)
the Reaf Canadian Superstore labour arrangement i | 22
Adjusted operating income ' $ 286 $ 441 $1326 " $1600 $1652 $1488 $1317

-
H [

Adjusted aperating margin is calculated as adjusted operating income divided by sales excluding the impact of VIEs.

Adjusted EBITDA and Margin

The following table reconciles adjusted earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amartization {“EBITDA") to adjusted
pperating income which is reconciled to Canadian GAAP aperating income reported in the consalidated statements of earnings, in the table
ahove, for the twelve week periods ended December 36, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and the years ended as previously indicated. Adjusted
EBITDA is useful to management in assessing the Company’s performance of its ongoing aperations and its abiliy to generate cash flows
to fund its cash requirements, including the Company's capital investment program.

H

i
(3 millions) ‘ (12 weeks) (12 weeks) - {52 weeks) (52 wesks) {52 weeks) (53 weeks) {52 weeks)

2006 2005 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Adjusting operating income | $ 286 ;5 441 1$1326 $1600 $1,652 $1488  $1317
Add {deduct) impact of the following: : I |
Depreciation and amartization 133 140 590 558 473 393 354
. _VI_E depreciation and amortization ) I (5) {8) {24) {26)
Adjusted EBITDA 'Y 414§ 573 $1,892 $2132 $2125 $1881 $1671

. '

I 1
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Adjusted EBITDA margin is calculated as adjusted EBITDA divided by sales excluding the impact of VIEs.

Adjusted Net Earnings

Adjusted net earnings can be reconciled to Canadian GAAP net earnings reported in the consolidated statements of earnings by excluding
the net earnings impact associated with the items included in the adjusted basic net earnings per common share table below. Adjusted net
earnings is useful to management in assessing the Company's performance and in making decisions regarding the ongoing operations

of its business. Certain items are excluded from the comparable GAAP measure because the Company believes this allows for a mare
effective analysis of the operating performance of the Company. In addition, they affect the comparability of the financial results and could
potentially distort the analysis of irends. The exclusicn of these items does not imply they are non-recusring.

Adjusted Basic Net Earnings per Common $hare

The following iable reconcites adjusted basic net earnings per common share to Canadian GAAP basic net earnings per common share
measures reported in the consolidated statements of eamings far the twelve week periods ended December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005
and the years ended as previously indicated. ltems listed i the reconciliation below are excluded because the Company believes this
allows for a more effective analysis of the operating performance of the Company. In addition, they affect the comparability of the financial
results and coufd potentially distort the analysis of trends. The exclusion of these items does not imply they are non-recurring. Adjusted
basic net earnings per common share is useful te management in assessing the Company’s perfarmance and in making decisions regarding
the ongoing operations of its business.

|
2006 ! 2005 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(12 weeks} I (]2 weeks) | (52 weeks) ‘ (52 weeks} (52 weeks) (53 weeks) {32 weeks)
Basic net {loss) earnings per comman share $(2 76) H $.73 1% (80) . $ 2.72 $ 3.53 $ 307 $264
Add {deduct) impact of the foflowing: I
Goodwill impairment charge 292 297 |
Ontario coliective labour agreement 20 20
Inventory liquidation 16 [ 16 |
Net effect of stock-based compensatian and
the associated equity forwards (.02) 15 AT 22 {.06) 04
Restructuring and other charges 09 01 AL 20
Departure entitlement charge ‘ 03
Changes in statutory income tax rates Q1 (.06) ' 01 .03
Goods and Services Tax and provincial sales taxes ; 10
Direct costs associated with supply chain disruptions ! 02 ; 07
VIES (.01) 02 (.01) i .03
Resolution of certain income tax matters {.09)
The Real Canadian Superstore iabour arrangement [ 06
Adjusted basic net earnings per common share $ 0.58 $94 {3272 $33 $348 $310 $268
S ]

Net Debt

The following table reconciles net debt used in the nat debt to equity ratio to Canadian GAAP measures reported in the conselidated balance
sheets as at the years ended as previously indicated. The Company calculates net debt as the sum of long term debt and short term debt
less cash, cash equivalents and short term investments. The net debt to equity ratio is useful in assessing the amount of leverage employed.

42 2006 Financiat Report Loblaw Companies Limited




(S milions) 2008 s 20 2 2002
Bank indebtedness $ 1§ 3@ % 2 § 38 § -
Commercial paper 641 436 473 603 533

21 161 216 106 106
4212 4194 3,935 3,956 3,420
Less: Cash and cash equivafents 669 916 549 618 823

Short term investments 321 4 275 378 304

Net debt | $3831 33901  $3828 93707  $2932

Long term debt due within one year
Long term debt

Free Cash Flow

The following table recanciles free cash flow to Canadian GAAP measures reported in the consolidated cash flow statements as at the years
ended as previously indicated. The Company calculates free cash flow as cash flows from operating activities less fixed asset purchases and
dividends. The Company believes free cash flow is a useful measure of the Company’s ¢ash available for additional funding requirements.

(3 millions) ‘ 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Cash flows from operating activities ‘} $1,180 - $1489 $1443 $1032 § 998
Less: Fixed asset purchases | 937 1,156 1,258 1,271 1,079

Dividends 173 230 209 198 127
free cash flow § 70 $103 § @ 3§43 § (208

|
Total Assets
The following table reconciles total assets used in the return on average total assets to Canadian GAAP measures reported in the
consofidated balance sheets as at the years ended as previously indicated. The Company believes the return on average total assets ratio is
useful in assessing the performance of its operating assets and therefore excludes cash, cash equivalents and short term investments from
the total assets used in the ratia.

|

($ millions) 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002
Total assets $13,486 ' $13761 $12,949 $12113  $11,047
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 669 916 549 618 823

Short term investments ' kY4 : 4 275 378 304
Totalassets $12,490 3$172,841 $172,125 $11,117  $ 9520

16. Additional Information

Additional information about the Company, including its Annual Information Form and other disclosure documents, has been filed
electronically with various securities regulators in Canada through the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval {SEDAR) and
is available online at www.sedar.com and with the Office of the Supenintendent of Financial Institutions (OSFI) as the primary regulator for
the Company's subsidiary, President’s Choice Bank.

March 13, 2007
Toronto, Canada
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Management's Statement of Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The management of Loblaw Companies Limited is responsible for the preparatian, presentation and integrity of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, Managament's Discussion and Analysis and all other information in the Annual Report. This respansibility
includes the selection and consistent application of appropriate accounting principles and mathods in addition to making the judgments

and astimates necessary to prepare the consolidated financial statements in accerdance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principtes. It also includes ensuring that the financial information presented elsewhere in the Annual Report is consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

To provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that relevant and reliable financial information is produced, management

is required to design a system of internal controls and certify as to the design effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting.
Internal auditors, who are employzes of the Company, review and evaluate internal controls on management’s behaif. KPMG ip, whose report
follows, were appointed as independent auditors by a vote of the Company's sharzholders to audit the consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors, acting through an Audit Committee comprised solely of direciors who are independent of the Company, is respensible
for determining that management fulfills its responsibilities in the prepasation of the consolidated financial statements and the financial
control of operations. The Audit Committee recommends the indepeadent auditors for appointment by the shareholders. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with senior and financial management, internal auditors and the independent auditors to discuss internat controls,

auditing activities and financial reporting matters. The independent auditors and internal auditors have unsestricted access to the Audit
Committee. These consolidated financial statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis have been approved by the Board

of Directors for inclusion in the Arnual Report based on the review and recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Toronto, Canada
March 13, 2007

gaAV 77 /2=

Galen G. Weston Mark Foote Richard P Mavrinac
Executive Chairman President and Chief Merchandising Officer Executive Vice President

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Loblaw Companies Limited:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Loblaw Companries Limited as at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and
the consalidated statements of earnings, retained earnings and cash flow for the 52 week years then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion or these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan
and perform an audit to obtain reasenable assurance whether the consalidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurss in the consolidated financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used ard significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall consolidated financial statement prasentation.

tn our epinion, these consalidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial positicn of the Company as
at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 and the results of its oparations and its cash ffow for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

o]
KPMG- Kos 4P
Toronto, Canada S
March 13, 2087 Chartered Accountants
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings

For the years erded December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 2006 ; 2005
4 mm‘rons except where othenwise inijca{ed) R ,‘,‘r’{‘fef"," 3 w(52”_\'&1912k5)
Sales (note 2 $ 28,640 | $ 21 621
Operating Expenses !
Cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses (ote 2 26,817 25,542
Depreciation and amortization 390 258
Goodwill impairment (ncte 3) 800 -
Restructuring and other charges (notz 2) 44 26
Goopis and Services Tax anq prrovinciall sales taxes o) - 4Q
7 7 28351 - 26,226
Operating Income 289 1,401
Intgresj Egpense o - i _2_59 L 25_2
Earnings before Income Taxes 30 1,149
Income Taxes (aate 8 ) oous 400
Net {Loss} Earnings before Minority Interest (218) § 749
Minority Interest B B 1 _3 3
Net (Loss} Earnings $ 219 | 8 746
Net (Loss) Earnings per Common Share () fnote 9) 5
Basic $ (80) | $ 2.72
Diluted $ (80 | $ 271
See accompanying notes o the consolidated financial staiements. i
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
For the years ended December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 2006 2005
.(3 milliuns except where otherwise indicated) ) o (52 weeki] N (52)_\'?&)
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year $ 4,694 $ 4193
Net (loss) earnings (219) 746
Premium on common shares purchased for cancellation (otz 18) - (15)
Dirvidends dq;lared per common sh;re ,_,§44¢ {20951 - §4¢) S L (2}0) ) (33_0)
$ 4,245 $ 4,694

Retained Earnings, End of Year

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005

($ mi!linns) o 20[}.6 ) 2005
Assets ‘
Current Assets ‘
Cash and cash equivalents irote 16} |3 669 $ 916
Short term investments tnate 10} | 32 4
Accounts receivable (ote 11) 128 656
Inventaries tmote 12) 2,037 2,020
Income taxes ; 63 3
Future income taxes (nete ) ! 85 72
Prepaid expenses and other assets 7 N ! 39 30
Total Current Assets ; 3,948 3,701
Fixed Assets tote 13} | 8,055 7,785
Goodwill (note 3 f 794 1,587
Other ASsets (e 1) o ! 689 688
Total Assets Lo 13,486 $ 13,761
Liabilties |
Current Liabilities i
Bank indebtedness ) 1 $ 30
Commercial paper ! 647 436
Accounts payable and accruad liabilities ! 2,598 2535
Long term deht due within one year (rete 16 | 27 161
Total Current Liabitities i 3,213 3,162
Long Term Debt (note 15) ; 4,212 4,194
Future Income Taxes (note 8) ' 234 237
Other Liabilities (ote 1) 314 271
Minority Interest - o ) 12 o 11
Total Liabilities o | | 8,045 7875
Shareholders’ Equity
Common Share Capital tnate 18) 1,196 1,192
Retained Eamings B o - N 7 7 4245 o 4,694
Total Shareholders’ Equity i [ 5,441 5,886
Total Liabilities and Shareholdersk' I‘Egiuityr o ' $ ] 13,486 $ ) 13761

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. I

Approved on Behalf of the Board

aavs Jome €. oLk

Galen G. Weston Thomas C. 0'Neil
Director Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

For the years ended December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2003
($ miliions)

Operating Activities
Net (loss} earnings before minority interest
Depreciation and amortization
Goodwill impairment (apte 3)
Restructuring and other charges (nete 4)
Goods and Services Tax and provincial sales taxes (aote 5
Future income axes
Change in non-cash working capital
Other

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

tnvesting Activities
Fixed asset purchases
Short term investments
Proceeds from fixed asset sales
Credit card receivables, after securitization tote 11)
Franchise investments and other receivables
Other

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities

Financing Activities
Bank indebtedness
Commercial paper
Long term debt nate 16)
Issued
Retired
Common share capital
Issued (notes 18 and 19)
Retired (ete 18)
Bividends
Other
Cash Flows used in Financing Activities
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents (e 16)
Initial impact of variable interest entities (ate 2

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Ca_sh and Casr_a qui\@_lents, B_eginning_ _of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

{52 weeks)

. | .71‘173[} 7,

e

2006

(218)
590
800

“u |

(18)
(69)
23

(937)

(323)
99
(82)
(18)
(47)

(EON

1

(29)
211

29
(162)

|

2005
(52 weeks)

(3D

367
549

$ 916

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 30, 2005 and December 31, 2005
(% millions except where othenvise indicatad)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP")
and are reported in Canadian dolfars.

Basis of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Loblaw Companies Limited and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Company” or “Loblaw”. The Company's interest in the voting share capital of its subsidiaries is 100%.
The Company also consolidates variable interest entities (“VIES”) that are subject to control on a basis ather than through ownership of
a majority of voting interest (see Note 2).

Fiscal Year The fiscal year of the Company ends on the Saturday closest to December 31. As a result, the Company’s fiscal year is usually
92 weeks in duration but includes a 53rd week every 5 to 6 years. The years ended December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 each
contained 52 weeks.

Revenue Recognition Sales includa revenues, net of estimated returns, from customers through corporate stores operated by the
Company and independent franchisee stores that are consolidated by the Company pursuant te Accounting Guideline 15, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities”™, ("AcG 157). In addition, sales include sales to and service fees from associated stores and independent account
customers and franchised stores excluding VIE stores. The Company recognizes revenue at the time the sale is made to its customers.

{Loss) Earnings per Share (“EPS"} Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net {loss) earnings available to common shasehalders by
the weighted average number of common shares cutstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is calculated using the treasury stock method,
which assumes that alt outstanding stack options with an exercise price below the average market price during the year are exercised
and the assumed proceeds are used to purchase the Company's common shares at the average market price during the year.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Bank Indebtedness Cash balances which the Company has the ability and intent to offset are used to
reduce reparted bank indebtedness. Cash equivalents are highly fiquid investments with a maturity of 20 days or less.

Short Term Investments Shart term investments are carried at the lower of cost or quoted market vaiug and consist primarily of United
States government securities, commercial paper and bank depasits.

Credit Card Receivables The Company, through President’s Choice Bank (“PC Bank"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has credit
card receivables that are stated net of an allowance for cradit losses. Credit card receivables, if contractually past due, are not classified

as impaired but are fully written off on the earlier of when payments are contractually 180 days in arrears or when the likelihood of collection
is considerad remote. Interest income on credit card receivables is recorded on an accrual basis and is recognized in operating income.

Allowance for Credit Losses PC Bank maintains an allowance for probable credit losses on aggregate exposures for which losses cannot
be determined on an item-by-item basis. The allowance is based upon a statistical analysis of past performance, the level of allowance
already in place and management’s judgment. The allowance for credit losses is deducted from the credit card receivables balance.

The net credit loss experience for the year is recognized in operating income.

Securitization PC Bank securitizes credit card receivables through the sale of a portion of the total interest in these receivables to
independent trusts and does not exercise any control over the trusts' management, administeation or assets. The credit card receivables
are removed from the consolidated balance sheet when PC Bank has surrendered control and are considered sold for accounting
purposes pursuant to Accounting Guideline 12, “Transfers of Receivables”. When PC Bank sells credit card receivables in a securitization
transaction, it has a retained interest in the securitized receivables represented by the rights to future cash flows after obligations to
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

investors have been met. Although PC Bank remains responsible for servicing all credit card receivables, it does not receive additional
compensation for servicing those credit card receivables sold to the trusts and accordingly  service liability is recorded. Gains or losses on
the sale of these receivables depends, in part, on the previous carrying amount of receivables involved in the securitization, allocated
between the receivables sold and the retained interest, based on their relative fair values at the date of securitization. When quoted market
values are not available, the fair values are determined using management’s best estimate of the net present value of expected future
cash flows using key assumptions for monthly payment rates, weighted average life, expected annual credit losses and discount rates.
Any gain or loss on a sale is recognized in operating income at the time of the securitization. The carrying value of retained interests

is periodically reviewed and when a decline in valua is identified that is other than temporary, the carrying value is written down to fair value.

Vendor Allowances The Company receives allowances from certain of its vendors whose products it purchases for resale. These
allowances are received for a variety of buying and/or merchandising activities, including vendor programs such as volume purchase
allowances, purchase discounts, listing fees and exclusivity allowances. Consideration received from a vendor is a reduction in the

cost of the vendor’s products or services and is recognized as a reduction in the cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses and
the related inventory when recognized in the consolidated statement of earnings and the consolidated balance sheet. Certain exceplions
apply if the consideration is a payment for assets or services delivered to the vendor or for reimbursement of selling costs incurred to
promote the vendor’s products, provided that certain conditions are met.

Inventories Retail store inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value less normal gross profit margin.
Distribution centre inventories and seasonal general merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable
valug, Cost is determined substantiatly using the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets Fixed assets are recorded at cost including capitalized interast. Depreciation commences when the assets are put into

use and is recognized on a straight-tine basis to depreciate the cost of these assets over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives
range from 20 fo 40 ysars for buildings, 10 years for building improvements and from 3 te 10 years for equipment and fixtures. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful lives and may include renewal options when an improvement is made after
inception of the lease to a maximum of 25 years, which approximates economic life. Equipment under capitat leases is depreciated over
the term of the lease.

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value exceeds the sum

of the undiscounted future cash flows expected from use and eventual disposal. These events or changes in circumstances include a
commitment to close a store or distribution centre or to relocate or convert a store. Fixed assets are also reviewed for impairment annually.
For purposes of annually reviewing store assets for impairment, asset groups are reviewed at their lowest level for which identifiable cash
flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. Therefore, store net cash flows are grouped together by primary
market areas, where cash flows are largely dependent on each other. Primary markets are regional areas where a number of store formats
operate within close proximity to one anather. if an indicator of impairment exists, such.as sustained negative operating cash flows ¢f the
respective asset group, then an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows of each such store within this group is prepared and compared
to its carrying value. For purposes of annually reviewing distribution centre assets for impairment, distribution centre net cash flows are
grouped with the respective net cash flows of the stores they service. An impairment in the store network serviced by the distribution centre
would indicate an impairment in the distribution centre assets as welk. if these assets are detesmined o be impaired, the impairment

loss is measured as the excess of the carrying value over fair value. In addition, the carrying vatue of fixed assets is evaluated whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of fixed assets may not be recoverable. These events or changes

in eircumstances include a commitment to close a store or distribution centre or to relocate or convert a store where the carrying valus

of its assets is greater than the expected undiscounted future cash flows.

50 2006 Finarcial Reporl Loblaw Companies Limited




Deferred Charges Debt issue costs associated with long term debt are deferred and amortized on a straight-ling basis over the term of
the respective debt issues. Other deferred charges are amorfized over the related assets’ estimated useful lives, to a maximum of 15 years.

Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of a business acguired over the fair value of the underlying net
assets acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is not amortized and its carrying value is tested at feast annually for impairment.
Any impairment in the carrying value of goodwitl is recognized in operating income. Additional disclosure regarding the results of the
2006 annual goodwill impairment fest is pravided in Note 3.

Financial Derivative Instruments The Company uses financial derivative agreements in the form of cross currency basis swaps,
interest rake swaps and equity forwards to manage its current and anticipated exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and the market price of the Company’s comman shares. The Company does net enter into financial derivative agreements
for trading or speculative purposes.

The Company formally identifies, designates and documents the relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items including
cross currency basis swaps and interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges against its exposure fo fluctuations in the foreign currency
exchange rate and variable interest rates en a portion of its United States doflar denominated assets, principally cash equivalents and short
term investments; and interest rate swaps as a cash flow hedge of the variable interest rate exposure on commercial paper. Effectiveness
tests are performed fo evaluate hedge effectiveness at inception and on an ongeing bass, both retrospectively and prospectively.

Realized and unreatized foreign currency exchange rate adjustments on cross currency basis swaps are offset by realized and

unrealized foreign currency exchange rate adjustments on a portion of the Company's United States doliar denominated assets and are
recognized in operating income. The cumutative unrealized foreign currency exchange rate receivable or payable is recorded in other
assets or other liabilities, respectively. The exchange of interest payments on the cross currency basis swaps and interest rate swaps

is recognized on an accrual basis in interest expense. Unrealized gains or losses on the interest rate swaps designated within an effective
hedging relationship are not recognized.

Financial derivative instruments not designated within an effective hedging relationship are measured at fair value with changas in fair
value recorded in interest expense.

Equity forwards are used to manage exposure to fluctuations in the Company's stock-based compensation cost because they change in
valug as the market price of the underlying common shares changes. The market price adjustments on the equity forwards are recognized
in operating income as gains or losses and the cumulative unrealized gains or losses are recorded in other assets or other liabilities,
respectively. Interest on the equity forwards is recognized on an accrual basis in interest expense.

Foreign Currency Translation Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are iranslated into Canadian dollars at the
foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses arising from the translation of these balances
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in operating income. Revenues and expenses denaminated in foreign currencies are
translated into Canadian dallars at the average foreign currency exchangs rate for the year,

Income Taxes The asset and liability method of accounting is used for income taxes. Under the asset and liability methed, future income
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying values of existing assets and liabilities and their respecﬁve income tax hases. Future income tax assets and liabilities

are measured using enacted or substantively enacted income tax rates expected to apply ta taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or seftled. The effect on future income tax assets and liabilities of a change in incame tax
rates is recognized in income fax expense when enacted or substantively enacted. Future income tax assets are evaluated and a valuation
allowance, if required, is recorded against any future income tax asset if it is more fikely than not that the asset will not be realized.
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Employee Future Benefits The Company spansers a number of pension plans including registered funded defined benefit pension plans,
defined contribution pension plans and supplemental unfunded arrangements providing pension benefits in excess of statutory limits.
The Company also offers certain employee post-retirement and post-employment benefit plans and a long term disability benafit plan.
Post-retirement and post-employment benefit plans are not funded, are mainly non-contributory and include health care, life insurance
and dental benefits. The Company also contributes to various multi-employer pension plans which provide pensioa benefits.

Defined Benefit Plans The cost and accrued benefit plan obligations of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans and other

henefit plans, including post-retirement, post-employment and long term disability benefits, are accrued hased on actuarial valuations.

The actuarial valuations are defermined using the projected benefit methad prorated on service and management's best estimate of

the expected long term rate of return on plan assets, rate of compensation increase, retirement ages of employees and expected growth rate
of health care costs. Actuarial valuations are performed using a September 30 measurement date for accounting purposes. Market values
used to value benefit plan assets are as at the measurement date. The discount rate used to value the accrued benefit plan obligation

is based on market interest rates as at the measurement date, assuming a portfolio of Corporate AA bonds with terms to maturity that,

on average, match the terms of the accrued benefit plan obligation.

Past service costs arising from plan amendments are amortized over the expected average remaining service period of the active employees.
The unamartized net actuarial gain or loss that exceeds 10% of the greater of the accried benefit plan obligation or the fair value of

the benefit plan assets at the beginning of the year is amortized over the expected average remaining service period of the active employees
for defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit plans. The unamertized net actuarial gain or loss for post-employment and

long term disability benefits is amortized over periods not exceeding three years. The expected average remaining service period of the
active employees covered by the defined benefif pension plans ranges from 6 to 17 years, with a weighted averape of 13 years. The expected
average remaining service period of the employees covered by the post-retirement benefit plans ranges from 6 to 22 years, with a

weighted average of 18 years.

The accrued benefit plan asset or fiability represents the cumulative difference between the cost and the funding contributions and is
recorded in other assets and other liahilities.

Defined Contribution and Multi-Employer Pension Plans The costs of pensien benefits for defined contribution pensicn plans and
multi-employer pension plans are expensed as contributions are due.

Stock Option Pfan The Company recognizes a compensation cost in operating income and a liabity related to employee stock options

that allow for settlement in shares or in the share appreciation value in cash at the option of the employee, using the intrinsic value method.
Under the intrinsic value method, the stock-based compensation liabifity is the amount by which the market price of the common shares
exceeds the exercise price of the stock options. A year-over-year change in the stock-based compensatian liability is recognized in operating
income on a prescribed vesting basis.

The Company accounts for stock optiens issued prior to December 30, 2001 that will be settled by issuing commen shares as capital
transactions. Consideration paid by employess on the exercise of this type of stock optian is credited to common share capital. This type
of option was last issued in 2001 and represents approximately 1.0% of all options outstanding at year end.

Restricted Share Unit (“RSU™) Plan The Company recognizes a compensation cost in operating income for each RSU granied equal

to the market value of a Loblaw comman share at the date on which RSUs are awarded to each participant prorated over the performance
period and adjusts for changes in the market value until the end of the performance date. The cumulative effect of the change in market
value is recognized in operating incame in the period of change.
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Employee Share Ownership Plan The Company maintains an Employee Share Ownership Plan which allows emplayees to acquire

the Company's common shares through regular payroll deductions of up to 5% of their gross regular earnings. The Company contributes
an additional 25% of each employee's contribution to the plan, which is recognized in operating income as a compensation cost when
the contribution is made.

Deferred Share Units Members of the Company’s Board of Directors may elect annually to receive all or a portion of their annual retainer(s)
and fees in the form of deferred share units, which are acceunted for using the intrinsic value method. Under the intrinsic value method,
the deferred share unit compensatien liability is the amount by which the market price of the common shares exceeds the initial value of the
deferred share unit. The year-ovar-year change in the deferred share unit compensation fiability is recognized in operating income.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.
These estimates and assumptions are based on managemant’s historical experience, best knowledge of current events and conditions

and activities that may be undertaken in the future. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Ceriain estimates, such as those related to valuation of inventories, goodwill, income taxes, Goods and Services Tax and provincial sales
taxes, fixed assets and employee future benefits, depend upon subjective or complex judgments about matters that may be uncertain, and
changes in those estimates could materially impact the consolidated financtal statements.

Comparative Infermation Certain prior year's information was reclassified to conform with current year's presentation.

Note 2. Implementation of New Accounting Standards

Accounting Standards Implemented in 2006

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company implemented Emerging issues Committee Abstract 156, “Accounting by a Vendor for Consideration
Given to a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor's Products)”, (“EIC 156") issued by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
in September 2005. EIC 156 addresses ash consideration, including sales incentives, given by a vendor to a customer. This consideration
is presumed to be a reduction of the selling price of the vendor’s products and should therefore be classified as a reduction of sales in the
vendor's statement of earings.

Prior to the implementation of EIC 156, the Company recorded certain sales incentives paid to independent franchisees, associates

and independent accounts in cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses on the consofidated statements of earnings. Accordingly,
the implementation of EIC 156, on a retroactive basis, resulted in a reduction in both sales and cost of sales, selling and administrative
expenses of $174 for 2005. As reclassifications, these changes did not impact net earnings.

Accounting Standards Implemented in 2005

Effective January 2, 2005, the Company implemented AcG 15, retroactively without restatement of prior periods and as a result, the
Company consolidates entities in which it has contro! through awnership of a majority of the voting interests as well as all VIEs for which
it is the primary beneficiary.

AcG 15 defines a variable interest entity as an entity that either does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its activities without
subordinated financial support or where the holders of the equity at risk lack the characteristics of a cantrolling financial interest. AcG 15
requires the primary beneficiary to consolidate VIEs and considers an entity to be the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it holds variable interests
that expose it to a majority of the VIE's expected losses ar that entitls it to receive a majority of the VIE's expected residual returns ar both.
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[pan implementation of AcG 15, the Company identified the following significant VIEs:

Independent Franchisees The Company enters into various forms of franchise agreements that generally require the independent
franchisee to purchase inventory from the Company and pay certain fees in exchange for services provided by the Company and for

the right to use certain trademarks ard licences owned by the Company. Independent franchisees genarally lease the land and building
from the Company, and when eligible, may obtain financing through a structure involving independent trusts to facilitate the purchase

of the majority of their inventory and fixed assets, consisting mainly of fixturing and equipment. These trusts are administered by a major
Canadian chartered hank. Under the terms of certain franchise agreements, the Company may also lease equipment o independent
franchisees. Independent franchisees may also obtain financing through operating lines of credit with traditional financial institutions
or through issuing preferred shares or notes payable to the Company. The Company monitors the financial condition of its independent
franchisees and provides for estimated fosses or write-downs on its accounts and notes receivable or investmants when appropriate.
Upon implementatian of AcG 15, the Company determined that 121 of its independent franchise stares met the criteria for VIEs that require
consolidation by the Company pursuant to AcG 15.

As at year end 2006, 123 (2005 - 123) of the Company's independent franchise stares met the criteria for a VIE and were consolidated
pursuant to AcG 15.

Warehouse and Distribution Agreement The Company has entered into a warehouse and distribution agreement with a third party

to provide to the Company distribution and warehousing services from a dedicated facility. The Company has no equity interest in this third
party; however, the terms of the agreement with the third party are such that the Company has determined that the third party meets

the criteria for a VIE that requires consolidation by the Company. As a result of the fee structure agreed to with this third party, the impact
of the consolidation of the warehouse and distribution entity was not material.

Accordingly, the Company has included the results of these independent franchisees and this third-party entity that provides distribution
and warehousing services in its consolidated financial statements effective January 2, 2045.

An aiter-tax, one-time charge of $29 (net of income taxes of $12) was recorded upon implementation and resufted mainty from delaying
the recognition of vendor monies to when the related inventories of the independent franchisees are sold to their customers, the excess

of the independent franchisees’ accumulated losses over the allowance for doubtful accounts previously recorded by the Company and

the reversal of initial franchise fees initially recognized upon the sale of franchises to third parties.

Independent Trust The Company has alse identified that it holds a variable interest, by way of a standby letter of credit, in an independent
trust which is used to securitize credit card receivables for PC Bank. In these securitizations, PC Bank sells a portion of its credit card
receivables to the independent trust in exchange for cash. Although this independent trust has been identified as a VIE, it was determined
that the Company is not the primary beneficiary and therefore this VIE is not subject to consolidation by the Company. The Company’s
maximum exposure to loss as a result of iis involvement with this independant trust is disclosed in Notes 11 and 21.

The consolidaticn of these YIEs by the Company does not result in any change 1o its tax, legal or credit risks, nor does it result in the
Company assuming any abligations of these third parties.
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Note 3. Goodwill

Goodwill is assessed for impairment at the reporting unit level at least annually. Any potential goodwill impairment is identified by comparing
the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value. if the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, goodwill is considered
not to b impaired. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a more detfailed goodwill impairmant assessment must

be undertaken. A goodwill impairment charge is recognized to the extent that, at the reporting unit level, the carrying value of goodwill exceeds
the implied fair value.

The Company determines the fair value using a discounted cash flow model corroborated by other valuation techniques such as market
multiples. The process of determining these fair vaiues requires management to make estimates and assumptions including, but not limited
to projected future sales, eamings and capital investment, discount rates and terminal growth rates. Projected futura sales, earnings and
capital investment are consistent with strategic plans presented to the Company’s Board of Directors. Discount rates are based on an
industry weighted average cost of capital. These estimates and assumptions are subject to change in the future due to uncertain competitive
and economic market conditions or changes in business strategies.

In 2006, the Company performed the annual goodwill impairment test and it was determined that the carrying value of the goodwill established
on the acquisition of Provigo Inc. in 1998 exceeded its respective fair value. As a resuft, the Company recorded in operating income a non-cash
goodwill impairment charge of $800 relating to this goodwill. The Company expects no income tax deduction from this non-cash goodwill
impairment charge. The determination that the fair value of goodwill was less than its carrying value resulted from a decline in market multiples,
both from an industry and Cempany perspective, and a reduction of fair value as determined using the discounted cash flow methedology,
incorparating both current Company and market assumptions, which in combination resulted in the goodwill impairment. This non-cash goodwill
fmpairment charge is expected to be adjusted if necessary in the first half of 2007 and may result in a charge or credit to operating income

in the consolidated statement of earnings and in the carrying value of goodwill on the balance sheet.

In the normal course of business, the Company may acquire from time to time franchisee stores and convert them to corporate stores. In 2006,
the Company acquired 7 franchisee businesses (2005 — 7 franchisee businesses). The acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting with the results of the business acquired included in the consotidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.
The fair value of the net assets acquired consisted of fixed assets of $2 (2005 — nomiral}, other assets pringipally inventory of $2 (2005 — $3)
and goodwill of $7 (2005 — $3) for cash consideration of $9 (2005 — $5), net of accounts receivable due fram the franchisees of $2 (2005 — $1).

The consolidated balance sheet as at year end 2006 includes $4 (2005 — $4) of goodwill of independent franchisees that were consolidated
by the Company pursuant to the requirements of AcG 15.

During 2005, the Company reduced goodwill by $41 due to the resolution of certain income tax matters previously accrued for as part
of the Provigo Inc. purchase equation.

The following table discloses the changes in goodwill over 2006 and 2005.

i 2006 2605
Balance, beginning of year | $ 1,587 $ 1,621
Goodwill acquired ! 1 7
Goodwill impairment ! {800) -
Other adjustments 7 | - (41)
Balance, end of year c % 194 $ 1587
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Note 4. Restructuring and Other Charges

Store Operations

During 2006, the Company completed assessments of its store operations, and approved and communicated plans to restructure certain

of its store operations. The total restructuring cost under these plans is estimated to be approximately $54. Of the $54 total estimated costs,
approximately $10 is attributable to employee termination benefits which include severance resulting from the termination of employess,
$25 to fixed asset impairment and accelerated depreciation of assets relating to these restructuring activities and $19 to site closing and
other costs including lease obligations. In 2006, the Company recognized $35 of these restructuring costs, which are composed of $9 for
employee termination benefits, $25 for fixed asset impairment and accelerated depreciation and $1 for other costs directly associated with
those initiatives. The components of the store operations restructuring plan are dascribed below.

As part of a review of the Quebec store operations, the Company approved and communicated a plan in 2006 to close 19 underperforming
stores, mainly within the Provigo banner. This initiative is expected to be completed during 2007 and the total restructuring cost under
this initiative is estimated to be approximately $40, of which 328 was recognized in 2006.

Based on the Company's review of the impact on the Cash & Carry and wholesale club netwosk of the loss in tobacco sales following

the decision by a major tobacco supplier to sell directly to certain customers of the Company, the Company approved and communicated a
planin 2006 to close 24 wholesale outlets which were impacted most sigrificantly by this change. This initiative is expected to be completed
during 2007 and the total restructuring cost under this initiative is estimated to be approximately $10, of which $6 was recognized in 2006.

As part of a review of the Atlantic store operations, the Company appraved and communicated a plan in 2006 to close 8 stores in
the Atlantic region. This initiative is expected fo be completed during 2007 and the total restructuring cost under this initiative is estimated
to be approximately $4, of which $1 was recognized in 2006.

Supply Chain Network

During 2005, the Company approved a comprehensive plan to restructure its supply chain operations nationally. The restructuring plan is
now expected to be completed by the first quarter of 2609 and the total restructuring cost under this plan is estimated to be approximately
$90. 0f the $90 total estimated cost, approximately $57 is attributable to employee termination benefits which include severance and
additional pension costs resulting from the termination of employees, $13 to fixed asset impairment and accelerated depreciation of assets
relating to this restructuring activity and $20 to site closing and other costs directly attributable to the restructuring plan. In 2006, the
Company recognized $8 (2005 — $62) of restructuring costs resulting from this plan which is composed of $4 (2005 — $45) for employee
termination benefits resulting from planned involuntary terminations, $2 (2005 — $11) for fixed asset impairment and accelerated
depreciation and $2 (2005 — $6) for other costs directly associated with those initiatives.

Office Move and Reorganization of the Operation Support Functions

During 2005, the Company conselidated several administrative and operating offices fram across southern Onfario into a new Natianal
Head Office and Store Support Centre in Brampton, Ontario and reorganized the merchandising, procurement and eperations groups which
included the transfer of the general merchandise operations from Calgary, Alberta to the new office. Of the expected $25 of costs related
to these initiatives, $24 were recognized in 2005 and $1 was recognized in 2006,
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The following table provides a summary of the costs recognized and cash payments made, as well as the corresponding net liability as at
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005

Site Fixed Asset
{ Employee Closing Total Impairment and
Termination Costs and Net Accelerated 2006 2005
o . . Benefits Dther I.jability Depreciation Total ' Total
Net liability, begirning of year o §4a $ - s 8- $ - $ -
Costs recognized:
Store operations 9 1 10 25 3B -
Supply chain network 4 2 6 2 B 62
Office move and reorganization of
the operation support functions - 1 7 1 - 1 24
. $13 $4_ $ 17 $2?*7 $ 44 7$86
Cash payments: :
Store operations $ - $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ -
Supply chain network 4 2 6 6 13
Office move and rerganization of |
the operation support functions 1 1 2 2 18
_ | i[,, $ 4 $ 9 $9 _$31
Charges against other assets® ] $ 9 $ - $ 8 $ -
Net liability, end of year L § 40 L R
Recorded in the consofidated 4 i
balance sheet as follows: i
Other assetstaote 13) $ - $ - $ — $ 9
Accounts payable and l
accrued fiabilities 19 19 19 | 7
Other fiabilities inote 17 7 21 21 21 25
$ 40 $40 $ 41

e

Lo o ool . - — .

Net Iiabj[i_ty, end of year 4 4q 7

{1) Represents defined benefit pension plan cost applied to ather assels. Charges against ather assets relates to the contractuat termination benefits cost recognized in 2005 which reduced
the accrued benefit pfan asset.

Note 5. Goods and Services Tax (“GST") and Pravincial Sales Taxes (“PST")

Duning 2005, the Company recorded a charge relating to an audit and proposed assessment by the Canada Revenue Agency relating to

GST on certain preducts sold on which GST was not appropriately charged and remitted. In light of this proposed assessment, the Company
assessed and estimated the potential liabilities for GST and PST in ather areas of its operations for various periods. Accordingly, a charge
of $40 was recorded in operating income in 2005. Approximately $1 was paid in 2006 (2005 — $15) and approximately $24 remains accrued
as at Decemnber 30, 2006. The ultimate remaining amount to be paid will depend on the outcome of audits performed by, or setttements
reached with the various tax authorities and therefore may differ from this estimate. Management will continue to assess the remaining
accrual as progress towards resolution with the various tax authorities is made and will adjust the remaining accrual accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6. Collective Agreement

During 2006, members of certain Ontario locals of the United Food and Commercial Warkers union ratified a new four-year collective agreement.
The new agreement enables the Company to convert 44 stores in Ontario to the Real Canadian Superstore banner or food stores with
equivalent labour economics, ard the flexibility to invest in additional store labour where appropriate. As a result of securing this agreement,
the Company recognized a one-time charge of $84 in operating income, including a $36 amount due to a multi-employer pension plan

and a payment of $38 which was due upon ratification.

Note 7. Interest Expense

7 B
Interest on long term debt $ 284 $ 290
Interest expense {income) on financial derivative instruments 1 (6)
Net short term interest an (1)
Capitalized to fixed assets B2 TR 2.
Interest expense $ 59 $ 252

Net interest paid in 2006 was $278 (2005 - $263).

Note 8. Income Taxes

The effective income tax rate in the consolidated statements of earnings is reported at a rate different than the weighted average basic
Canadian federal and provincial statutory income tax rate for the following reasons:

2008 2005
Weighted average basic Canadian federal and provincial statutory income tax rate 33.1% 1 34.4%
et {decrease) increase resulting from: |
tarnings in jurisdictions taxed at rates different
from the Canadian statutory income tax rates (0.6) 0.5
Non-taxable amounts {1.1) ©.7)
Large corporation tax - 05
Statutory income tax rate changes on future income tax balances 21 0.3
Successhul resolution of certain income tax matters from a previous year and other - {0.2)
Effective income tax rate before impact of non-deductible goodwill impairment charge 29.9% 34.8%
Non-deductible goodwill impairment charge 796.8 -
Effective income tax rate 826.7% 34.8%
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Net income taxes paid in 2006 were $325 (2005 — $387).

The cumulative effects of changes in Canadian federal and certain provincial statutory income tax rates on future income tax assets and
liabilities are included in the consolidated financial statements at the time of substantive enactment. Accordingly, in 2006 a $16 reduction fo
future income tax expense was recognized as a result of the reduction in the Canadian federal and certain pievincial statutory income tax rates,
compared to a $3 charge to future income tax expense in 2005 as a result of statutory income tax rate changes in cerain provinces.

The income tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the future income tax assets (liabilities) were as follows:

e e S i 1 2006 : 2005
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ; $ 55 $ 55
(ther liabilities ; 117 g6
Fixed assets ' (218} (278)
Other assets . (103) (64)
Losses carried forward (expiring 2026) l 20 b
Other o } 40 . 30
Netfuture income tax liabilites ’ $7(149) L $(1E§5)

|
ST . _ | 2008 e
Recerded in the consolidated balance sheets as follows: i
Current future income tax assets j $ 85 $ 12
Nonfcu_rrent future income tax liabilities - ‘ j (234) ] {237)
Net future income tax liabilities 7 3 $(149) $(165)

E

Note 9. Basic and Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings per Common Share ($, except where otherwise indicated)

Net (loss) earaings (s milions) o $ (219) $ 746
Weighted average common shares outstanding tin milions) : 2141 2742
Dilutivereﬁect of stock-hased compensation (in miions) 2 .. 8
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding i millions) ] B 274.37 7 275.0
Basic net (loss) earnings per comman share : ${.80) § 272
Dilutive effect of stock-based compensation per common share | - {01)
Diluted net (loss) earnings per common share ] $(.80) $ 271

Stock options outstanding with an exercise price greater than the market price of the Company’s common shares at December 30, 2006
were not recegnized in the camputation of diluted net {loss) earnings per common share. Accordingly, ior 2006, 4,027406 (2005 — 2,254,639)
stock options, with a weighted average exercise price of $61.55 (2005 — $69.58) per common share, were excluded from the computation
of diluted net {ioss) earnings per common share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short Term Investments

At year end, the Company had $864 (2005 ~ $837) in cash, cash equivalents and short ferm investments held by Glenhuron Bank Limited
(“Glenhuron™). a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in Barbados. The $40 (2005 - $27} of income from cash, cash equivalents
and short term investments was recognized in net short term interest.

The Company recognized an unrealized foreign currency exchange gain of $2 (2005 — §31 loss) as a result of translating its United States
dollar denominated cash, cash equivalents and short term investments, of which $1 income (2005 — $31 loss) related to cash and cash
equivalents. The resulting gain or loss on cash, cash equivalents and short term investments is offset in operating income by the unrealized
foreign currency exchange gain on the cross currency basis swaps. A cumulative unrealized foreign currency exchange receivable of

$165 (2005 — $168) relating to these swaps is recorded in other assets on the balance sheet.

Note 11. Credit Card Receivables

The Company, through PC Bank, securitizes credit card receivables through the sale of a partion of the tofal interest in these receivables
to independent trusts and does not exercise any control over the trusts’ management, administration or assets. When PC Bank sells credit
card receivables in a securitization transaction, it has a retained interest in the securitized receivables represented by the right to future
cash flows after obligations to investors have been met. Although PC Bank remains responsible for servicing all credit card receivables,
it does not receive additional compensation for servicing these credit card receivables sold to the trusts.

During 2006, $240 (2005 ~ $225) of credit card receivables were securitized through the sale of a portion of the total interest in these
receivables to independent trusts, yielding a nominal net loss {2005 — nominal net loss) on the initial sale inclusive of nil (2005 - $1)
servicing liability. Servicing liabilities expensed during the year were $14 (2005 — $13) and the fair value at year end of recognized
servicing liabilities was $8 (2005 — $8). The trusts’ recourse to PC Bank’s assets is fimited to PC Bank's retained interests and is further
supported by the Company through a standby letter of credit for 9% (2005 — 9%) on a portion of the securitized amount.

2006 E 2005

Credi‘t“c y (eceivz;brlés , SN B ,,‘s | . $ 1257

Amount securitized (1 250) I (1,010

Net credit card fecewables - N $ 321 [ $ 247

Net?re—d-llt_téss experience o - N $ 9 | _ _$ E
|

The net credit loss experience of $9 (2005 — $5) includes $45 (2005 — $33) of credit fosses on the total portfo!io of credit card receivables net
of credit losses of $36 (2005 — $28) relating to securitized credit card receivables. The following table displays the sensitivity of the current
fair value of retained interests to an immediate 10% and 20% adverse change in the 2006 key economic assumptions. The sensitivity
analysis provided in the table is hypothetical and should be used with caution. The sensitivities of each key assumption have been calculated
indepandently of any changes in other key assumptions. Actual experience may result in changes in a number of key assumptions
simultaneously. Changes in one factor may result in changes in another, which could amplify or reduce the impact of such assumptions.
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2006
Carrying value of retained interests - $5
Payment rate (monttiy) | 44.0%
Weighted average life tyears) i N
Expected credit losses ¢annuat) , 3.14%
Discount rate applied to i
residual cash flows (arauat) | 14.83%
|

The details on the cash flows from securitization are as follows:

Proceeds from new securitizations
Net cash flows received on retained interests

In 2006, PC Bank restructured its credit card securitization program. Eagle Credit Card Trust {“Eagle"}, a previously established independent

10%

$ (N

$ (2.4)

2008

$ 240
$ 116

Change in Assumptions

20%

$ (1.4)

$ (4.9)

2005

$ 225
$ 106

trust, issued $500 of five year senior notes and subordinated notes due 2011 at a weighted average rate of 4.5% to finance the purchase
of credit card receivables previously securitized by PC Bank through an independent trust. The subordinated notes provide credit support
to those notes which are more senior. PG Bank will continue to service the credit card receivables on behalf of Eagle, but will not receive
any fee for its servicing obligations and has a retained interest in the securitized receivables represented by the right to future cash flows
after ahligations to investors have been met. In accordance with Canadian GAAP the financial statements of Eagle are not cansolidated

with those of the Company. The restructuring of the portfalio yielded a nominal net loss.

Note 12. Inventory Liquidation

As part of the Company's review of inventory tevels, certain excess inventory, primarily general merchandise, was identified.
The Company recognized a charge of $68 in operating income as a result of its decision to proceed with the liguidation of this inventory,
reflecting the write-down of inventory to recovery values and the associated costs of facilitating the disposition ingurred to date. Additional

costs are to be recognized as appropriate criteria afe met.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13. Fixed Assets

2008 2005 o
Accumuiated Net Book Accumulated Net Book
S Cos1 - Depreciation V;Iue Cost Depreciation VValure
Properties held for development $ 500 $ 500 $ 442 $ 442
Properties under development 226 226 231 231
Land 1,699 1,699 1,629 1,629
Buildings 4,935 $ 1,012 3,943 4579 $ 835 3,744
Equipment and fixtures 3,788 2475 1,313 3,589 2207 1,382
Building and leasehold
%m p[qvements 77777 611 269 342 647 290 ) 3 57
- 11,7179 3,756 8,023 11,117 3,332 7,785
Capital leases — buildings
_ and equipment 8 0 0 % % -
$11,908 $ 3,853 $ 8,095 $ 11,212 $ 3427 $ 7,785

Fixed asset impairment and accelerated depreciation charges of $32 (2005 — $7) were recognized in operating income. An additional
$27 {2005 — $14) was recognized in restructuring and other charges in 2006 (see Note 4). The fair values were determined using quoted
market prices where available, independent offers to purchase where available or prices for similar assets.

Note 14, Other Assets

w5 | s
Franchise investments and other recsivables $ 195 $ 194
Accrued benefit plan asset (nate 15) 182 139
Unrealized equity forwards receivable (note 20) - 30
Unrealized cross currency basis swaps receivable (rotes 10 and 20) 165 168
Defarred charges and other 147 7 157

$ 689 $ 688
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Note 13. Employee Future Benefits

Pension and Other Benefit Plans

The Company spensors a number of pension plans, including registered funded defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution
pension plans and supplementat unfunded arrangements providing pensten benefits in excess of statutery limits. Certain obligations

of the Company to these supplemental pension arrangements are secured by a standby lefter of credit issued by a major Canadian chartered
bank. The Company’s definad benefit pension plans are predominantly non-contributory and these benefits are, in general, based on

Career average earnings.

A new national defined contribution pensian plan for safaried employees was introduced by the Company during 2006. Al eligible salaried
employees were given the option to join this new plan and convert their past accrued pension bengfits or to remain in their existing defined
benefit pensien plans. All new salaried employees will participate only in the new national defined contribution pension plan.

The Company also offers certain employee post-retirement and post-employment benefit plans and a long term disability benefit plan.
Post-retirement and post-employment benefit plans are not funded, are mainly non-centributory and include health care, life insurance and
dental benefits. Employzes eligible for post-retirement benefits are those who retire at certain retirement ages and employees eligible for
post-employment benefits are those on long term disability leave. The majority of post-retirement health care plans for current and future
retirees include a limit on the total benefits payable by the Company.

The Company also contributes to various muiti-employer pension plans that provide pension benefits.

The accrued benefit plan obligations and the fair value of the benefit plan assets were determined using a September 30 measurement
date for accounting purposes.

Funding of Pension and Other Benefit Plans

The most recent actuarial valuations of the defined benefit pension plans for funding purposes {“funding valuations”) are to be performed
as at December 31, 2006 for all plans, except two plans which were as at December 31, 2004. The Company is required to file funding
valuations at least every three years; accordingly, the next required funding valuatiens for the above mentioned plans will be performed
no later than December 31, 2009 and 2007, respectively,

Total cash payments made by the Company during 2006, consisting of contributions to funded defined benefit pension plans, defined
contribution pension plans, multi-employer pension plans, long term disability benefit plan and benefits paid directly to beneficiaries of
the unfunded defined benefit pension plans and unfunded other benefit plans, were $166 (2005 — $134). The Company has accrued
$36 relating to a one-time contribution to a multi-employer pension plan {see Note 6).

During 2007 the Company expects to contribute approximately $75 to its registered funded defined benefit pension plans. This estimate
may vary subject to the completion of actuarial valvatiens, market performance and regulatory requirements. The Company also expects

to make contributions in 2007 to defined coniribution pension plans and multi-emplayer pension plans as welt as benefit payments directly
to beneficiaries of the unfunded defined berefit pension plans and unfunded other henefit plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pension and Other Benefit Plans Status
information ¢n the Company's defined benefit pension plans and other benefit plans, in aggregate, was as follows:

- s 0
Pension (ther Penston Other
e e e e |, BERCRPINS  Benefit Plans® Total , [BeneftPars  eneftPlns® ol
Benefit Plan Assets
Fair value, beginning of year $ M $ 42 $ 986 $ 838 § 35 $ 873
Actual return (foss) on plan assets 74 (1) 13 98 2 100
Employer contributions 90 21 111 61 22 83
Employee contributions 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits paid (58) {(18) (76) {53) {17) {70)
Fair value, end of year i $ 1,052 $ M $ 1,096 $ 944 $ 42 $ 985
Accrued Benefit Plan i
Obligations i
Balance, beginning of year | $ 1,155 $ 243 $ 1,398 $ 937 $ 181 $ 1,118
Current service cost 50 9 a9 37 4 4]
Interest cost 62 13 15 60 1 71
Benedits paid (58) (18) {76} {53) (17) (70)
Actuarial loss 55 61 116 173 64 237
Past service costs - - - - 2 2
Contractual termination benefits®? - - - 9 - 9
Curtailment gain® - - - (6) (2) (8)
Balance, end of year $ 1,262 $ 308 $ 1,570 $ 1,155 $ 243 $ 1,398
Deficit of Plan Assets
Versus Plan Obligations $ (210 ${264) $ 4719 $ (21 $(201) $ @12
Unamortized past service costs ] (M 2 6 N 1)
Unamorized et actuarial loss W w5 o s 3
Net accrued benefit plan
asset {iabifity) $ 108 $ (99) $ 9 $ 66 $ (8D) $(14)
Recorded in the consolidated
balance sheets as follows:
QOther assets (note 14) $ 145 $ $ 182 $ 102 $ 37 $ 139
_ Otferliabilities ey~ Gh @\ aw @e A ({153)
Net accrued benefit plan
asset {liability) $ 108 $ (99 $ 9 $ 66 $ (80 $ (14

(1) Other benefit plans include post-retirement, post-employment and long term disability benefit plans.

l

(2) Contractual termination benefits resulted from the 2005 pfan to restructure the supply chain operations naticnally and were recorded in restructuring and ather charges in 2005 (see Note 4).

(3) Certain defined benefit pension plans and other benefit pians affected by the 2005 plar to restructure the supply chain operations nationaily were remeasuied as at March 31, 2005 and
costs subsequent to April 1, 2005 were determined using a discount rate of 5.75%. This resulted in 3 nominal impact te 2005 net earnings and curtailment gains which were offset against
unamortized net actuarial losses for those plans.
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Funded Status of Plans in a Deficit
Included in the accrued benefit plan obligations and the fair value of benefit plan assets at year end are the following amounts in respect
of plans with accrued benefit plan obligations in excass of benafit plan assets:

; 2006 ) 2005
Pension Qther Pension Other
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
Fair Value of Benefit Plan Assets $ 1,052 $ 4 $ 944 $ -
Accrued _Benefit__Plgn leigati9n§ 7 7 1,262 308 1,155 o 202
Deficit of Plan Assets versus Plan Obligatig_ns $ 210 $ 264 $ 211 - $ 202

Asset Allocations
The benefit plan assets are held in trust and at September 30 consisted of the following asset categories:

Perce_niage of PlanMAssets ) 7 B 7 2006 2005

Pension Other ‘ Pension Cther
hsset Calegury - ) 7 B 7 Benefit Plans Benelit Plans i Benefit Plans o ‘A.E?E.a.m PIaAns
Fquity securities 63% % 64% %
Debt securities 36% 9% | 34% 99%
Cash and cash equivalents | 1% T 2% o 1%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

-

Pensien benefit pian assets include securities issued by the Company's majarity sharehalder, George Weston Limited {“Weston") having a fair
value of $3 (2005 — $4} as at September 30. Other benefit plan assets do not include any Weston or Loblaw securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pension and Qther Benefit Plans Cost

The total net cost for the Company's bengfit plans and multi-employer pension plans was as foflows:

, . R S _ LB
! Pension Other Pension Other
_ 7 _Beriefit Plj.ms - wau?m Plans Benefit ?{an; - ) Beqel’lt P_lans
Current service cost,
net of employee contributions $ 48 $ ¢ $ 35 $ 4
Interest cost on plan obligations 62 13 60 11
Actual (return) loss on plan assets (14) 1 (98) 2
Actuarial loss 39 61 173 64
Past service costs - - - Z
Contra;tual termination benefits® . - - 9 - -
Defined benefit plan cost, before adjustments
to recognize the long term nature of
employee future benefit costs 91 84 179 79
{Shortfall) excess of actual return over
expected retura on plan assets {1) (4) 30 -
Shortfall of amortized net actuarial loss
over actual actuarial loss on accrued
benefit obligation (43) (40} (170) {59)
Excess (shortfall) of amortized past service
costs over actual past senvicecosts. | 1 - T
Net defined benefit plan cost 48 40 39 18
Defined cantribution plan cost 6 - b -
Matti-emploer pension plan cost™ B I . S
Net benefit plan cost $ 139 $ 40 $ 90 $ 18
Recognized in the consolidated statements
of earnings as follows:
Pension and other benefit plan costs $ 139 $ 40 $ 81 $ 18
Rest{ycturing_an_d other charges® e 9 B -
Net benefit plan cost $ 139 $ 40 $ 90 $18

(1) Contractual termination benefits resulted from the 2005 plan to restructure the supply chain operations nationally and were recorded in restructuring and other charges in 2005 (see Note 4).
{2} Included in 2006 is a $36 amount due relating 1o a one-time contribution to a muiti-employer pension plan (see Note 6).
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Plan Assumptions
The significant annual weighted average actuarial assumptions used in calculating the Company's accrued benefit plan obligations as at
the measurement date of September 30 and the net defined benefit plan cost for the year were as follows:

2006 7 7 2005
Pension Other Pensicn (Other
! Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefil Plans Benefit Pians
Accrued Benefit Plan Obligations f
Discount rate 1 5.0% 9.0% 5.25% 2.2%
Rate of compensation increase ! 3.5% 3.5_%
Net Defined Benefit Plan Cost
Discount rate™ j 5.25% 52% 6.25% 6.1%
Expected long term rate of |
feturn on plan assets ‘ 8.0% 0% 8.0% 55%
Rate of compensation increase ! 3.9% 3.0%

{1} Certain defined henefit pension plans and other benefit plans affected by the 2005 plan to restructure the supply chain operations nationally were remeasured as at March 31, 2005 and
costs subsequent to April 1, 2005 were determined using a discount rate of 5.75%. This resulted in a nomina! impact to 2005 net earnings and curtzilment gains which were offset against
unamortized net actuasial losses for those plans.

The growth rate of health care costs, primarily drug and other medical costs for other benefit plans, was estimated at 16.0% (2005 — 10.0%)
and is assumed to gradually decrease to 5.0% by 2014 (2005 - 5.0% by 2013}, remaining at that level thereafter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Sensitivity of Key Assumptions

The following table outlines the key assumptions for 2006 and the sensitivity of a 1% change in each of these assumptions on the accrued
benefit plan obligations and on the benefit plan cost for defined benefit pension plans and other benefit plans. The table reflects the impact
on the current service and interest cost components for the disceunt rate and expected growth rate of health care costs assumptions.

The sensitivity analysis provided in the table is hypothetical and should be used with caution. The sensitivities of each key assumption have been
calculated independently of any changes in other key assumptions. Actual experience may result in changes in a number of key assumptions
simultaneoausly. Changes in one factor may result in changes in another, which could amplify or reduce the impact of such assumptions.

| . Pension E_Eenem Plans_ _ C _Olher Benefit Plans _
Accrued Benefit Benefit 1 Accrued Bensfit Benefit
7 7 B o Plaripblivgationsr o f’,'?!‘ (39{1‘" L Plapopligaﬁigﬁg S ﬂ?", Ct?}t(l’
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets 8.0% j 5.0%
Impact of: 1% increase n/a $ (@ n/a $ -
 1%decrease _ nfa $ 9 nfa $ -
Discount rate 5.0% 5.25% 1 5.0% 5.2%
Impact of: 1% increase ${173) $ (10 $ (38) $ @
o Wedeese | sA1 810 | § 4 s 2
Expected growth rate of health care costs® | 10.0% 10.0%
impact of: 1% increase n/a n/a 5 $ 35 $ 4
1% decrease n/a na | $ 30) $ @
i
N i

n/a - not applicable
{1} Discount rate and expected growth rate of health care costs sensitivity is for current service and interest costs only.
(2) Gradually decreasing to 5.0% by 2014 for the accrued benefit plan abligation and the benefit plan cost, and remaining at that level thereafter.
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Note 16. Long Term Debt

2006 2005
Provigo Inc. Debentures
Series 1996, 8.70%, due 2006 ; § - $ 125
QOther ; - 1
Loblaw Companies Limited Notes \
6.00%, due 2008 g 390 390
5.75%, due 2009 i 125 125
710%, due 2010 | 300 300
6.50%, due 2011 i 350 350
540%, due 2013 | 200 200
6.00%, due 2014 ' 100 100
710%, due 2016 ! 300 300
6.65%, dus 2027 ’ 100 100
6.45%, due 2028 200 200
6.50%, due 2029 ‘ 175 175
11.40%, due 2031
— principal 151 151
— eftect of coupon repurchase : (34 (26)
6.85%, due 2032 j 200 200
6.54%, due 2033 200 200
8.75%, due 2033 : 200 200
65.05%, due 2034 | 200 200
6.15%, due 2035 200 200
5.90%, due 2036 300 300
6.45%, due 2039 200 200
700%, due 2049 150 150
5.86%, due 2043 KL 55
Qther at a weighted average interest rate of 8.69%, due 2007 to 2043 21 33
VIE loans payable and capital leases (i 156 126
Total long term debt ! 4,239 4,355
Less amount due within one year _ 27 161
$ 4,212 $ 4,194

The five year schadule of repayment of long term debt, inclusive of VIE and ather debt, based on maturity is as follows: 2007 — $27;
2008 — $420; 2009 — $148; 2010 - $319; 2011 — $369.

{i} During 2006, the Company repaid its $125 of 8.70% Series 1996 Provigo Inc. Debenture as it matured. During 2005, the Company
issued $300 of 5.90% Medium Term Notes ("MTN"} due 2036 and $200 of 6.95% MTN matured and was repaid.

{ii) Pursuant to the requirements of AcG 15, the consolidated balance sheet as at December 30, 2006 includes $156 (2005 — $126} of loans
payable and capital lease obligations of VIEs consolidated by the Company, $23 (2005 — $23) of which is due within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The loans payable of $124 (2005 — $126} represent financing obtained by eligible independent franchisees through a structure involving
independent trusts to facilitate the purchase of the majority of their inventory and fixed assets, consisting mainly of fixturing and
equipment. The loans payable, which have an average term to maturily of 8 years (2005 — 7 years), are due and payabte an demand
under certain predetermined circumstances and are secured through a general security agreement made by the independent franchisees
in favour of the independent funding trust. Interest is charged on a floating rate basis and prepayment of the loans may be made

without penalty. The independent funding trust within the structure finances its activities through the issuance of short term asset-backed
notes to third-party investors. As disclosed in Note 21, a standby letter of credit has been provided by a major Canadian chartered

bank for the benefit of the independent funding trust equal fo approximately 10% of the total principal amount of the loans outstanding
at any point in time. The Company has agreed to reimburse the issuing bank for any amount drawn an the standby letter of credit.

In the event of a default by an independent franchisee the independent funding trust may assign the toan to the Company and draw
upon the standby letter of credit. No amount has ever been drawn on the standby letter of credit.

Capital lease obligations of $32 (2005 — nil) are included in the consolidated balance sheet as at year end. The capital lease obligations
are related to equipment of the third-party VIE that provides distribution and warehousing services. The amount due within one year

is $4 (2005 - nil).

Note 17 Other Liabilities

QOther

2006

2005
Accrued benefit plan liability trote 15) $ 173 $ 153
Stock-based compensation tnate 19) 17 13
Unrealized equity forwards payable tts 200 13 -
Restructuring and ather charges tote 4) 21 25
Goods and Services Tax and provincial sales tax (note 5) 4 16
L 64
$ 314 $ 211
Note 18. Common Share Capital {(authorized — unlimited)
The changes in the common shares issued and outstarding during the year were as follows:
/1
.. .o o
Number of Common i Number of Commen
Common Share : Common Share
. . . Shafes (_:apita! ' _ B Sh_a[es B Capital
Issued and outstanding, beginning of year 274,054,814 $11592 | 274,255,914 $ 1,192
Issued for stock options exercised taote 19) 118,750 4 : 75,000 1
Purchased for cancellation - - (226,100) -
fssued and qutstanding, end of year 214,113,364 $ 1,196 ! 274,054 814 $ 1,192
Weighted average outstanding 7 274,0766,8857 B ! 7 274'183,'8,23
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Normal Course Issuer Bids ("NCIB™) During 2006, the Company purchased for cancellation nil of its comman shares (2005 —
226,100 for $16).

The Cempany intends to renew its NCIB to purchase on the Toronto Stock Exchange or enter into equity forwards to purchase up to 5%
of its commen shares outstanding. The Company, in accordance with the rules and by-laws of the Toronto Stock Exchange, may purchase
its sharas at the than market price of such shares.

Note 19. Stock-Based Compensation ($, except where otherwise indicated}
The Company maintains various types of stock-based compensation plans, which are described below.

The Company's net stock-based compensation cost recognized in operating income related to its stock option plan and the associated equity
forwards and the restricted shate unit plan was as follows:

(8 millons) 7 - 3 2006 w00
Stock option plan income | $(11) $(35)
Equity forwards l0ss (note 20) ! 32 71
Restricted shar_e unit pIap gxpense ) 18 N 7
Net stock-based compensation cost v $ 37_ $ 43

Stock Option Plan The Company maintains a stock option plan for certain employees. Under this plan, the Company may grant options
for up to 20.4 million commaon shares; however, the Company has set a guideline which limits the number of stock option grants to a
maximum of 5% of outstanding common shares at any time. Stock options have up to a seven-year term, vest 20% cumulatively on each
anniversary date of the grant and are exercisable at the designated common share price, which is 1009 of the market price of the Company's
common shares on the last trading day prior to the effective date of the grant. Each stock option is exercisable into one common share

of the Company at the price specified in the terms of the option, or option holders may elect o receive in cash the share appreciation value
equal to the excess of the market price at the date of exercise over the specified option price.

During 2006, the Company granted 189,354 (2005 — 2,247627) stock options with a weighted average exercise price of $55.30 (2005 -
$69.73) per common share under ifs existing stock eption plan, which ailows for settlement in shares or in the share appreciation value
in cash at the option of the employee.

In 2006, the share appreciation value of $11 million (2005 — $41 million) was paid on the exercise of 815,403 (2005 — 1,135,221} stock
options. The Company issued 118,750 (2005 — 25,000) common shares on the exercise of stock options and received cash consideration
of $4 million (2005 — $0.9 million) for which it had recorded a stock-hased compensation liability of $0.1 millien (2005 — $1 million).

At year end, a total of 4,084 646 (2005 - 5,305422) stock options were outstanding, and represented approximately 1.5% (2005 - 1.9%)
of the Company’s issued and outstanding common shares, which was within the Cempany s guideline of 5%. Cf the 4,084,646

(2005 — 5,305,422) outstanding options, 4,043,406 (2005 — 5,151,682) relate to stock option grants that allow for settlement in shares

or in the share appreciation valuse in cash at the option of the employee and 43,240 {2005 — 153,740) relate ta stock option grants,

issued prior to Becember 30, 2001 that will be settled by issuing common shares.
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A summary of the status of the Company's stock option plan and activity was as follows:

T
S ms Coms
Options Weighted l Cptions Weighted
{number of Average Exercise | {(number of Average Exercise
) . ) | PricefStare | shaes | Prce/Share
Qutstanding options, beginning of year 5,305,422 $ 5698 4,365,958 $ 45.04
Granted 189,354 $ 55.30 | 2,247,627 $ 69.73
Exercised {934,153) $ 35.18 5 (1,160,221) $ 3641
Forfeited/cancelled g $eLSe 0 (48D 85049
Outstanding options, end of year 4,084,646 $ 6136 5,305,422 $ 56.98
Options evercisable, end of year | 154282 5% | 101050 § 4325
.
S 2006 Qutstanding Optons | msceeops
Weighted !
Number of Averagg Remaining Weighted Number of Weighted ,
Options Contractual Average Exercise Exercisable Average Exercise ;
RangeuiE.mcisePn:ces 7qmrs!andijlg o ‘___I-_j'_(?'ef_"_‘}_ ) _PricefSha[a Qptions Price/Share %
$4380-$49.05 157,240 1 $ 48.67 157,240 $ 48.67 5
$53.60-$55.50 1,928,006 3 $ 53.83 976,113 $ 93.70 i
$61.35-$7295 lesso0 5 §6961 410879 $6941

Restricted Share Unit (“RSU™ Plan The Company has adopted a RSU plan for certain senior employees. The RSUs entitle employees to

a cash payment after the end of each performance period, of up to 3 years, following the date of award. The RSU payment will be an amount
equal to the weighted average price of a Loblaw common share on the last three trading days preceding the end of the performance period
for the RSUs multiplied by the rismber of RSUs held by the empioyee.

During 2006, the Company granted 691,001 (2005 — 393,335} RSUs to 238 (2005 — 236) employees, 211,526 (2005 — 10,151) RSUs were
cancelled and 112,707 (2005 — nil) were paid out. At year end, a total of 749,952 (2005 — 383,184} RSUs were outstanding.

Employee Share Ownership Plan (“ESOP™} The Company maintains an ESOP which aflows employees to acquire the Company's
common shares through regutar payroll deductions of up to 5% of their gross regular earnings. The Company contributes an additional 25%
{2005 — 25%) of each employee's contribution to the plan. The ESOP is administered through a trust which purchases the Company’s
common shares on the open market on behalf of employees. A compensation cost of $6 million (2005 — $5 million) related to this plan was
recognized in operating income.

Deferred Share Units (“DSUs”) Plan Members of the Company's Board of Directors may efect annually to receive all or a portion of their
annual retainer(s) and fees in the form of DSUs, the value of which is determined by the market price of the Company's common shares
at the time the director's annual retainer(s) or fees are earned. Upon termination of Board service, the common shares due to the director,
as represented by the DSUs, will be purchased on the open market on the director’s behalf. At year end, 44,397 (2005 — 36,666} DSUs
were cutstanding. The year-over-year change in the deferred share units liability was mirimal and was recognized in operating income.
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Note 20. Financial Insteuments

A summary of the Company's outstanding financial derivative instruments is as follows:

7 o Notianammouﬁt‘s Maturing 7 2006 ) 2005

) 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 T!lereaﬂer ' 7 Total Total

Cross currency basis swaps $ 76 $140 $ 31 $174 $95 § 544 . $1060  $ 1036
Interest rate swaps (receive)/pay $ 240 $140 $ 50 $200 $ (150) $ 480 $ 437
buiyforwards . %00 83w 5o 3 M0

Cross Currency Basis Swaps The Company enters into crass currency basis swaps to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in the foreign currency
exchange rate on a portion of its United States dollar denominated assets, principally cash. cash equivalents and short term investments.

The Company entered into cross currency basis swaps to exchange United States dollars for $1.1 billion {2005 — $1.0 billion) Canadian
dollars, which mature by 2016. Currency adjustments receivahle or payahie arising from these swaps are setiled in cash en maturity.
At year end, a cumulative unrealized foreign currency exchange rate receivable of $165 (2005 — $168) was recorded in other assets.

Interest Rate Swaps The Company enters into interest rate swaps to hedge a portion of its exposure o fluctuations in interest rates.
The Company’s interest rate swaps convert a net notional $480 (2005 — $437) of its floating rate investments to average fixed rate
investments at 4.73% (2005 — 4 .76%), which mature by 2013.

Equity Forwards ($) The Company enters into equity forwards to manage its exposure to fluctuations in its stock-based compensation
cost as a result of changes in the market price of its common shares. At year end 2006, the Company had cumuiative equity forwards

to buy 4.8 million (2005 — 4.8 million) of its common shares at a cumulative average forward price of $51.43 (2005 — $50.02) including
$6.56 (2005 — $5.15) per common share of interest expense net of dividends that has been recognized in net earnings and will be paid

at terminatton. The equity ferwards allow for setttement in cash, common shares or net setilement. The Company has included a cumulative
unrealized market loss of $13 million {2005 — gain of $30 million) in other liabilities (2005 — other assets) retating to these equity forwards.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The fair value of a financial instrument is the estimated amount that the Company would receive
or pay to terminate the instrument agreement at the reporting date. The following methods and assumplions were used to estimate the fair
value of each type of financial instrument by reference o various market value data and other valuation techniques as appropriate.

The fair values of cash, cash equivalents, short term investments, accounts receivable, bank indebtedness, commercial paper, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities approximated their carrying values given their short term maturities.

The fair value of the cross currency basis swaps was estimated based on the marhet spot exchange rates and forward interest rates and
approximated their carrying value.

The fair value of long term debt issues was estimated based on the discounted cash flows of the debt at the Company's estimated
incremental borrowing rates for debt of the same remaining matunties.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps was estimated by discounting net cash flows of the swaps at market and forward interest rates
for swaps of the same remaining maturities.
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The fair value of the equity forwards, which approximated carrying value, was estimated by multiplying the number of the Company's
common shares outstanding under the equity forwards by the difference between the market price of its common shares and the average
forward price of the outstanding farwards at year end.

Carrying Estimated I Carrying Estimated
_ o o - 7 Value Fair Yalue Vaiue ) o fai:lValue
Long term debt liability $ 4,239 $ 4,798 | $ 47355 $ 5,027
Interest rate swaps net liability § - $ (s | § - $ (1D

Counterparty Risk The Company may be exposed to losses should any counterparty to its financial derivative agreements fail to fulfill

its obligations. The Company has sought to minimize potential counterparty risk and losses by conducting transactions for its derivative
agreements with counterparties that have at minimum a long term A credit rating from a recognized credit agency and by placing risk
adjusted limits on its exposure to any single counterparty for its financial derivative agreements. The Company has internal palicies, contrals
and reporting processes which require ongotng assessment and corrective action, if necessary, with respect to its derivative transactions.

In addition, principal amounts on cross currency basis swaps and equity forwards are each netted by agreement and there is no exposure
to loss of the ariginal notional principal amounts on the interest rate swaps and equity forwards.

Credit Risk The Company's expasure to credit risk relates to the Company’s cash equivalents and short term investments, PC Bank's
credit card receivables and accounts receivable from franchisees, associates and independent accounts.

Credit risk associated with the Company's cash equivalents and short term investments results from the possibility that a counterparty
may default an the repayment of a securiky. This risk is mitigated by established policies and guidelines that require issuers of permissible
investments to have at minimum a long term A credit rating from a recognized credit rating agency and that specify minimum and
maximum exposures to specific issuers.

Credit risk from PC Bank's credit card receivables and receivables from franchisees, associates and independents results frem the
possibility that customers may default on their payment obligation. PC Bank manages the credit card receivable risk by employing stringent
credit scoring techniques and actively menitoring the credit card portfolio and reviewing techniques and technology that can improve

the effectiveness of the collection process. In addition, these receivables are dispersed among a large, diversified group of credit card
customers. Accounts receivable frem franchisees, associates and independent accounts are actively monitored on an ongoing basis

and settled on a frequent basis in accardance with the terms specified in the applicable agreements.

Note 21. Contingencies, Commitments and Guarantees

The Company is involved in and potentially subject to various claims by third parties arising out of the normal course and conduct of

its business including, but not limited to, product liability, labour and employment, regulatory and environmental claims. [n addition,

the Company is invalved in and potentially subject to regular audits from federal and provincial tax authorities relating to inceme, capital
and commodity taxes and as a result of these audits may receive assessments and reassessmens.

Aithough such matters cannat be predicted with certainty, management currently considers the Company’s exposure to such claims
and litigation, to the extent not covered by the Company’s insurance policies or otherwise provided for, not to be material to these
consolidated financial statements.
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There are various operating leases that have been committed to. Future minimum lease payments relating to these operatirig leases
are as follows:

i Payments due by year ' ‘ )
Thereaher | 2006 2005
- . oo o8 2009 2010 2011 02043 | Total Total
Operating lease payments $ 190 $ 178 $ 156 $ 134 $ 114 $720 | %1492 $ 1637
Opected sub-lease income - (40) G4 - GO @4 ap @y ) a8 o (203)
Net operating lease payments $ 150 $ 144 $ 126 $ 110 $ 97 $ 677 $1304 | § 1434
) T
i

At year end, the Company has committed approximately $153 (2005 — $264) with respect to capital investment projects such as the
construction, expansion and renovation of buildings and the purchase of real property.

The Company establishes standby letters of credit used in connection with certain obligations mainly related to real estate transactions
and benefit programs. The ageregate gross potential liability related to these standby letters of credit is approximately $221 (2005 - $143).
(ther standby letters of credit related to the financing program for the Company's independent franchisees and securitization of PC Bank's
credit card receivables have been identified as guarantees and are discussed further in the Guarantees section below.

Guarantees The Company has provided to third parties the following significant guarantees as defined pursuant to Accounting Guideline 14,
“Disciosure of Guarantees™:

Standby Letters of Credit A standby letter of credit for the benefit of an independent trust with respect to the credit card receivables
securitization program of PC Bank has been issued by a major Canadian chartered bank. This standby letter of credit could be drawn upon
in the event of a major decline in the income flow from or in the value of the securitized credit card receivables. The Company has agreed
to reimburse the issuing bank for any amount drawn on the standby letter of credit. The Company believes that the likelihood of this
occurrence is remote. The aggregate gross patential liahility under this arrangement, which represents 3% (2005 — 9%) an a portion

of the securitized credit card receivables amount, is approximately $68 (2005 — $91) (see Note 11).

A standby lefter of credit has been issued by a major Canadian chartered hank in the amount of $44 (2005 — $42) for the benefit of

an independent funding trust which provides loans to the Company’s franchisees for their purchase of inventory and fixed assets, mainly
fixturing and equtpmient. The amount of the standby letter of credit is equal to approximately 10% of the principal amount of the loans
outstanding at any peint in time. In the event that an independent franchisee defaults on its loan and the Company has not, within

a specified time period, assumed the lean or the default is not otherwise remedied, the independent funding trust may assign the loan

to the Company and draw upon this standby letter of credit. The Company has agreed to reimburse the issuing bank for any amount
drawn on the standby letter of credit.

Lease Obligations In connection with historical dispesitions of certain of its assets, the Company has assigned leases to third parties.

The Company remains contingently liable for these lease abligations in the event any of the assignees are in default of their lease ohiigations.
The estimated amount for minimum rent, which does not include other lease related expenses such as property tax and common area
maintenance charges, is $111 {2005 — $138).
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Indemnification Provisions The Company from time to time enters into agreements in the normal course of its business, such as
service and outsourcing arrangements and leases, in connection with husiness ar asset acquisitions or dispositions. These agresments
by their nature may provide for indemnification of counterparties. These indemnification provisions may be in connection with breaches
of representation and warranty or with future claims for certain liabilities, including liabilities related to tax and environmental matters.
The terms of these indemnification provisions vary in duration and may extend for an unlimited period of time, Given the nature

of such indemnification provisions, the Company is unabls to reasonably estimate its total maximum potential liability as certain
indemnification provisions do nat provide for a maximum potential amount and the amounts are dependent on the outcome of fufure
contingent events, the nature and lkelihood of which cannet be determined at this time. Historically, the Company has not made

any significant payments in connection with these indemnification provisions.

Legal Proceedings Subsequent to year end, the Company was served with an action brought by certain beneficiaries of a multi-employer
pension plan in the Superior Court of Ontario. In their claim against the employers and the trustees of the multi-employer pension plan,
the plaintiffs claim that assets of the multi-employer pension plan have been mismanaged. The Company is one of the emptoyers affected
by the action. One billion doliars of damages are claimed in the action against a total of 17 defendants. In addition, the plaintiffs are
seeking to have a representative defendant appointed for the employers of all the members of the multi-employer pension plan. The action
is framed as a representative action on behalf of all the beneficiartes of the multi-employer pension plan. The action is at a very early
stage and the Company intends to vigorously defend it. Statements of Defence have not yet been filed.

Note 22. Related Party Transacfions

The Company's majority shareholder, George Weston Limited and its affiliates {"Weston™), other than the Company, are related parties.
Itis the Company's policy to conduct all transactions and settie ali balances with related parties on market terms and conditions. Related
party transactions include:

Inventory Purchases Purchases of inventory from related parties for resale in the distribution network represanted approximately 3%
(2005 -- 3%} of the cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses. The intercompany payable relating to this inventary, outstanding at
year end, is recorded in accounts payabte and accrued liabilities.

Cost Sharing Agreements Weston has entered into certain contracts with third parties for administrative and corporate services, including
telecommunication services and infarmation technology related matters on behalf of the Company. Through cost sharing agreements that
have been established between the Company and Westen concerning these costs, the Company has agreed to be responsible to Westan for
its proportionate share of the costs incurred on its behali. Payments by the Company pursuant to these cost sharing agreements were
approximately $25 (2005 — $22).

Real Estate Matters The Company leases certain properties from an affiliate of Weston, namely office space for approximately $4
(2005 — $4). During 2006, the Company purchased from an affiliate of Weston a property designated for future development for
consideration of $8, which was prepaid in accordance with a former ground lease between the parties.

Borrowings/Lendings The Company, from time to time, may borrow from or may tend to Weston on a short term basis at commercial paper
rates. There were no such amounts outstanding as at year end.

income Tax Matters From time to time, the Company and Weston and its affiliates may make elections that are permitted or required
under applicable income tax legislation with respect to affiliated corporations and, as a result, may enter into agreements in that regard.
These elections and accoempanying agreements did not have any material impact on the Company.

16 2006 Financial Reporl Loblaw Companies Limited




Management Agreements The Company, through Glenhuron, manages certain United States cash, cash eguivalents and short term
investments for wholly owned non-Canadian subsidiaries of Weston. Management fees are based on market rates and included in
interest expense.

Sale of Loan Portfelio During 2005, Glenhuron sold a partfolio of third-party long term loans receivable to a wholly owned subsidiary
of Weston. The loans in this portiolio were originally acquired from third-party financial institutions in 2001. This transaction was undertaken
by Glenhuron as part of its overall ongeing management of its investment portfolio.

The amount of the cash consideration of U.S. $106 was based on a fair market value of the loan portfolio and was approximately equal to
carrying valug. An independent review of the valuation analysis has been obtained by the Compasy to ensure that Glenburon's methadology
used in arriving at fair market value was reasonable. As at the date of sale, the current portion of this loan portfolio of U.S. $13 was included
in accounts receivable and the long term portion of U.S. $93 was included in other assets.

Glenhuren has entered into an agreement with a subsidiary of Weston for the administration of the loan portfolio.

Note 23. Subsequent Event

Subseguent to year end, the Company approved and announced the restructuring of its merchandising and store operations into more
streamtined functions. Costs of this restructuring including severance, retention and other costs are expected to be in the range of $150
to $200. the substantial portion fo be recorded in the first half of 2007

Note 24. Other inforenation

Segment Information The only repertable operating segment is merchandising, which includes primarily food as welt as general
merchandise and drugstore products and services. All sales to external parties were generated in Canada and all fixed assets and goodwill
were attributable to Canadian operations.
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Five Year Summary®

Year'?

($ miltions except where otherwise indicated)
Operating Results

Sales®

Sales excluding the impact of VIEs®®
Adjusted EBITDA®

Operating income

Adjusted operating income®

Interest expense

Net {loss} earnings

Financial Position
Working capital
Fixed assets
Goodwill

Total assets

Net debt®
Shareholders’ equity

Cash Flow

Cash flows from operating activities
Free cash flow®

Capital investment

Per Common Share 3)

Basic net (loss) earnings

Adjusted basic net earnings®
Gividend rate at year end

Cash flows from operating activities
Capital investment

Book value

Market price atyearend | ..

Financial Ratios

Adjusted EBITDA margin 5™

Operating margin ()

Adjusted operating margin ()%

Return on average total assets o

Return on average shareholders’ equity (%)

Interest coverage

Net debt® to equity

Cash flows from operating
activities to net debt®

Price/net earnings ratio at year end

Market/book ratio at yearend

(1} For financial definitions and ratios refer to the Glossary of Terms on page 80.

(2) 2003 was a 53 week year.
(3) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40

SN P -

2006

28,640
28,251
1,892
289
1,326
259
(219}

673
8,099
194
13,486
3,891
5,441

1,180
10
3

(.80)
2.12
84
431
3.42
19.85

6.7
1.0
41
23
(3.9)
1.0
a2

30
(61.0)

2005

27,627
27,212
2,132
1,401
1,600
252
746

539
1,785
1,587

13,761
3,901
5,886

1,489
103

2.12
3.35
84
2.43
4.22
2148

1.8
0.1
2.9
112
13.2
51
.66

38
207

R

26,030
26,030
2,125
1,652
1,652
239
968

290
7,113
1,621

12,949
3,828
2,414

1,443
(24)

R

3.53
3.48
16
.26
4.59
19.74

Jau

8.2
6.3
6.3
14.2
19.2
6.4
71

38
20.4
36

2004

2003 2002
25,066 22,953
25,066 22,953

1881 1,671
1,467 1,303
1,488 1,317

196 161

845 728

356 320

6,390 5,557
1,607 1,599
12,113 11,047
3,707 2,932
4,690 4,082
1,032 998

(437) (208)
1271 1,079

3.07 264

3.10 2.68

60 43

375 361

4.62 391

17.07 1479
§7.85 54.00

75 73

5.4 57

59 57

139 138

193 190

6.4 68

79 72

28 34

22.1 205

40 37

(4) During 2006, the Company implemented Emerging Issues Commiittee Abstract 156, “Accounting by a Vendor for Consideration Given to a Customer {including a Reseller of the Vendor's
Products)” on a retroactive basis, According!y certain sales incentives paid to independent franchisees. associates and independent accounts for prior years have been reclassified

between sales and cost of sales. selling and adminisirative expenses. For a fusther discussion, see the Accounting Standards Implemented in 2005 section in the Management's

Discussion and Analysis of this Financial Report.

{5) Cerlain prios years’ information was reclassified to conform with current year's presentation,
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Shareholders' Equity and Net Debt®
{$ miltigns)

$5.000
4,500

3000

1506

) o ..
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

. Starehoiders’ Lquity
ma Net Dent™

Basic Net {Loss) Earnings and Adjusted

Basic Net £arnings per Common Shara®

&3]
§350

250

]
.|
|

2007 2003® 2004 2005 2006

; Basic Net (Luss) Eamnings per Comon Share
€3 Mjusted Basic Net Earnings per Common Shate™

Cash Flows from Gperating
Activities and Capital Investment

(% millions)
31500
1125 /\
750
3

\
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

: Cash Flows from Operating Activities
mm (aprial Investment

Common Share Market Price Range
)

$E4

2

i

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Comman Share Market Price Range
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Glossary of Terms

Term

Adjusted basic
net earnings
per common share

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA margin

Adjusted net earnings

Adjusted operating
income

Adjusted operating
margin

Annual Report

Basic net (loss) earnings
per common share

Book value per
common share

Capital investment

Capita! investment
per common share

Cash flows from
operating activities
per common share

Cash flows from
operating activities
fo net debt

Control [abel

Conversion

Corporate stores sales
per average square foot

Diluted net {loss)
earnings per
comman share

Dividend rate per
commen share at
year end

Free cash flow

Gross margin

Interest coverage

Definition

Basic net earnings per common share adjusted for
items that affect the comparability of the financial
results and are not a resulf of ongoing operations
{see Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40).

Adjusted operating income before depreciation
and amostization {see Non-GAAP Financial Measures
on page 40),

Adjusted EBITDA divided by sales excluding the impact
of VIEs {see Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 40).

Net earnings adjusted for items that affect the
comparability of the financial results and are not a
result of ongoing operations (see Non-GAAP Financial
Measures on page 40).

Operating income adjusted for iterns that affect
the comparability of the financial results and are
not a result of ongoing operations (see Non-GAAP
Financial Measures on page 40).

Adjusted operating income divided by sales
excluding the impact of VIEs {s2e Non-GAAP
Financial Measures an page 40).

For 20086, the Annua! Report consisis of the Annual
Summary gnd the Financial Report.

Net {loss) earnings available te common shareholders
divided by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the vear.

Shareholdess” equity divided by the number of
comman shares outstanding at year end.

Fixed asset purchases.

Capital investment divided by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year.

Cash flows from operating activities divided by
the weighted average number of commen shares
outstanding during the year.

Cash flows from aperating activities divided by
net debt.

Abrand and associated trademark that is cwned
by the Company for use in connection with its
own products and services.

A store that changes from one Company banner fo
angther Company banner.

Sales by corporate stores divided by the average
corporate stores’ square footaga at year end.

Net {loss) earnings available ta common shareholders
divided hy the weighted average number of common
shares outsianding during the period minus the dilutive
impact of outstanding stock option grants at period end.

Dividend per commaon share declared in the
fourth quarter multiplied by four,

Cash flows from operating activities less fixed asset
purchases and dividends (see Non-GAAP Financial
Measures on page 40}.

Szles less cost of sales and inventory shrinkage
divided by sales.

Operating inceme divided by interest expense adding
back interest capitaized to fixeo assats.
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Term

Major expansion

Market/book ratio
at year end

Minor expansion

Net debt

Net debt to equity
New store

Operating income

Operating margin

Price/net (loss)
earnings ratio
atyearend

Rengvation

Retail sales

Retail square footage

Return on average
total assets

Return on average

shareholders’ equity

Sales excluding
the impact of VIEs

Same-store sales

Yariable interest
entity {"VIE™

Weighted average
common shares
outstanding

Working capital
Year

Definition

Expansion of a store that results in 2n increase
in square footage that is greater than 25% of the
stquare footage of the store prior to the expansion.

Market price per commor share af ysar end divided
by book value per common share at year end.

Expansion of a store that results in an increase in
sguare footage that is less than er equal to 25% of the
square footage of the store pricr to the expansion.

Bank indebtedness, commercial paper, long term
debt due within one year, long term debt and
debt equivalents fess cash. cash equivalents and
short term investments (see Non-GAAP Financial
Measures on page 40).

Net debt divided by total shareholders’ equity.

A newly constructed store, conversion or
major expansion.

Earnings before interest expense and
mcome taxes.

Operating income divided by sales.

Market price per commaon share at year end divided
by basic net (loss) earnings per common share
for the year.

A capital investment in a store resulting in no change
to the store square foatage.

Combined sales of stores owned by the
Company and those owned by the Company’s
independent franchisees.

Retail square footage includes corporate and
independent franchised stores.

Operating income divided by average total

assets excluding cash, cash equivalents

and short term investments (see Non-GAAP Financial
Measures on pags 40).

Net (loss) earnings available to comman sharehelders
divided by averags total common shareficlders’ equity.

Total sales less sales attributable to the consalidation
of VIEs pursuant to AcG 15 (see Non-GAAP
Financial Measures on page 40).

Retail sales from the same physical location

for stores in operation in that location in both periods
being compared but excluding sales from a store that
has undergone a conversion or major expansion in
the period.

An entity that either dees not have sufficient equity
at risk to finance its activities withaut subordinated
financial support or where the holders of the equity at
risk lack the characteristics of a controlling financial
interest (see Note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements).

The number of common shares outstanding
determined by relating the porfion of time within
the year the common shares were outstanding
to the tola! fime in that year.

Total current assets less total current liabilities.
A fiscal year ends or the Saturday closest {o
December 31, usually 52 weeks in duration, but

includes 53 weeks every 5 to 6 years. The year
ended January 3, 2004 contained 53 waeks.
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Loblaw Companies Limited
1 President’s Choice Circle
Brampten, Canada
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Te: (805 459-2500
Fax: (905) 861-2206
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Stock Exchange Listing

and Symbol

The Company's common shares are
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
and trade under the symbol “L",

Common Shares

63% of the Company’s comman
shares are owned benefictally
by W. Galen Westan and

George Weston Limited.

At year end 2006 there were
274,173,564 common shares issusd
and outstanding, 5,696 registered
common sharehelders and
100,744,229 common shares
available for public trading.

The average daily trading volume
of the Company’s common shares
for 2006 was 382.410.

Trademarks

Loblaw Compantes Limited and

its subsidiaries own a number

of trademarks. Several subsidiaries
are licensees of additional
trademarks. These trademarks are
the exclusive property of Loblaw
Companies Limited or the licenser
and where used in this report

are in italics.

(1) See Non-GAAP Financiz! Measwies on page 40,

Common Dividend Policy

It is the Company's policy to
maintain a dividend payment egual
to appraximatsly 20% to 25% of
the prior year’s adjusted basic net
earnings per common share. ¥

Common Dividend Dates

The declaration and payment of
quarterly dividends are made subject
{o approval by the Board of Directors.
The anticipated record and payment

dates for 2007 are:
Record Date Payment Date

March 15 April 1

June 15 July 1
Sept. 15 Oct. 4
Dac. }5 Dec. 30

Norma! Course tssuer Bid

The Company has & Normal
Course issuer Bid on the Toronto
Stock Exchange.

Investor Relations

Shareholders, security analysts and
investment professionals should
direct their requests to Mr. Geoffrey
H. Wilson, Senior Vice President,
Finangial Services and Investor
Relations at the Company's National
Head Office or by e-mail

at investor@loblaw.ca

Value of Common Shares

For capital gains purposes, the
valuation day {December 22, 1971)
cost base for the Company is
$0.958 per common share,

The vaiue on February 22, 1394
was $767 per camman share.

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Computershare Investor Services inc.

100 University Avenue
Toronto, Canada

Ma) 2¥1

Tel: (416) 263-9200

Toll free: 1-800-663-9097
Fax: (416) 263-9394

Toil free fax: 1-888-453-0330

To change your address, eliminate
multiple mailings. or for other
shareholder account inquiries,
please contact Computershare
Investor Services Inc.

Additionat financial information

has been filed electronically

with varius securities regulators

in Canada through the System

for Electranic Document Analysis
and Retrieval (SEDAR) and with

the Office of the Sugerintendent of
Financial Institutions (OSFI) as the
primary regulator for the Company’s
subsidiary, President’s Choice Bank.
The Company holds an analyst

call shertly following the release

of its quarterly results. These calls
are archived in the Investor Zone
section of the Company’s website.

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLp

Chartered Accountants
Torento, Canada

Annuzl and Special Meeting
Loblaw Companies Limited Annual
and Special Meeting of Shareholders
will be held on Tuesday, May 1, 2007
at 11:00 2.m. at Maple Leaf Gardens,
60 Carlton Straet. Toronto, Canada.

Ce rapport est disponible en frangais.

This Financial Report was printed

in Canada on Hushy Offset,
manufactured elemental chlorine-free,
at a mill independently certified

as meeting the procurement provisions
of the Sustainable Forestry Initiative®
(SFI} standard.
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Details of Consolidated Earnings Coverage Ratio -2 4 g 9
For the 52 weeks ended December 30, 2006 g P
{§ millions) Cotpanle iy
’ - .t
Excluding
Goodwill Charge
Actual {Note 1)
CONSOLIDATED INTEREST ON LONG TERM DEBT
Interest on long term debt 284 284
Consvlidated interest on long term debt 284 284
CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS
Net earnings . {219} 581
Minority Interest 1 1
Income taxes 248 248
Interest on long term debt : 284 284
Consolidated earnings for earnings coverage calcutation 314 1,114
CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS COVERAGE RATIO - | 1106 . 3.923

™ Net Earnings have been adjustad to exclude the impact of the $800 non-cash goodwill impairment charge.
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About this Document and Related Proxy Materials

We are providing this Management Proxy Circular (the ““Circular”) and proxy materials to you in connection with
the Annual and Special Mceting of Sharcholders (the “Mecting”) of Loblaw Companies Limited
(the “Corporation”) to be held on Tuesday, May 1, 2007 at 11:00 a.m. (local time}, at Maple Leaf Gardens,
60 Carlton Street, Toronto, Ontario, M5B 1L1, or any adjournment thereof.

This Circular describes the items to be voted on at the Meeting and the voting process, and provides information
about executive compensation and our corporate governance practices.

Please see the ““Voting Questions and Answers”™ section below for an explanation of how you c¢an vote on the
matters to be considered at the Meeting, whether or not you decide to attend the Meeting.

Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts in this Circular are in Canadian dollars and information is current as of
March 20, 2007.

Voting Information

Business of the Meeting

At the Meeting, shareholders are voting on: (i) the election of directors; (ii) the appointment of the auditor;
(iii) the approval of the Corporation’s amended and restated employees’ stock option plan {the “Stock Option
Plan™); {iv) the confirmation of the Corpeoration’s By-law No. 1 {“By-Law No. 17), and (v) the sharcholder
proposal attached as Schedule “D”. We are not aware of any other matters to be considered at the Meeting.
However, you may also vote on any other business that may properly come before the Meeting. A simple majority
of the votes cast at the Meeting in person or by proxy is required to approve each of the items specified in the
notice of meeting which accompanies this Circular.

In addition, the Corporation’s management will report on the performance of the Corporation and respond to
questions from sharcholders.

Voting Questions and Answers

Who can vote?

Holders of common shares of the Corporation (*Common Shares™) as at the close of business on March 16, 2007
are entitled to vote. Each Common Share is entitled to one vote. As of March 20, 2007, the Corporation had
274,173,564 Common Shares issued and outstanding,.

How do I vote?
* Registered sharcholders hold shares directly in their name. If you are a registered shareholder, you can
vote cither:

* in person at the Meeting; or

* you may sign the enclosed form of proxy appointing the persons named in the proxy, or some other
person you choose, who nced not be a sharcholder to represent you as proxyholder and vote your shares
at the Meeting,

* Non-registercd shareholders beneficially own shares but the shares are held in the name of a nominee, such
as a bank, broker or trust company. If you are a non-registered shareholder, you may vote your shares
either:
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* through your nominee; or
* in person at the meeting.

* To vote your shares through your nominee you should follow the instructions on the voting instruction

form or proxy form provided by your nominee.
* To vote your shares in person at the meeting you should take these steps:

* appoint yourself as the proxyholder by writing your name in the space provided on the voting instruction
form or proxy form; and

* return the voting instruction form or proxy form to the nominee in the envelope provided.
Do not complete the voting section of the proxy form as your vote will be taken at the meeting.

If you voted through your nominee and would now like to vote in person, contact your nominee to discuss
whether this is possible and what procedures you need to follow.

What if I plan to attend the meeting and vote in person?

If you are a registered shareholder and plan to attend the Meering on May 1, 2007 and wish to vote your shares in
person at the Meeting, do not complete or return the form of proxy. Your vote will be taken and counted at the
Meeting. Please register with the transfer agent, Computershare Investor Services Inc. (“Computershare”), upon

arrival at the Meeting.

Voting by Proxy
If it is not convenient for you to attend the Meeting, you may vote by proxy on the matters to he considered at the
Meeting in one of two ways:

* You can authorize the management representatives named in the enclosed proxy form {(also available
through the Internet at www.computershare.com/ca/proxy) to vote your shares. If returning the proxy by

mail, complete the enclosed proxy form by indicating how you want your shares voted. Sign, date and
return the proxy form in the envelope provided. Computershare’s address for receiving proxies is
100 University Avenue, 9th Floor, Toronto, Ontario, M5] 2Y1.

* You may appoint another person to attend the Meeting on your behalf and vote your shares. If you choosc
this option, print the person’s name in the blank space provided on the back of the proxy form and indicate
how you want your shares voted. If returning the proxy form by mail, please use the envelope provided as
described above. You may choose anyone to be your proxyhalder; the person does not have to be another
shareholder. The person you appoint must attend the Meeting and vote on your behalf in order for your
votes to be counted. Proxyholders must register with representatives of Computershare when they arrive at
the Meeting.

Please remember that your proxy or voting instruction form must be received by 5:00 p.m. (local time) on
April 27, 2007, or if the Meeting is adjourned, before 5:00 p.m. (local time) on the second last business day before
any adjournment thereof.
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Now-registered sharebolder voting
There are two ways that you can vote your shares:

s In person. If you wish to attend the Meeting and vote in person, you should do one of the following:

* If you have received a proxy form from your intermediary, insert your own name in the blank space on
the form to appoint yourself as proxyholder. If the intermediary has not signed the form, you must sign
and date it. Follow your intermediary’s instructions for returning the proxy form. Do not otherwise
complete the form as your vote will be taken at the Meeting; or

+ If you have received a voting instruction form from your intermediary, follow your intermediary’s
instructions for completing the form.

* By proxy. If it is not convenient for you to attend the Meeting, you should do one of the following:

* If you have received a proxy form from your intermediary, you may vote by authorizing the management
representatives named on the form to vote your shares. If you choose this option, you may complete the
proxy form by indicating how you want your shares to be voted. If the intermediary has not signed the
proxy form, you must sign and date it. Return the completed proxy form as indicated on the form.
Alternatively, you may appoint another person to attend the Mceting on your behalf and vore your shares
by printing that person’s name in the blank space on the form and indicating how you want your shares
to be voted. The person you choose does not have to be another shareholder. The person named on the
form must attend the Meeting and vote on your behalf in order for your votes to be counted; or

* If you have received a voting instruction form from your intermediary, follow your intermediary’s
instructions for completing the form.

How will my shares be voted if I appoint a proxyholder?
Your proxyholder must vote your shares in accordance with your instructions if you have completed and signed
the enclosed proxy form correctly and delivered it to Computershare.

If you have not specified how to vote on a particular matter, then your proxyholder can vote your shares as he or
she sees fit. If you have appointed the management representatives named on the enclosed form of proxy as your
proxyholder, and you have not specified how you want to vote, your shares will be voted as follows:

* FOR the election of the directors;

* FOR the appointment of KPMG LLP as the auditor of the Corporation and the authorization of the
directors to fix their remuneration;

* FOR the approval of the Stock Option Plan;
* FOR the confirmation of By-Law No. 1; and
AGAINST the shareholder proposal attached as Schedule “D”.

What bappens if any amendments are made to these matters or if other matters are properly brought before
the Meeting?

Your proxyholder will have discretionary authority to vote your shares as he or she sees fit with respect to
amendments or variations to matters identified in the notice of meeting which accompanies this Circular and with
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respect to other matters which may properly come before the Meeting. As of March 20, 2007, management of the
Cotporation knows of no such amendment, variation or other matter expected to come before the Meeting.

If I change nmy mind, bow do I revoke my proxy or voting instructions?
If you are a registered sharcholder and have returned a proxy form or given voting instructions, you may revoke
them in any of the following ways:

* by completing and signing a proxy form with a later date than the proxy form you previously returncd, and
delivering it to Computershare;

* by delivering a written statement signed by you or your attorney authorized in writing:

* to the offices of Computershare at any time before 5:00 p.m. (local time) on April 27, 2007 or, if the
Meeting is adjourned, before 5:00 p.m. (local time) on the second last business day before any
adjournment thereof; or

* to the Secretary of the Meeting before the Meeting starts; or
* in any other manner permitted by law.

If you are a non-registered shareholder, you may revoke a proxy or voting instruction (or a waiver of the right to
receive meeting materials and to vote) given to your intermediary at any time by written notice to the intermediary
provided that the revocation is received by the intermediary at least seven days before the Meeting. If your
revocation is not received by that time, your intermediary is not required to act on it.

Who is soliciting my proxy?

Management of the Corporation is soliciting proxies for use at the Meeting and any adjournment thereof. The
Corporation is soliciting proxies by mail and its employees may also solicit them personally. The costs of such
solicitation will be paid by the Corporation.

Is my vote confidential?

Yes, proxies returned to Computershare are counted and tabulated to preserve the confidentiality of individual
shareholder votes. Proxies are referred to the Corporation only in cases wherce a shareholder clearly intends to
communicate with management, in the event of questions as to the validity of the proxy or where it is necessary to
do so to meet applicable legal requirements. Computershare does not inform the Corporation’s management
about how individual shareholders have voted except when comments made by shareholders are intended for the
attention of management or when required by law.

Controlling Sharebolder

As of March 20, 2007, George Weston Limited (the Corporation’s parent corporation) {*“Weston”) beneficially
owned, directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries, a total of 169,576,651 Common Shares representing
61.85% of the outstanding Common Shares. Weston is controlled by Mr. W, Galen Weston. Mr. W. Galen Weston
also beneficially owns approximately 3.8 million Common Shares representing 1.4% of the outstanding
Common Shares. To the knowledge of the Corporation, no other person beneficially owns, directly or indirectly,
109 or more of the outstanding Common Shares.
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Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the financial year ended December 30, 2006 and the

auditor’s report thereon are included in the 2006 Annual Report. A copy of the 2006 Annual Report is available
on the Corporation’s website at www.loblaw.ca and on www.sedar.com.

Election of Directors

On March §, 2007, the board of directors of the Corporation (the “Board™), in accordance with the Corporation’s
by-laws, determined that the number of directors to be elected at the Meeting will be 13. It is proposed that the
persons named below be nominated for election as directors of the Corporation. All nominecs are currently
directors of the Corporation, except for Mr. John Lacey, and all of the nominees have established their eligibility
and willingness to serve as directors. Mr. Joseph Reddington will not be standing for re-election. Management
does not believe that any of the nominees will be unable to serve as a director, but if that should occur for any
reason prior to the Meeting, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy may vote for another nominee at
their discretion. Each director will hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until the director
resigns or a successor is clected or appointed.

The following pages set out the names of proposed nominees for election as directors, together with their age,
place of residence, year first elected or appointed as a director (if applicable), principal occupation and
directorships of other companies. Also indicated for each nominee is the number of Common Shares and deferred
share units beneficially owned by him or her or over which he or she exercises control or direction and the number
of securities of Weston held by him or her or over which he or she exercises control or direction, in each case, as of
March 20, 2007.

Mr. Beeston, a corporate director, is Chairman of the Centre for Addiction and
Mental Health and is the former President and Chief Executive Officer of Major
l.eague Baseball .and former President of the Toronto Blue Jays Baseball Team.

Mr. Beeston graduated from the University of Western Ontario with a B.A. and is a
chartered accountant.

Mr. Beeston is a director of President’s Choice Bank (a subsidiary of the
Paul M. Beeston, CM., F.C.A,, 61 Corporation) and Newport Partners Income Fund and is a member of the
Toronto, Ontario Quebecor Onrario advisory board.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:

* Director since 2005

* Independent Director

* Member: Audit Committee and Environmental, Health and Safety Committee
* Meets share ownership guidelines

Securities owned/controlled 2006 2005

Loblaw Companies Limited
* common shares 7,900 7,900
* deferred share units 3,334 1,321
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Gordon A. M. Currie, 48
Toronro, Ontario

Securities owned/controlled

Mr. Currie is Executive Vice Prestdent, Secretary and General Counsel of Weston.
He was formerly Senior Vice President and General Counsel of Centrica North
America and prior to that was a partner with the law firm of Blake, Cassels &
Graydon LLP

Mr. Currie graduated from the University of Western Onrario with a2 B.A. and from
the University of Toronto with a LL.B.

Loblaw Companics Board Details:

* Director since 2006

* Non-Independent Director

¢ Member: Pension and Benefits Committee

* In process of accumulating shares o meet share ownership guidelines

2006

Loblaw Companies Limited
* common shares

George Weston Limited
« common shares

1,000

500

Camilla H, Dalglish, 69
Toronto, Ontario

Securities owned/controlled

Mrs. Dalglish, a corporate director, is a director of The W. Garfield Weston
Foundation, The Garfield Weston Foundation, Londen, UK and is also a former
director of The Nature Conservancy of Canada.

Mrs. Dalglish is a former President of The Civie Garden Centre and a former
director of the Royal Boranical Gardens.

Mrs. Dalglish graduated from McGill University with a B.A,

Loblaw Companies Board Details:

* Director since 1991

* Non-Independent Director

* Member: Environmental, Health and Safety Committee
= Meets share ownership guidelines

2006 2005

Loblaw Companies Limited
* common shares
* deferred share units

George Weston Limited

* common shares

* Preferred Shares Series |
* Preferred Shares Series 11
« Preferrcd Shares Series 11

800 800
7,077 5,254

310,560 310,560

20,000 20,000
40,000 406,000
20,000 20,000
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Anthony S. Fell, O.C., 68
Toronto, Ontario

Securities owned/controlled

Mr. Fell is Chairman of RBC Capital Markets Inc. {investment and financial
corporation) and former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of RBC Dominion
Securities and Deputy Chairman of Royal Bank of Canada.

Mr. Fell is Chairman of The Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada and a
director of BCE Inc., CAE Inc. and The Toronto Central Local Health Integration
Network.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:

* Director since 2001

* Independent Director

* Lead Director

* Member: Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and
Compensation Committee (Chair) and Pension and Benefits Committee (Chair)

* Meerts share ownership guidelines

2006 2005

Loblaw Companies Limited

* common shares
* deferred share units

20,000 20,000

7,541 5,327

Anthony R. Graham, 50
Toronto, Ontaric

Securities owned/controlled

Mr. Graham is President and a director of Wittington Investments, Limited
(holding corporation) and President and Chief Executive Officer of Sumarria Inc.
Mr. Graham was a former Vice-Chairman and director of National Bank Financial
and Senior Executive Vice President and Managing Dircctor of Lévesque Beaubien
Geoffrion Inc.

Mr. Graham is Chairman and a director of both Graymont Limited and President’s
Choice Bank. He is also a director of Weston, Brown Thomas Group Limited,
Holt, Renfrew & Co., Limited, Power Corporation of Canada, Power Financial
Corporation, and Selfridges 8 Co. Lid.

Loblaw Companies Board Details;

* Director since 1999

* Non-Independent Director

* Member: Executive Committee; Governance, Employee Developmeant,
Nominating and Compensation Committee and Pension and  Benefits
Committee

* Meets share ownership guidelines

2006 2005

Loblaw Companies Limited

+ common shares
« deferred share units

George Weston Limited
* common shares
= deferred share units

10,000 10,000

6,473 4,301

10,000 10,000

4,153 2,698
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Mr. Lacey is Chairman of the Advisory Board of Tricap Restructuring Fund. He is
the former President and Chief Executive Officer of The Oshawa Group, a major
food rertailer (now part of Sobeys Inc.).

Mr. Lacey is a director of Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Stelco Inc., Telus
Corporation, Cancer Care Ontario and is Chairman of Doncaster
Consolidated Lid.

John §. Lacey, 63 Mr. Lacey graduated from Kearsney College, South Africa and the Harvard
Toronto, Ontario Graduate School of Business Administration.

In the past five years, Mr. Lacey has served as a director of Canadian Tire
Corporation Limited, Alderwoods Group, Inc. and the Loewen Group.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:
*+ Independent Director Nominee

Securities owned/controlled 2006

Loblaw Companies Limited
* common shares 2,000

Mr. Leighton is Deputy Chairman of the Corporation and of Weston. He is also
Deputy Chairman of Selfridges & Co. Ltd. and Chairman of Royal Mal Group
{U.K. Postal Service).

Mr. Leighton is the former President and Chief Executive Officer of Wal-Mart
Europe. He held executive positions with Asda Stores Lid. from 1992 to 2000
including Chief Executive.

Allan L. Leighton, 53 M. Leighton is a director of Weston, BHS Ltd., BskyB plc, Selfridges & Co. Ltd,,
London, England Holt, Renfrew & Co., Limited and Brown Thomas Group Limired.

Mr. Leighton graduated from the Advanced Management Program ar Harvard
University.

In the past five years Mr. Leighton has also served as a director of Scottish
Power plc.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:

+ Director since 2006

+ Non-Independent Director

+ Member: Executive Committee

* In process of accumularting shares to meet share ownership guidelines

Securities owned/controlled 2006

Loblaw Companies Limited
* common shares —

George Weston Limited
* common shares 2,648
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Nancy H.O. Lockhart, . Ont, 52
Toronto, Ontario

Securitics owned/controlled

Ms. Lockhart is the Chief Administrative Officer of Frum Development Group
{property development and management corporation) and was a former Vice
President of Shoppers Drug Mart Corporation.

Ms. Lockhart is a director of The Toronto Community Foundation and
The Stratford Chef’s School. She is a former Chair of the Ontario Science Centre,
former President of the Canadian Club of Toronto and a former Chair of the
Canadian Film Centre.

Ms. Lockhart is also a former member of the Board of Trustees of Retirement
Residences Real Estate Investment Trust.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:
* Director since 2005
+ Independent Director

» Mecmber: Environmental, Health and Safery Committee {Chair) and
Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation
Committee

« Meets share ownership guidelines

Loblaw Companies Limited
= ¢ommon shares
* deferred share units

George Weston Limited
* common shares

2006 2005

250 250
3,068 1,164
1,860 1,860

Pierre Michaud, C. M., 63
Montreal, Quebec

Securities owned/controlled

Mr. Michaud is a director and Chairman of Provigo Inc. (a subsidiary of the
Corporation) and Vice-Chairman of Laurentian Bank of Canada. He is the founder
of Réno Dépére Inc.

Mr. Michaud is a director of Bombardier Recreational Products Inc., Gaz
Métro Inc. and Capital GVR Inc.

In the past five years Mr. Michaud has also served as a director of Laurentian Trust
of Canada Inc., Réno Dépét Inc., Capital d’Amerique CDPQ and the Old Port of
Montreal Corporation.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:

* Director since 1999

* Non-Independent Director

* Member: Environmental, Health and Safety Committee
* Meets share ownership guidelines

2008 2005

Loblaw Companies Limited
+ common shares

34,866 34,866
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Mr. ONeill, a corporate director, is the retired Chairman of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting. Mr. ('Neill was previously Chief Executive
Officer, and prior to that, Chief Operating Officer of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
global organizarion. Mr. O’Neill is currently Vice-Chair of the Board of Governors
of Queen’s University and a past member of the Advisory Council of Queen’s
University School of Business. Mr. O’Neill received an Honorary LL.D from
Queen’s University.

Thomas C. O'Neill, F.C.A,, 61

Mr. O’Neill graduated from Queen’s University with a B.Comm. and is a charrered
Toronto, Ontario

accountant.

Mr. O'Neill is a director of Nexen Inc., President’s Choice Bank, 5t. Michael’s
Hospital, BCE Inc., Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan and Adecco S.A.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:

* Director since 2003

*+ Independent Director

* Member: Audit Committee {Chair}
* Meets share ownership guidelines

Securities owned/controlled 20066 2005
Loblaw Companies Limited

* common shares 2,000 2,000
* deferred share units 2,733 1,662

(George Weston Limited
* common shares 500 500
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Galen G. Weston, 34
Toronto, Ontario

Securities owned/controlled

Mr. Weston is Executive Chatrman of the Corporation. He previously held several
senior executive positions with the Corporation and its subsidiaries including
Senior Vice President, Corporate Development, Vice President, Operartions, No
Frills, Senior Director of e-Commerce Development and Manager, Rertail
Execution of President’s Choice Financial. Prior to joining the Corporation, he was
an Investment Banking Analyst for Salomon Brothers in the U.K.

Mr. Weston gradnared from Harvard University with a B.A. and from Columbia
University with an M.B.A.

Mr. Weston is also a director of Wittington Investments, Limited.

In the past five years Mr. Weston has also served as a director of Weston.
Loblaw Companies Board Details:

* Director since 2006

* Non-Independent Director

* Member of the Executive Committee {Chair)
* Meets share ownership guidelines

2006 2005

Loblaw Companies Limited
* common shares

George Weston Limited
* common shares

290,000 290,000

255,000 255,000

John D. Wetmore, 57
Toronto, Ontario

Securities owned/controlled

Mr. Wetmore, a corporate director, is the retired Vice President, Contact Centre
Development, IBM Americas. He was formerly President and Chief Executive

Officer of 1BM Canada.

Mr. Wetmore is a director of Research in Motion Ltd. and Sunnybrook Foundation
and a Trustee of Resolve Business Qutsourcing Income Fund.

Mr. Wetmore graduated from the University of Waterloo with a Bachelor of
Mathematics (Honors) and from the Advanced Executive Program at the Kellogg
School, Northwestern University.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:

* Director since 2006

* Independent Director

* Member: Audit Committee and Pension and Benefits Commirtee

* In process of accumulating shares to meet share ownership guidelines

2006 2005

Loblaw Companies Limited
= common shares

4,000 2,000
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Mr. Wright is Managing Partner of Barnagain Capital (investment corporation) and
former President and Chief Executive Officer of Swiss Bank Corporation
(Canada).

Mr, Wright is Chairman and a Trustee of BFI Canada Income Fund and a director
of President’s Choice Bank, Outdoor Partner Media Corp. and ROC Pref.
Capital Corp.

Joseph H. Wright, 64 Mr. Wright graduated from Princeton University with a B.A. (wragna cum laude).

Toronto, Ontario Mr. Wright was, from July 2005 until April 2006, a director of Hollinger Inc.
In connection therewith, since July, 2005, Mr. Wright has becn subject to a cease
trade order (with respect to trading in securities of that company) applicable to all
persons who were directors, officers or insiders of the company after
Septrember 30, 2003 (the end of the period covered by the last financial statements
filed by the company).

Mr. Wright was, from November, 1999 until November, 2001, a director of
Fantom Technologics Inc. which applied for courr protection under the Companies
Creditors Arrangement Act in October, 2001 after Mr. Wright resigned as a
director. Mr. Wright is also a former director of Hip Interactive Inc., which was
also the subject of an application for the appointment of a receiver under the
Bankruptey and Insolvency Act in July, 2005 after Mr. Wright resigned from the
Board.

In the past five years Mr. Wright has also served as a director of Hip
Interactive Inc., Hollinger Inc., Call-Net Enterprises Inc., Olympia and York REIT
and Chartwell Seniors Housing REIT.

Loblaw Companies Board Details:

* Director since 1996

* Independent Director

* Member: Audit Committee; Governance, Employee Development, and
Compensation Committee, and Pension and Benefits Committee

* Meets share ownership guidelines

Securities owned/controlled 2006 2005

Loblaw Companies Limited
¢ deferred share unms 6,937 6,823
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Appointment of Auditor

It is recommended that KPMG LLP be appointed as the auditor of the Corporation to hold office until the next
annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation and that the dircctors be authorized to fix their remuneration
for the 2007 fiscal year. KPMG LLP and its predecessor companies have been the Corporation’s auditor for over
25 years. As part of the Corporation’s corporate governance practices, the Board has adopted a policy prohibiting
the auditor from providing non-audit services to the Corporation unless such services arc approved in advance by
the Audit Committee.

The aggregate fees payable to KPMG LLP and its affiliates for the fiscal years 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2006 2005

$(000’s) $(000°s)

Audit feesf? 1,977 1,903
Audit-related fees® 847 726
Tax consultant feest™ 102 65
All other fees™® 217 34
Total Fees 3,143 2,730

(1) Audit fees include fees for services related to the audit of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements.

{2) Audit-related fees include assurance and related services that are performed by the Corporation’s auditor. These services
include accounting consultations in connection with the review of quarterly reports to shareholders, audit of pension
plans, comfort letters and the interpretation of accounting and financial reporting standards.

(3) Tax consultant fees include fees for assistance with tax planning, including commodity tax issues.

(4) All other fees relate ro risk management, internal control/compliance, legislative and/or regulatory compliance services.

Amended and Restated Employees’ Stock Option Plan
On March §, 2007, the Board approved an amended and restated version of the Corporation’s Employees’ Stock
Option Plan, subject to shareholder approval. A summary of the principal features of the Stock Option

Plan follows.

Material Changes from the Existing Stock Option Plan
The Corporation is proposing to amend and restate the existing Stock Option Plan in order to:
* increase the number of Common Shares available for issuance under the Stock Option Plan by 7,023,952 to
13,708,678;
« adopt detailed provisions to clarify when sharcholder approval is required in order to amend the Stock
Option Plan;
* provide for the automatic extension of the expiration date of all options issued under the Stock Option

Plan if they would otherwise expire during a blackout period or at any other time when the holder may be
prohibited from trading in securities of the Corporation pursuant to the Corporation’s insider

trading policy; and
» generally update the Stock Option Plan to conform to new and prevailing practices, rules and guidance,
including Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX™) rules relating to security-based compensation plans.
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Objectives

Allocations under the Stock Option Plan are intended to provide incentives for superior long-term future
performance consistent with shareholders’ objectives. The Stock Option Plan links compensation to shareholders’
interests because the value of the award is directly related to the Corporation’s future stock price.

The Stock Option Plan has two objectives:

* to give cach option holder an interest in preserving and maximizing shareholder value over the long
term; and

* 1o enable the Corporation to artract and retain individuals with experience and ability and to reward
individuals for long-term performance.

Administration

The Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation Committee (the “Governance
Committee”) administers the Stock Option Plan, approves the participants, makes grants of options and
establishes any limitations, restrictions and conditions upon any grants of options.

Eligibility
Any employee or officer of the Corporation or any of its affiliates as may be determined by the Governance
Committee may be a participant under the Stock Option Plan. The number of Common Shares that may be issued

to any one participant is capped at 596 of the number of issued and outstanding Common Shares.

Shares Available for Issnance

As of March 1, 2007, options to purchase 3,719,268 Common Shares were outstanding and 2,965,458 Common
Shares were available for future aption grants, representing in the aggregate approximately 1.08% of the number
of issued and outstanding Common Shares as of that date. The Corporation seeks to maintain the total number of
Common Shares issuable pursuant to the Stock Option Plan at 596 or less of the number of issued and outstanding
Commen Shares. The last time the Corporation obtained sharcholder approval to increase the amount of
Common Shares available for future stock option grant was in 2000. If the Stock Optien Plan is approved,
7,023,952 additional Common Shares will be available for issuance under the Stock Option Plan, bringing the
total number of Common Shares issuable pursuant to the Stock Option Plan in line with that goal. Any further
increase in the number of Common Shares available for issuance under the Stock Option Plan will require
sharcholder approval. The Stock Option Plan provides that Common Shares issuable pursuant to outstanding
options that are, for any reason, cancelled, expired, forfeited or terminated without having been exercised will
again be available for grants under the Stock Option Plan,

On March 19, 2007, options to purchase 3,885,439 Common Shares were granted to 293 emplovees of the
Corporation. In accordance with their terms, these options expire 7 years from their grant date and will vest ata
rate of 20% per year over five years commencing on the first anniversary of their date of grant. As the number of
Common Shares issuable under these options exceeds the number of Common Sharces available for grants as of the
date of this Circular, 919,981 of these options (the “Additional Options”) will not be exerciseable unless
shareholder approval is obtained for the Stock Option Plan. Further details on this grant can be found under the

heading “Report on Executive Compensation” beginning on page 22.
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Option Exercise Price

The exercise price for options granted under the Stock Option Plan may not be lower than the fair market value of
the Common Shares, which is defined as the greater of (i) the weighted average of the trading prices of the
Common Shares for the five trading days prior to the grant date; or (ii) the weighted average of the trading prices
of the Common Sharcs on the trading day prior to the grant date.

Term, Exercisability and Vesting

Options may not be exercised prior to the first anniversary of the darte of grant. The vesting of options is otherwise
determined on the grant of the option. Each option has a term of not less than five and not more than ten years. If
the expiry date for an option occurs during a black-out period or other period during which an insider is
prohibited from trading in securities of the Corporation pursuant to its insider trading policy, the expiry date will
automatically be extended until 10 business days after such period ends.

Instead of receiving Common Shares on the exercise of an option, the holder may elect to receive a cash payment
equal to the weighted average trading price of the Common Shares for the five trading days prior to the date of
exercise, minus the exercise price.

In connection with a transaction involving a change of control of the Corporation, the Board has the discretion to
accelerate the vesting of options and to provide for options that are not exercised in connection with the
transaction to expire. Options are not transferable.

Termination of Employment

All unvested options are cancelled if the holder resigns or is terminated. If the holder’s employment is terminated
without cause, the holder has 30 days to exercise vested options. If the holder retires under a retirement plan, the
holder has 90 days to exercise vested options. If the holder dies, the holder’s representatives have 180 days to
exercise vested options,

Adjustments Upon Change in Capitalization

In the event of any consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of the Common Shares, or any stock dividend of
Common Shares paid otherwise than in lieu of a normal cash dividend, or any merger, amalgamation or
reorganization of the Corporation, the Board will make appropriate adjustments to the number of Common
Shares subject 1o any option then outstanding and the exercise price thercof.

Amendments

Effective June 30, 2007, TSX-listed companies that only have general amendment provisions in their security-
based compensation plans will no longer be able to make any amendments to their plans, or options granted under
these plans, without shareholder approval, including amendments considered to be of a “housekeeping™ nature.
The TSX has encouraged its listed companies to seck shareholder approval of more detailed amendment
provisions to clarify when sharcholder approval is required. The Corporation believes that except for certain
material changes to the Stock Option Plan or options under the Stock Option Plan as described below, it is
appropriate for the Board {or one of its committces) to have the flexibility to adopt changes to the Stock Option
Plan and options without the nced to obtain shareholder approval.
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The Stock Option Plan provides that shareholder approval is not required for any amendments to the Stock
Option Plan or an option granted under the Stock Option Plan, except for any amendment or modification that:

* increases the number of Common Shares that can be issued under the Stock Option Plan, including an
increase to a fixed number of Common Shares or a change from a fixed maximum number of Common
Shares to a fixed maximum percentage;

* reduces the exercise price of an option (including, without limitation, a cancellation and re-grant of an
option, constituting a reduction of the exercise price of such option), except in connection with a change in
the number of the Corporation’s outstanding Common Shares by reason of a stock dividend or split,
recapitalization, reorganization, merger, amalgamation, consolidation, combination or exchange of
Common Shares, or another corporate change affecting Commeon Shares;

¢ extends the term of an option beyond its original expiry date, except where the expiry date would have
occurred during a blackout period ot at any other time when the holder may be prohibited from trading in
securities of the Corporation pursuant to the Corporation’s insider trading policy;

* changes the provisions relating to the transferability of an oprtion;
» extends eligibility to participate in the Stock Option Plan to a non-employee director; or
¢ is required to be approved by shareholders under applicable laws, regulations or stock exchange rules.

Examples of the types of changes to the Stock Option Plan or an option granted under the Stock Option Plan that
the Corporation could make without sharcholder approval include (without limitation):

* housekeeping or administrative changes, including, without limitation, any amendment for the purpose of:
- curing any ambiguity, error or omission in the Stock Option Plan;
— correcting or supplementing any provision of the Stock Option Plan that is inconsistent with any other

provision of the Stock Option Plan;

- changing procedures for Stock Option Plan enrollment and/or withdrawal by participants;
— changing the time periods for applicable notice provisions in the Stock Option Plan; or
— changing the Stock Option Plan’s eligibility requirements for employees and/or officers;

* changes to the vesting provisions of the Stock Option Plan or an opuon granted under the Stock
Option Plan;

* changes to the termination or amendment provisions for the Stock Option Plan or an option granted under
the Stock Option Plan (other than those which require shareholder approval), provided that the change
does not entail an extension of an option beyond the original expiry date, except where the expiry date

would have occurred during a blackout period or ar any other time when the holder may be prohibiced
from trading in securities of the Corporation pursuant to the Corporation’s insider trading policy; and

* changes to the procedures for cxercising options, including, without limitation, the addition or
modification of a cashless exercise feature, payable in cash or Common Shares, which provides for a full
deduction of the number of underlying Common Shares from the reserve of the Stock Option Plan.

The text of the Stock Option Plan is attached hereto as Schedule “B”. A simple majority of votes cast, in person or

by proxy, is required to approve this resolution.




Management Proxy Cireular 17

SECTION 2

Epentre ol 8

Resolution Approving Stock Option Plan

The resolution to approve the amendments to the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan, including an increase to the
maximum number of Common Shares issuable under the Stock Option Plan, allowing for the issuance of Common
Shares under the Additional Options, will be presented at the Meeting and, if deemed appropriate, adopted with

or without variation, is as follows:

1. THAT the amendments made to the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation on March 5, 2007, as described in the Management Proxy Circular dated March 20, 2007,
are hereby approved; and

2.  THAT any two officers or directors of the Corporation are hereby authorized to do all such things and to
sign, execute and deliver any and all documents and instruments as may be necessary or advisable in
order to give effect to this resolution.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” THE ADOPTION
OF THE STOCK OPTION PLAN.

By-Law No. 1

Effective March §, 2007, the Board enacted By-Law No. 1 regulating generally the business and affairs of the
Corporation, subject to sharcholder confirmation. By-Law No. 1 replaced the Corporation’s By-Law in effect
immediately prior to March 3, 2007. By-Law No. 1 sets forth the general rules with respect to the management of
business and affairs of the Corporation, including the formalities associated with sharcholder meetings, the
payment of dividends, communications between the Corporation and the sharcholders, the powers and duties of
directors and officers, the appointment of directors and formalities associated with meetings of the Board and the
framework for the execution of documents on behalf of the Corporation. By-Law No. 1 was adopted in large part
to provide flexibility with respect to the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation and to respond
to changes made to the Canada Business Corporations Act (“CBCA”) since the enactment of the previous By-Law.
By-Law No. 1 includes provisions relating to the holding of director and shareholder meetings by electronic
means, modifies the periods within which notices of sharcholder meetings must be sent to not less than 21 days
and not more than 60 days (in contrast to the previous 21 and 50 days), increases the quorum requirement for
meectings of directors from at least 33%3% to at least a majority of the directors and reduces the number of directors
who must be resident Canadians from at least a majority to at least 25% of the directors.

The text of By-Law No. 1 is attached hereto as Schedule ““C”. A simple majority of votes cast, in person or by
proxy, is required to approve this resolution.

Resolution Confirming New By-Law No. 1
The resolution to confirm new By-Law No. 1 which will be presented at the Meeting, and, if deemed appropriate,
adopted with or without variation is as follows:

THAT the By-Law No. 1 attached to the Management Proxy Circular dated March 20, 2007, as
Schedule “C” is hereby confirmed.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” THE
CONFIRMATION OF BY-LAW NO. 1.
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Sharebolder Proposals

Shareholders will be asked to consider and, if thought fit, to approve a sharcholder proposal regarding the
preparation and issuance of a corporate sustainability report. The proposal and its supporting statement are set out
in Schedule “D” to this Circular. The Corporation’s statement of opposition to the shareholder proposal is also set
out in Schedule “D™. Pursuant to the CBCA, proposals by sharcholders to be considered for inclusion in
connection with the Annual Meeting of shareholders to be held in 2008 must be received by the Secretary and
General Counsel of the Corporation by December 14, 2007.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE “AGAINST” THE
SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL FOR THE REASONS SET OUT IN THE STATEMENT OF OPPOSITION.
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Directors’ Compensation
Annual retainers {(paid quarterly) and attendance fees were paid to non-management directors on the following
basis during fiscal 2006. Directors who are members of management of the Corporation or of Weston receive no

additional remuneration in their role as directors of the Corporation.

TYPE OF FEE AMOUNT
$
Annual Retainer
* board member 50,000
* non-audit committee chair 3,000
* non-audit committce member! 4,000
* audit committee chair 25,000
* andit committee membert” 5,000

Avwtendance Fees
* board or committee meeting 2,000
» meeting of half day or more attended ar the request of the Board or a Committee 2,000

(1) including committee chairs

The Governance Committee assesses the adequacy and form of compensation paid to directors in order to ensure
that their compensation reflects their responsibilities as directors. Periedically, the Governance Committee
benchmarks directors’ compensation against compensation paid by major Canadian public companies similar in
size to the Corporation. In December, 2006, the Governance Committee reviewed the report of an outside
consultant, 3XCD Inc. with respect to compensation for members of the Board in terms of both type of
compensation and value. The consultant’s report compared the Corporation’s directors’ compensation
arrangements to those of its peer group using both criteria. The Governance Committee concluded that no
adjustments to director compensation were appropriate at that time, except for an increase in the annual retainer
for the chair of the Audit Committee from $10,000 to $25,000 per annum.

Share Ownership Guidelines

Under share ownership guidelines adopted by the Board, directors are expected to hold Common Shares,
Deferred Share Units (““IDSUs”) of the Corporation and/or equity securities and/or deferred share units of Weston
with a market value of not less than $250,000. Directors are expected to meet this requirement within five years of
being elected or appointed ro the Board. Until this position is achieved, directors must take art least 509 of their
annual retainer/attendance fees from the Corporation in the form of DSUs. All current directors either meet or are
in the process of complying with these share ownership guidelines.

Deferred Share Unit Plan

To ensure that directors’ compensation is aligned with sharcholder interests, directors have the option to receive
up to 100% of their annual retainer fees in D5Us. A DSU is an amount owed by the Corporation to directors
having the same value as one Common Share determined at the time the fees are earned but is not paid untit such
time as the director leaves the Board, thereby providing an ongoing cquity stake in the Corporation throughout
the director’s term as a Board member. Payment of DSUs is made in Common Shares purchased on the TSX.
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In fiscal 2006, 8 directors elected to receive all or a portion of their annual retainer, committee fees and attendance
fees in DSUs. As at December 30, 2006 the amount owing in respect of outstanding DSUs was $2,166,000.

Attendance and Compensation Information
The following table provides a summary of cach director’s attendance at Board and Committee meetings
during fiscal 2006.

Governangce,
Employee
Development,
Envirenmental, Nominating and Pension and
Audic Healch and Safery Compensation Benefits
Board Committee Committee Comumittee Committee
Directors {14 Meetings) {6 Meetings) (4 Mcetings) {6 Meetings) (4 Meetings)
Paul M. Beeston 12/14 5/6 4/4
Gordon A.M. Currie® 12/12 3/3
Camilla H. Dalglish 13/14 4/4
Robert J. Darr® 33
Anthony §. Fell/ 14/14 6/6 2/3
Anthony R. Graham 12/14 6/6 4/4
John A. Lederer® 10/10
Allan L. Leighton® 3/3
Nancy H.O. Lockhart!? 14/14 4/4 12
Pierre Michaud 14/14 4/4
Thomas C. O'Netll 11/14 6/6
G. Joseph Reddington 14/14 616
Galen G. Weston® : 33
W Galen Weston® 10/11
John D. Wermore® 9/9 3/3 33
Joseph H. Wright 12/14 616 516 4/4

fa) Mir. Currie was appointed to the Board and the Pension and Benefits Committee effective February 12, 2006.
(b) Mr. Dart retired from the Board on February 12, 2006.

(¢} Mr. Feli was appointed to the Peasion and Benefits Committee effective May 4, 2006.

{d}) Mr. Lederer resigned from the Board effective September 19, 2006.

(e} Mr. Leighton was appointed to the Board effective September 19, 2006.

() Ms, Lockhart was appointed to the Governance Committee effective October 5, 2006,

(g) Mr. G. G. Weston was appointed to the Beard effective September 19, 2006.

() Mr. W G. Weston retired from the Board effective September 19, 2006.

(i) Mr. Wetmore was appointed to the Board, the Audit Committee and the Pension and Benefits Commissee effective May 4, 2006.
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The following table summarizes compensation paid to non-management directors of the Corporation during
fiscal 2006:

Committee
Committee Committee Board Attendance 96 of Fees
Board Chair Member Artendance and Other received as
Name Retainer Retainer Retainer{s} Fees Fees Total Fees D5Us
3 $ $ $ 3 $ %
Paul M. Beeston® 50,000 - 9,000 24,000 18,000 101,000 100
Camilla H. Dalglish 50,000 - 4,000 26,000 8,000 88,000 100
Robert J. Dart® 12,500 - - 6,000 - 18,500 100
Anthony S. Fell@ 50,000 5,250 7,000 28,000 16,000 106,250 100
Anthony R. Graham® 50,000 - 9,000 24,000 20,000 103,000 100
Nancy H. O. Lockhart®? 50,000 2,250 5,000 28,000 10,000 95,250 100
Pierre Michaud® 50,000 750 4,000 28,000 8,000 906,750 -
Thomas C. O'Neill® 50,000 25,000 5,000 22,000 20,000 122,000 50
G. Joseph Reddington 50,000 - 4,000 28,000 12,000 94,000 100
John D. Wetmore® 37,500 - 6,750 18,000 12,000 74,250 -
Joseph H. Wright® 50,000 - 13,000 24,000 30,000 117,000 -
Total 500,000 33,250 66,750 256,000 154,000 1,010,000

{a) Messrs. Beeston, Graham, O'Neill, and Wright also received $15,000, $17,500, $12,500 and $18,750, respectively, in director fees from
President’s Choice Bank.

{b) Mr, Dart retired from the Board effective February 12, 2006.
{c) Mr. Fell was appointed Chair of the Pension and Benefits Commitree effective May 4, 2006,

{d) Ms. Lockhart was appoeinted to the Governance Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation Committee effective
October 5, 2006.

{e) Mr. Michaud also received $82,550 in consulting fees for services provided to Provigo Inc.
(i Mr. Wetmore was appointed to the Board, the Audit Committee and the Pension and Benefits Committees effective May 4, 2006.

Directors are reimbursed for transporcation and other expenses incurred in connection with attendance at Board and Committee meetings.
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Report on Executive Compensation

The responsibilities of the Governance Committee are summarized under *“Statement of Corporate Governance
Practices” on page 36. Among other matters, the Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing and
approving overall compensation policies and reviewing, approving and recommmending compensation to the Board
for senior employces of the Corporation and its operating subsidiaries and forms of compensation, including for
those Named Exccutive Officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table on page 30. During the third and
fourth quarters of 2006 and the first quarter of 2007, the Corporation restructured its senior management team

and the Board approved a new exccutive compensation program.

As of March 20, 2007, the members of the Governance Committee were Anthony S. Fell (Chairman), Anthony R,
Graham, Nancy H.O. Lockhart, G. Joseph Reddington and Joseph H. Wright. All members of the Governance
Committee are independent directors except for Mr. Graham, who is an executive officer of Wittington
Investments, Limited, the private holding corporation through which Mr. W Galen Weston controls Weston.

Compensation Philosopby

The compensation of the Corporation’s sentor employees is a key area of focus for the Governance Committee.
The Corporation’s compensation arrangements for its senior employees are intended to attract, retain and
motivate high-calibre cmployees who can effectively contribute to the long-term success and objectives of the
Corporation. Senior employees receive compensation based on their level of individual responsibility and
experience, the markert value of the job they perform and the success of the Corporation in meeting its objectives
and creating sharcholder value. The compensation framework is structured to provide senior employees with the
opportunity for a competitive level of total compensation based on the Corporation’s business results, both
absolute and relative to comparator groups.

Comparator Group

In determining compensation for senior employees, including the Named Exccutive Officers, the Governance
Committee considers the compensation practices of a comparator group of Canadian companies included in the
food distribution and retail industries. In determining compensation for the Named Executive Officers, the
Governance Committee also considers publicly-disclosed executive compensation information of various
Canadian public companies whose revenues, profirability and market capitalization are comparable to those of the
Corporation. This information is compiled and analyzed by an external compensation consultant retained by the
Governance Committee, who then provides the information to the Governance Committee along with its
recommendations.

Components of Total Compensation

The aggregate compensation of senior employees of the Corporation, including the Named Executive Officers,
consists of four components: (i} base salary, (ii) short-term incentives, (iii) long term equity-based incentives (stock
options and restricted share units) and (iv) retirement arrangements. The Corporation aims to ensure that each
senior employee’s compensation is balanced among these components with a greater emphasis on the variable
components of compensation.
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Base Salary

The Governance Committee reviews base salaries for senior employees, including the Named Executive Officers.
Base sataries are set with reference to criteria and competitive benchmarks and approved by the Governance
Committee. For the period up to and including 2006, the Corporation’s compensation philosophy with respect to
base salaries was to generally maintain levels at approximately the market median and to place more upside
opportunities on the performance-based incentives of annual bonus and long-term equity-based incentives.
Beginning in 2007, compensation targets were adjusted as described below under Executive Compensation

Review.

Annual Bonus Incentive

Up to and including 2006, senior employees of the Corporation, including the Named Executive Officers,
participated in an annual cash bonus plan based on ecenomic value added (“EVA”) principles which measure the
economic value generated by the assets employed by the Corporation. Using this measure for purposes of
calculating payments under the bonus plan allowed the Governance Committee to:

* measure and link bonuses carned to capital investment decisions and operating results which, over time,
create shareholder value;

* measure the cffectiveness of allocation of capital; and
* focus on longer term value creation.

EVA reflects the operating performance of the Corporation while taking into account the cost of capital employed
to generate operating income. Cost of capital is the economic cost of all capital employed in the Corporation’s
business and includes cost of debt (including off-balance sheet items such as operating leases) and cost of equity.
Revenue enhancements which generate incremental operating income and cost reduction programs requiring no
additional capital investment increase rcturn on capital employed as well as EVA. Positive EVA is created when
after-tax operating income exceeds the cost of capital. Negative EVA results when after-tax operating income is
less than the cost of capital. As a result of the bonus plan, historically a significant portion (between 40% and 50%)
of each senior employee’s annual total short term compensation was linked to EVA generated by the Corporation.

The EVA bonus earned in any year was historically paid out in cash over a 3-year period, with one-third being paid
in cach ycar commencing with the year immediately after the bonus is earned. In 2006, the Corporation’s EVA was
a negative amount as a result of the Corporation’s operating performance. In accordance with the EVA bonus plan,
the negative EVA for 2006 reduced the amount owing for previous vears. In view of the discontinuation of the
EVA bonus plan, as described below under “Executive Compensation Review”, the Governance Committee
approved a payout of the remaining amounts owing under this bonus plan in respect of the 2004 and 2005
fiscal years, less an amount reflecting the negative EVA performance in 2006, resulting in an aggregate payout of
approximately $10.6 million.

Long-term Equity-Based Incentives
The Corporation’s equity-based incentives consist of stock options and restricted share units (“RSUs”).

Beginning in 2007, senior employees will be eligible for stock option grants and grants of RSUs on an annual basis.
Members of the new senior management team, being Messrs. Galen G. Weston, Allan L. Leighton, Mark Foote,
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Dalton Philips and William Wells, each received grants of equity-based incentives in 2007 and will not be eligible
for further grants until 2010. Details with respect to the equity-based incentives for the new senior management
team are described in the “Employment and Retirement Arrangements™ section. All grants will be reviewed and
approved by the Governance Commirttee as part of its regular review of compensation,

Stock Option Plan
For a description of the Stock Option Plan, including amendments that the Board has approved subject to
shareholder approval, sce Schedule “B”. There are approximately 300 participants in the Stock Option Plan.

During the first quarter of 2006, the Corporation granted 48,742 stock options to 1 employee at an exercise price
of $54.71. During the second quarter of 2006, the Corporation granted 140,612 stock options to 5 employees at
an cxercise price of $55.50.

Restricted Share Unit Plan

In 2005, the Governance Committee approved a Restricted Share Unit Plan (“RSU Plan™) for senior employees of
the Corporation and its affiliates to ensure compensation to senior employees remains competitive, to foster
retention and to ensure that the long term compensation program is aligned with the maximization of shareholder
value. The RSUs entitle the employee to a cash payment after the end of each performance period of up to 3 years
following the date of their award. The RSU payment will be an amount equal to the weighted average price of a
Common Share for the three days preceding the end of the performance period for the RSUs multiplied by the
number of RSUs held by the employee. The RSU Plan provides that should a participant voluntarily resign or be
terminated for cause during the first year following the grant, his or her RSUs will be cancelled and no payment
will be made. Following the first year from the date of the grant, a participant whose employment is terminated
other than for cause will be entitled to receive a payment based on a prorated portion of his or her RSUs, with
reference to the time remaining in the performance period. The payment is then calculated with reference to the

date his or her employment ceased.

During the first quarter of 2006, 644,712 RSUs were granted to 231 employees and during the second quarter
46,289 RSUs were granted to 7 employees.

Executive Compensation Review

In the latter part of 2006 and the early part of 2007, management initiated a comprehensive review of all aspects
of the Corporation’s compensation program for senior employees. Management received input from the Board,
and support was provided by management and compensation consultants, Hay Group Limited and Mercer
Human Resources Consultants. The objective of the review was to identify opportunities to improve the overall
competitiveness of the Corporation’s senior management compensation program. The review focused on all
components of compensation including base salary and short-term and long-term incentives, The components of
total compensation will now be reviewed annually rather than on a three year basis as was the case under the
previous program. Under the new compensation program, the compensation structure for the executive group is
comprised of 7 levels, each with a specific salary range, short-term incentive plan (“STIP") target and long-term
incentive plan (“LTIP”) target, providing total direct compensation generally targeted at the 60th percentile of
the market.
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As part of this review, the base salaries of the senior management group of approximately 175 employees were
reviewed and set at levels that are competitive with base salaries paid by a comparator group based on market data
provided by the Corporation’s compensation consultants. A salary range was established for each level of senior
management in the Corporation. Adjustments to an executive’s base salary will be considered annually with
reference to a number of factors, including the employee’s overall performance and experience.

The Corporation’s STIP was examined as part of the executive compensation review. In February of 2007, the
Board approved a new STIP for senior employees that, effective 2007, will replace the EVA program described
above. The new STIP is designed to provide employces with an easily understood metric against which annual
performance is measured as well as directly linking the timing of the payment with the performance period. This
incentive program provides for targeted annual bonus awards which are expressed as a percentage of base salary
and tied to the achievement of a predetermined financial performance objective for the Corporation for the
relevant fiscal year. Both the target bonus awards and the financial performance objective will be set on an annual
basis by the Board. Generally, if the target performance objective is reached by the Corporation, the employec will
be eligible to receive his or her full bonus, calculated as a fixed percentage of base salary. An employee’s bonus may
be less or more than this amount, should actual performance be lower or higher than the target financial
performance objective. No bonus will be payable if the actual performance in a year is 90% or less of the target for
that year, and the maximum possible bonus is 2009 of target bonus. The new STIP arrangements for the current
Named Executives Officers along with Messrs. Leighton, Philips and Wells, are described under the “Employment
and Retirement Arrangements” section on page 26.

As a result of the discontinuation of the EVA bonus plan, the Governance Committee approved the accelerated
payout of all carned EVA which had not yet been paid out to employees, which represents 1/3 of the EVA earned in
2004 and 2/3 of the EVA earned in 2005. The total amount will be reduced by 1/3 of the negative EVA attributed
to 2006, resulting in an aggregate payout of approximatcly $10.6 million to approximately 135 EVA participants.
The remaining 2/3 of the negative EVA attributed to 2006 will not be applied against future bonus payouts, given
the implementation of the new STIP

The Governance Committee also reviewed the long term equity-based incentive compensation which consists of
its stock option and RSU programs. Based on this review, the Governance Committee approved an equity-based
long-term incentive award plan for 2007 consisting of stock option and RSU grants to all eligible employees,
including the current Named Executive Officers. The Board has also approved the issuance of a special one-time
retention grant of stock options and R5Us to certain mid-level employees who would generally not be cligible to
receive equity based incentives. On March 19, 2007, 3,885,439 stock options at an exercise price of $47.44 were
granted to 293 employees and 281,820 RSUs were granted to 289 employees.

Share Ownership Guidelines

The Corporation adopted share ownership guidelines in January 2003 to further align the interests of senior
cxecutives with those of the Corporation’s sharcholders. The guidelines were updated in March, 2007, Under
these guidelines, senior executives are expected to own Common Shares with a value equal to a multiple of their
base salary as determined by their position.

The guidelines range from 5 times base salary for the Executive Chairman, 3 times base salary for the Deputy
Chairman, 2 times base salary for other Namcd Executive Officers and 1 times base salary for other Executive Vice
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Presidents. Exccutives are expected to attain their ownership requirements within five years of becoming an
executive officer within these categories. Share ownership under these guidelines includes ownership of Common
Shares or common shares of Weston and the in-the-money value of vested stock options of the Corporation or
Weston.

The beneficial share ownership of each active Named Executive Officer and the dollar value of such share
ownership based on the closing price on the TSX on March 20, 2007 is:

Number of Shares Share Value (§)
Name Loblaw  Weston Loblaw Weston
Galen G, Weston 290,000 255,000 13,804,000 18,609,900
Mark Foote 10,700 - 509,320 -
Richard P Mavrinac 9,173 6,036 436,643 440,507

Retirement Plans

Senior employees {other than Messrs. G.G. Weston and Leighton) participate in the Corporation’s Designated
Executive Pension Plan. In addition, senior emplovees of the Corporation, inciuding the Named Executive
Officers, are entitled to a supplemental exccutive retirement plan. Information on these plans can be found under
*“Pension Plan and Long Service Executive Arrangements” on page 33.

Emplayment and Retirement Arrangements
Following are descriptions of the employment and retirement arrangements for the new senior management team
consisting of Messrs. Galen Weston, Allan Leighton, Mark Foote, Dalton Philips and William Wells,

Mr. Galen G. Weston was appointed Executive Chairman of the Corporation on September 19, 2006 and has
entered into an employment agreement with the Corporation. Under his agreement, Mr. Weston’s annual base
salary is $1 million. He participates in the Corporation’s new STIP for the senior executives. On March 19, 2007,
Mr. Weston was granted 495,786 options at an exercise price of $47.44 under the Corporation’s Stock Option
Plan covering a minimum of the three year period 2007-2009 inclusive. Mr. Weston’s employment may be
terminated at any time for any reasen and no amounts shall be owing to him except for accrued and unpaid salary
to the date of termination and amounts owing to him in accordance with applicable incentive plans. On
termination Mr. Weston is subject to non-competition and confidentiality agreements. Mr. Weston does not
participate in any of the Corparation’s pension or retirement arrangements,

Mr. Allan L. Leighton was appointed Deputy Chairman of the Corporation on September 19, 2006. Under his
employment agreement, Mr. Leighton’s annual base salary is $1 million. He participates in the Corporation’s new
STIP for the senior executives. On March 19, 2007, Mr. Leighton was granted 371,839 options at an exercise
price of $47.44 under the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan covering a minimum of the three year period
2007-2009 inclusive. Mr. Leighton’s employment may be terminated at any time for any reason and no amounts
shall be owing to him except for accrued and unpaid salary to the date of termination and amounts owing to him in
accordance with applicable incentive plans. On termination Mr. Leighton is subject to non-competition and
confidentiality agreements. Mr. Leighton does not participate in any of the Corporation’s pension or
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retirement arrangements, Mr. Leighton also serves as Deputy Chairman of Weston and receives compensation

from Weston for services rendered in that capacity.

Mr. Mark Foote joined the Corporation on April 24, 2006 as Executive Vice President, General Merchandise and
entered into an employment agreement with the Corporation. Mr. Foote’s initial base salary was $750,000 per
annum but was increased to $850,000 effective September 19, 2006 upon assuming the office and responsibilities
of President and Chief Merchandising Officer. Mr. Foote also participates in the Corporation’s new STIP for the
senior executives and on a non contributery basis in the Corporation’s executive defined contribution pension
plan. On May 8, 2006, Mr. Foote was granted 100,000 options at an exercise price of $55.5¢ under the
Corporation’s Stock Option Plan. In addition, he received 36,036 RSUs on May 8, 2006 under the Corporation’s
RSU Plan. On March 19, 2007 Mr. Foote was granted 354,051 options at an exercise price of $47.44 under the
Corporation’s Stock Option Plan covering a minimum of the three year period 2007-2009 inclusive. Mr. Foote
received a $2 million bonus upon joining the Corporation which vests over a three year period. Mr. Foote had a
guaranteed bonus of $406,651 for 2006. Mr. Foote's employment agreement contains a termination clause such
that should his employment terminate within the first 24 months, he will receive an amount equal to 2 times his
current base salary and bonus and if termination occurs after the first 24 months, Mr. Foote will be entitled to
receive an amount equal to his then current base salary and bonus.

Mr. Dalton Philips joined the Corporation on January 10, 2007 as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer. Under his employment agreement with the Corporation, Mr. Philips” annual base salary is $484,000.
Mr. Philips participates in the Corporation’s new STIP for the senior executives and on a non-contributory basis in
the Corporation’s executive defined contribution pension plan. He also participates in a retirement compensation
arrangement established to provide reasonable retirement benefits for amounts of compensation in excess of the
limits under the Corporation’s other executive retirement plans. Annual funding for this arrangement is equal to
approximately 559 of Mr. Philips’ salary and bonus. In addition on March 19, 2007, Mr. Philips was granted
347,050 stock options at an exercise price of $47.44 under the Corporations’ Stock Option Plan and 44,669 RSUs
under the RSU Plan covering a minimum of the three year period 2007-2009 inclusive. Mr. Philips’ employment
may be terminated at any time for any reason and no amounts shall be owing to him except for accrued and unpaid
salary to the date of termination and amounts owing to him according to applicable incentive plans.

Mr. William Wells will be assuming the role of Chief Financial Officer of the Corparation on April 2, 2007, Under
his employment agreement with the Corporation, Mr. Wells is entitled to a signing bonus in the amount of
$1.5 million. Mr. Wells’ annual base salary is $750,000. Mr. Wells will participate in the Corporation’s new STIP
and on a non-contributory basis in the Corporation’s executive defined contribution pension plan. In accordance
with his employment agreement, on March 19, 2007 Mr. Wells was granted, conditional on his assuming the role
of Chief Financial Officer on April 2, 2007, 495,786 stock options at an exercise price of $47.44 under the
Corporation’s Stock Option Plan covering a minimum of the three year period 2007-2009 inclusive. Mr. Wells’
employment agreement contains a termination clause such that should his employment terminate within the first
12 months, he will receive an amount equal to 3 times his current base salary and if termination occurs after the
first 12 months, Mr, Wells will be entitled to receive 1.5 tmes his current base salary plus an amount equal to
1.5 rimes the lesser of (i) the bonus he earned in the previous year and (ii) his then current base salary.

Messrs. Weston, Leighton, Foote, Philips and Wells all participate in the Corporation’s new STIP for members of
the senior management team. Under the STIP for these five senior executives, a bonus shall be paid only if the
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Corporation’s actual performance in the relevant year exceeds the target levels approved by the Board. The
maximum bonus payable is two times the base salary of each executive.

Subsequent to year end, the Corporation anncunced that Mr. Mavrinac, Executive Vice President of the
Corporation, will be retiring from the Corporation effective April 2, 2007. Pursuant ro the terms of his
employment contract, Mr. Mavrinac will receive a payment of $5 million. Mr. Mavrinac will also be paid amounts
owing to him under the Corporation’s and Weston’s Stock Option Plans, RSU Plans and EVA bonus plans and
applicable agreements. Upon ceasing to be employed by the Corporation, Mr. Mavrinac will be subject to certain
nen-competition covenants.

The Corporation and Mr. David Jeffs entered inte an agreement with respect to his resignation effective
January 10, 2007. In accordance with this agreement, Mr. Jeffs received payments totalling approximately $3.4
million as a result of the cessation of his employment. Mr. Jeffs is subject to certain non-competition covenants.

On September 19, 2006, the Corporation and Mr. Lederer entered into an agreement with respect to his
resignation as President of the Corporation. In accordance with the terms of Mr. Lederer’s employment contract,
he was paid $12 million as a result of the cessation of his employment. Mr. Lederer was also paid approximately
$10 million owing to him under the Stock Option Plans and RSU Plans of the Corporation and of Weston, the EVA
bonus plan and applicable agreements. Mr. Lederer is subject to certain non-competition covenants pursuant to his
employment contract.

Compensation Review Process

In establishing the total compensation for the Executive Chairman and the Deputy Chairman, the Governance
Committee considers the publicly disclosed compensation of chief executive officers of companies whose
revenues, profitability and market capitalization are comparable to those of the Corporation, including
competitor companies. In establishing their compensation entitlements, the Governance Committee also
considers the relative compensation of other members of the senior management team. In addidon, the
Governance Committee assesses and considers factors such as their contribution to the Corporation in terms of
leadership in the management of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, the financial results obtained by the
Corporation, increases in sharcholder value, the effective development and growth of the Corporation and the
development of new growth opportunitics for the Corporation.

This report on cxecutive compensation is presented by the Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

Anthony 5. Fell (Chairman), Anthony R. Graham, Nancy H.Q. Lockhart, G. josecph Reddington and
Joseph H. Wright.
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Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total shareholder return on $100 invested in Common Shares on
December 28, 2001 with the cumulative total return of the S&P/TSX Composite index and the Food and Staples

Retailing Sub Index over the same period.

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth compensation earned during the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 by the Executive

Chairman, the Executive Vice President pcrforming the function of chief financial officer, and the three next most

highly compensated executive officers of the Corporation for 2006 as well as the former Chairman of the

Corporation (collectively the “Named Executive Officers”).

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation Awards

Awards Payouts

Shares or Units

Securities Subject To
Under Resale LTIP All Other
Name and Principal Salary Bonus  Options/SARs Restrictions  Payouts  Compensation
Position Year ($) ($) Granted'™ ™ ($) ($ye
Current Executives

Galen G. Weston® 2006 411,031 - - 174,760 - 18,000

Executive Chairman
Mark Foore!® 2006 542,201 406,651 100,000 2,000,000 - 2,019,437

President and Chief

Merchandising Officer
Richard B Mavrinac{” 2006 300,000 - - 261,800 - 15,500
Executive Vice President 2005 300,000 172,500 28,723 354,403 - 14,300
2004 250,00090  169,863¢ - - - 14,300
Former Executives
David R. Jeffst 2006 300,000 - - 484,495 - 10,000
Former Execurive 2005 800,000 385,600 76,525 944,982 - 14,383
Vice President 2004 750,000 546,367 - - - 17,549
John A. Lederer®® 2006 966,575 - - 5,000,000 - 12,308,088
Former DPresident 2005 1,350,000 - 145,411 1,794,013 - 18,605
2004 1,350,000 397,900 - - - 16,389
W Galen Weston® 2006 666,667 - - - - 5,000
Former Chairman 2005 800,000 - 114,893 1,418,675 - 5,000
2004 800,000% 500,000 - - - 5,000
(1) Common Shares of the Corporarion.

(2)
{3)
{4)
{3)

{6)

{7)
(8)

Prior to September 19, 2006, Mr. Galen G. Weston was nor a Named Execurtive Officer of the Corporartion.

Pursuant to his employment contract, Mr. Foote's 2006 bonus amount was guaranteed and he received a signing bonus of $2 million
which vests over a three-year period, which amounrt is included in Al Other Compensation. See “Employment and Retirement
Arrangement” on page 26 for further details.

During relevant periods, Messrs. W.G. Weston and Mavrinac also received salary and bonus from Weston for services as officers of
Weston, which amounts are not reflected in chis table.

Mr. feffs resigned from the Corpoeration effective fanuary 10, 2007,

Mr. Lederer resigned from the Corperation on September 19, 2006. As described under “Employment and Retirement Arrangements™ on
page 26, Mr. Lederer received approximately $12 million as a result of the cessation of his employment with the Corporation. This
ameunt is included in All Other Compensation.

Mr. Mavrinac is retiring from the Corporation effective April 2, 2007.

Mr. W G, Weston resigned from the Corporation on September 19, 2006.
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(9) Amounts represent the dollar value of RSUs awarded to the Named Executive Officers, in each case based on the closing price of the
Common Shares on the grant date multiplied by the number of RSUs awarded. On February 16, 2006, the Corporation granted Mr. Galen
G. Weston 3,146 RSUs, Mr. Jetfs 8,809 RSUs, and Mr. Mavrinac 4,760 R5Us, in each case based on a closing price for the Common Shares
of $55.00, On the same dare, the Corporation granted to Mr. Lederer 271,985 RSUs of which 90,662 RSUs related to 2006. The value of
the 90,662 RSUs was based on a closing price for the Common Shares of $55.00. Mr. Lederer received a cash payment of approximately
$4.6 million representing the value of these 90,662 RSUs owing ro him under the RSU Plan as disclosed under “Employment and
Retirement Arrangements™ on page 26. The remaining 181,323 RSUs were cancelled on the cessation of Mr. Lederer’s employment. On
May 8, 2006, the Corporation granted 36,036 RSUs to Mr. Foote based on a closing price for the Common Shares of $57.57.

As of December 30, 2006, based on the closing price of $48.79 of the Common Shares on the TSX on December 29, 2006, the last trading
day of the year, Mr. Galen G. Weston held an aggregate of 4,956 RSUs with a value of $241,803. Mr. W. Galen Weston held an aggregate
of 20,106 RSUs with a value of $980,971. Mr. Jeffs held an aggregate of 22,213 RSUs with a value of $1,083,772, Mr. Mavrinac held an
aggregate of 9,787 RSUs with a value of $477,507 and Mr. Foote held an aggregate of 36,036 RSUs with a value of $1,758,196.

RSUs are paid out after the end of a three year performance period following the date of their grant subject to conditions. RSUs are not
redeemable for shares and do not accumulate additional units based on notional dividends paid on the Common Shares. For a description
of the terms of RSUs, see “Restricted Share Unit Plan™ on page 24.

{10) Amounts under All Other Compensation include the value of perquisites. The aggregate vatue of perquisites and benefits for each Named
Executive Officer is less than $50,000 and 109% of the Named Execurtive Officer’s toral annual salary and bonus.

Grant of Stock Options During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year (2006)
The following table sets our option grants to Named Executive Officers during the most recently completed
financial year:

% of Total : Market Value of

Securities Under Options/SARs Securities Underlying

Options/SARs Granted to Exercise or Options/SARs on the

Granted Employees in Base Price Date of Grant
Name of Participant/™ (#) Financial Year ($/Security) ($/Security) Expirarion Date
Mark Foote 100,000 528 55.50% 55.50 May §, 2013

(1) Messrs. W Galen Weston and Mavrinac also participate in the Weston stock option plan, details of which are outlined in the Weston
Management Proxy Circular.

{2) Common Shares of the Corporation.

(3) The exercise price was based on the closing price of the Common Shares at the close of business on the date prior to the date of grant.
Oprtions vest 209 on each of the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of the grant.

Grants of Restricted Share Units During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year (2006)
The following table sets out RSUs granted to Named Executive Officers during the most recently completed
financial year:

Dollar Value % of Total RSUs
RSUs Granted at date of Granted to Employees Performance
Name of Participant* (#) Grant § in Financial Year Period End Date
Galen G. Weston 3,146 174,760 0.5 February 16, 2009
Mark Foote 36,036 2,000,000 531 May 8, 2009
David R. Jeffs 8,809 484,495 130 February 16, 2009
Richard I Mavrinac 4,760 261,800 0.7 February 16, 2009

(1} Common Shares of the Corporation. See page 24 [or terms of grant.

*  As described under “Employment and Retirement Arrangements” on page 26, Mr. Lederer received approximarely $5.3 million as the

amount owing to him under the RSU Plan.
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The following table sets forth, where applicable, options exercised during 2006 and unexcrcised options at
December 30, 2006 for each of the Named Executive Officers:

Option/SAR Exercises During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year and
Financial Year-end Option/SAR Values

© Value of Unexercised in

Securities/ Aggregate Unexercised Options at the Money Options/SARs

SARs Acquired Value Financial Year End at Financial Year End

on Exercise Realized (#) Date Option/ (%)

Name {#)0 ($)?  Exercisable/Unexcreisable SAR Granted Excrcisable/Unexercisable
Galen G. Weston 2,068 8,272 Jan. 20/05 - -
Mark Foote - - - 100,000 May 08/06 - -
David R. Jeffs - - 100,000 - Ocr. 19/01 - -
31,344 20,895 Jan. 15/03 - -

15,319 61,276 Jan. 20/03 - -

John A. Lederer 160,345 3,013,363 - - Jan. 1100 - -
164,950 378,230 - - Jan. 08/01 - -

Richard P 7,520 115,507 - - Jan. 11/00 - -
Mavrinac 18,656 18,658 Jan. 15/03 - -
5,745 22,978 Jan. 20/05 - -

W. Galen Weston 112,500 1,688,062 - - Jan. 11/00 - -
41,240 - Jan. 08/01 - -

89,553 59,701 Jan. 15/03 - -

22,979 91,914 Jan. 20/05 - -

{1) Common Shares of the Corporation.

{2) Pre-tax value accrued since date option granted to date of exercise,

Equity Compensation Plans as at December 30, 2006
The following provides information on the Stock Option Plan, which is the Corporation’s only plan that provides

for the issuance of equity securities:

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding

Weighted-average
exercise price of
ourstanding options,

Number of securities
remaining available
for furure issuance

options, warrants warrants and rights under equity
Plan Category and rights ($) compensation plans
Stock Option Plan 4,084,646 61.357 2,578,872
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Indebtedness of Directors, Executive Officers and Employees

As at March 20, 2007, there was no indebtedness (other than “routine indebtedness” under applicable Canadian
securities laws) owing to the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries by any directors, executive officers, employees
or former directors, executive officers or employees of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries.

Pension Plan and Long Service Executive Arrangements
The Corporation maintains two pension plans for its executives, including its Named Executive Officers other
than Mr. Galen G. Weston who does not participate in any of the Corporation’s pension plans. '

Executive Defined Benefit Plan

Certain senior employees of the Corporation, including Mr. Mavrinac, participate on a non-contributory basis in
the Corporation’s Designated Executive Pension Plan (the “DB Plan”). The annual pension payable under the
DB Plan is capped at $2,111 per year of service. The amount of pension expected at various salary rares and years
of service are set out in the following table:

Pension Plan Table

Annual Base Salary Years of Service

$ (0005} 10 15 20 25 30
75 15,000 22,500 30,000 37,500 45,000
100 20,000 30,000 40,000 30,000 60,000
125 and above 21,111 31,666 42,222 52,777 63,333

The Corporation has entered into individual retirement agreements with certain senior executives to provide
benefits under a non-registered supplemental exccutive retirement plan {(“SERP”).

Benefits under the DB Plan and the SERP are based on the executive’s length of service and the executive’s highest
consecutive three year average rate of eligible pension earnings (base salary} during his or her years of service with
the Corporation. The total annual benefits paid under the DB Plan and the SERP are capped at $100,000, except
for a limited number of senior cxecutives.

The cost of the estimated future SERP and pension benefits for each of the Named Executive Officers is calculated
each year by the Corporation’s independent actuaries, based on the same method and assumptions used to
derermine year-end pension plan obligations as disclosed in Note 15 of the 2006 consolidated financial statements
of the Corporation. Certain accrued obligations in respect of the Named Executive Officers and other senijor
employees for the SERP are secured by a stand-by letter of credit issued by a major Canadian chartered bank.
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The following table sets forth the pension cost and estimated benefits under the DB Plan and the SERP to the
Named Executive Officers who participate in the DB Plan:

Years of Estimated Annual

Pension Total Accrued Pension Benefits

Service as at 2006 Annual Pension Obligation Payable at Normal

December 30, Cost as at December 30, Retirement Age

Name 2006 () 2006 (5)@ (%)
David R. Jeffs® 28.6 (43,000} 2,267,000 251,900
John A. Lederer® 29.3 451,000 4,920,000 500,000
Richard P Mavrinac! 24.6 303,000 3,349,000 300,000
W. Galen Westonf! 34.0 449,000 5,407,000 500,000

(1} The annual cost represents the growth in the value of the projected pension benefit during the year.

(2} The total accrued pension obligation represents the value of the projected pension benefit assuming normal retirement at age 60.
(3) Mr. Jeffs resigned from the Corporation effective January 10, 2007.

(4) Mr. Lederer resigned from the Corporation effective September 19, 2006.

(5) A portion of the accrued obligation and pension expense for Mr. Mavrinac is allocated to Weston.

(6} Mr. Weston participates in the executive defined benefit pension plan of George Weston Limited. Mr. Weston is presumed to reccive a
pension of $500,000 per annum at age 70.

Executive Defined Contribution Plan

Certain senior employees of the Corporation, including Mr. Foote, participate on a non-coniributory basis in the
Corporation’s Defined Contribution Executive Plan (the “DC Plan™). Contributions are set as a percentage of base
salary and are capped at $19,000 per year as set forth in the following table:

Employer
Age + Years of Service Contributions
< 50 13%
50-60 15%
61 + 17%

The Corporation has entered into retirement agreements with certain executives including Messrs. Foote, Wells
and Philips to provide SERP benefits to those senior executives that participate in the DC Plan.

The Corporation’s contribution to the DC Plan and the SERP are capped at $34,000 for each vear of service.
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Director and Officer Liability Insurance

The Corporation maintains insurance for the benefit of its directors and officers and the directors and officers of
its subsidiaries, in respect of the performance by them of the duties of their positions. The Corporation belicves
that coverage limits and deductibles are in line with those maintained by other corporations similar to the
Corporation. The Corporation’s annual insurance premium in 2006 was $457,571. The insurance limit is
$100 million per annum on an aggregate basis or per occurrence basis. There is no deductible in the case of
directors and officers and a deductible of up to a maximum of $1 million for the Corporation.

Normal Course Issuer Bid

The Corporation has a Normal Course Issuer Bid (the “Issuer Bid™) on the TSX which allows for the purchase and
cancellation of up to 13,714,045 Common Shares at market price. A copy of the Corporation’s Notice of Intent
filed with the TSX can be found at www.sedar.com. The current Issuer Bid expires on March 30, 2007.

Additional Information

Additional copies of the Corporation’s latest Annual Information Form (together with the documents or pertinent
pages of documents incorporated therein by reference), the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements for
2006 together with the report of the auditor on those statements along with Management’s Discussion and
Analysis and any financial statements for periods after 2006, and this Circular can be abtained upon request from
the Senior Vice President, Financial Services and Investor Relations of the Corporation at 1 President’s Choice
Circle, Brampton, Ontario L6Y 555. Additional information about or relating to the Corporation can also be
found at www.loblaw.ca and www.sedar.com or by dialing in for regularly scheduled conference calls. Additional

informarion with regard to Weston can be found at www.weston.ca and www.sedar.com.

Contacting the Board of Directors
Shareholders, employees and other interested partics may communicate directly with the Board of Directors
through the lead director by writing to:

Lead Director

Loblaw Companies Limited, Suite 2001
22 5t. Clair Avenue East

Toronto, Ontario M4T 257

Directors’ Approval
The contents and sending of this Circular have been approved by the Board.

A

Robert A. Balcom
Senior Vice President, General Counsel &
Secretary

Dated in Toronto, Canada
March 20, 2007
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Statement of Corporate Governance Practices

The Corporation’s Board and management believe that sound corporate governance practices contribute to the
effective management of the Corporation and its achievement of strategic and operational plans, goals and
objectives. To maintain high standards of corporate governance in a rapidly changing environment, the
Corporation’s governance system is subject to ongoing review and assessment. The Corporation’s approach to
corporate governance is consistent with Canadian Securities Administrators Corporate Governance Guidelines
(the “Guidelines”). The Governance Commirttee regularly reviews its corporate governance practices and
considers any changes necessary to maintain the Corporation’s high standards of corporate governance. To this
end, the Corporation also constders the rules of the New York Stock Exchange and of the Securitics and Exchange
Commission, although the Corporation is not subject to such rules.

The Cerporation’s website, www.loblaw.ca, sers out additional governance information, including the
Corporation’s Code of Business Conduct, its Disclosure Policy and the Mandates of the Board and of
its Committees.

Director Independence

The Board is comprised of a majority of independent directors and will continue to be comprised of a majority of
independent directors if all the nominees proposed for election at the Meeting are elected. The Governance
Committee has reviewed each existing and proposed director’s factual circumstances and relationships with the
Corporation to determine whether he or she is independent within the meaning of the Guidelines. The Guidelines
provide that a director is independent if he or she has no material relationship with the Corporation or its affiliates
that would reasonably be expected to interfere with the director’s independent judgment. The following existing
and proposed directors and nominees are independent: Paul M. Beeston, Anthony S. Fell, John S. Lacey, Nancy
H.O. Lockhart, Thomas C. O’Neill, John D. Wetmore, and Joseph H. Wright. The following directors are not
independent:

* Galen G. Weston, who is an executive officer of the Corporation and a relative of Mr. W, Galen Weston, the
Corporation’s controlling sharcholder;

* Gordon A. M. Currie, who is an executive officer of Weston;
* Camilla H. Dalglish, who is a relative of Messrs. W. Galen Weston and Galen G. Weston;

* Anthony R. Graham, who is an executive officer of Wittington Investments, Limited, the principal
shareholder of Weston;

+ Allan L. Leighton, who is an exccutive officer of the Corporation and of Weston; and
*+ Picerre Michaud, who is an executive officer and consultant to Provigo Inc., a subsidiary of the Corporation.

The Chairman of the Board or of a Committee meets separately with the Board or Committee members after each
meeting.

The independent directors meet scparately on a periodic basis following Board meetings and on other occasions as
required or desirable. Additional information relating to each dircctor and each director nominee standing for
election, including other public company boards on which they serve as well as their attendance record for all
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Board and Committee meetings during fiscal 2006, can be found on pages 5 through 12 and page 20 of
this Circular.

Board Leadership

Mr. Galen G. Weston is the Executive Chairman of the Corporation and Mr. Allan L. Leighton is the Deputy
Chairman of the Corporation. The Board has established a position description for each of the Executive
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman.

The Board has also appointed an independent director, Anthony S. Fell, to serve as lead director. The lead director
provides leadership to the Board and particularly to the independent directors. He ensures that the Board operates
independently of management and that directors have an independent leadership contact. As part of his
responsibilities, the lead director meets periodically with the other directors to obtain insight as to areas where the
Board and its Committees can operate more effectively and to ensure the Board is able to discharge its
responsibilities independent of management. The Board has developed a position description for the lead director.

The Executive Chairman directs the operations of the Board. He chairs each meeting of the Board and is
responsible for the management and effective functioning of the Board generally and provides leadership to the
Board in all matters. More specifically, the Exccutive Chairman works in consultation with senior management to,
among other things: set the agenda for each Board meeting; ensure that the Board has all the information it needs
to discuss the matters brought to the Board; and ensure that all the Board’s responsibilities, as set out in the Board
mandate, are being fulfilled. The Executive Chairman also menitors the reports from the Committees of the Board
to ensure the Committees are fulfilling the responsibilities delegated to them by the Board. The Execurive
Chairman also chairs meetings of sharecholders and facilitates the response by management to shareholder
concerns. The Executive Chairman ensures that strategic plans are communicared to the Board and that such plans
are evaluated as to their success.

Board Responsibilities and Duties

The Board, directly and through its Committees, supervises the management of the business and affairs of the
Corporation with the goal of enhancing long-term sharcholder value. A copy of the Board’s mandate is found on
page 43 of this Circular. The Board reviews the Corporation’s direction, assigns responsibility to management for
achievement of that direction, develops and approves major policy decisions, delegates to management the
authority and responsibility in day-to-day affairs and reviews management’s performance and effectiveness. The
Board’s expectations of management are communicated to management directly and through Committces of
the Board.

The Board approves the Corporation’s corporate goals and objectives, operating budgets and strategies, which
take into account the opportunities and risks of the business. Members of the Board artend an annual all-day
strategy session with management to discuss and review the Corporation’s strategic plans and opportunities. Each
operating division presents a review of its activities and its outlook and strategies for the long-term. In addition,
management’s strengths and weaknesses are discussed. Through the Audit Committee, the Board oversees the
Corporation’s risk management framework and assesses and evaluates the integrity of the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting and management information systems. Through the Governance Committee, the

Board oversces succession planning and compensation for senior management and members of the Board.
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Individual directors may, with the approval of the lead director, retain an outside advisor at the expense of the
Corporation.

The Board requircs that management seek directors’ review and approval of:
* strategic corporate direction and corporate performance objectives;
* multi-ycar and annual business, capital and operating plans and budgets;
* material capital expenditures, acquisitions, divestitures and restructurings; and
* investment outside of the ordinary course of business.

These matters are in addition to those matters which are required by law to receive Board consideration

and approval.

The Board regularly receives reports on the operating results of the Corporation, as well as timely reports on
certain non-operational matters, including insurance, pensions, corporate governance, health and safety, legal and
treasury matters.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Corporation’s Code of Business Conduct (the “Code”’} sets out the Corporation’s long-standing commitment
of requiring adherence to high standards of ethical conduct and business practices. The Code is reviewed annually
to ensure it is current and reflects best practices in the area of ethical business conduct. All directors, officers and
employees of the Corporation are required to comply with the Code and must acknowledge their commitment to
abide by the Code on a periodic basis. The Code is available on the Corporation’s website at www.loblaw.ca.

The Code also deals with conflicts of interest. Should a director, officer, or employee have a conflict of interest
with respect to any matter, that individual is required to bring the conflict to the attention of the Ethics and
Conduct Committee and, if a director has a conflict with respect to any matter, he or she may not participate in any
discussion or vote on the matter. The Code also addresses such matters as the protection of confidental
information and the protection and proper use of the Corporation’s assets,

The Corporation has established an Ethics and Conduct Committee which reviews all material breaches of the
Code. The Ethics and Conduct Committee also oversees implementation of the Code, educating employees
regarding the Code and reviews the Code annually to determine if it requires revision.

The Corporation encourages the reporting of unethical behaviour and has established an Ethics Response Line, a
toll-free number that any employee or director may use to report conduct which he or she feels violates the Code
or otherwise constitutes fraud or unethical conduct. A frand reporting protocol has also been implemented to
ensure that fraud is reported to senior management in a timely manner. In addition, the Audit Committee has
endorsed procedures for the anonymous receipt, retention and handling of complaints regarding accounting,
internal control or auditing matrers. These procedures are available at www.loblaw.ca.

The Corporation has adopted a Vendor Code of Conduct that sets out the Corporation’s expectations of its
vendor community with respect to ethical conduct and social responsibilities. The Vendor Code deals with such
matters as labour practices, respect for the environment and compliance with varions laws.
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Orientation and Continuing Education

The Governance Committee is responsible for the orientation and education of new directors about the business
of the Corporation. New directors are provided with a directors’ guide containing details of the Corporation’s
operations, the structure and role of the Board and its Committees, the Board’s mandate, compliance
requirements for directors, corporate policies, as well as agendas and minutes for recent Board and Committee
meetings. The goal is to ensure that the new directors fully understand the nature and operation of the
Corporarion’s businesses. One-on-one meetings can be arranged with the heads of each of the Corporation’s
principal business groups for a new director to learn abourt the various functions and activities of the Corporation.
On an ongoing basis, as part of regular Board meetings, directors are given presentations on various aspects of the
Corporation’s operations. All Board members participate in an annual all-day Board meeting at which in-depth
information regarding particular aspects of the Corporation’s strategic plan is reviewed. Members of the Board
also participate periodically in senior management conferences. These conferences involve presentations by and
discussions with senior executives responsible for different aspects of the business of the Corporation.

Assessment of the Board, and its Members and its Conunitiees

Each year, the Governance Committee undertakes a review process to assess the performance and effectiveness of
the Board and its Commirtees. In 2006, this process included a questionnaire completed by each of the directors,
soliciting feedback from directors on matters including the operation of the Board and its Committecs, the
adequacy of information provided to directors, Board structure and agenda planning for Board meetings. The
survey results were reviewed by the Governance Committee and then presented to the full Board.

Following the assessment, the members of the Board made recommendations for improvements in certain areas,
including the involvement of the Board with the Corporation’s strategic plan and the number of meetings of the
Board held in a typical year.

Each year, in addition to the assessment that the Governance Committee performs in connection with
compensation matters, the Governance Committee assesses the performance of the Executive Chairman, the
Deputy Chairman and the President and Chief Merchandising Officer and reviews the results with the Board.

Nomination of Directors

The Governance Committee is responsible for the nomination of directors. The Governance Committee reviews
the experience and performance of nominees for election to the Board and the appointment of directors
to Committees.

On an annual basis or when required, the Governance Committee meets to consider any vacancies on the Board or
to assess the composition of the current Board membership. The members of the Board are canvassed with respect
to potential candidates and cach candidate is evaluated with respect to his or her experience and expertise, with
particular artention paid to those areas of expertise that could best complement the current Board. The
Governance Commirttec also assesses any potential conflicts, independence or time commitment concerns the
candidate may present. The Committee then presents its list of potential candidates to the Board. A continuous list
of potential candidates is kept with the records of the Governance Committee.
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Composition of the Governance Commitlee

The Governance Committee, which is responsible for the identification of new candidates for the Board and for
the oversight of compensation for directors and officers of the Corporation, is not comprised entirely of
independent directors because one member, Mr. Graham is an officer of Wittington Investments, Limited,
(“Wittington™) the private holding corporation that controls Weston. The Board has determined that it is
appropriate for Mr. Graham o be a member of the Governance Committee, with the remainder of the members of
the Governance Committee being independent directors. The Board believes that the presence of a majority of
independent directors on the Governance Committee and the alignment of interests described above ensure an
objective nomination process that is in the interests of all shareholders.

Board Committees .
There are five committees of the Board: Audit; Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and
Compensation; Pension and Benefits; Environmental, Health and Safety; and Executive.

The Audit Committee is comprised solely of independent directors. All other committees, other than the
Executive Committee, arc comprised solely of non-management directors, in each case, with a majority of
members being independent directors. The Board believes that the composition of its committees (other than the
Executive Committee)} allows them to operate independently from management such that sharcholders’ interests
are protected.

Each Committee has a formal mandate and a position description for the Chair established by the Board. Both the
mandate and position description are reviewed annually by the Governance Committce. Copies of the
Committees’ mandates are available on the Corporation’s website, www.loblaw.ca.

Position Descriptions for the Chair of the Committees

The Chair of each Committee is responsible for the leadership and effective functioning of the Committee.
Specifically, the Chair is responsible for the following: maintaining a productive and effective relationship
between the Committee and management of the Corporation; ensuring the proper flow of information from the
Committee, the matters discussed and voted upon at each Committee meeting; reviewing the agenda for each
mecting of the Commiittee to ensure that all appropriate matters are brought forward for discussion at the
Committee meeting, ensuring that the Committee meets as frequently as is necessary and ensuring, with the
assistance of management, that all proper materials and information are before the Committee in connection with

matters to be discussed at each meeting of the Committee.

The following is a brief summary of seme of the responsibilitics of each Committee.

Audit Committee

All members of the Audit Committee must be independent and financially literate as required under applicable
securities law rules. The Audit Commitree is also responsible for supporting the Board in overseeing the integrity
of the Corporation’s financial reporting and internal controls over financial reporting, disclosure controls,
internal audit function and its compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Audit Committee’s
responsibilities include:

* recommending the appointment of the external auditor;

* reviewing the arrangements for and scope of the audit by the external auditor;
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= reviewing the independence of the external auditor;

*» considering and evaluating with management the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls over
financial reporting and financial disclosure controls and reviewing any proposed corrective actions;

* reviewing and monitoring the Corporation’s policies relating to ethics and conflicts of interests of officers
and employees;

* overseeing procedures for the receipt, retention and follow up of complaints regarding the Corporation’s
accounting, internal controls and auditing matters and the confidential anonymous submission by
employees of concerns regarding such matters;

* reviewing and monitoring the internal audit function of the Corporation;
* reviewing the integrity of the Corporation’s management and information systems;

* reviewing and approving the audit fees paid to the external auditor and pre-approval of non-audit related
fees to the exrernal auditor;

* discussing and reviewing with management and the external auditor the Corporation’s annual and interim
consolidated financial statements, key reporting matters and Management’s Discussion and Analysis and
Annual Information Form:

* reviewing disclosure containing financial information based on the Corporation’s financial statements; and

* reviewing with management the principle risks of the Corporation’s business and the systems and processes
implemented to manage these risks.

Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation Committee

The Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing the compensation of directors and executive officers.
The Governance Committee is also responsible for developing and maintaining governance practices consistent
with high standards of corporate governance. As part of its mandate, the Governance Committee identifies and
recommends candidates for nomination to the Board as directors, monitors the orientation program for new
directors and maintains a process for assessing the performance of the Board and its Committees as well as the
performance of individual directors and discharging the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation and
succession planning for the Corporation’s senior cmployees. The Governance Committee’s specific
responsibilities include:

= identfying candidates for membership on the Board and evaluating the independence of the directors;
* assisting in directors’ orientation and assessing their performance on an on-going basis;

* shaping the Corporation’s approach to corporate governance and recommending to the Board corporate
governance principles to be followed by the Corporation;

» discharging the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation and succession planning for the
Corporation’s senior employees; and

* determining the process for the compensation of directors and executive officers.

The Board has appointed the Chair of the Governance Committee, who is an independent director, to serve as
lead director.
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Pension and Benefits Committee
The Pension and Benefits Committee is responsible for:

* reviewing the performance of the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ pension plans and pension funds;
*+ reviewing and recommending managers for the fund’s portfolio;
* reviewing the performance of pension fund managers;

* reviewing and approving the assumptions used, the funded status and amendments to the Corporation’s
and its subsidiaries’ pension plans; and

* recciving reports regarding level, types and costs of the Corporation’s employee benefit plans.

Environmental, Health and Safety Conimittee
The Environmental, Health and Safety Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring environmental,
food safety and workplace health and safety policies, procedures, practices and compliance.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committce possesses all of the powers of the Board except the power to declare common dividends
and certain other powers specifically reserved by applicable law to the Board. The Executive Committee acts only

when it is not practicable for the full Board to meert.

Other Corporate Governance Matters

Disclosure Policy

The Board has adopted a corporate Disclosure Policy to deal with the timely dissemination of all material
information. A copy of the Disclosure Policy is available on the Corporation’s website, www.loblaw.ca. The
Disclosure Policy, which is reviewed annually, establishes consistent guidance for determining what information is
material and how it is to be disclosed to avoid selective disclosure and to ensure wide dissemination. The Board,
directly and through its Committees, reviews and approves the contents of major disclosure documents, including
interim and annual consolidated financial statements, the Annual Report, the Annual Information Form,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and this Circular. The Corporation secks to communicate to its
sharcholders through these documents as well as by means of news releases, its website and investor relations
meetings.

Disclosure Committee

A Disclosure Committee comprised of senior management of the Corporation oversees the Corporation’s
disclosure process as outlined in the Disclosure Policy. The Disclosure Committee’s mandate includes ensuring
that effective internal disclosure controls and proceduces are in place to allow the Corporation to satisfy all of its
continuous disclosure obligations including certification requirements. The Disclosure Committee is also
responsible for ensuring that the policies and procedures contained in the Corporation’s Disclosure Policy are in
compliance with regulatory requirements.
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The purpose of this document is to summarize the governance and management roles and responsibilities of the

Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board™).

1.

ROLE

The role of the Board is to provide governance and stewardship of the Corporation. Its role is to review
corporate strategy, assign responsibility to management for achievement of that strategy, establish limitations
on the authority delegated to management and monitor performance against approved objectives. In fulfilling
this role, the Board regularly reviews management’s strategic plans so that they continue to be responsive to
the changing business environment in which the Corporation operates. The Board oversees the Corporation’s
approach to corporate governance, succession planning, internal control over financial reporting, disclosure
controls and procedures, and information systems to ensure that the Corporation reports accurately and
fairly information to sharcholders, other stakeholders and the public. The Board is required to appoint
corporate officers and satisfy itself as to the integrity of senior management, that the Corporation engages in
ethical and legal conduct and that senior management creates a culture of integrity throughout the
Corporation.

RESPONSIBILITIES
To ensure that it fulfills its role, the Board will:

(a) Define Sharcholder Expectations for Corporate Performance Through Effective Communication with
Shareholders

* Satisfy itself that there is effective communication between the Board and the Corporation’s
shareholders, other stakeholders, and the public, including effective, transparent and timely public
disclosure.

* Determine, from time to time, the appropriate criteria against which to evaluate performance, and set
corporate strategic goals and objectives within this context,

(b) Establish Strategic Goals, Performance Objectives and Operational Policies

The Board will review and approve broad strategic corporate objectives and establish corporate values against
which corporate performance will be measured. In this regard, the Board will:

= Approve long-term strategies.

* Review and approve management’s strategic and operational plans so that they are consistent with
fong-term goals.

* Approve strategic and operational policies within which management will operate.

* Set targets and budgets against which to measure corporate and executive performance.

* Satisfy itself that a portion of executive compensation is linked appropriately to corporate
performance.

» Satisfy itself that a process is in place with respect to the appointment, development, evaluation and

succession of senior management.
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3.

(c) Delegate Management Authority to the Executive Chairman

* Delegate to the Executive Chairman the authority to manage and supervise the business of the
Corporation, decisions regarding the Corporation’s ordinary course of business and operations that
are not specifically reserved to the Board under the terms of that delegation of authority.

* Determine what, if any, executive limitations may be required in the exercise of the authority delegated
1o management.

(d) Monitor Corporate Performance

* Understand, assess and monitor the principal risks of all aspects of the business in which the
Corporation is engaged.

* Monitor corporate performance against both short-term and long-term strategic plans and annual
performance targets, and monitor compliance with Board policies and the effectivencss of risk
management practices.

{e) Corporate Governance

* Develop and monitor compliance with a set of corporate governance principles and guidelines.

* Appoint a lead director who is an independent director to provide leadership to the Board and the
independent directors.

* Ensure thar independent directors hold regular meetings without the attendance of management or
non-independent directors.

* Review the Board’s mandate on an annual basis and make any revisions which are necessary.

» Adopt a written code of business conduct which is applicable to employees, officers and directors of
the Corporation, and monitor compliance with such code.

* Develop, adopt and regularly review position descriptions for the Executive Chairman, the Deputy
Chairman, the lead director and the chair of each committee of the Board.

* Assess the effectiveness and performance of the Board and its committees as well as their individual
members.

COMPOSITION

The Board shall be comprised of a majority of independent directors. For this purpose, a director is
independent if he or she would be Independent within the meaning of National Instrument 58-101 Disclosure
of Corporate Governance Practices, as the same may be amended from time to time.

COMMITTEES

The Board may establish commirttees and delegate such autharity and responsibilities to such committees as it
approves. The authority and responsibilities of any committee so established shall be set out in a written
charter. The Board has established the following committees: the Audit Committee (which is comprised
cntirely of independent directors), the Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation
Committee, {(which is comprised of a majority of independent directors) the Environmental, Health and
Safety Committee, the Pension and Rencfits Committee and the Executive Committee.

ORIENTATION AND CONTINUING EDUCATION

The Board shall ensure that all directors receive a comprehensive orientation and continuing education in
connection with their role, responsibilitics and the business of the Corporation, as well as the skills they must
use in their roles as directors.

SHARE OWNERSHIP BY DIRECTORS

The Board shall approve requircments for ownership by directors of shares of the Corporation and shall
monitor campliance with such requirements.
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LOBLAW COMPANIES LIMITED has established and hereby amends an Employees’ Stock Option Plan for
employees of the Corporation and its Affiliates in order to secure for the Corporation-and its shareholders the
benefits of incentives inherent in share ownership by key employees of the Corporation and its Affiliates who, in
the judgment of the Board of Directors or the Committee will be largely responsible for the future growth and
continued success of the Corporation. It is recognized that stock option plans aid in retaining and encouraging
employees of exceptional ability because of the opportunity offered them to acquire a proprictary interest in the
Corporation.

1. Definitions:
(a) “Act” means the Securities Act (Ontario), as from time to time amended.

(b) “Affiliate” means any entity which is an “affiliate” of the Corporation for the purposes of Ontario
Securities Commission National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus and Registration Exemptions, as
amended or replaced from time to time.

(c) “Blackout Period” means the period imposed by the Corporation, during which Optionees may not
trade in the Corporation’s securities (and includes any period in which an Optionee has Material
Undisclosed Information).

(d) “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

(e) “Committee” means the Governance, Employece Development, Nominating and Compensation
Committee or the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors or any other committee designated by
the Board of Directors to carry on the functions of the Committee hereunder.

(f) “Corporation” means Loblaw Companies Limited and its successors.

(g) “Eligible Employees” means key employees (including officers, whether or not directors) of the
Corporation and its Affiliates, as determined by the Board of Directors or the Committee, and shall
constitute the class of employees eligible for the granting of Options.

{h) “Fair Market Value” means the greater of (i) the weighted average of the trading prices of the Shares on
the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days prior to the applicable grant date and (ii) the
weighted average of the trading prices of the Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange on the trading day
prior to the grant date except that for U.S. Participants, “Fair Market Value” means the closing price of
the Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange on the day prior to the grant date.

(i) “Material Undisclosed Information’ means material information affecting the Corporation that has not
been publicly disclosed.

{j) “Option” means an Option granted under the terms of the Plan.

(k) “Option Price” means the price at which a Share may be exercised pursuant to an Option and which may
not be less than Fair Market Value at the date of grant.

() “Optionee” means an Eligible Employee to whom an Option is granted.

(m) “Plan” means the Amended and Restated Employees’ Stock Option Plan herein provided for.




.

Management Proxy Circular 46

SCHEDULE B

(n) ““Shares” mean the Common Shares of the Corporation.

(o) “Stock Option Agreement™ means, in the case of each Option, the stock option agreement approved for
the Option as provided in Section 5.

(p) “Subsidiary” means a company that is a subsidiary of the Corporation within the meaning of the Act.

(q) ““U.S. Participant” means an Eligible Employee who is subject to the income tax legislation of the
United States,

2. Number of Shares: The shares which may be issued and sold upon the exercise of Qptions granted pursuant
to the Plan will be Shares. The maximum number of Shares issuable pursuant to the Plan at any time shall not
cxceed 13,708,678 The aggregate number of Shares issued to insiders of the Corporation within any 12 month
period, or issuable to insiders of the Corporation at any time, under the Plan and any other security-based
compensation arrangement of the Corporation, may not exceed 5% of the total number of issued and outstanding
Common Shares of the Corporation ar such time.

For greater certainty, any Share issuable pursuant to an outstanding Option that is, for any reason, cancelled,
expired, forfeited or terminated without having been exercised in full shall again be available for issuance upon the

exercise of Options granted pursuant to the Plan,

The terms “security based compensation arrangement” and “insider” have the meanings attributed thereto in the
TS5X Company Manual.

3. Participation: Options shall be granted only to Eligible Employees.

4. Price: The price at which each Share may be exercised under an Option shall be not less than 100% of its Fair
Market Value ar the date of grant.

5. Grant of Options: The Board of Directors or the Committee may from time to time make all determinations
regarding the granting of Options, including the effective date of such grant, and may authorize the granting of
Options at the opening of business on such date to such Eligible Employees as it may select for the number of
Shares that it shall designate, all subject to the provisions of the Plan. It may take into consideration the Eligible
Employees’ present and potential contributions to the success of the Corporation or any Subsidiary and such other
factors which it may deem proper and relevant, but shall select only Eligible Employees who are anticipated to
remain in the employ of the Corporation or its Affiliates for not less than one year from the date of the grant of
the Option.

Each Option shall be confirmed by a Stock Option Agreement containing terms and conditions consistent with the
Plan and approved by the Board of Directors or the Committee (which terms and conditions need not be the same
in each case and may be changed from time to time).

6. Terms of Options: Except as otherwise determined by the Board of Directors or the Committee:
(a) No Option may be excrcised in whole or in part prior to one year from the date it is granted.

{b) Options shall become cexercisable (in each case to the nearest full Share) at such times and in such

instalments, which may be cumulative, as may be provided in the Stock Option Agreement, having
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{c)

(d)

(e)

{f

regard for any requirements of any competent governmental authority or any stock exchange on which
the Shares are listed for trading.

Options shall terminate on the first to occur of the following events:
(i) termination of the Option pursuant to the Stock Option Agreement; or
(ii} termination of the Optionee’s employment as provided in Section 7.

Each Option shall expire on such date (being not less than five nor more than ten years from the date of
the grant of the Option} as the Board of Directors or the Committee may determine at the time the
Option is granted {(which determination may be evidenced by the applicable Stock Option Agreement).

Except as set forth in Section 7, no Option may be exercised unless the Optionee is at the time of such
cxercise in the employ of the Corporation or any Affiliate and has been continuously so employed since
the grant of the Option.

If an Option would otherwise expire during a Blackout Period, the term of such Option shall
automatically be extended until 10 business days after the end of the Blackout Period.

7. Effect of Cessation of Employment: If the Optionee dies, retires or otherwise ceases to be employed by the

Corporation and/or the Affiliate (whether or not by reason of the Optionee’s employment being terminated with

or without cause), no Option held by the Optionec shall be exercisable after the date of such death, retirement or

other cessation of employment (or after the date the Optionee gives or receives any notice of termination of

employment), except as follows and subject to Section 6(f):

(a)

{b)

(c)

If the Oprionee’s employment is terminated without cause, on or before the 30™ day after the earlier of
the date of such cessation of employment and the date of such notice, if any, the Optionee may exercise
his or her Option(s) to the extent the Optionee was entitled to do so at the date of such cessation of
employment or notice.

If the Optionee retires under a retirement pension plan of the Corporation or any Affiliate, the 30-day
period referred to in clause (a) shall be extended to 90 days after the date of retirement.

If the Optionce dies while employed by the Corporation or any Affiliate or within the 30-day or 90-day
periods referred to in clauses (a) or (b}, the person or persons to whom the Optionee’s rights have passed
by the Optionee’s will or the laws of descent and distribution may, on or before the 180™ day after the
date of death, exercise the deceased’s Option(s) to the extent the Optionee was entitled to do so at the
date of death provided, however, that nothing contained in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) shall extend the
expiry date of any Option or give any person a right to exercise an Option after the date when the same
has expired in accordance with its terms.

The date of cessation of an Optionee’s employment is the Optionec’s last day of active employment and
does not include any period of statutory, reasonable or contractual notice or any period of deemed

employment or salary continuance.
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8. Adjustment in Shares Subject to the Plan:

(a) In the event of any consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of Shares, or any stock dividend of
Shares paid otherwise than in lieu of a normal cash dividend, or any merger, amalgamation or
reorganization of the Corporaticn, the number of Shares subject to any Option then outstanding and the
Option Price thereof shall be adjusted appropriately by the Board of Directors or the Committee to
ensure that such Option will after such event represent a benefit substantially similar to the benefit, if any,
it represented before such event, and such adjustments shall be effective and binding for all purposes of
the Plan.

{b) In the event of a transaction which the Board of Directors determines would result in a change of control
or a potential change of control, the Board of Directors shall have the power to: (i} accelerate the vesting
of Options in full or in part; and (ii} make such other changes to the terms of the Options as it considers
fair and appropriate in the circumstances, including but not limited to: (x) otherwise modifying the terms
of the Options to assist the Optionees to tender into a take-over bid or other arrangement or transaction
leading to a change of control, and thereafter; (y) terminating, conditionally or otherwise, the Options
not exercised following successful completion of such bid, arrangement or transaction. If the change of
control or potential change of control is not completed within the time specified therein (as the same
may be extended), the Options which vested pursuant to this Section shall be returned by the Optionee to
the Corporation, in either case, and, if exercised, shall be reinstated as authorized but unissued Shares
and the original terms applicable to such Options shall be reinstated.

9. Payment for Shares: Payment for Shares purchased upon exercise of an Option shall be made in full not later
than 10 business days following the exercise of the Option.

10. Transferability:

{(a) Options shall not be transferable or assignable otherwise than by will or by the laws of descent and
distribution, and during the lifetime of an Optionee shall be exercisable only by him or her.

(b) Instead of receiving Shares on the exercise of an Option, including Shares under Option at the date this
amendment becomes effective, an Optionee may, by written notice to the Corpoeration given at any time
when such Option 1s exercisable, elect to receive in cash from the Corporation an amount equal to the
excess of the Fair Market Value of the Shares as to which such election is made over the Option Price of
such Shares set out in the Stock Option Agreement granting the Option (“Share Appreciation Value™) net
of any required tax withholding. An Option on shares as to which such election is made shall thereupon
be deemed to have expired. Payment of such Appreciation Value shall be made within 7 business days of
receipt by the Corporation of such appropriately executed election form.

11. Necessary Approvals: The obligation of the Corporation to sell and deliver Shares on the exercise of
Options is subject to the approval of any competent governmental authority or stock exchange on which the
Shares are listed for trading, which may be required in connection with the creation, issuance or sale of such Shares

by the Corporation.

12. Expiration, Amendment and Termination of the Plan: The Board of Directors or the Committee may
amend, suspend or terminate the Plan, or any portion thereof, at any time, subject to those provisions of applicable
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law (including, without limitation, the applicable rules, regulations and policies of any stock exchange) that
require approval of sharcholders or any governmental or regulatory body. The Board of Directors or the
Committee may make amendments to the Plan or any Option outstanding thereunder without seeking
shareholder approval, except for the following types of amendments:

(i) increasing the number of Shares reserved for issuance under the Plan;
{11) reducing the Option Price, except pursuant to Section §(a);

(ili) extending the term of an Option beyond its original expiry date or beyond 10 years from its grant date,
except pursuant to Section 6(f);

(iv) extending eligibility to participate in the Plan to non-employee directors;

(v) permitting Options to be transferred other than by testate or intestate succession;
(vi) permitting awards, other than Options, to be made under the Plan; or
(vii) amending this Section 12,

Except as expressly set forth in the Plan, no action of the Board shall alter or impair the rights of an Optionee
under any Option previously granted to an Optionee without the consent of the affected Optionee.

13. Admimstraton of the Plan: The Board of Directors or the Committee is authorized to interpret the Plan
and from time to time to adopt, amend and rescind the rules and regulations for carrying out the Plan. The
interpretation and construction of any provision of the Plan by the Board of Directors or the Committee shall be
final and conclusive. Administration of the Plan shall be the responsibility of the appropriate officers of the
Corporation.

14. Governing Law: The Plan and all Options from time to time outstanding shall be governed by the law of
the Province of Ontario and the applicable laws of Canada.

15. U.S. Incentive Stock Options:

{a} The Board of Directors or the Committee may grant, to U.S, Participants Options which for purposes of
such legislation qualify as incentive stock options (“ISO’s”). To the extent any such Option does not
qualify as an ISO, it shall constitute a non-qualified stock option under such legislation. Options issued as
[SO’s shall be subject to the terms and conditions set out in Schedule A hereto and to all other terms and
conditions of the Plan which are not inconsistent therewith. This section shall terminate on the
10 anniversary of the earlier of the date the first ISO is granted under the Plan and the date on which
this section is formally approved by the Board of Directors, without prejudice to any ISO granted prior to
and outstanding on that date.

(b) Compensation patd under the Plan to U.S. Participants is intended not to be subjected to U.S. federal
income tax under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the Plan shall be construed,
interpreted and administered in compliance with such intent. The Board of Directors or the Committee
is hereby authorized to amend the Plan or any award under the Plan to achieve this resuit.
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SCHEDULE A TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYEES' STOCK OPTION PLAN

Additional Terms and Conditions Applicable to U.S. Incentive Stock Options

1. Definitions:
{(a) “Code” means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as from time to time amended, and
(b) *ISO” means an Option which qualifies as an incentive stock option under Section 422 of the Code.

2. Number of Shares: The maximum number of Shares which may be issued under 150’s shall be 3,427,000
{as adjusted from time to time by the Board of Directors or the Committee in the event of any occurrence
contemplated by Section 8 of the Plan).

3. Grant of Options: No ISO may be granted w any Eligible Employee who owns or exercises control or
direction over, directly or indirectly, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding
shares of the Corporation or any Subsidiary.

The aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the date an ISO is granted) of the Shares with respect to which
any Eligible Employee may be granted ISO’s in any calendar year (under the Plan and all other plans of the
Corporation and its Subsidiaries) shall not exceed the equivalent of $100,000 U.S.

4. Terms of Options: To the extent required under applicable tax legislation, an 1ISO may not be exercised by
an Optionee while an ISO previously granted to the Optionee by the Corporation or any Subsidiary is outstanding,
and each Stock Option Agreement relating to an SO shall so provide.
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BY-LAW NO. 1
A by-law relating generally to the transaction of the business and affairs of
LOBLAW COMPANIES LIMITED
CONTENTS
Section 1  —  Interpretation
Section 2 —  Business of the Corporation
Section 3  — Borrowing and Securities
Section 4 — Directors
Section 8 —  Delegation
Section 6 —  Officers
Section 7 —  Protection of Directors, Officers and Qthers
Section 8 —  Shares
Section 9  —  Dividends and Rights
Section 10 —  Meetings of Sharcholders
Section 11 — Notices
Section 12—  Documents in Electronic Form
Section 13 —  Effective Date

BE IT ENACTED as a by-law of the Corporation as follows:

SECTION 1
INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions — In the by-laws of the Corporation, unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized terms
used but not defined in this By-Law shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Act, except that:

“Act” means the Canada Business Corporations Act, as amended, restated or in effect from time to time,
and any statute that may be substituted therefor;

“appoint” includes “elect” and vice-versa;

“articles” means the original or restated articles of incorporation, articles of amendment, articles of
amalgamation, articles of continuance, articles of reorganization, articles of arrangement, articles of
dissolution or articles of revival and includes any amendments thereto;

“Board” means the board of directors of the Corporation;
“by-laws’” means this by-law and all other by-laws of the Corporation from time to time in force and effect;
“Corporation” means Loblaw Companies Limited and its successors;

“meeting of shareholders” includes an annual meeting of shareholders or a special meeting of shareholders;
“special meeting of shareholders” includes a meeting of any class or classcs of sharcholders and a special
mecting of all shareholders entitled to vote at an annual meeting of sharcholders;
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“non-business day” means Saturday, Sunday and any other day that is a holiday as defined in the
Interpretation Act (Canada) and any statute that may be substituted therefor, as amended, restated or in
effect from time to time;

“recorded address’ means:
(a) in the case of a shareholder, that person’s address as recorded in the securities register;

(b) in the case of joint sharcholders, the address appearing in the securities register in respect of such joint
holding or the first address so appearing if there are more than one; and

{c) inthe case of a director, officer, auditor or member of a committee of the Board, thar individual's latest
address as recorded in the records of the Corporation;

“Regulations” means the regulations made under the Act, as amended, restated or in effect from time
to time; and

“signing officer” means, in relation to any instrument, any person authorized to sign the instrument on
behalf of the Corporation by Section 2.2 or by a resolution passed pursuant thereto.

1.2 Interpretation — Words in the singular include the plural and vice-versa, words in one gender include all
genders, and words importing persons include individuals, bodies corporate, partnerships, trusts and

unincorporated organizations.

SECTION 2
BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

2.1 Corporate Seal — The Corporation may have one or more different corporate seals which may be adopted
or changed from time to time by the Board, on which the name of the Corporation appears in the language or one
or more of the languages set out in the articles.

2.2 Execution of Instruments — Deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts, obligations, certificates and other

instruments may be signed on behalf of the Corporation by any two (2) of the directors or officers. In addition, the
Board may from time to time direct the manner in which and the person or persons by whom any particular
instrument or class of instruments may or shall be signed. Any signing officer may affix the corporate seal (if any)
to any instrument. Any signing officer may certify a copy of any instrument, resolution, by-law or other document
of the Corporation to be a true copy thereof.

2.3 Execution in Counterpart — Any articles, notice, resolution, requisition, statcment or other document

required or permitted to be executed in several documents of like form each of which is executed by all persons
required or permitted, as the case may be, to do so, shall be deemed to constitute one document and to bear date as
of the date of exccution thercof by the last person.

2.4 Banking Arrangements — The banking business of the Corporation including, without limitation, the

borrowing of money and the giving of security therefor, shall be transacted with such banks, trust companies or
other bodies corporate or organizations as may from time to time be designated by or under the authority of the
Board. Such banking business or any part thercof shall be transacted under such agreements, instructions and
delegations of powers as the Board may from time to time prescribe or authorize.
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2.5 Voting Rights in Other Bodies Corporate — The signing officers of the Corporation may execute and

deliver proxies and arrange for the issuance of voting certificates or other evidence of the right to exercise the
voting rights attaching to any securities held by the Corporation. Such instruments, certificates or other evidence
shall be in favour of such person or persons as may be determined by the officers executing such proxies or
arranging for the issuance of voting certificates or such other evidence of the right to exercise such voting rights. In
addition, the Board may from time to time direct the manner in which and the person or persons by whom any
particular voting rights or class of voting rights may or shall be exercised.

2.6  Withholding Information from Shareholders — Subject to the Act, no shareholder shall be entitled to
discovery of any information respecting any details or conduct of the Corporation’s business which, in the opinion
of the Board, it would be incxpedient or not in the interests of the shareholders or the Corporation to
communicate to the public. The Board may from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what

time and place and under what conditions or regulations the accounts, records and documents of the Corporation
or any of them shall be open to the inspection of sharcholders and no sharcholder shall have any right of inspecting
any account, record or document of the Corporation except as conferred by the Act or authorized by the Board or
by resolution passed at a meeting of shareholders.

SECTION 3
BORROWING AND SECURITIES

3.1  Borrowing Power — Without limiting the borrowing powers of the Corporation as provided by the Act,
the Board may from time to time on behalf of the Corporation, without authorization of the sharecholders:

{a) borrow money on the credit of the Corporation;

(b) issue, reissue, sell, pledge or hypothecate bonds, debentures, notes or other evidences of indebtedness
of the Corporation, whether secured or unsecured;

(c) give a guarantee on behalf of the Corporation to secure performance of any present or furure
indebtedness, liability or obligation of any person; and

(d) mortgage, hypothecate, pledge or otherwise create a security interest in all or any currently owned or
subsequently acquired real or personal, movable or immovable, property of the Corporation including
book debts, rights, powers, franchises and undertakings, to secure any such bonds, debentures, notes
or other cvidences of indebtedness or guarantee or any other present or future indebtedness, liability
or obligation of the Corporation.

The Board may from time to time delegate to one or more of the directors and officers of the Corporation as may
be designated by the Board all or any of the powers conferred on the Board in this Section 3.1 to the extent and in
the manner as the Board shall determinc ar the time of such delegation.

Nothing in this Section limits or restricts the borrowing of money by the Corporation on bills of exchange or
promissory notes made, drawn, accepted or endorsed by or on behalf of the Corporation.

3.2 Delegation — The Board may from time to time delegate to a committee of the Board, a director or an
officer of the Corporation or any other person as may be designated by the Board all or any of the powers




v

Management Proxy Circular 54

SCHEDULE C

R

conferred on the Board by Section 3.1 or by the Act to such extent and in such manner as the Board shall determine

at the time of each such delegation.

SECTION 4
DIRECTORS

4.1  Number of Directors and Quorum — The Board shall consist of the number of directors specified in the

articles, except that if the articles provide for a minimum and maximum number of directors, the Board shall
consist of the number of directors determined from time to time by the Board within such minimum and
maximum. At least two directors shall not be officers or employees of the Corporation or any of its affiliates. A
majority of the number of directors so specified or determined shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of
the Board.

4.2 Qualification — No person shall be qualified for election as a director:
{a) if the person is less than 18 years of age;
{b) if the person is of unsound mind and has been so found by a court in Canada or elsewhere;
{¢) if the person is not an individual; or
{d) if the person has the status of a bankrupt.
At least 25% percent of the directors must be resident Canadians.

4.3  Election and Term — The election of directors shall take place at each annual meeting of shareholders. All

the directors then in office shall retire but, if qualified, shall be eligible for re-election. The election shall be by
resolution. If an election of directors is not held at the proper time, the incumbent directors shall continue in office
until their successors are elected.

4.4 Removal of Directors — The shareholders may by resolution passed at a special meeting remove any

director from office and the vacancy created by such removal may be filled at the same meeting failing which it
may be filled by the directors.

4.5  Vacation of Office — A director ceases to hold office when such director: (a) dies or resigns; (b) is removed

from office by the shareholders in accordance with the Act; or (c) ceases to be qualified for election as a director in
accordance with the Act. A resignation of a director becomes effective at the time a written resignation is received
by the Corporation or the time specified in such resignation, whichever is later.

4.6  Vacancies — Subject to the Act, a quorum of the Board may fill a vacancy in the Board, except a vacancy
resulting from an increase in the number or the minimum or maximum number of directors, or from a failure of
the shareholders to elect the number of directors required to be clected at any meeting of sharcholders. In the
absence of a quorum of the Board, or if the vacancy has arisen from a failure of the shareholders to elect the
number of directors required to be elected at any meeting of shareholders, the Board shall forthwith call a special
meeting of shareholders to fill the vacancy. If the Board fails to call such meeting or if there are no directors then in
office, any sharcholder may call the meeting.
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4.7  Action by the Board — The Board shall manage, or supervise the management of, the business and affairs
of the Corporation. Subject to Sections 4.9, the powers of the Board may be exercised by resolution passed at a
meeting at which a quorum is present or by resolution in writing signed by all the directors entitled to vote on that

resolution at a meeting of the Board. Where there is a vacancy in the Board, the remaining directors may exercise
all the powers of the Board so long as a quorum remains in office.

4.8  Residence — The Board shall not transact business at a meeting, other than filling a vacancy in the Board,
unless at least 259 of the directors present are resident Canadians, except where:

{a) a resident Canadian director who is unable to be present approves in writing or by telephonic,
electronic or other communications facilities, the business transacted at the meeting; and

{b) the required number of resident Canadians would have been present had that director been present at

the meeting.

4,9  Meeting by Communications Facility — A director may, in accordance with the Regulations, participate in

a meeting of the Board, or a committee of the Board, by means of a telephonic, electronic or other
communications facility that permits all participants to communicate adequately with each other during the
meeting. A director participating in such a meeting by such means is deemed to be present at the meeting.

4,10 Place of Meetings — Meetings of the Board may be held at any place in or outside Canada.

4.11 Calling of Meetings — Meetings of the Board shall be held from time to time at such time and at such place
as the Board, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer or any two directors may determine.

4.12 Notice of Meeting — Notice of the time and place of cach meeting of the Board shall be given in the
manner provided in Section 11.1 to each director not less than 24 hours before the time when the meeting is to be
held. A notice of a meeting of directors need not specify the purpose of or the business to be transacted at the
meeting except where the Act requires such purpose or business to be specified, including any proposal to:

(a} submit to the sharcholders any question or matter requiring approval of the sharcholders;
(b) fill a vacancy among the directors or in the office of auditor or appoint additional directors;
(c) issue securities;

(d) issued shares of a series;

(e) declare dividends;

(f} purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire shares of the Corporation;

(g) pay a commission for the sale of shares;

(h} approve a management proxy circular;

(1 abprovc a take-over bid circular or directors’ circular;

() approve any annual financial statements; or

(k) adopt, amend or repeal by-laws.
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A director may in any manner waive notice of or otherwise consent to a meeting of the Board, and attendance of a
director at a meeting constitutes a waiver of notice, unless the director is attending for the express purposcs of
objecting to the transaction of any business on the grounds that the meeting is not lawfully called.

4.13 First Meeting of New Board — Provided a quorum of directors is present, each newly clected Board may

without notice hold its first meeting immediately following the meeting of shareholders at which such Board

is elected.

4.14  Adjourned Meeting — Notice of an adjourned meeting of the Board is not required if the time and place of

the adjourned meeting is announced at the original meeting,.

4.15 Regular Meetings — The Board may appoint a day or days in any month or months for regular meetings of

the Board at a place and hour to be named. A copy of any resolution of the Board fixing the place and time of such
regular meetings shall be sent to each dircctor forthwith after being passed, but no other notice shall be required
for any such regular meeting except where the Act requires the purpose thereof or the business to be transacted
thereat to be specified.

4.16 Chairman — The chairman of any meeting of the Board shall be the first mentioned of such of the
following officers as have been appointed and who is a director and is present ar the meeting: Chairman of the
Board, lead dircctor or Chief Executive Officer. If no such person is present, the directors present shall choose one
of their number to be chairman,

4,17 Votes to Govern — At all meetings of the Board every question shall be decided by a majority of the votes
cast on the question of those directors entitled to vote. In case of an equality of votes the chairman of the meeting
shall not be entitled to a second or casting vore.

4.18 Conflict of Interest — A director or officer who is a party to, or who is a director or officer of or has a

material interest in any person who is a party to, a material contract or a material transaction or proposed material
contract or proposed material transaction, with the Corporation shall disclose the nature and extent of such
director’s or officer’s interest at the time and in the manner provided by the Act.

4.19 Remuneration and Expenses — The directors shall be paid such remuneration for their services as the

Board may from time to time determine. The directors shall also be entitled to be reimbursed for travelling and
other expenses properly incurred by them in attending meetings of the Board or any committee thereof, Nothing
herein contained shall preclude any director from serving the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving
remuneration therefor in that capacity.

SECTION 35
DELEGATION

5.1 Committees of the Board — The Board may appoint from among the directors one or more committees of

the Board and delegate to them any of the powers of the Board except those which, under the Act, a committee of
the Board has no authority to exercise.

5.2 Audit Committee — The Board shall appoint from among the directors an audit committce composed of

not fewer than threc dircctors, a majority of whom are not officers or employees of the Corporation or any
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affiliate of the Corporation. The auditor of the Corporation or any member of the audit committee may call a
meeting of the committee.

5.3 Transaction of Business — Subject to Section 4.9, the powers of a committee of directors may be exercised

by a meeting at which a quorum is present or by resolution in writing signed by all the members of such committee
who would have been entitled to vote on that resolution at a meeting of the committee. Meetings of such
committee may be held at any place in or outside Canada.

5.4  Procedure — Unless otherwise determined by the Board, cach committee shall have the power to fix its
quorum and to regulate its procedure.

SECTION 6
OFFICERS

6.1  General — The Board may from time to time appoint a Chairman of the Board, a Chief Executive Officer, a
President, one or more Executive Vice-Presidents, Senior Vice-Presidents, Vice-Presidents, a Corporate Secretary,
Chief Financial Officer and such other officers as the Board may determine, including one or more assistants to
any of the officers so appointed. Subject to Sections 6.2 and 6.3, an officer may but need not be a director and one
person may hold more than one office.

6.2 Chairman of the Board — The Chairman of the Board, if any, shall be appointed from among the directors
and shall, when present, be chairman of meetings of shareholders and the Board and shall have such other powers
and duties as the Board may determine.

6.3  Chief Executive Officer — Unless the Board otherwise determines, the Chief Executive Officer shall be
appointed from among the directors and shall have the general supervision of the business and affairs of the
Corporation and, in the absence of the Chairman of the Board, shall be chairman at meetings of shareholders and

the Board when present.

6.4  President — A President shall have such powers and duties as the Board or the Chief Executive Officer may
determine.

6.5  Executive Vice-President, Senior Vice-President, Vice-President — Each of an Executive Vice-President, a
Senior Vive-President and a Vice-President shall have such powers and duties as the Board or the Chief Executive

Officer may determine.

6.6  Corporate Secretary — The Corporate Secretary shall attend and be the secretary of all meetings of the
Board, shareholders and committees of the Board and shall enter or cause to be enrered into records kept for that
purpose minutes of all proceedings thereat; shall give or cause to be given, as and when instructed, all notices to

shareholders, directors, officers, auditors and members of committees of the Board; shall be the custodian of the
corporate seal of the Corporation and of all books, papers, records, documents and instruments belonging to the
Corporation; and shall have such other powers and dutics as the Board or the Chicf Executive Officer may
determine.

6.7  Chief Financial Officer — The Chief Financial Officer shall keep proper books of account and accounting
records with respect to all financial and other transactions of the Corporation and shall be responsible for the
deposit of money, the safe-keeping of securitics and the disbursement of the funds of the Corporation; shall render
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to the Board whenever required an account of all transactions as Chief Financial Officer and of the financial
position of the Corporation; and shall have such powers and duties as the Board or the Chief Executive Officer

may determine.

6.8 Other Officers — The powers and duties of all other officers shall be such as the Board or the Chief
Executive Officer may determine. Any of the powers and duties of an officer to whom an assistant has been
appointed may be exercised and performed by such assistant, unless the Board or the Chief Executive Officer

otherwise directs.

6.9  Variation of Powers and Duties — The Board may from time to time and subject to the Act, vary, add to or

limit the powers and duties of any officer.

6.10 Term of Office — The Board, in its discretion, may remove any officer of the Corporation without
prejudice to such officer’s rights under any employment contract. Otherwise each officer appointed by the Board
shall hold office until such officer’s successor is appointed, or until such officer’s earlier resignation.

6.11 Conflict of Interest — An officer shall disclose his or her interest in any material contract or material

transaction, whether entcred into or proposed, in accordance with Section 4.18.

6.12  Agents and Attorneys — The Board shall have the power from time to time to appoint agents or attorneys

for the Corporation within or outside Canada with such powers (including the power to sub-delegate) of
management, administration or otherwise as the Board may specify.

SECTION 7
PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND OTHERS

7.1  Indemnity — The Corporation shall indemnify a director or officer, a former director or officer or a person
who acts or acted at the Corporation’s request as a director or officer, or in a similar capacity of another entity, and
the heirs and legal representatives of such a person to the extent permitted by the Act.

7.2 Insurance — The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance for the benefit of any person referred
to n Section 7.1 to the extent permitted by the Act.

SECTION 8
SHARES

8.1 Allotment — Subject to the Act and the articles, the Board may from time to time allot or grant options to
purchase the whole or any part of the authorized and unissued shares of the Corporation at such times and to such
persons and for such consideration as the Board shall determine, provided that no share shall be issued until it is
fully paid as provided by the Act.

8.2  Registration of Transfer — No transfer of shares shall be registered in a securities register except on

presentation of the certificate representing such shares with an endorsement which complies with the Act, together
with such reasonable assurance or evidence of signature, identification and authority to transfer as the Board may

from time to time prescribe, on payment of all applicable taxes and any fees prescribed by the Board, on
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compliance with such restrictions on transfer as are authorized by the articles and on satisfaction of any lien
referred to in Section 8.4.

8.3  Transfer Agents and Registrars — The Board may from time to time appoint a registrar to maintain the

securities register and a transfer agent to maintain the register of transfers and may also appoint one or more
branch registrars to maintain branch securities registers and one or more branch transfer agents to maintain branch
registers of transfers, but one person may be appointed both registrar and transfer agent. The Board may at any
time terminate any such appointment.

8.4  Lien for Indebtedness — If the articles provide that the Corporation shall have a lien on shares registered in
the name of a shareholder indebted 1o the Corporation, such lien may be enforced, subject to any other provision
of the articles, by the sale of the shares thereby affected or by any other action, suit, remedy or proceeding

authorized or permitted by law or by equity and, pending such enforcement, the Corporation may refuse to
register a transfer of the whole or any part of such shares.

8.5  Non-recognition of Trusts — Subject to the Act, the Corporation may treat the person in whose name a

share is registered in the sccuritics register as the person exclusively entitled to vote, to receive notices, to receive
any dividend or other payments in respect of the share and otherwise to exercise all the rights and powers of
an owner.

8.6  Security Certificates — Every holder of one or more securities of the Corporation shall be entitled, at the

security holder’s option, to a security certificate, or to a non-transferable written acknowledgement of such
security holder’s right to obtain a security certificate, stating the number and class or series of sccurities held by
such security holder as shown on the securities register. Security certificates and acknowledgements of a security
holder’s right to a sccurity certificate, respectively, shall be in such form as the Board shall from time to time
approve. Any security certificate shall be signed in accordance with Section 2.2 and need not be under the
corporate seal; provided that, unless the Board otherwise determines, certificates representing securities in respect
of which a transfer agent and/or registrar has been appointed shall not be valid unless countersigned by or on
behalf of such transfer agent and/or registrar. The signature of one of the signing officers or, in the case of security
certificates which are not valid unless countersigned by or on behalf of a transfer agent and/or registrar, the
signaturcs of both signing officers, may be printed or mechanically reproduced in facsimile on security certificates
and every such facsimile signature shall for all purposes be deemed to be the signature of the officer whose
signature it reproduces and shall be binding on the Corporation. A security certificate executed as aforesaid shall
be valid notwithstanding that one or both of the officers whose facsimile signature appears thereon no longer
holds office at the date of issue of the certificate.

8.7  Replacement of Security Certificates — The Board or any officer or agent designated by the Board may in

its or such person’s discretion direct the issue of a new security certificate in lieu of and on cancellation of a
security certificate that has been mutilated or in substitution for a security certificate claimed to have been lost,
destroyed or wrongfully taken on payment of such fee, not exceeding the amount prescribed by the Regulations,
and on such terms as to indemnity, reimbursement of expenses and evidence of lass and of title as the Board may
from time to time prescribe, whether generally or in any particular case.

8.8  Joint Security Holders — If two or more persons are registered as joint holders of any security, the

Corporation shall not be bound to issue more than one cerrificate in respect thereof, and delivery of such
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certificate to one of such persons shall be sufficient delivery to all of them. Any one of such persons may give
effectual receipts for the certificate issued in respect thereof or for any dividend, bonus, return of capital or other
money payable or warrant issuable in respect of such security.

8.9  Deceased Security Holders — In the event of the death of a holder, or of one of the joint holders, of any
security, the Corporation shall not be required to make any entry in the securities register in respect thereof or to

make payment of any dividends thereon except on production of all such documents as may be required by law
and on compliance with the reasonable requirements of the Corporation and its transfer agents.

SECTION 9
DIVIDENDS AND RIGHTS

9.1 Dividends — Subject to the Act, the Board may from time to time declare dividends payable to the
sharcholders according to their respective rights and interests in the Corporation. Dividends may be paid in money
or property or by issuing fully paid shares of the Corporation.

9.2 Dividend Cheques — A dividend payable in money shall be paid by cheque drawn on the Corporation’s
bankers or onc of them to the order of cach registered holder of shares of the class or series in respect of which it
has been declared and mailed by prepaid ordinary mail to such registered holder at his or her recorded address,
unless such holder otherwise directs. In the case of joint holders the cheque shall, unless such joint holders
otherwise direct, be made payable to the order of all of such joint holders and mailed to them at their recorded
address. The mailing of such cheque as aforesaid, unless the same is not paid on due presentation, shall satisfy and
discharge the liability for the dividend to the extent of the sum represented thereby plus the amount of any tax

which the Corporation is required to and does withhold.

9.3 Non-receipt of Cheques — In the event of non-receipt of any dividend cheque by the person to whom it is
sent as aforesaid, the Corporation shall issue to such person a replacement cheque for a like amount on such terms

as to indemnity, reimbursement of expenses and evidence of non-receipt and of title as the Board may from time to
time prescribe, whether generally or in any particular case,

9.4  Record Date for Dividends and Rights — The Board may fix in advance a date, preceding by not more than

60 days, or such other period as may be prescribed by the Regulations, the date for the payment of any dividend or
the date for the issue of any warrant or other evidence of the right to subscribe for securities of the Corporation, as
a record date for the determination of the persons cntitled to receive payment of such dividend or to exercise the
right to subscribe for such securities, provided that notice of any such record date shall be given, not less than
7 days before such record date, or such other period as may be prescribed by the Regulations in the manner
provided by the Act. Where no record date is fixed so, the record date for the determination of the persons entitled
to receive payment of any dividend or to exercise the right to subscribe for securities of the Corporation shall be at
the close of business on the day on which the resolution relating to such dividend or right to subscribe is passed by
the Board.

9.5 Unclaimed Dividends — Any dividend unclaimed after the expiry of the applicable limitation period shall

be forfeited and shall revert to the Corporation.
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SECTION 10
MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

10.1  Annual Meetings —- The annual meeting of shareholders shall be held at such time in each year and, subject
to Section 10.3, at such place as the Board, may from time to time determine, for the purpose of considering the

financial statements and repotrts required by the Act to be placed before the annual meeting, electing directors,
appointing auditors and for the transaction of such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.

10.2  Special Meetings — The Board, the Chairman of the Board, or the Chief Executive Officer shall have
power to call a special meeting of sharcholders at any time.

10.3 Place of Meetings — Mcetings of shareholders shall be held at the registered office of the Corporation or
elsewhere in the province in which the registered office is situate or, if the Board shall so determine, at some other

place in Canada or, at some place outside Canada if such place is specified in the articles or all the sharcholders
entitled to vote at the meeting so agree.

10.4 Participation by Electronic Means — If the Corporation chooses to make available a telephonic, electronic

or other communication facility that permits all participants to communicate adequately with each other during a
meeting of sharcholders, any person entitled to attend such meeting may participate in the meeting by means of
such telephonic, electronic or other communication facility in the manner provided by the Act and the
Regulations. A person participating in a meeting by such means is deemed to be present at the meeting.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this by-law, any person participating in a meeting of shareholders
pursuant to this Section who is entitled to vote at that mecting may vote, in accordance with the Act and the
Regulations, by means of any telephonic, electronic or other communication facility that the Corporation has
made available for that purpose.

10.5 Meeting Held by Electronic Means — Notwithstanding Section 10.3, if the directors or shareholders of the
Corporation call a meeting of sharcholders pursuant to the Act, those directors or sharcholders, as the case may be,
may determine that the meeting shall be held, in accordance with the Act and the Regulations, entirely by means of
a telephonic, clectronic or other communication facility that permits all participants to communicate adequately
with cach other during the meeting. Notwithstanding any other provision of this by-law, any person participating
in a mecting of the shareholders pursuant this Section who is entitled to vote at that meeting may vote, in

accordance with the Act and the Regulations, by means of any telephonic, electronic or other communication
facility that the Corporation has made available for that purpose.

10.6 Notice of Meetings — Notice of the time and place of each meeting of shareholders shall be given in the

manner provided in Section 11.1 not less than 21 nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting, or within
such other period as may be provided by the Act or prescribed by the Regulations to each director, to the auditor
and to cach sharcholder who at the close of business on the record date for notice, is entered in the securities
register as the holder of one or more shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting. Notice of a meeting of
shareholders called for any purpose other than consideration of the financial statements and auditors report,
election of dircctors and reappointment of the incumbent auditors shall state the nature of such business in
sufficient detail to permit the shareholder to form a reasoned judgment thercon and shalt state the text of any
special resolution to be submitted to the meeting.
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10.7 List of Shareholders Entitled to Notice — For every meeting of shareholders, the Corporation shall prepare
within the time specified by the Act a list of shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical
order and showing the number of shares which each such shareholder is entitled to vote at the meeting. If a record

date for voting is fixed pursuant to Section 10.9, the shareholders listed shall be those registered ar the close of
business on such record date. If no record date for voting is so fixed, the shareholders listed shall be those
registered at the close of business on the record date for notice fixed pursuant to Section 10.8. If no record date for
voting is fixed pursuant to Section 10.9 and no record date for notice is fixed pursuant to Section 10.8, the
shareholders listed shall be those registered (a) at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the day
on which notice of the meeting is given, or (b) on the day on which the meeting is held where no such notice is
given. The list shall be available for examination by any sharcholder during usual business hours at the registered
office of the Corporation or at the place where the central securities register is maintained and at the meeting for
which the list was prepared.

10.8  Record Date for Notice — The Board may fix in advance a date, preceding the date of any meeting of

shareholders by not less than 21 days and not more than 60 days, or such other period as may be prescribed by the
Regulations, as a record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled to notice of the mecting, and
notice of any such record date shall be given not less than 7 days before such record date, or such other period as
may be prescribed by the Regulations, by newspaper advertisement in the manner provided by the Act. If no record
date for notice is so fixed, the record date for the determinarion of the sharcholders entitled to notice of the
meeting shall be (a) at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the day on which notice of the
meeting is given, or (b) on the day on which the meeting is held where no such notice is given.

10.9  Record Date for Voting — The Board may fix in advance a date, preceding the date of any meeting of

sharcholders by not less than 21 days and not more than 60 days, or such other period as may be prescribed by the
Regulations, as a record date for the determination of the sharcholders entitled to vote at the meeting, and notice
of any such record date shall be given not less than 7 days before such record date, or such other period as may be
prescribed by the Regulations, by newspaper advertisement in the manner provided by the Act. If no record date
for voting is so fixed, the record date for the determination of the sharcholders entitled to vote at the meeting shall
be at the close of business on the record date for notice fixed pursuant to Section 10.8. If no record date for voting
is fixed pursuant to this Section and no record date for notice is fixed pursuant to Section 10.8, the record date for
the determination of the shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting shall be (a) at the close of business on the day
immediately preceding the day on which notice of the meeting is given, or (b) on the day on which the meeting is
held where no such notice is given.

10.10 Meetings without Notice — A meeting of sharcholders may be held at any time and place permitted by the

Act without notice or on shorter notice than that provided for herein, and proceedings thereat shall not be
invalidated {a) if all the shareholders entitled to vote thereat are present in person or represented by proxy or if
those not present or represented by proxy, waive notice before or after the meeting or the time prescribed for the
notice thereof, in writing of such meeting being held, and (b} if the auditors and the directors are present or if those
not present, waive notice of or otherwise consent to such meeting being held. At such a meeting any business may
be transacted which the Corporation at a mecting of shareholders may transact. If the meeting is held at a place
outside Canada, sharcholders not present or represented by proxy, but who have waived notice of such meeting,
shall also be deemed ro have consented to the meeting being held at such place.
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10.11 Chairman, Secretary and Scrutineers — The chairman of any meeting of shareholders shall be the first

mentioned of such of the following officers as have been appointed and who is present at the meeting: Chairman
of the Baard, Chief Executive Qfficer or President. If no such officer is present within 15 minutes from the time
fixed for holding the meeting, the persons present and entitled to vote shall choose one of their number to be
chairman. If the secretary of the Corporation is absent, the chairman shall appoint some person, who need not be a
shareholder, 1o act as secretary of the meeting. If desired, one or more scrutineers, who need not be shareholders,
may be appointed by a resolution or by the chairman with the consent of the meeting.

10.12 Persons Entitled to be Present — The only persons entitled to attend a meeting of shareholders shall be
those entitled to vote thereat, the directors and auditor of the Corporation and others who, although not entitled

to vote, are entitled or required under the Act or the articles or by-laws to be present at the meeting. Any other
person may be admitted only on the invitation of the chairman of the meeting or with the consent of the meeting.

10.13 Quorum — Subject to the Act, a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of shareholders shall
be one person present in person, being a shareholder entitled to vote thereat or a duly appointed representative or
proxyholder for an absent shareholder so entitled, and holding or representing in the aggregate not less than 30%
of the outstanding shares of the Corporation entitled to vote at the meeting. If a quorum is present at the opening
of any meeting of shareholders, the sharcholders present or represented may proceed with the business of the
meeting notwithstanding that a quorum is not present throughout the meeting. If a quorum is not present at the
opening of any meeting of shareholders, the shareholders present or represented by proxy may adjourn the
meeting to a fixed time and place, but may not transact any other business. If a meeting of shareholders is
adjourned by one or more adjournments for an aggregate of less than 30 days it is not necessary to give notice of
the adjourned mecting other than by announcement at the time of an adjournment. If a meeting of shareholders is
adjourned by one or more adjournments for an aggregate of 30 days or more but not more than 90 days, notice of
the adjourned meeting shall be given as for an original meeting but the management of the Corporation shall not
be required to send a form of proxy in the form provided by the Act to each shareholder who is entitled to receive
notice of the meeting. Those sharcholders present at any duly adjourned mecting shall constitute a quorum.

10.14 Right to Vote — Subject to the Act as to authorized representatives of any other body corporate or
association and restrictions on intermediary voting, for any necting of shareholders every person who is named in
the list of shareholders entitled to vote prepared for purposes of such meeting shall be entitled to vote the shares
shown opposite such person’s name. For any meeting of shareholders where a list of shareholders entitled to vote
has not been prepared for purposes of such meeting, the names of the persons appearing in the securities register at
the close of business on the record date for voting as the holders of one or more shares carrying the right to vote at
such meeting, shall be deemed to be the list of sharcholders entitled to vote for purposes of such meeting.

10.15 Proxies — Every shareholder entitled to vote at a meeting of shareholders may appoint a proxyholder, or
one or more alternate proxyholders, who need not be sharcholders, to attend and acr at the meeting in the manner
and to the extent authorized and with the authority conferred by the proxy. A proxy shall be in writing executed by
the shareholder or such shareholder’s attorney and shall conform with the Act. Every such sharcholder which is a
body corporate or association may by resolution of its directors or governing body authorize an individual who
need not be a shareholder to represent it at a meeting of shareholders and such individual may exercise on the
sharcholder’s behalf all the powers it could exercise if it were an individual shareholder. The authority of such an

i»
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individual shall be established by depositing with the Corporation a certified copy of such resolution, or in such
other manner as may be satisfactory .to the secretary of the Corporation or the chairman of the meeting,

10.16 Time for Deposit of Proxies — The Board may specify in a notice calling a meeting of sharcholders a time,

preceding the time of such meeting by not more than 48 hours exclusive of non-business days, before which time
proxies to be used at such meeting must be deposited. A proxy shall be acted on only if, prior to the time so
specified, it shall have been deposited with the Corporation or an agent thereof specified in such notice or, if no
such time is specified in such notice, unless it has been received by the sccretary of the Corporation or by the
chairman of the meeting or any adjournment thereof prior to the time of voting.

10.17 Joint Sharcholders —If two or more persons hold shares jointly, one of them present in person or

represented by proxy at a meeting of sharcholders may, in the absence of the other or others, vote the shares; but if
two or more of those persons are present in person or represented by proxy and vorte, they shall vote as one on the
shares jointly held by them.

10.18 Votes to Govern — At any mceting of sharcholders cvery question shall, unless otherwise required by the
articles or by-laws or by law, be determined by a majority of the votes cast on the question. In case of an equality of
votes either on a show of hands or on a ballot or on results of electronic voting, the chairman of the meeting shall
not be entitled to a second or casting vote.

10.19 Show of Hands — Any question at a meeting of shareholders shall be decided by a show of hands unless a
ballot thereon is required or demanded as hereinafter provided. On a show of hands every person who is present
and entitled to vote shall have one vote, Whenever a vote by show of hands shali have been taken on a question,
unless a ballot thereon is so required or demanded, a declaration by the chairman of the meeting that the vote on
the question has been carried or carried by a particular majority or not carried and an entry to that effect in the
minutes of the meeting shall be prima facie evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the
votes recorded in favour of or against any resolution or other proceeding in respect of the question, and the result
of the vote so taken shall be the decision of the sharcholders on the question.

10.20 Ballots — On any question proposed for consideration at a meeting of sharcholders, and whether or not a
show of hands has been taken thereon, the chairman may require a ballot of any person present and any
sharcholder or proxyholder entitled to vote on such question at the meeting may demand a ballot. A ballot so
demanded shall be taken in such manner as the chairman shall direct. A demand for a ballot may be withdrawn at
any time prior to the taking of the ballot. If a ballot is taken each person present shall be entitled, in respect of the
shares which such person is entitled to vote at the meeting on the question, to that number of votes provided by the
Act or the articles, and the result of the ballot so taken shall be the decision of the shareholders on the question.

10.21 Electronic Voting — If the Corporation chooses to make available a tclephonic, electronic or other

communtcation facility, in accordance with the Act and the Regulations, that permits shareholders to vote by
means of such facility then, notwithstanding any other provision of this by-law, any vote may be held, in
accordance with the Act and the Regulations, entirely by means of such facility.

10.22 Adjournment — if a mecting of sharcholders is adjourned for less than 30 days, it shall not be necessary to
give notice of the adjourned meeting, other than by announcement at the earliest meeting that is adjourned. If a
mecting of sharcholders is adjourned by one or more adjournments for an aggregate of 30 days or more, notice of
the adjourned mceting shall be given as for an original meeting.
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10.23 Resolution in Writing — A resolution in writing signed by all the sharcholders entitled to vote on that

resolution at a meeting of shareholders is as valid as if it had been passed at a meeting of the sharcholders unless a
written statement with respect to the subject matter of the resolution is submitted by a director or the auditors in
accordance with the Act.

SECTION 11
NOTICES

11.1 Method of Giving Notices — Any notice (which term includes any communication or document) to be

given {which term includes sent, delivered or served) pursuant to the Act, the Regulations, the articles, the by-laws
or otherwise to a shareholder, director, officer or member of a committee of the Board or to the auditors shall be
sufficiently given if delivered personally to the person to whom it is to be given or if delivered to such person’s
recorded address or if mailed to such person at such person’s recorded address by prepaid ordinary or air mail or if
sent to such person at his or her recorded address by facsimile or if provided in the form of an ¢clectronic document
in accordance with Section 12.1. A notice so delivered shall be deemed to have been given when it is delivered
personally or to the recorded address as aforesaid; a notice so mailed shall be deemed to have been given when
deposited in a post office or public letter box; and a notice so sent by any means of transmitted or recorded
communication shall be deemed to have been given when disparched or delivered to the appropriate
communication company or agency or its representative for dispatch. The secretary may change or cause to be
changed the recorded address of any shareholder, director, officer, auditor or member of a committee of the Board
in accordance with any information believed by the secretary to be reliable.

11.2  Notice to Joint Shareholders — If two or more persons are registered as joint holders of any share, any

notice shall be addressed to all of such joint holders but notice to one of such persons shall be sufficient notice to all

of them.

11.3 Computation of Time — In computing the date when notice must be given under any provision requiring a

specified number of days notice of any meeting or other event, the date of giving the notice shall be excluded and
the date of the meeting or other event shall be included.

11.4 Undelivered Notices — If any notice given to a sharcholder pursuant to Section 11.1 is returned on two

consecutive occasions because such shareholder cannot be found, the Corporation shall not be required to give any
further notices to such sharcholder until such sharcholder informs the Corporation in writing of his or her
new address.

11.5 Omissions and Errors — The accidental omission to give any notice to any shareholder, director, officer,

auditor or member of a committee of the Board or the non-receipt of any notice by any such person or any error in
any notice not affecting the substance thereof shall not invalidate any action taken at any meeting held pursuant to
such notice or otherwise founded thereon.

11.6  Persons Entided by Death or Operation of Law — Every person who, by operation of law, transfer, death

of a sharcholder or any other means whatsoever, shall become entitled to any share, shall be bound by every notice
in respect of such share which shall have been duly given to the shareholder from whom such person derives title
to such share prior to such person’s name and address being entered on the securities register (whether such notice
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was given before or after the happening of the event on which such person became so entitled) and prior to such
person furnishing to the Corporation the proof of authority or evidence of entitlement provided by the Act.

11.7 Waiver of Notice — Any shareholder, (or such shareholder’s duly appointed proxyhalder), director,

officer, auditors or member of a committee of the Board may at any time waive any notice, or waive or abridge the
time for any notice, required to be given to such person under the Act, the Regulations, the articles, the by-laws or
otherwise and such waiver or abridgement, whether given before or after the mecting or other event of which
notice is required to be given, shall cure any default in the giving or in the time of such notice, as the case may be.
Any such waiver or abridgement shall be in writing except a waiver of notice of a meeting of sharcholders or of the
Board or of a committee of the Board which may be given in any manner.

SECTION 12
DOCUMENTS IN ELECTRONIC FORM

12.1 Documents in Electronic Form — Subject to any additional conditions set out in Section 12.2 of this by-law,

a requirement under the Act, the Regulations or this by-law to provide a person with a notice, document or other
information may be satisfied by the provision of an electronic document, provided that:

(a) the addressee has consented, in the manner prescribed by the Regulations, if any, and has designated an
information system for the receipt of electronic documents;

{b) the electronic document is provided to the designated information system, unless otherwise prescribed
by the Regulations; and

{c) any other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

An addressee may revoke the consent referred to in Section 12.1(a). Nothing in this Section 12 shall require a
person to create or otherwise provide an electronic document. Except where a notice, document or other
information must be sent to a specific place (such as a registered address), an electronic document need not be sent
to the designated information system if: (a) the document is posted on or made available through a generally
accessible electronic source, such as a website; and (b) the addressee is provided with notice in writing of the
availability and location of that clectronic document. An electronic document shall be considered to have been
received when it enters the information system designated by the addressee or if the document is posted on or
made available through a generally accessible electronic source, when it is accessed by the addressee.

12.2  Where Documents to be Created in Writing— Where the Act or Regulations expressly require that a

notice, document or other information be created in writing, such requirement shall be satisfied by the creation of
an electronic document provided that, in addition to the conditions set out in Section 12.1;

(a) the information in the electronic document is accessible so as to be usable for subsequent
reference; and

(b} any other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.
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12.3  Where Documents to be Provided in Writing — Where the Act or Regulations expressly require that a

notice, decument or other information be provided in writing, such requirement shall be satisfied by the provision
of an clectronic document provided that, in addition to the conditions set out in Section 12.1:

{a) theinformation in the electronic document is accessible by the addressee and capable of being retained
by the addressee, so as to be usable for subsequent reference; and

(b} any other requirement of the Regulations have been complied with.

SECTION 13
EFFECTIVE DATE

13.1 Effective Date — This by-law shall be effective as of March §, 2007.

13.2  Repeal — The previous by-law no. 1 of the Corporation is repealed as of the coming into force of this by-
law provided that such repeal shall not affect the previous operation of the by-law so repealed or affect the validity
of any act done or right, privilege, obligation or liability acquired or incurred under or the validity of any contract
or agreement made pursuant to any such by-law prior to its repeal. All officers and persons acting under the by-law
so repealed shall continue to act as if appointed under the provisions of this by-law and all resolutions of the Board
or the sharcholders with continuing effect passed under the by-law so repealed shall continue to be valid except to
the extent inconsistent with this by-law and until amended or repealed.




|7 Management Proxy Circular 68

SCHEDULE D

The following Sharcholder Proposal has been submitted for consideration at the Meeting by the Ethical Funds
Corporation, 800-1111 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6E 4T6. The proposal and statement
of support are set out in italics.

Sustainability Reporting

Whereas:

Loblaw Companies Limited currently provides one page in the 2005 Annual Report addressing corporate
responsibility, the environment, health, and food safety. However, there is growing investor demand for
comprehensive reporting on environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance. According to Stratos, an
Ottawa-based consultancy, sustainability reporting is becoming mainstream among Canada’s largest companies
with 709% of TSX companies disclosing sustainability information in 2005 up from 35% in 2002. (Gaining
Momentum, CSR Reporting in Canada, Stratos 20035)

This demand will continue as the link is strengthened between long-term value creation and sustainability
performance. A recent report from the United Nations Environment Program’s Financial Initiative found “there is
robust evidence that ESG issues affect sharebolder value in both the short and long term”. (Show Me the Money:
Linking Environmental, Social, and Governance Issues to Company Value, UNEP FI 2006)

Leading companies that produce sustainability reports believe that sustainability strategies, performance, and
reporting can deliver value and competitive benefits. (Tomorrow’s Value: The Global Reporters 2006 Survey of
Corporate Sustainability Reporting, Sustainability 2006) And Stratos concludes in their 2005 survey, ‘“Targeting
(sustainability performance) information at investors can demonstrate that the company is forward looking and has
quality management in place to address its current and future challenges.”

Retailers have a substantial environmental and social footprint arising from business activities including land use,
energy use, packaging, and labour and community relations among other issues. Loblaw competitors offer some
disclosure on these impacts arising from their business activities. Wal-Mart currently produces a vendor standards
report and disclosure on employee diversity and the company’s environmental policy and practices. Wal-Mart will
produce a stand-alone sustainability report by April 2007.

According to Stratos, 35% of Canadian companies that produce sustainability reports indicate they use the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRYE) Sustainability Guidelines. GRI is a multi-stakeholder initiative which has established a
comparable set of reporting indicators on corporate environmental, social, and governance performance similar to
existing standardized financial reporting. The GRI Sustainability Guidelines offer the most comprehensive and
universal set of ESG reporting indicators available globally and almost 900 organizations are registered users of
the framework.

The GRI has just released the third iteration of the Sustainability Guidelines developed through consultation with
hundreds of stakeholders globally, including business, investors, and nongovernmental organizations. The
Sustainability Guidelines provide companies with (1) a set of reporting principles essential to producing a balanced
and reasonable report and (2) guidance for report content, including the company’s strategy, governance structure
and management systems, and performance against core indicators in six categories (direct economic impacts,
environmental, labour practices and decent work conditions, buman rights, society, and product responsibility).
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The Sustainability Guidelines are flexible across all types and sizes of reporting organizations and allow for
incremental reporting. See http:/jwunw.globalreporting.org.

Be it resolved that: Sharebolders request that the Company commit to publication in 2008 of a corporate
responsibility or ‘sustainability’ report on 2006 performance guided by the Sustainability Guidelines established by
the Global Reporting Initiative.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CORPORATION RECOMMENDS A VOTE “AGAINST"” THIS
PROPOSAIL FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS:

The issue of corporate responsibility or sustainability has been addressed by the Corporation in its Annual
Reports, both in 2006 and 2003, and is an issue that the Corporation will continue to address going forward. The
Corporation intends to make available in 2008 a Corporate Responsibility Report, either as a stand-alone
document or as part of another report. This report will be of the Corporation’s own design and not necessarily
based on the Global Reporting Initiative 3 (“GRI3") Guidelines. While the GRI3 Guidelines present a useful
framework for corporate responsibility reporting, the Corporation has chosen not to limir itself to one approach.
The Corporation will continue to explore various methods of non-financial reporting in order to arrive at a form
of report best suited to the nature of its business and the needs of its stakeholders. Accordingly, as the Corporation
belicves that it will have substantially fulfilled the proponent’s request for a corporate responsibility report in
2008, though in a form of its own design tailored to its business, the Board recommends shareholders vote against
the shareholder proposal.

Comments:

The Board of Directors is well aware of and recognizes the growing investor demand for comprehensive reporting
on environmental, social, and governance {ESG) performance, as referred 1o in the proposal. As was done in the
2005 Annual Report, the Corporation has highlighted in the 2006 Annual Report Loblaw’s commitment to
responsible corporate citizenship. The Report discusses actions and initiatives demonstrating Loblaw’s
commitment to corporate responsibility as well as how Loblaw and its employees contribute to and support the

communities they serve.

The Corporation has had in place for many years an Environment Policy to address its ‘environmental footprint” as
referred to in the proposal. Loblaw’s commitment to respect the environment in a sustainable way is demonstrated
through its efforts in such areas as environmental awareness management, energy efficiency and waste
management programs involving source reduction, diversion and appropriate disposal. In support of its

cnvironmental commitments, Loblaw has a senior officer dedicated to environmental issues.

Loblaw requires all employees to adhere to its Code of Business Conduct, available on its website, which addresses
Loblaw’s expectations regarding human rights, Loblaw’s commitment to being a socially and environmentally
responsible company, and the health and well-being of employees and customers as a priority.

Loblaw also has a Supplier Code of Conduct (available on its website) to which all Loblaw vendors are expected to
adhcere. The Code addresses Loblaw’s environmental commitment, labour and employment practices, food and

product safety, and other issues.
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The Corporation has also been a leader in developing new and alternative products to satisfy consumer’s
environmental or health preferences. Loblaw’s President’s Choice GREEN program, initially launched in 1988, is
being re-launched this spring with exciting new additons addressing current environmental best practices. The
Corporation’s President’s Choice Qrganics program, launched in 2001, is the largest third party certified organic
line of products in Canada with ever 300 available products. Loblaw’s continued focus on healthy and nurritious
food products is evident through its ever-expanding product offerings under the President’s Choice Mini Chefs and
President’s Choice Blue Menu programs.

Loblaw is committed to active participadion in the communities it serves. Together with its employees, Loblaw
supports and contributes to local organizations through numerous charitable fundraising activities. Through the
President’s Choice Children’s Charity, $9.4 million was raised in 2006, which will go toward helping more than
765 families across Canada with children who are physically or developmentally challenged. Additionally, Loblaw
is associated with the W. Garfield Weston Foundation, a private charitable foundation that directs grants to specific
organizations primarily within the fields of education and the environment.

With respect to the expense of preparing a report using the GR13 Guidelines, the Corporation’s view in that those
Guidelines are voluminous and complex and this, costly to implement. The Corporation’s intention is to provide a
report that it believes will demonstrate to shareholders that the company is forward-looking and has management
in place to address sustainability strategies, without expending the substantial time, human resources and funds
that would be required to conform its report to the GRI3 Guidelines.

The Corporation and management will continue to assess and evaluate shareholder demand for sustainability
reporting as the link between long-term value creation and sustainability performance grows ever stronger, and
will continue to report to its shareholders on its corporate responsibility on a regular basis, whether through its
Annual Report or other disclosure documents or by means of a new, stand-alone report.

As a result, given that the Corporation’s current and past practices are consistent with the intent and spirit of the
proposal, the Board belicves that a report in the format set out in the GRI3 Guidelines is not necessary and
therefore unanimously recommends voting Against the shareholder proposal.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Information Form contains forward-looking statements which reflect management’s
expectations and are contained in discussions regarding the Company’s objectives, plans, goals,
aspirations, strategies, potential future growth, results of operations, performance and business prospects
and opportunities. Forward-looking statements are typically, though not always, identified by words or

LRI » LA T

phrases such as “anticipates”, “expects”, “believes”, “cstimates”, “intends” and other similar expressions.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees, but only predictions. Although the Company believes
that these statements are based on information and assumptions which are current, reasonable and complete,
these slatcments are necessarily subject to a number of factors that could cause actual results to vary
significantly from the estimates, projections and intentions. Such differcnces may be caused by factors
which include, but are not limited to, changes in consumer spending and preferences, heightened
competition including new competitors and expansion of current competitors, changes in the Company’s or
its competitors’ pricing strategics, the ability to realize anticipated cost savings and efficiencies, including
those resulting from restructuring, inventory liquidation and other cost reduction and simplification
initiatives, the ability to execute restructuring plans, implement strategics and introduce innovative products
successfully and in a timely manner, changes in the markets for the inventory intended for liquidation and
changes in the expected realizable value and costs associated with the liquidation, unanticipated, increased
or decreased costs associated with the announced initiatives, including those related to compensation costs,
the Company’s relationship with its employees, results of labour negotiations including the terms of future
collective bargaining agreements, changes to the regulatory environment in which the Company operates
now or in the future, changes in the Company’s tax liabilities, either through changes in tax laws or futurc
assessments, performance of third party service providers, public health events, the ability of the Company
to attract and retain key executives and supply and quality control issues with vendors. The calculation of
the goodwill impairment charge described in this AIF involves the estimation of several variables, including
but not limited to market multiples, projected future sales and earnings, capital investment, discount rates,
terminal growth rates and the fair values of those assets and liabilities being valued. The Company cautions
that this list of factors is not exhaustive.

The assumptions applied m making the forward-looking staternents contained in this Annual Information
Form include the following: economic conditions do not materially change from those expected, patterns of
consumer spending are reasonably consistent with historical trends, no new significant competitors enter our
market nor does any existing competitor unexpectedly significantly increase its presence, neither the
Company’s nor its competitors’ pricing strategies change materially, the Company successfully offers new
and innovative products and executes its strategies as planned, anticipated cost savings and efficicncies are
realized as planned, continuing future restructuring activities arc cffectively cxecuted and executed in a
timely manner, costs associated with the liquidation of inventory are not higher or fower than expccted, the
Company’s assumptions regarding average compensation costs and average years of scrvice for cmployees
affected by the simplification initiatives arc materially correct, the Company docs not significantly change
its approach to its current restructuring activities, there 1s no material amount of excess inventory in the
Company’s supply chain, there arc no material work stoppages and the performance of third-party service
providers is in accordance with expectations.

These estimates and assumptions may change in the future due to uncertain competitive and cconomic
market conditions or changes in business strategies. This list of factors and other risks and uncertaintics are
discussed in the Company’s matcrials filed with the Canadian sccurities regulatory authorities from time to
time, including the Risks and Risk Management section of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
included in the Company’s 2006 Annual Report.
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Potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors carcfully in evaluating these
forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on them. The forward-looking
statements included in this Annual Information Form, are made only as of the date of this Annual
Information Form and the Company disclaims any obligation or intention to publicly update these forward-
looking statements to reflect new information, future events or otherwise.  In light of these risks,
uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events contained in these forward-looking statements
may or may not occir. The Company cannot assure that projected results or events will be achieved.

The information in this Annual Information Form is current to December 30, 2006, unless otherwise
noted. All amounts are in Canadian dollars.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Incorporation

Loblaw Companies Limited was incorporated on January 18, 1956, although portions of its business
originated beforc 1900. It was continucd under the Carnada Business Corporations Act by certificate of
continuance dated May 7, 1980. The registered office of the Company is located at 22 St, Clair Avenue
East, Toronto, Canada M4T 287. The National Head Office and Store Support Centre of the Company is
located at 1 President’s Choice Circle, Brampton, Canada, L6Y 585,
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Intercorporate Relationships

Loblaw Companies Limited is a holding company which carrics on its business through its subsidiarics.
A list of the subsidiaries of the Company that carry on its principal business operations is given below. In
each case, thc Company owns 100% of the voting and non-voting sccurities either directly or indirectly.
Throughout this Annual Information Form, Loblaw Companics Limited and its subsidiarics are
collectively referred to as the “Company™.

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incorporation
Atlantic Wholesalers Ltd, New Brunswick
Fortinos Supermarket Ltd. Ontario
Glenhuron Bank Limited Barbados
Kelly, Douglas & Company, Limited British Columbia
Loblaw Brands Limited Canada
Loblaw Financial Holdings Inc. Ontario
Loblaw Properties Limited Ontario
Loblaw Properties West Inc. Canada
Loblaws Inc. Ountario
Loblaws Supermarkets Limited Ontario
National Grocers Co. Ltd. Ontario
President’s Choice Bank Canada
Provigo Distribution Inc. Quebec
Provigo Inc, Quebec
Provigo Properties Limited Canada
Provigo Quebec Inc, Quebec
Westfair Foods Ltd. Ontario
Zchrmart Inc. Ontario

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

The past three years were years of evolution as Loblaw continued to transform into a company that can be
truly compctitive over the long term.

Senior Management Change and Strategies

2006 saw a number of significant changes in the operations of the Company, including the change in
senior leadership. Galen G. Weston was appointed Executive Chairman of the Company’s Board of
Directors (“Board™), Mark Foote became President and Chief Mcrchandising Officer and Allan L.
Leighton joined as Deputy Chairman. Early in 2007, Dalton Philips joined the Company as Chief
Operating Officer and William M. Wells will be joining the Company as Chief Financial Officer effective
Apnil, 2007. The management team commenced a review of the Company in the latter half of 2006 which
focused on key drivers of the business such as fresh food presentation, maximizing employee
engagement, the performance of retailing basics and customer satisfaction.
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New management embarked on an initiative to simplify the orgamization by more clearly defining
accountabilitics, eliminating duplication and establishing consistent, simple and efficient processes. The
Company also planned and developed organizational transition, focusing on redesigned processcs and a
lcaner administrative strcture.

The Company is focused on simplifying its organizational structure, improving rctailing basics such as
availability and customer focus, innovation as a competitive advantage and executing the Company’s
“Formula for Growth”.

Supply Chain

In 2005, the Company began to restructurc its supply chain in an cffort to creatc a national logistics
platform. Challenges were experienced with conversions to new systems and this had a negative effect on
storc service levels for general merchandise products and drugstore. In addition, challenges were
experienced with the startup of a new third-party owned and operated warchouse and distribution centre
for eastern Canada which handles gencral merchandisc and certain drugstore products, primarity health
and beauty care products.

In 2006, the Company continued with its efforts to restructure its supply chain function. In part because of
the factors described above, this proved to bc more complex and costly than originally anticipated. By
the end of 2006, the supply chain stabilized and delivered improved service levels.

Also in 2006, following a review of its inventory levels, the Company identified certain excess inventory,
primarily gencral merchandise. The Company decided to proceed with the liquidation of this inventory,

and engaged a third party to assist with the process.

Labour and Employment Matters

In 2006 a new four-year collective agreement was successfully negotiated with members of some Ontario
locals of the United Food and Commercial Workers union and ratified. The agrecement enables the
Company to convert 44 stores in Ontario to the Real Canadian Supersiore banner or food stores with
cquivalent labour cconomics and the flexibility to invest in additional store labour where appropriate.

Other Restructuring Activitics

In 2005, the Company cstablished a new National Head Office and Store Support Centre in Brampton,
Ontario. The Company consolidated several regional offices and rclocated the general merchandise
operations from Calgary, Alberta to the National Head Office and Store Support Centre.

As part if its asscssment of store operations, in the fourth quarter of 2006, management approved plans to
closc 19 underperforming stores in Quebec, mainly within the Provigo banner, 8 stores in the Atlantic
region and 24 wholesale outlets. These closures are expected to be completed in 2007.

Early in 2007, the Company approved and announced the restructuring of its merchandising and store
operations into more strcamlined functions. This followed a thorough review of the retail and
merchandising functions and processes across the Company. This action resulted in the announcement of
the elimination of 800 - 1,000 positions in the National Head Office and Store Support Centre and
regional offices.
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Financial Performance

During thc last three years, total sales increased at a cumulative average annual rate of 4.6%. The square
footage of corporate and franchised stores increased at cumulative average annual growth rates of
approximately 4.4% and 4.0%, respectively, over the same period. The number of corporate stores over
the peniod increased marginally from 646 to 672. The number of franchised stores also increased
marginally from 397 to 405 over the same pertod. The average store size for both corporate stores and
franchised stores has increased by 7.1% and 5.4% respectively over the last three years as the Company
has generally moved to larger store formats.

Over the past three years, the Company continued to cxpand and improve its asset base and to reinvest in
existing asscts in order to position the Company for sustainable future growth. During this period,
cumulative capital investment, funded through cash flows from operating and financing activities, was
$3.35 billion, comprised of $0.937 billion, $1.156 billion and $1.258 billion in fiscal years 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company recorded a non-cash charge of $800 million related to the
impairment of the goodwill associated with its acquisition of the Provigo business in 1998. This non-cash
goodwill impairment charge is cxpected to be adjusted if necessary in the first half of 2007.

Further information on the Company’s financial performance can be found in the Company’s other filings
including the Management’s Discussion and Analysis scction of the Company’s 2006 Annual Report
(“MD&A™). This information is incorporated by reference and is available at www . sedar.com or
www.loblaw.ca.

Products and Services

The Company is Canada’s largest food distributor and a leading provider of general merchandise,
drugstorc and financial products and services. Traditional food offerings remain at the core of the
Company’s business. The Company primarily offers four distinct store formats: Superstore, Great Food,
Hard Discount and Wholesale. The Company pursues a stratcgy of enhancing profitability on a market-
by-market basis by selecting the best store format for the market. This multi-format approach enables the
Company to scrve a greater variety of consumers, ensure products arc “priced right” and place the optimal
ofterings in the right markets. The Company has focused and will continue to focus on two key aspects
of its food offering: fresh perception and product availability. In 2006 the Company formed positive
action groups to develop and implement plans to help ensure excellence in these key areas.

Control Label Program

The Company offers a strong and innovative control label program for both its food and everyday
houschold needs. This program helps to create customer loyalty and ensure price competitiveness. Qver
the past three ycars, the Company continued to add products to its control label program which, now
provides over 7,900 products in the food and everyday household needs categories. In 2006, over 2,000
ncw control label products were launched, including over 1,400 new general merchandise products.

The Company strives to offer products and services centered around the theme of “Health, Home and
Wholcsome”. To this end, the Company has been a leader in the offering of health-oriented control label
products. The Company offers a range of certified organic products and now has approximately 302 of
those products under the President’s Choice Organics label.  In 2004, the Company launched the
President’s Choice Mini Chefs line of healthy-choice products for children. Early in 2005 the Company
introduced its President’s Choice Blue Menu line of products for health and nutrition conscious
consumers and now offers over 250 such products.
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In April of 2006, the Joe Fresh Style brand of adult apparel was launched in 40 stores with positive
customer response. By the end of the year, Joe Fresh Style apparcl was in almost 100 stores in all regions
of the country. To facilitate this launch, the Company redesigned the Joe Fresh Style shopping
cnvironment with wide aisles, a central cash desk and fitting rooms. New fixtures and a signing program
were also introduced. The Company is pursuing the continued expansion of the Joe Fresh Style brand by
expanding the number of stores in which it is available as well as launching children’s wear and
accessorics in 2007.

The Company is also focused on its growing linc of PC Home branded houseware products. A PC Home
Insider’s Report was issued in 2006 that featured over 100 items for the home including the kitchen, bed
and bath, and home décor. In 2006, the Company distributed six issucs of the Insiders Report that
reached over 10 million homes.

The Company also provides gas bars adjacent to a number of its stores and has increased its gas bar
presence in eastern Canada over the past three years.

Financial Services

The strength of the Company’s control label program has also cnabled the Company to expand its
President’s Choice brand to financial services. Since its launch in 1998, the number of customers using
President’s Choice Financial services has grown and the range of products and services now available
includes chequing and savings accounts, mortgages, RRSPs, loans and lines of credit. These services arc
provided by the direct banking division of a major Canadian chartered bank. President’s Choice Bank, a
subsidiary of the Company, launched the President’s Choice Financial MasterCard® in March 2001
throughout Canada except Quebec, where it was launched in February 2004. As at Deccmber 30, 2006,
approximately $1.25 billion of credit card receivables had been securitized and $321 million of
receivables were held by President’s Choice Bank.

The Company offers PC Financial auto and home insurance through its subsidiary PC Financial
Insurance Agency Inc. in select Canadian markets including Ontario (launched in 2004), Quebec and
Alberta (both launched in 2005). In 2005, the Company introduced two additional insurance products
through PC Financial Insurance Agency Inc. to its auto and home insurance offerings. PC Financial pet
insurance for dogs and cats, which i1s underwritten by SecuriCan General Insurance Company, is currently
available in each province and territory except for Quebec and New Brunswick. PC Financial travel
insurance, which is underwritten by American Home Assurance Company, 1s currently available in all
Provinces and Territories except for Quebec.

In late 2005, the Company introduced the PC Mobile line of prepaid cellular phone services and related
accessories. PC Mobile services are provided in conjunction with Bell Mobility®.

Further information on trends affecting the Company and the Company’s strategics can be found in the
MD&A, which is incorporated by reference.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Operations

Loblaw, a subsidiary of George Weston Limited, 1s Canada’s largest food distributor and a leading
provider of general merchandise, drugstore and financial products and services. Loblaw is committed to
providing consumers across the country with a one-stop destination in meeting their food and cveryday
houschold nceds. For 50 years, the Company has supplied the Canadian market with innovative products
and services through corporate, franchised and associated stores. Corporate owned store banners include
Atlantic Superstore, Dominion (in Newfoundland and Labrador), Extra Feods, Loblaws, Maxi, Maxi &
Cie, Provigo, the Real Canadian Superstore and Zehrs and wholesale outlets operating as Cash & Carry,
Presto and The Real Canadian Wholesale Club. The Company’s franchised and associated stores operate
under the trade names Atlantic SaveEasy, Fortinos, no frills, SuperValu, Vatu-mart and Your Independent
Grocer. The store network is supported by 26 Company operated and 2 third-party warchouse facilities
located across Canada, as well as temporary storage facilitics when required.

In addition, the Company makecs available to consumers President’s Choice Financial services and
products, including the President’s Choice Financial MasterCard®, and PC Financial auto, home, travel
and pet insurance, PC Mobile phone service, as well as a loyalty program known as PC points.

Geographic and Banner Summary

For the recently completed year, the Company operated across Canada as set out below:

Corporate Franchised Associated Independent

Stores Stores Stores Accounts | Warehouses
Newfoundland and Labrador 16 7 10 483 2
Prince Edward Island 5 3 1 129 -
Nova Scotia 36 21 i 526 2
New Brunswick 22 23 6 276 2
Quebec 251 21 330 2,763 4
Ontario 171 262 14 98 6
Manitoba 25 5 36 864 1
Saskatchewan 13 14 24 669 2
Alberta 69 4 12 1,514 5
Northwest Territories 2 - 1 1 -
Yukon 1 2 - - -
British Columbia 4] 43 i6 - 2
Total 672 405 451 7.323 26
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The following table scts out the distribution of the Company’s store formats and the banners associated
with cach format.

Corporate | Franchised Assoctated
Stores Stores Stores
Superstore .
Atlantic Superstore 53
Dominion* (in Newfoundland and Labrador) 14
The Real Canadian Superstore 97
Great Food
Atlantic SaveEasy 1 44 7
Fortinos 20
Loblaws 91
Provigo 80 21 4
SuperValu 1 i5
Valu-mart 57 1
Your Independent Grocer 50 1
Zehrs 50
Other 2 37 282
Hard Discount
Extra Foods 79 27
Maxi 96
Maxi & Cie 16
No Frills 134
Wholcsale
Cash & Carry 35 139
Presto 20
The Real Canadian Wholesale Club 37
Total 672 405 451

* Trademark used under license

The average store size at year end 2006 for corporate stores and franchised stores was 57,400 and 27,400
square feet, respectively. The average storc size for both corporate storcs and franchised stores has
increased by 7.1% and 5.4% respectively over the last three years as the Company has gencrally moved to
larger store formats.

Whenever practical, the Company follows a strategy of purchasing land for future store locations. Al year
end 2006, the Company owned 72% of the real estate on which its corporate stores are located, as well as
various propertics under development or held for future development. The Company’s owned properties
are essentially unencumbered, with only $23 million in mortgage debt on total fixed assets including real
estate, having a net book value of approximately $8 billion at year end 2006. The total square footage of
the corporate stores is approximately 38.6 million square fect.

A significant portion of the Company’s stores are owned and operated by independent franchisees.
Franchisces enter into agrcements with the Company that generally require the franchisee to purchase
inventory from the Company and pay certain fees in exchange for services provided by the Company and
for the right to use certain trademarks owned by the Company. Services available to the franchisecs by
the Company include store set-up, marketing support, accounting, employee development and pension
and benefit administration. Independent franchisees generally lease the land and store building from the
Company and, if cligible, may obtain financing through a structure involving independent trusts to
facilitate the purchase of the majority of their inventory and fixed asscts, consisting mainly of fixtures and
cquipment.
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Competitive Conditions

The retail industry in Canada is a changing and competitive market. Consumer needs drive industry
changes, which are impacted by changing demographic and cconomic trends such as changes in
disposable income, ethnic diversity, nutritional awarencss and time availability. Over the past several
years, consumers have demanded more choice, value and convenience.

The Company competes with non-traditional competitors as well as traditional supermarkets. Recent
industry changes include the cxpansion of non-traditional competitors, such as mass merchandisers,
warchouse clubs, drugstores, limited assortinent stores, discount stores, convenience stores, and specialty
storcs, all of which continue to increase their offerings of products typically associated with traditional
supermarkets. Over the past several years, there has been an increase in the number of retail outlets that
traditionally exclusively fecatured food, general merchandise or drugstore items that now offer a sclection
of all these items, resulting in what is commonly referred to in the industry as “channel blurring”. This
evolution of the retail landscape presents a number of issues for traditional grocers: the necd to reposition
conventional supermarkets to either expand or, conversely, better focus their offerings; the rcality of
lower prices offcred by discount retailers; and the need to reduce operating and labour costs in order to
maintain carnings in light of lower prices and increased competition.

Although much work is to be done to successfully implement the strategies described above, the
Company belicves that its competitive position in Canada remains strong. The Company focuses and will
continue to focus on the value proposition of its banners and ensuring the right format is in the right
market. In addition, its strong and innovative control label offering promotes customer loyalty and allows
pricing flexibility with respect to national brands.

Customers
The Company is not dependent upon a small number of customers or any single customer.
Products and Services

The Company has developed a successful line of control label products and services that are sold or made
available in its corporate, franchised and associated stores and arc available on a limited basis to certain
independent customers. The Company’s experienced product development team works closcly with
third-party vendors in developing and manufacturing products for its control label brands.

There are currently over 7,900 control label products marketed by the Company under brand names
including President’s Choice, PC, President’s Choice Organics, President’s Choice Blue Menu,
President’s Choice Mini Chefs, no name, Joe Fresh Style, Club Pack, GREEN, EXACT, Teddy’s Choice
and Life@Home and. In 2006, over 2,000 ncw control label products were introduced including 1,400
general merchandise products.

In recent years a sclection of general merchandise items has been developed under the PC and Life@
Home brands as part of the expansion into gencral merchandise departments. These products arc sourced
world wide and cater to all arcas of thc home including bed, bath, kitchen, home decor and outdoor living.

In March of 2006, the Joe Fresh Style brand of adult apparel was launched in 40 stores with positive
customer response. By the end of the year Joe Fresh Style apparcl was in almost 100 stores in all rcgions
of the Company. To facilitate this launch, the Company redesigned the Joe Fresh Style shopping
environment with wide aislcs, a central cash desk and fitting rooms. New fixtures and a signing program
were also introduced. The Company is pursuing the continued expansion of the Joe Fresh Style brand by
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expanding the number of stores in which it is available as well as launching children’s wear and
accessories in 2007,

The Company offers President’s Choice Financial banking services and products, which are provided by
the direct banking division of a major Canadian chartered bank.

The President’s Choice Financial MasterCard® is offered throughout Canada by President’s Choice
Bank. Third-party service providers process credit card transactions and provide a call centre
(services/support) in addition to credit and fraud momtoring for the President’s Choice Financial
MasterCard®.

The Company offers PC Financial auto and home insurance through its subsidiary PC Financial
Insurance Agency Inc. to select Canadian markets including Ontario (launched in 2004), Quebec and
Alberta (both launched in 2005). PC Financial pet insurance for dogs and cats, which is underwritten by
SecuriCan General Insurance Company, is currently available in each Province and Territory except for
Quebec and New Brunswick. PC Financial travel insurance, which is underwritten by American Home
Assurance Company, is currently available in all Provinces and Terntories except for Quebec,

The use of many of the products and services offered through President’s Choice Financial allows
customers to earn PC points through a loyaity program which are redeemable towards frec grocerics and

other rewards.

The Company has introduced the PC Mobile line of prepaid ccllular phone services and related
accessories. PC Mobile services are provided in conjunction with Bell Mobility®.

Intellectual Property

The Company has established procedures to register or otherwise protect its imtellectual property
including the trademarks used in its store-trading or banner names and those associated with its control
label programs. Store-trading or banner names are associated with specific retail concepts and are
important to both corporate store and franchised store operations. Franchisees use the banner names
associated with their franchised program pursuant to licensing arrangements. The Company’s trademarks
used in connection with its control label program are discussed under the section “Products and Services”.
Other intellectual property of the Company includes domain names, packaging designs and product
formulations and specifications. The intellectual property rights associated with and used in connection
with the Company’s business are important assets and are defended vigorously. The trademarks of the
Company when used in this Annual Information Form are presented in italics.

Supply Chain

The Company’s supply chain is responsible for the flow of goods and information between its vendors
and suppliers and the Company’s distribution centres and ultimately to its stores. In some cases certain
goods flow directly to the Company’s stores from the vendors. The Company continuously evaluates its
methods of distribution including its relationship with vendors and suppliers, technology, facilitics and
modes of transportation. When appropriate, the Company implements changes to its supply chain
infrastructure to ensure a continued reliable and cost efficient system.

The Company’s supply chain and distribution network is comprised of a total of 26 owned and leased
warehouses and distribution centres. Third-party logistics services are also used, including those in
connection with a dedicated general merchandise warehouse and distribution centre located in Pickering,
Ontario. The Company uses various modes of transportation including its own trucking fleet and third-
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party commeon carricrs, railways and ships. The Company is not dependent on any one third-party
transport provider.

Over the past several years, the Company has faced challenges with respect to its supply chain and in
particular with on-shelf availability. These challenges are being addressed in part by ensuring that the
Company’s supply chain opcrates as a single national function, focusing on end to end supply chain
effectiveness including effective forecasting, delivery, receiving and replenishment.

A new food distribution center in Ajax, Ontario is scheduled to open in 2008.

Seasonality

The Company’s operations as they relate to food, specifically inventory levels, sales volume and product
mix, are impacted to some degree by certain holiday periods in the year. Certain general merchandise
offerings are subject to more scasonal fluctuations.

Foreign Operations

Glenhuron Bank Limited, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of the Company with operations in
Barbados, is engaged in financial services including cash management and treasury-related services. The
Company is not dependent on these operations.

Employees

As of December 30, 2006, the Company and its franchisces together employ over 139,000 full-time and
part-time employees. A significant majority of the Company’s store level and distribution centre
employees are unionized,

Lending

In the course of providing the President’s Choice Financial MasterCard® to its customers, President’s
Choice Bank grants credit to its customers with the intention of increasing the loyalty of those customers
and the Company’s profitability. Board approved risk management policies provide governance and
oversight to cffectively manage and control existing or potential credit risks. In order to minimize the
associated credit risk, President’s Choice Bank employs stringent credit scoring techniques, actively
monitors the credit card portfolio and reviews techniques and technology that can improve the
effectiveness of its collection process. In addition, thesc receivables are dispersed among a large,
diversified group of credit card customers.

Environmental and Health and Safety Matiers

The Company has cnvironmental, health and workplace safety programs in place and has established
policics and procedures aimed at ensuring compliance with applicable environmental legislative
requircments. To this end, the Company cmploys cnvironmental risk assessments and audits using
internal and extemal rcsources together with employee awarencss programs throughout its operating
locations. The Company endeavours to be socially and environmentally responsible, and recognizes that
the competitive pressures for cconomic growth and cost efficiency must be integrated with sound
environmental stewardship and ecological considerations. Environmental protection requirements do not
and are not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial performance.

The Environmental, Health and Safety Committee of the Board of Directors receives regular reporting
from management addressing current and potential future issues, identifying new regulatory concerns and
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related communication efforts. The Company’s dedicated Environmental Affairs staff work closely with
the opcrations to help ensure corporate requirements are met.

Community Support

Acting with its employees, the Company supports and contributes to local organizations through its
various operating divisions by sponsoring numerous charitable fundraising activities and initiating work
expericnce programs for the physically and developmentally challenged. The Company operates
President’s Choice Children’s Charity which is dedicated to helping children who are physically or
developmentally challenged.

Food Safcty and Labelling

The Company is subject to potential liabilities connected with its business operations, including potential
cxposures associated with product defects, food safety and product handling. Such liabilities may arise in
relation to the storage, distribution and display of products and, with respect to the Company’s control
label products, in relation to the production, packaging and design of products,

A majority of the Company’s sales are generated from food products and the Company could be
vulncrable in the event of a significant outbreak of food-borne illness or increased public health concerns
in connection with certain food products. Such an event could negatively affect the Company’s financial
performance. Procedures arc in place to manage such events, should they occur. These procedures
identify risks, provide clear communication to employces and consumers and are aimed at ensuring that
potentially harmful products are expeditiously removed from inventory. The ability of these procedures
to address such events i1s dependent on their successful exccution. Food safety related liability exposures
are insured by the Company’s insurance program, In addition, the Company has food safety procedures
and programs which address safe food handling and preparation standards. The Company endeavours to
employ best practices for the storage and distribution of food products and also actively supports
consumer awarcness of safc food handling and consumption.

The Company strives to cnsure its control label products have informative nutritional labelling so that
today’s health conscious consumer can make informed choices.

Privacy and Ethics

The Company 15 commutted to managing its activities in an cthical and proper manner in all respects. The
Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct setting out the Company’s expectations for the ethical
and appropnate behaviour of all its dircetors and cmployees. In addition, the Company has established an
Ethics and Business Conduct Committee to monitor compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and
deal with conduct and cthics issues as they anse. The Company also has a Privacy Policy that sets out the
Company’s commitment of protecting the privacy of personal information,

The Company encourages reporting of unethical conduct and has established a toll-free anonymous
response line, which can be used by employees to report suspected accounting, internal control or
auditing irregularities and uncthical behaviour impacting the Company.

The Company has adopted a Vendor Code of Conduct which sets out the Company’s expectations of its
vendor community n the areas of social, environmental and legal compliance.

Loblaw Companies Limited 14
2006 Annual Information Form




Risks and Risk Management

Each year, the Company performs an Entcrprisc Risk Assessment (“ERA™) which identifies the key risks
facing the Company and evaluates the risk management effectiveness for cach of these risks. The
assessment is primarily carried out through interviews with senior management, who assess the potentiaf
impact of risks and the likelihood that negative impact will occur. The results of the ERA are used to
prioritize risk management activities, allocate resources effectively and inform overall business direction.
The Audit Committee receives a report on the ERA. The risks identified for 2006 included: Information
Technology, Customer Satisfaction, Excess Inventory, Food Safety, Human Resources, Competition and
Labour Relations.

A description of these and other risks are included in the MD&A on pages 27 through 33 of the
Company’s 2006 Financial Report, included in the Company’s Annual Report, which is incorporated

hercin by refercnce.

Further information on the Company’s business can be found in the MD&A. This information is
incorporated herein by reference.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND MARKET FOR SECURITIES

Common Share Capital

Loblaw Companies Limited’s share capital is composed entirely of common shares with voting rights of
on¢ vote per common share. The holders of common shares are entitled, subject to the rights, privileges,
restrictions and conditions attaching to any other class of shares of the Company, to reccive any dividend
declared by the Company and to receive the remaining property of the Company upon dissolution. As at
December 30, 2006, there were 274,173,564 common shares issued and outstanding and 5,696 registered
common sharcholders. There are an unlimited number of authonzed common shares.

Common Share Trading Price and Volume

Loblaw Companies Limited’s common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange and trade under
the share symbol “L”. The monthly highs and lows and average daily volume by month for Loblaw
Companies Limited’s common shares for the year ended December 30, 2006 were as follows:

Average Daily
High Low Yolume by Month

Month (% per common share) ($ per common share) {(in shares}
January 58.10 52.85 691,368
February 58.69 54.05 401,429
March 58.50 55.10 213,016
April 57.83 54.05 238,151
May 57.30 53.06 340,928
June 54.76 51.50 257,786
July 53.45 48.45 326,649
August 52.30 47.08 385,331
September 51.74 47.26 458,899
October 48.17 4522 388,795
November 47.99 44.92 537,508
December 51.00 4725 350,713
Loblaw Companies Limited 15
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Loblaw Companies Limited’s Medium Term Notes (“MTN”) are not listed or quoted on a recognized
exchange.”

Credit Ratings (Canadian Standards)

Loblaw Companies Limited’s credit ratings for its securities are as follows:

Dominion Bond Rating Standard &
Service Poor’s
Commercial Paper R-1 {low) A-1 (low)
Medium Term Notes A A-
Other Notes and Debentures A A-

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company’s Medium Term Notes and Debentures were downgraded
by Dominion Bond Rating Service (“DBRS”) to “A” from “A (high)” and the Commercial Paper rating
was confirmed at “R-1 (low)”. In both cases the trend was changed to “stable™ from “negative”. During
the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company’s long-term corporate credit and commercial paper ratings were
downgraded by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P™) to “A-“ from “A” and to “A-1 (low)” from “A-1 (mid)”,
respectively. The Company was removed from CreditWatch with negative implications and the outlook
was changed to “stable™.

Subsequent to year end, DBRS placed the Company’s Debenturcs and Medium Term Notes Under
Review with Negative Implications and at the same time, confirmed the Company’s Commercial Paper
rating at its current level with a “stable™ trend; and S&P placed the Company’s long term corporate credit
and commercial paper ratings on CreditWatch with negative implications.

The rating organizations base the ratings on quantitative and qualitative considerations which are relevant
for Loblaw Companies Limited. These ratings are intended to give an indication of the risk that Loblaw
Companics Limited will not fulfill its obligations in a timely manner. These ratings are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold sccurities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time
by the rating organization.

A definition of the categories of each rating has been obtained from the respective rating orgamization’s
website and is outlined below:

Deminion Bond Rating Service

Commercial Paper

Rating: R-1 {low): Short-term debt rated R-1 {low) is of satisfactory credit quality. The overall strength
and outlook for key liquidity, debt, and profitability ratios is not normally as favourable as with higher
rating categorics, but these considerations are still respectable. Any qualifying negative factors that exist
arc considered manageable, and the entity is normally of sufficient size to have some influence in its
industry.

Loblaw Companies Limited 16
2006 Annual Information Form




Long Term Debt (Medium Term Notes, Other Notes and Debentures)

Rating: A: Long-term debt rated "A" is of satisfactory credit quality. Protection of interest and principal
is still substantial, but the degrec of strength is less than that of AA rated entitics. While "A" is a
respectable rating, entities in this category are considered to be more susceptible to adverse economic
conditions and have greater cyclical tendencies than higher-rated securities.

Some DBRS rating categories arc appended with one of threc rating trends - "Positive”, "Stable”, or
"Negative”, The rating trend helps to give the investor an understanding of DBRS's opinion regarding the
outlook for the rating in question. However, the investor must not assume that a positive or negative trend
necessarily indicates that a rating change is imminent. Ratings which are "Under Review™ will be
qualified with one of the following three provisional statements: "ncgative implications”, "positive
implications", or "developing implications". These qualifications indicate DBRS's preliminary evaluation
of the impact on the credit quality of the security/issuer. Although the three provisional statements may
provide some guidance to subscribers, situations and potential rating implications may vary widely and
DBRS's final rating conclusion may depart from its preliminary assessment. For each of these three
provisional statements, further due diligence has to be completed in order to determine the applicable
rating. In this respect, and while the previous rating may no longer be appropriate and can no longer be
relied upon to gauge credit quality, the three provisional statements are an attempt to provide initial
guidance as to possible rating outcomes after the due diligence process has been completed and DBRS
has finalized its view.

Standard & Poor’s

Commercial Paper

Rating A-1 {(low): A short-term obligation rated 'A-1' is rated in the highest category by S&P. The
obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is strong. Within this category,
certain obligations are designated with a plus sign (+). This indicates that the obligor's capacity to meet its
financial commitment on these obligations 1s extremely strong.

Long Term Debt (Medium Term Notes, Other Notes and Debentures)

Rating A -: An obligation rated 'A' is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in
circumstances and cconomic conditions than obligations in higher-rated categories. However, the
obligor's capacity to mect its financial commitment on the obligation is still strong.

An S&P rating outlook asscsses the potential direction of a fong-term credit rating over the intermediate
term (typically six months to two yecars). In determining a rating outlook, consideration is given to any
changes in the economic and/or fundamental business conditions. An outlook 1s not necessarily a
precursor of a rating change or CreditWatch action. A negative outlook means that a rating may be
lowered.

An S&P CreditWatch highlights the potential direction of a short- or long-term rating. It focuses on
identifiable cvents and short-term trends that causc ratings to be placed under special survcillance by S&P
analytical staff. These may include mergers, recapitalizations, voter referendums, regulatory action, or
anticipated operating developments. Ratings appear on CreditWatch when such an event or a deviation
from an expected trend occurs and additional information is necessary to evaluate the current rating. A
listing, however, does not mean a rating change is inevitable, and whenever possible, a range of
alternative ratings will be shown. CreditWatch is not intended to include all ratings under review, and
rating changes may occur without the ratings having first appeared on CreditWatch. The "positive"
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designation means that a rating may be raised; "ncgative” mecans a rating may be lowered; and
"developing” means that a rating may be raiscd, lowered, or affirmed.

COMMON SHARE DIVIDENDS

The declaration and payment of dividends are at the discretion of the Board. Loblaw Companies
Limited’s dividend policy is to maintain a dividend payment equal to approximately 20% to 25% of the
prior year's adjusted basic net earnings per common share’, giving consideration to the year end cash
position, future cash flow requirements and investment opportunities. Currently, there is no restriction
that would prevent Loblaw Companies Limited from paying dividends at histerical levels. The amount of
cash dividends declared per share for each of the three most recently completed years is as follows:

2006 200 2004

Dividends declared per common shate 50384 $084 $0.76

Subsequent to year end 2006, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.21 cents per
common share, payable April 1, 2007,

! See Non GAAP Financial Measures, “Adjusted Basic Net Eamings per Common Share,” on p. 42 of the MD&A
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The following list of Directors and Officers 1s current to March 13, 2007.

Directors

Name, Province and Country

Principal Qccupation

of Residence

Galen G. Weston'
Ontario, Canada

Allan L. Leighton'
London, United Kingdom

Paul M. Beeston, C.M. %
Ontario, Canada

Gordon A.M, Curric?
Ontario, Canada

Camilla H. Dalglish®
Ontario, Canada

Antheny S. Fell, 0.C.°"*
Ontario, Canada

Anthony R. Graham'?*
Ontario, Canada

Nancy H.O. Lockhart, O.0Ont.’

Ontario, Canada

Pierre Michaud, C.M.*
Quebec, Canada

Thomas C. O'Neill ¥
Ontario, Canada

G. Joscph Reddington’
Arizona, USA

John D. Wetmore>*
Ontarig, Canada

Joseph H. Wright™**
Ontario, Canada

Execcutive Chairman of the Corporation

Deputy Chairman of the Corporation and of George
Woeston Limited and Chairman of Royal Mail Group
Corporate Director

Executive Vice President, Secretary and General
Counscl, George Weston Limited

Corporate Director

Chairman, RBC Capital Markets Inc., investment and
finance company

President, Wittington Investments, Limited, holding
company controlled by Mr. W.G. Weston, Chairman,
George Weston Limited

Chief Administrative Officer, Frum Development
Group, property development and management

company

Chairman, Provigo Inc., subsidiary of the Company

Corporate Director

Corporate Director

Corporate Director

Managing Partner, Barnagain Capital, investment
company
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Exccutive Committee

Audit Committee

Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation Committee
Pension and Benefits Committee

Environmental, Health and Safety Committec

Chairman of the Committee

* LB

All directors hold office until the close of the next annual meeting of the sharcholders of the Company or
until their successors are duly elected or appointed.

Officers
Name, Province and Country of Residence Principal Qccupation
Galen G. Weston Executive Chairman

Ontario, Canada

Allan L. Leighton Deputy Chairman

LLondon, United Kingdom

Mark Foote President, Chicf Merchandising Officer
Ontarto, Canada

Dalton Philips Executive Vice President,

Ontario, Canada Chief Operating Officer

William M. Wells Chief Financial Officer (Effective April, 2007)
Ontario, Canada

Robert Adams Exccutive Vice President,

Ontario, Canada Hard Discount Format

David K. Bragg Exccutive Vice President

Ontario, Canada

Mark Butler Executive Vice President,

Ontario, Canada Ontario Market

Barry K. Columb Executive Vice President

Ontarto, Canada

Daniecl Dufresne Executive Vice President,
Quebec, Canada Quebec Market
Grant Froese Exccutive Vice President,
Alberta, Canada Western Market
Andrew Jacobucci Exccutive Viee President,
Ontario, Canada Superstore Format
Loblaw Compantes Limited 20
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Joseph Jackman
Ontario, Canada

Andrew Maclsaac,
Nova Scotia, Canada

Richard P. Mavrinac
Ontario, Canada

Pcter McMahon
Ontario, Canada

Frank Rocchetti
Ontanio, Canada

Pictro Satriano
Ontario, Canada

Vince Scomiaenchi
Ontario, Canada

Robert A, Balcom
Ontario, Canada

Roy R. Conliffe,
Ontario, Canada

Karen Hanna
Ontario, Canada

Louise M. Lacchin
Ontario, Canada

Michael Lovsin
Ontario, Canada

Ann Weir
Ontario, Canada

Joseph J. Wilke
Ontario, Canada

Geoffrey H. Wilson

Executive Vice President,
Marketing

Executive Vice President,
Atlantic Market

Executive Vice President

Executive Vice President,

Supply Chain and Information Technology

Exccutive Vice President,
General Merchandise

Executive Vice President,
Food

Executive Vice President,
Great Food Format

Senior Vice President,
Secretary and General Counsel

Senior Vice President,
Labour Relations

Senior Vice President,
Human Resources

Senior Vice President,
Finance

Senior Vice President,
Drugstore and HBA

Senior Vice President,

Internal Audit and Intemal Control Compliance

Senior Vice President,
Financial Reporting & Control

Senior Vice President,

Ontario, Canada Financial Services and Investor Relations

All the foregoing directors and executive officers have held their present occupations or other positions
with the same or associated companies or organizations for the past five years except: Mr. Barry K.
Columb who was President at CitiCards Canada; Mr. Gordon A.M. Currie, who was Senior Vice
President and General Counsel of Direct Encrgy Marketing Limited and prior to that a partner at Blake,
Cassels & Graydon LLP; Mr, Mark Foote who was President, Canadian Tire Retail; Ms, Karcn Hanna
who was Senior Vice-President, Human Relations at Torstar; Mr. Andrew [acobucci who was Global
Account manager at Monitor Group; Mr. 1. Jackman who was Chairman at Pcrennial Design; Michael
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Lovsin who was Vice President, Merchandising, Cosmetics and Fragrances for Ulta Salons and previous
to that was Vice President, Category Management for Shoppers Drug Mart Corporation;, Mr. P.
McMahon, who was a senior executive at Wal-Mart Europe; Mr. T.C. O’Neill, who was Chairman of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting; Mr. Dalton Philips who was CEO at Brown, Thomas and previous
to that was COO at Wal-Mart’s international division; Mr. Frank Rocchetti who was Senior Vice-
President, Chicf Merchant at Sears Canada; Mr. P. Satriano, who was Senior Vice President at the
Loyalty Group/Air Miles; Mr. William Wells who 1s, as of the date of this Annual Information Form,
Chiet Financial Officer at Bunge Limited and prior to that held senior financial positions at McDonald’s
Corporation; and Mr. J. Wetmore who was Vice President, Contact Centre Development of IBM Americas
and formerly President and Chief Executive Officer of IBM Canada.

Mr. Wright was, from July 2005 until April 2006, a director of Hollinger Inc. In connection therewith,
since April 25, 2006, Mr. Wright has been subject to a cease trade order (with respect to trading in
sccurities of that company) applicable to all persons who were directors, officers or insiders of the
company after September 30, 2003 (the end of the period covered by the last financial statements filed by
the company).

Mr. Wright is a former director of Fantom Technologies Inc. which applied for court protection under the
Companies Creditors Arrangement Act in October, 2001, following the resignation of Mr. Wright from
the board. Mr. Wright is also a former director of Hip Interactive Corp, which was the subject of an
application for the appointment of a receiver under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act in July, 2005,
following the resignation of Mr. Wright from the board.

As at December 30, 2006, George Weston Limited beneficially owned directly or indirectly through
Weston Food Distnbution Inc. and Weston Holdings Limited 169,576,651 common shares or 61.85% of
the outstanding common shares. George Weston Limited is controlled by W. Galen Weston. Directors
and executive officers as a group beneficially owned, exercised control or had direction over less than 1%
of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company is named as a defendant in legal actions or may
commence legal actions against third parties. Currently, there is one significant action in which the
Company is named as a defendant, which is described below.

Subscquent to the year end, the Company was served with an action brought by certain bencficiaries of a
multi-cmployer pension plan in the Superior Court of Ontario. In their claim against the employers and
the trustees of the multi-cmployer pension plan, the plaintiffs claim that asscts of the multi-employer
pension plan have been mismanaged. The Company is one of the employers affected by the action. One
billion dollars of damages are claimed in the action against a total of 17 defendants. In addition, the
plaintiffs are secking to have a representative defendant appointed for the employcers of the members of
the pension plan. The action is framed as a representative action on behalf of all of the beneficiarics of
the multi employer pension plan. The action is at a very early stage and the Company intends to
vigorously defend it. Statements of Defence have not yet been filed.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s majority shareholder, George Weston Limited and its affiliates are related parties. It is
the Company’s policy to conduct all transactions and settle all balances with rclated partics on market
terms and conditions,
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Related party transactions between the Company and Weston include inventory purchases, cost sharing
agreements, real estatc matters, borrowings and lendings, income tax matters, and management
agreements. Further information on related party transactions can be found in the MD&A, which
information is incorporated by reference.

TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS

The transfer agent and registrar of the Company is Computershare Investor Services Inc. and they are
located in Toronto, Canada. '

EXPERTS

The Company’s auditors are KPMG LLP, who has prepared the Auditor’s Report to Shareholders in
respect of our audited annual consolidated financial statcments. KPMG LLP is independent of the
Company in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Ontario.

AUDIT COMMITTEE INFORMATION

The Audit Committee Charter as approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 7, 2006 is
included in Appendix A. The members of the Audit Comunittee are indicated above. All members of the
Audit Commitiee are independent and financially literate (as those terms are defined in Multilateral
Instrument 52-110¢ of the Canadian Securities Administrators) and have the following education and
experience which is relevant to their roles as Audit Committee Members:

Mr. Beeston is an FCA and the former President and CEO of Major League Baseball. He
received a B.A. from the University of Western Ontario.

Mr. O’Neill is an FCA and former Chariman of PricewaterhouscCoopers Consulting, COO of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Global, and CEQ of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Canada,
Mr. O’Neill has a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from Queen’s University.

Mr. Wetmore 15 the former President and Chief Executive Officer and also former Chief
Financial Officer of IBM Canada. He also held various senior finance positions at IBM
Americas. He has a Bachelor of Mathematics from the University of Waterloo and graduated
from the Advanced Executive Program at the Kellogg School, Northwestern University.

Mr., Wright is Managing Partner of Barnagain Capital and is a former President and Chief
Executive Officer of Swiss Bank Corporation (Canada). He received a BA from Princeton
University, magna cum laude.
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EXT

ERNAL AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees of KPMG LLP for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's
financial statements and other services for the fiscal years 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2006 2005

Actual Actual
A .riia i

udit fees , ,

Audit-related fees™ 847 o726
Tax consultant fees™ 102 65
_All other fees'™ 217 34
Total Fees 3,143 2,736

1
2)

3
18]

Audit fees include fees for services related to the audit of the Corporation's consolidated financial statements.

Audit-related fees include assurance and related services that are performed by the Corporation's auditor. These services include
accounting consultations in connection with the review of quarterly reports to shareholders, audit of pension plans, comfort letters and
the interpretation of accounting and financial reporting standards.

Tax consultant fees include fees {or assistance with tax planning, includmg commodity tax 1ssues.

Other fees for services related to risk management, internal control/compliance, legislative and/or regulatory compliance.

The Audit Committce charter provides that the Audit Committce shall pre-approve the retaining of the
auditor for any non-audit service. The Audit Committce may delegate to one or more members the
authority to pre-approve the retaining of the Auditor for any non-audit service to the extent permitted
by law.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information including directors’ and officers’ remuneration and indebtedness, principal
holders of the Company sccurities, and securities authorized for issuance under cquity compensation
plans, where applicable, is contained in the Company’s Management Proxy Circular for the Annual
and Special Meeting of sharcholders to be held May 1, 2007. Additional financial information is also
provided in the Company’s consolidated financial statements and MD&A for its most recently
completed financial year.

Additional information has been filed on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and
Retrieval (SEDAR) available online at www.sedar.com, and with the Office of the Supenntendent of
Financial Institutions (OSFI) as the primary regulator for the Company’s subsidiary, President’s
Choice Bank,

The Company’s internet address is; www.loblaw.ca

Lobla
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APPENDIX “A”

LOBLAW COMPANIES LIMITED

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

1. RESPONSIBILITY

The Audit Committec is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors of the Company
(“Board”) in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in relation to:
. the integrity of the Company’s financial statements;

. the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as they relate
to the Company’s financial statements;

. the qualifications, independence and performance of the Company’s external
auditor (the “Auditor”);

. intcrnal controt over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures;
. the performance of the Company’s internal audit function; and
J performing the additional duties set out in this Charter or otherwise delegated to

the Audit Committec by the Board.

2. MEMBERS

The Board shall appoint a minimum of three dircctors to be members of the Audit
Committee. The members of the Audit Committee shall be selected by the Board on
recommendation of the Governance, Employec Development, Nominating and
Compensation Committce of the Company, and shall be selected based upon the following,
to the extent that the following are required under applicable law:

. each member shall be an independent director; and

. each member shall be financially literate.

For the purpose of this Charter, the terms “independent” and “financially literate” shall
have the respective meanings attributed thereto in Multilateral Instrument 52-110 Audit
Committees, as the same may be amended from time to time.

3. CHAIR

Each year, the Board shall appoint one member to be Chair of the Audit Committee. If, in
any ycar, the Board docs not appoint a Chair, the incumbent Chairman shall continue in
office until a successor is appointed. The Board shall adopt and approve pertodically a
position description for the Chair which sets out his or her role and responsibilities.




TENURE

Each member shall hold office until his or her term as a member of the Audit Committec
expires or is terminated.

QUORUM, REMOVAL AND VACANCIES

A majority of the Audit Committee’s members shall constitute a quorum. Any member may
be removed and replaced at any time by the Board. The Board shall fill vacancies in the
Audit Committee by appointment from among the members of the Board. If a vacancy
exists on the Audit Commnttee, the remaining members may exercise all its powers so long
as a quorum remains in office.

DUTIES

The Audit Committee shall have the duties set out below as well as any other duties that are
specifically delegated to the Audit Committee by the Board.

(a) Appointment and Review of Auditor

The Auditor is ultimately accountable to the Audit Committee as representatives of the
shareholders. The Audit Committee has direct responsibility for overseeing the work of the
Auditor. Accordingly, thc Audit Committec shall evaluate and be responsible for the
Company’s relationship with the Auditor. Spccifically, the Audit Committee shall:

. sclect, cvaluate and nomnate the Auditor to be proposed for appointment or
reappointment, as the casc may be, by the sharcholders;

J review the Auditor’s engagement letter;

. at lcast annually, obtain and review a report by the Auditor describing:
. the Auditor’s internal quality-control procedurcs; and
. any material issues raised by the most recent internal quality-control

review, peer review, review by any independent oversight body such as
the Canadian Public Accountability Board or govemmental or
professional authorities within the preceding five years respecting one or
more independent audits carried out by the Auditor and the steps taken to
deal with any i1ssucs raised in these reviews.

(b) Confirmation of Independence of Auditor

At least annually, and before the Auditor issues its report on the annual financial statements,
the Audit Committee shall;




. ensure that the Auditor submits a formal written statement describing all
relationships between the Auditor and the Company;

. discuss with the Auditor any disclosed relationships or services that may affect
the objectivity and independence of the Auditor; and

. obtain written confirmation from the Auditor that it is objective and independent
within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct/Code of Ethics adopted
by the provincial institute or order of Chartered Accountants to which it belongs.

(c) Rotation of Engagement Partner/Lead Partners

The Audit Committee shall, after taking into account the opinions of management, evaluate
the performance of the Auditor and the engagement partner/lead partners and shall rotate the
engagement partner/lead partmers when required or necessary.

(d) Pre-Approval of Non-Audit Services

The Audit Committee shall pre-approve the retaining of the Auditor for any non-audit
service, provided that no approval shall be provided for any service that is prohibited under
the rules of the Canadian Public Accountability Board or the Independence Standards of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. Before the retaining of the Auditor for any
non-audit service, the Audit Committee shall consider the compatibility of the service with
the Auditor’s independence. The Audit Committee may pre-approve the retaining of the
Auditor for the engagement of any non-audit services by cstablishing policies and
procedures to be followed prior to the appointment of the Auditor for the provision of such
non-audit services. In addition, the Audit Committece may delegate to one or more members
the authority to pre-approve the retaining of the Auditor for any non-audit service to the
exlent permitted by applicable law.

(¢) Communications with Auditor

The Audit Committee shall meet privately with the Auditor as frequently as the Audit
Committee feels is appropriate for the Audit Committee to fulfil its responsibilitics (which
shall not be less frequently than quarterly) to discuss any items of concemn to the Audit
Committee or the Auditor, such as:

. matters that will be referred to in the Auditor’s management letter;

. whether or not the Auditor is satisficd with the quality and effectiveness of the
financial recording procedures and systems;

. the extent to which the Auditor is satisfied with the pature and scope of the
Auditor’s examination.

() Review of Audit Plan

The Audit Committee shall review a summary of the Auditor’s audit plan in advance for
cach audit.




(g) Review of Audit Fees

The Audit Committec has the direct responsibility for approving the Auditor’s fee. In
approving the Auditor’s fee, the Audit Committee should consider, among other things, the
number and nature of reports i1ssued by the Auditors, the quality of the internal controls, the
size, complexity and financial condition of the Company and the extent of internal audit and
other support provided by the Company to the Auditor.

(h) Review of Annual Audited Financial Statements

The Audit Committce shall review the annual audited financial statements, together with the
Auditor’s report thereon, before recommending them for approval by the Board, to assess
whether or not they present fairly in all material respects in accordance with GAAP the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company. The Audit
Committee shall also review the MD&A relating to the annual audited financial statements.

In conducting their revicew, the Audit Committee should:

. discuss the annual audited financial statements and MD&A with management and
the Auditor;

. consider the quality of, and not just the acceptability of, the accounting principles
apphicd, the reasonableness of management’s judgments and cstimates that have a
significant ¢ffect upon the financial statements, and the clarity of the disclosurcs
in the financial statements;

. discuss with the Auditor its report which addresses:
— all critical accounting policies and practices to be used;

— all alternative treatments of financial information within GAAP that have
been discussed with management of the Company, ramifications of the use of
alternative disclosures and treatments, and the trecatment preferred by the
Auditors; and

— other material written communication between the Auditor and management
of the Company, such as any management letter or schedule of unadjusted
differences;

. discuss any analyscs prepared by management and the Auditor that set out
significant financial reporting issucs and judgments made in connection with the
preparation of the financial statements, including analyses of the effects of
alternative GAAP,;

. discuss the effect of off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent liabilitics) and other relationships with unconsolidated
entitics or other persons that may have a material current or future cffect on the
Company’s financial condition, changes in financial condition, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditurcs, capital resources, or significant
components of revenues and expenses;




e consider any changes in accounting practices or policies and their impact on
financial statements of the Company;

. discuss with management, the Auditor and, if necessary, legal counsel, any
litigation, claim or other contingency, including tax assessments, that could have
a material effect upon the financial position of the Company, and the manner in
which these matters have been disclosed in the financial statements;

. discuss with management and the Auditor correspondence with regulators or
governmental agencies, employee complaints or published reports that raise
material issues regarding the Company’s financial statements or accounting
policies;

. discuss with the Auditor any special audit steps taken in light of any material
weaknesses in internal control;

. discuss with the Auditor any difficultics encountered in the course of the audit
work, including any restrictions on the scope of their procedures and access to
requested information, accounting adjustments proposed by the Auditor that were
not applied (bccause they were immaterial or otherwise), and significant
disagreements with management;

. consider any other matter which in its judgment should be taken into account in
recaching its recommendation to the Board concerning the approval of the
financial statements;

. satisfy itself that appropriate accounting policies and practices have been selected
and applied consistently; and '

. satisfy itsclf that management has established appropriate procedures to comply
with applicable lcgislation for the rcmittance of taxes, penston monies and
cmployee remuncration.

(i) Review of Interim Financial Statements

The Audit Committee shall also engage the Auditor to review the interim financial
statcments prior to the Audit Committce’s review of such financial statements. The Audit
Committee should discuss the interim financial statements and related MD&A with
management and the Auditor and, if satisficd that the interim financial statements present
fairly in all matcrial respects in accordance with GAAP the financial condition, results of
opcrations and cash flows, approve the interim financial statcments and review the related
MD&A on behalf of the Board.

(j) Other Financial Information

The Audit Committee shall review any carmnings releases, as well as the nature of any
financial information and carnings guidance provided {o analysts and rating agencics in
accordance with the Company’s disclosure policy. In addition, the Audit Committee shall
satisfy itself that adequate procedurcs are in place for the review of the public disclosure of




information extracted or derived from the Company’s financial statements and must
periodically assess the adequacy of those procedures.

(k) Review of Prospectuses and Other Regulatory Filings

The Audit Committee shall review all other financial statements of the Company that
require approval by the Board before they are released to the public, including, without
limitation, financial statements for use in prospectuses or other offering or public disclosure
documents and financial statements required by regulatory authorities. The Audit
Committee shall review the Annual Information Form of the Company prior to its filing.

() Review of Related Party Transactions

The Audit Committee shall review all material proposed related party transactions that are
not dealt with by a “special committec” of “independent directors™ pursuant to securities
law rulcs.

(m) Review of Internal Audit Function

The Audit Committec shall review the mandate of the internal audit function, the budget,
planned activities and organizational structure of the internal audit function to ensurc that it
is indepcndent of management and has sufficient resources to carry out its mandate.

The members shall meet privately with the senior officer in charge of internal audit as
frequently as the Audit Committee feels is appropriate for the Audit Committee to fulfil its
responsibilities, which shall not be less frequently than quarterty, to discuss any areas of
concern to the Audit Committee or to the sentor officer in charge of internal audit to
confirm that:

. significant resolved and any unresolved issues between auditors and management
have been brought to its attention;

. the principal risks of the Company’s businesses have been identificd by
management and appropriate policics and systems have been implemented to
manage thesce risks; and

. the integrnity of the Company’s internal control and management information
systems are satisfactory.

(n) Relations with Management

The members shall meet privately with management as frequently as the Audit Committee
feels is appropriate to fulfil its responsibilities, which shall not be less frequently than
quarterly, to discuss any arcas of concern to the Audit Committec or management.




(o) Oversight of Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Controls
and Procedures

The Audit Committee shall review with the asststance of management the adequacy of the
internal control over financial reporting that have been adopted by the Company.

The Audit Committee shall review with the assistance of management the effectiveness of
the controls and procedures that have been adopted to ensure the disclosure of all matenal
mformation about the Company and its subsidiaries that is required to be disclosed under
applicable law or the rulcs of thosc cxchanges on which securities of the Company are listed
or quoted. The Audit Committee shall receive regular reports from the Company’s
Disclosure Committec with respect to the Company’s system of disclosure controls and
procedures. The Audit Committec shall also review no less than annually the Company’s
Disclosure Policy.

(p) Legal Compliance

The Audit Committee shall review with legal counsel any legal matters that may have a
significant cffect on the Company’s financial statements. The Audit Committee should
revicw with lcgal counsel material inquirics received from regulators and governmental
agencies. The Audit Committee shall review with a representative of the Code of Conduct
Committce any material matters arising from any known or suspected violation of the
Company’s Code of Conduct and any material concerns regarding questionable accounting
or auditing matters raised through the Company’s ethics response line.

(q) Risk Management

The Audit Committee shall meet periodically with management to discuss the Company’s
policies with respect to risk assessment and management.

(r) Taxation Matters
The Audit Committee shall review the status of taxation matters of the Company.
(s) Hiring Policies

The Audit Committee shall review and approve thc Company’s hiring policics regarding
partners and professional employces of the present and former external auditor of the
Company.

COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE

The Audit Committec shall monitor the cffectiveness of the Company’s procedures for the
reccipt, retention and follow-up of complaints received by the Company regarding
accounting, internal controls, disclosure controls or auditing matters and for the
confidential, anonymous submission of concerns by employecs of the Company regarding
accounting, internal controls, or auditing matters. The Committee shall review with
management periodic reports in this regard.




8. REPORTING

The Audit Committee shall report to the Board on:

. the Auditor’s independence;

. the performance of the Auditor and the Audit Committee’s rccommendations
regarding the reappointment or termination of the Auditor;

J the performance of the internal audit function;

. the adequacy of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and

disclosure controls and procedurcs;

. the Audit Committee’s review of the annual and interim financial statements of
the Company and any GAAP reconciliation, including any issucs with respect to
the quality or integrity of the financial statements, and shall recommend whether
or not the¢ Board should approve the financial statements and any GAAP

reconciliation;
. the Audit Committee’s review of the annual and interim MD&A;
. the Audit Committee’s review of the Annual Information Form;
. the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory matters to the cxtent they

affect the financial statements of the Company; and

. al} other material matters dealt with by the Audit Commitiee.

9. REVIEW AND DISCLOSURE

This Charter should be reviewed by the Audit Committee at Icast annually and be submittcd
to the Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation Committee for
considcration with such amendments as the Audit Committee proposes and for
reccommendation to the Board for approval with such further amendments as the
Governance, Employee Development, Nominating and Compensation Committee proposes.

This Charter shall be posted on the Company’s Web site.

10. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The Audit Committee shall mect at least five times annually.

END




11. RETENTION OF EXPERTS

The Audit Committec may engage such special legal, accounting or other experts, without

Board approval and at the expense of the Company, as it considers necessary to perform its
dutics.




